2022-2025 Successor Agreement

Between

PERALTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

And

PERALTA FEDERATION OF TEACHERS

Date: September 1, 2023

Table of Contents

ARTICLE 1: RECOGNITION1-1
ARTICLE 2: SUPPORT OF AGREEMENT2-2
ARTICLE 3: EFFECT OF AGREEMENT3-3
ARTICLE 4: ACADEMIC FREEDOM4-4
ARTICLE 5: NON-DISCRIMINATION5-5
ARTICLE 6: FEDERATION RIGHTS6-6
ARTICLE 7: MANAGEMENT RIGHTS7-12
ARTICLE 8: SEPARABILITY AND SAVINGS8-13
ARTICLE 9: INTRA-DISTRICT TRANSFER
ARTICLE 10 : RESIGNATION
ARTICLE 11 : FACULTY EVALUATION AND TENURE PROCEDURES 11-18
ARTICLE 12 : SAFETY
ARTICLE 13 : PERSONNEL FILES
ARTICLE 14 : SPECIAL ASSIGNMENTS:
ARTICLE 15: WORKING CONDITIONS
ARTICLE 16: INTRA-DISTRICT MILEAGE
ARTICLE 17 : ACADEMIC CALENDAR 17-33
ARTICLE 18: HOURS, WORKLOAD, CLASS SIZE
ARTICLE 19 : GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE
ARTICLE 20 : DISCIPLINARY ACTION AND INVESTIGATIVE PROCEDURES 20-54
ARTICLE 21 : SALARY
ARTICLE 22 : HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS:
ARTICLE 23 : SENIORITY LIST
ARTICLE 24 : REDUCTION IN FORCE
ARTICLE 25 : PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT25-92
ARTICLE 26 : LEAVES
ARTICLE 27 : REDUCED WORKLOAD PROGRAM Error! Bookmark not defined.
ARTICLE 28 : MATRICULATION

ARTICLE 29 : RETIREMENT	29-121
ARTICLE 30 : PART-TIME TEMPORARY INSTRUCTORS	30-123
ARTICLE 31 : SUMMER SESSION AND INTERSESSION	31-133
ARTICLE 32: VOLUNTARY SICK LEAVE CONTRIBUTION	32-135
ARTICLE 33 : DISTANCE EDUCATION	33-137
ARTICLE 34: USE OF CAMERAS IN CLASSROOMS	34-140
ARTICLE 35 : TERM OF AGREEMENT	35-143

ARTICLE 1: RECOGNITION

Information on the definition of the bargaining unit and its members.

The District recognizes the Peralta Federation of Teachers as the sole and exclusive representative of those employees of the bargaining unit enumerated in the certification by the Public Employment Relations Board (PERB) dated March 16, 1979, case numbers SF-UM-174 (R-501A) and amendments thereto on file with PERB, and any agreements between the Peralta Federation of Teachers and the District.

If any new faculty positions, except those excluded above, are established during the term of this contract, the placement of those positions in or out of the bargaining unit shall be made by mutual agreement. Should the issue not be resolved within thirty (30) days of the establishment of such new positions, it may be submitted by either party to the PERB for its ruling.

Faculty means all persons employed as instructors, counselors, librarians and nurses, (including all part-time, temporary faculty) except guest lecturers, consultants and independent contractors.

ARTICLE 2: SUPPORT OF AGREEMENT

Information on mutual support of agreement.

During the Term of this Agreement, the District agrees not to negotiate with any other organization or with any person not officially designated by the Federation as its representative on matters upon which the Federation is the exclusive representative and which is within its scope of representation.

The Federation agrees not to negotiate with any other organization or with any person not officially designated by the District as its representative for the purpose of collective bargaining.

EFFECT OF AGREEMENT ARTICLE 3:

Information on agreement taking precedent over District practices and procedures

It is understood and agreed that the specific provisions contained in this Agreement shall prevail over District practices and procedures and over state laws to the extent permitted by state law.

ARTICLE 4: ACADEMIC FREEDOM

Statement of faculty freedom concerning their instruction

All faculty members will be given the freedom to exercise the responsibilities inherent in their assignments. Faculty members have the right to freedom of inquiry and instruction including freedom in the presentation and discussion of their subject. They have the freedom and right to express differing opinions and to foster and defend intellectual honesty.

Each faculty member is a citizen, a member of the learned profession and an officer of an educational institution. When faculty members speak or write as citizens, they should be free from institutional censorship or obligations.

Faculty members shall maintain the exclusive right and responsibility to determine the grades they assign on the basis of their professional judgment. The grades given to each student for any course of instruction taught shall be determined by the instructor of the course, and the determination of the student's grade by the instructor--in the absence of mistake, fraud, bad faith, or incompetence--shall be final.

ARTICLE 5: NON-DISCRIMINATION

Statement of the mutual commitment of the District and the Federation to non-discrimination.

The District and the Federation acknowledge and agree that there is a mutual obligation to adhere to a policy of non-discrimination, and to comply with all pertinent provisions of all federal and state non-discrimination laws regarding race, sex (including sexual harassment), religion, age, disability, marital status, sexual orientation, national origin, political affiliation or activity, participation in any labor or professional or political organization, family relationships to another employee, or the private and personal life of any employee.

Allegations that a member of the unit has been adversely affected by a misinterpretation, misapplication or violation of this provision of the Agreement shall not be subject to the arbitration step (Article 19 Step 4.b.) of the Agreement.

PCCD and PFT agree to collaborate on providing annual training to faculty regarding discrimination and harassment.

ARTICLE 6: FEDERATION RIGHTS

Federation rights in relation to District.

A. <u>Legal, Unrestricted and Non-confidential Information</u>

- a. The Director of Employee Relations will provide to the Federation, in a timely manner and upon reasonable request, all information requested by the Federation, which is consistent with the District's obligations to disclose information under the Rodda Act. Such data and information shall include but not be limited to the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of all members of the bargaining unit at the start of each semester. Such data and/or information will be made available in a format that does not require research and/or analytical manipulation. Excluded will be all confidential information or material as defined by applicable law. Included will be copies of all public studies, reports, and transactions.
- b. The District shall provide notice to the Federation 72 hours in advance of all "intake orientation" meetings with newly hired faculty, in order that a PFT representative can attend each such meetings.

B. Board Policies

- 1. The District shall provide the Federation with one (1) book of the Peralta Policy and Procedures Manual. During the term of this Agreement, the District shall provide the Federation with copies any changes, additions, alterations, or deletions to this book.
- 2. Proposed Board Policies and Administrative Procedures
 - a. At least 30 working days before a proposed District Board Policy or Administrative Procedure is presented to the Planning and Budget Council ("PBC"), the District will make a good faith effort to notify PFT of the proposed District Board Policy or Administrative Procedure by sending the text of the proposed Board Policy or Administrative Procedure via email to both the PFT President and the PFT Chief Negotiator.
 - b. The PFT shall, within 10 working days of receipt, notify the District of any proposed District Board Policy or Administrative Procedure which the PFT believes contains items which are negotiable. As part of that response, the PFT shall inform the District as to which aspects of the Policy or Procedure it believes are negotiable and the reason(s) for PFT's belief. The Union does not, by agreeing to provide such notice, waive its right to subsequently identify additional negotiable effects or impacts. If either party requires more time to review the proposal or requires information relevant to deciding whether the decision or effects require negotiations, it may request

additional time to review the matter. If the parties cannot mutually agree to allow additional time, PFT does not waive any rights it has to challenge the District's action under EERA, Gov. Code Sections 3540 et seq. in moving forward with the proposal.

- c. The District shall respond to the PFT within ten working days of receipt of any PFT notification above and inform the PFT of the following:
 - 1) Whether the District agrees or disagrees with PFT's contention(s) of negotiability; and
 - 2) If the District disagrees with any contention of negotiability, the District shall so state and shall state the reason for its position.
- d. If the District and the PFT agree that items in a District Board Policy or Administrative Procedure are negotiable, both sides shall make a good faith effort to meet and come to an agreement on these issues before the Board Policy or Procedure is submitted to the PBC.
- e. If the District and the PFT disagree on whether an item is negotiable, both sides shall nonetheless make a good faith effort to meet, discuss, and resolve their differences before the proposed Board Policy or Administrative Procedure is presented to the PBC.
- f. Nothing in this agreement is intended to supersede or override Article 3 of the CBA.

C. Board Minutes

The District shall furnish the Federation with two (2) copies of all official Board minutes and two (2) copies of each Board agenda "packet," excluding only confidential information or material defined by applicable law.

D. Facilities Usage

The Federation shall have the right of access at reasonable times to areas in which employees work, the right to use institutional bulletin boards, mailboxes, and other means of communication, subject to reasonable regulation, as well as the right to use institutional facilities and equipment, provided that such use or access shall not interfere with, nor interrupt, normal District or college operations nor cause an additional maintenance cost to the District. Upon advance request, and with approval of the college or District, the Federation will be granted the use of facilities.

The District shall make a good faith effort to provide the PFT and its local college officers with use of private office space and a telephone extension at each of the colleges and at the District Office.

E. Copies of this Agreement

Three hundred (300) copies of this Agreement shall be printed at the expense of the District and delivered to the union office within ninety (90) working days after its ratification by faculty members and formal adoption by the Board of Trustees. The District shall also maintain this contract on the District's website.

F. Federation/District Consultation

Designated representatives of the District and the Federation shall meet at least once a month to review the implementation and administration of this contract and attempt to resolve whatever differences and problems that might arise.

Representatives of the PFT shall also meet with college administrators at least once a month to resolve problems that might arise at that level.

The Federation shall extend an invitation to the Chancellor to meet and confer with the Executive Board of the PFT at least two (2) times a year on a mutually agreeable date and agenda.

The Chancellor shall designate at least one (1) PFT faculty seat on the following committees/councils:

- 1. Budget Advisory Committee (BAC);
- 2. Chancellor's Policy Advisory Committee (CPAC);
- 3. Council on Instruction, Planning and Development;
- 4. Safety Committee;
- 5. AB 1725 Joint Governance Committees; and
- 6. Facilities Usage Committee.

G. Professional Dues and Payroll Deductions

- 1. The Board shall deduct Federation dues and/or PFT Committee on Political Education (COPE) contributions from the salary warrants of faculty members, including part-time faculty, following receipt of certification from the Federation that a faculty member covered by this Agreement has authorized such dues and/or PFT/COPE contribution deduction. The Board shall deduct one-twelfth (1/12) of such dues from the regular check of the faculty member for twelve (12) months.
- 2. The total amount of dues and PFT/COPE contributions deducted, together with a list of faculty members from whose pay they were deducted, along with the amount deducted from each faculty member and a list of faculty members who had authorized such deductions and those from whom no deductions were made, shall be forwarded to the

Federation office no later than thirty (30) days after such deductions were made. Deduction will cease within thirty (30) calendar days of written notice from the Federation that an employee has revoked membership and authorization for dues deduction and/or PFT/COPE Contributions from payroll. The District is not responsible for pursuing dues payment or arrears from faculty on unpaid leave.

- 3. The District shall, upon proper receipt of authorization, deduct from the salary warrants of all faculty members, including part-time faculty, the following:
 - a. State and Federal required deductions;
 - b. Dues to the following professional associations:
 - 1) Peralta Federation of Teachers;
 - 2) Faculty Association, California Community Colleges;
 - 3) Academic Senate (District and Colleges);
 - 4) California Higher Education Association;
 - 5) California Association of Educators.
 - c. Amounts for the purchase of tax-deferred annuities approved by the Board (there are currently over 80 approved annuities);
 - d. Payments to credit unions listed below:
 - 1) City and County Employee's Credit Union;
 - 2) Alameda Municipal Credit Union;
 - 3) California Federation of Teachers Credit Union;
 - 4) All currently outstanding CTA Credit Union withholdings contracted prior to June, 1984;
 - 5) Provident Central Credit Union.
 - e. Amounts for the purchase of U.S. Savings Bonds;
 - f. Contributions to:
 - 1) United Way of the Bay Area;
 - 2) The Progressive Way;
 - 3) Bay Area Black United Fund;
 - 4) Bay Area CHAD (Combined Health Agencies Drive);
 - 5) The Peralta Foundation;
 - 6) The Environmental Federation of California;
 - 7) Laney Activities Association
 - g. Health and welfare contributions for District-offered group plans;

6-9

- h. District approved life insurance premiums;
- i. District approved disability insurance premiums;
- i. PFT Committee on Political Education (COPE);
- k. State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS) deductions;
- 1. The STRS Cash Balance Program, so long as District contributions are the same as or less than the then current Social Security Contribution;
- m. In addition to the above, deductions which the Peralta Board may approve in the future.
- 4. Upon appropriate written authorization from the faculty member, Board shall deduct from the salary of such faculty member deductions which were authorized as of the effective date of this Agreement or which the Peralta Board may approve in the future.
- 5. The PFT agrees that, in the event of litigation against the District by or on the part of employees arising out of implementation of this Article, it shall defend and indemnify and hold harmless the District, its agents, or employees for any monetary award arising out of such litigation.

H. Grievance Processing Released Time

The District will grant released time to the President of the Federation or their designee and to a Federation representative at each campus, who shall be identified and designated annually by the Federation, to perform services directly involved in the handling of grievances including grievances related to disciplinary action. If such grievance hearing is scheduled during duty hours, the grievant and their representative shall be considered on released time.

I. Release Time

The PFT shall have 2.0 FTE release time. The PFT may purchase additional release time at actual replacement cost.

J. Federation Rights

The District or its agents shall not threaten to impose reprisal on employees or to discriminate against or otherwise interfere with, restrict or coerce employees due specifically to their exercise of the rights guaranteed under the provision of 3543.5(A) of the California Government Code (SB 160).

L. Separability and Savings

If any provision of this Agreement or any application of this Agreement to any employee or group of employees is held invalid by operation of law or by a court, such provision shall be inoperative; however, all other provisions shall not be affected hereby and shall continue in full force and effect.

At the request of either party. the parties agree to enter into negotiations for the revision of the Agreement with respect to any item that becomes invalid by reason of the above.

ARTICLE 7: MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

Recognition of District Management

The Federation recognizes and agrees that the exercise of the express legal powers, rights, duties and responsibilities by the Board, e.g. the adoption of policies, rules, and regulations shall be limited only by the specific and express terms of this Agreement, and by local, state and federal law.

The Federation recognizes and agrees that the District's powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities include the right to manage the District, direct, select, decrease and increase the work force subject to local, state and federal law.

The Federation recognizes and agrees that the District retains its rights to temporarily amend, modify, or rescind practices referred to in this Agreement in case of emergency. An emergency is considered an Act of God or a natural disaster or other acts, which may be injurious or harmful to the students, employees, or to the educational mission of the District. When an emergency is declared, the District shall immediately notify and consult with the Federation.

The District agrees that, in regard to a declared emergency and decisions made therein, the Federation shall have the right to subject such declaration and decisions made therein to the provisions of the grievance procedure when such declaration and decisions violate the provisions of this Agreement. Any actions taken by the District as a result of a Declaration of Emergency shall be reasonable under the circumstances, and the District shall, upon request of the Federation, restore the status quo ante the emergency as soon as reasonably practicable.

ARTICLE 8: SEPARABILITY AND SAVINGS

Information of validity of provision of the contract.

If any provision of this Agreement or any application of this Agreement to any employee or group of employees is held invalid by operation of law or by a court, such provision shall be inoperative; however, all other provisions shall not be affected hereby and shall continue in full force and effect.

At the request of either party, the parties agree to enter into negotiations for the revision of the Agreement with respect to any item that becomes invalid by reason of the above.

ARTICLE 9: INTRA-DISTRICT TRANSFER

Process and procedure for transfers.

A. Definitions

- 1. Transfer is a change in location from one college to another college.
- 2. Reassignment is a change from one Faculty Service Area (FSA) assignment to another FSA assignment at the same college.
- 3. A vacancy shall be defined as any unfilled regular or probationary faculty assignment, including, but not limited to, any newly created position and any position vacated by reason of death, retirement, or transfer.

B. Voluntary Transfers

All regular and probationary faculty members who meet the minimum qualifications shall have the right to apply for a vacant faculty position at any of the Peralta Colleges including the college where they are currently working. The following procedure shall govern such voluntary transfers:

1. Internal Position Announcements

All faculty tenure track position vacancies will first be advertised internally throughout the District to provide an opportunity for current probationary and tenured faculty members to apply. The job announcement will be developed in accordance with the District Hiring Policies adopted by the Board of Trustees.

2. Distribution of Internal Announcements

The District will make a good-faith effort to notify all faculty members of tenure track position vacancies. Every effort will be made to ensure that job announcements are posted on college bulletin boards and mailed to faculty members via the inter-district mail process. Provided the District has made a good-faith effort to notify faculty, failure to notify individuals shall not be grievable.

3. Announcement Period

Internal announcements will be advertised for the period of 10 working days during the academic calendar year.

4. Application Process

Faculty members may apply for position vacancies by completing the District Academic Application Form by the deadline date indicated on the announcement.

5. Interview and Selection Process

- a. In accordance with the procedures established in the District Hiring Policies, the Selection Committee will be impaneled to review all tenured and probationary faculty members' applications, conduct interviews with all candidates and make a recommendation as to whether or not to accept any of the applicants to fill the position. If a candidate is selected by another Peralta College; the candidate will be permitted to make the transfer. Unusual circumstances may require a delay until a suitable replacement is found.
- b. If the Selection Committee recommends an applicant for a voluntary transfer, the College President may choose the candidate or begin the public advertisement process. If the President does not accept a recommended candidate, the president will provide a reason to the faculty member. Disputes over non-selection of a recommended candidate are not subject to the grievance procedure set for this in this Agreement.
- c. If the committee decides not to recommend any candidates for the position, the vacancy will be publicly announced and the District Hiring process will commence.
- d. During the period a position is announced publicly, faculty members may continue to apply for a position vacancy, without prejudice, if they desire.
- e. The decision of the selection committee shall not be grievable.

6. Permanent Voluntary Transfers All voluntary transfers are to be considered permanent.

C. Involuntary Transfers

When involuntary transfers must be made to another location, they shall be in accordance with the following procedures:

- 1. If a college discontinues or reduces a particular program which results in the transfer to another location of a regular or probationary faculty member, and if another college within the District is offering a program for which this faculty member is both qualified and competent to work, and in which a vacancy exists or in which they are senior to other faculty members; then this person must be given an opportunity to transfer to the college which can utilize their service.
- 2. When the District finds it necessary to transfer a faculty member from one college to another because of staffing conditions, volunteers will first be sought.
 - a. The position vacancy will be advertised internally throughout the District to provide an opportunity for faculty members to apply.

- b. The District will distribute a notice to all faculty members who are competent and qualified to work in the designated Faculty Service Area.
- c. Faculty members will have fifteen (15) working days during the academic calendar year in which to respond.
- d. In the case of more than one affirmative response, the faculty member with the most seniority, who is both competent and qualified, shall be selected.
- e. In the case of no voluntary respondents, the person(s) with the least seniority who is (are) qualified and competent to work in the FSA will be assigned for the transfer.
- 3. Transfers made for the convenience of the District or short-term interchanges are to be made with the understanding that the transferee will return to the original institution to fill the first vacancy (equal to their contract load level) for which they are competent and qualified. If a faculty member, transferred for the convenience of the District, finds that they wish to remain at the second college, and if that institution wishes to retain that person, then they shall have the privilege of remaining.
- 4. The faculty member(s) to be involuntarily transferred shall be given official notice at least forty (40) calendar days prior to the beginning of the semester in which the transfer is to take effect. The written notice of transfer shall specify the effective date, time, work location, and course and/or other assignments of the new position.

Exceptions to the forty-day notice requirement may be made in unusual circumstances, such as sudden resignation, death, illness, accident, emergency leave, physical catastrophe, or unexpected and unavoidable incidents.

ARTICLE 10: RESIGNATION

Provisions for faculty resignation.

- A. A faculty member may not be threatened with dismissal action by the college or District administration so as to force the faculty member to submit a resignation of employment.
- B. A faculty member who submits a written resignation may withdraw the resignation within ten (10) working days.
- C. A Resignation Form shall be used by the faculty member in submitting a resignation to the appropriate college administrator. See Appendix 2 (A2) for Resignation Form.
- D. All District property, including but not limited to keys, will be returned to the appropriate administrator prior to the effective date of resignation.
- E. When a faculty member terminates their service at the Peralta Community College District ("PCCD"), or is terminated, they will be paid all amounts owed for all extra-service, out-of-calendar work completed prior to the final date of employment, no later than 10 days from the end of their final pay period.

FACULTY EVALUATION AND TENURE PROCEDURES **ARTICLE 11:**

See APPENDIX 20 for procedure.

All faculty evaluation and tenure review procedures included in the current "Faculty Evaluation Handbook" are incorporated in and part of this Agreement.

Please refer to APPENDIX 20 (A20).

ARTICLE 12: SAFETY

Information on class dismissal and reporting.

A. <u>District Compliance</u>

The District shall conform to and comply with all health, safety, and sanitation laws, and with the guidelines of CAL OSHA and all other regulatory agencies that govern employee health, safety and security.

B. Safety Committee

The District shall establish a safety committee to review health, safety, sanitation, security and working conditions to ensure compliance with CAL OSHA and all other regulatory agencies that govern employee health, safety and security. The committee shall make recommendations to the District appointed administrator who shall chair the safety committee meetings.

C. Release Time

The members of the committee shall be allowed reasonable release time to attend safety committee meetings.

D. No Discrimination

No employee shall be in any way discriminated against as a result of reporting any condition believed to be a violation of CAL OSHA or other regulatory agencies that govern employee health, safety and security.

E. Safety Precautions

Each faculty member shall observe normally-acceptable safety precautions in the performance of their assigned duties.

F. Reporting Violations

1. Faculty members will report in writing to their immediate supervisor any conditions, which come to their attention that may pose a threat to the health or safety of any person associated with the District. In the case of emergencies, such reports do not have to be in writing and shall be addressed within 24 hours or by the next workday.

- 2. The District shall investigate allegations of health and safety violations within seven (7) days and take appropriate actions in a timely manner to correct the condition found to be unhealthy or unsafe.
- 3. The faculty member making the report shall be notified within thirty (30) days in writing of the action(s) taken as a result of their report.
- 4. In addition to, or in lieu of, the actions outlined above, a faculty member may file a complaint with CAL OSHA or any other local, state, or federal regulatory agency without threat or fear of reprisal.

G. Class Dismissal

Faculty members will have the right to dismiss a class without loss of compensation for that workday when the health or safety of students or employees is believed to be endangered. The faculty member must report the incident in writing to their administrator as soon as possible, but no later than 24 hours after the incident or the next workday.

H. Safety Reports

The District will send a copy of its annual report in compliance with applicable laws and District safety policies to the Peralta Federation of Teachers (PFT). A copy will also be on file, and available for inspection, in the Office of Risk Management.

ARTICLE 13: PERSONNEL FILES

Information on accessibility, contents and maintenance.

- A. For the purposes of this Article, a "personnel file" is any record that:
 - 1. pertains directly to the employment relationship between the faculty member and the District:
 - 2. is retained in the personnel files of the District; and,
 - 3. is accessible by the employee's name or other means of individual identification such as social security number.
- B. The personnel file may include records of employment with the District, records of educational advancement and other work or experience pertaining to the faculty member's position with the District, and records of professional evaluation as prescribed by state law.
 - 1. There shall be only one official personnel file for each faculty member. This file shall be kept in a locked file in the District Personnel Office and shall be available for inspection by the member or by a Federation representative expressly authorized in writing by the faculty member, unless the release is compelled by law or by a judicial order or by a lawfully issued subpoena. When such access is gained, the employee shall be notified in writing.
 - 2. All materials in the file shall be signed by the source of the material and dated. Anonymous communications shall not be placed in the official personnel file, nor shall materials attributed to unnamed sources.
 - 3. The faculty member shall have the right to obtain copies of any item in their file.
- C. Materials in personnel files of an employee which may serve as a basis for affecting the status of their employment are to be made available for the inspection of the person involved.
- D. Such material is not to include ratings, reports, or records which:
 - 1. were obtained prior to the employment of the person involved;
 - 2. were prepared by identifiable examination committee members; or
 - 3. were obtained in connection with a promotional examination.
- E. Every employee shall have the right to inspect such materials upon request, provided that the request is made at a time when such person is not actually required to render service to the employing District.
- F. Information of a non **pro forma** nature, except material mentioned in Section D of this Article, shall not be entered or filed unless and until the employee is given notice and an opportunity to review and comment thereon. An employee shall have the right to enter and have attached to any derogatory statement the employee's own comments thereon. Such review shall take place during normal business hours, and the employee shall be released from duty for this purpose without salary reduction.

- G. Personnel files shall be maintained in accordance with the Education Code.
- H. Faculty members shall have the right to petition the District Personnel Office to have any and all derogatory information removed from their file after such information has been in the file for three (3) or more years. Denial of such petition shall not be grievable.
- I. Upon written request of the faculty member, disagreement over the factual content of materials placed in their personnel file shall be referred to a professional relations committee for determination of fact. Said committee shall be established by joint agreement between the District and the Academic Senate. Both the District and the faculty member, or their designee, shall have the right and be given reasonable time to call witnesses and present evidence. All participants shall have released time if the hearing occurs during duty hours. The conclusion of the committee shall be placed in the faculty member's personnel file.

ARTICLE 14: SPECIAL ASSIGNMENTS:

Information on provisions for Department Chairpersons, Other Special Assignments and Tenure Facilitators.

The provisions of this Article apply to Department Chairpersons, Head Librarians, and Counseling Department Chairperson assignments and any new job titles created by the District in the bargaining unit during the term of this Agreement. See Appendix A10 for job descriptions for the above listed special assignments.

A. Allocation of Department Chair Release Time

- 1. The total 15.3 FTE Department Chair release time shall be allocated as follows:
 - a. The District shall compile the total number of active sections at each college on the first day of instruction of each semester, summer and intersession.
 - b. The total number of sections for the full previous year shall be calculated on the first day of each Spring semester.
 - c. District Department Chair release time shall be allocated to the colleges in proportion to their share of the total sections in 1b, above.

In addition to the foregoing, athletic directors, nursing directors, and the director of radiologic technology shall continue to receive released time consistent with state-mandated requirements. Appointment shall be made by the President of the College after review by the appropriate Dean in consultation with the faculty in the Department.

B.

B. Selection Procedure

- 1. The term of office for Department Chairpersons, Counseling Department Chairpersons and Head Librarians shall be from July 1 through June 30. Release time shall be for the academic year only.
- 2. The faculty of each department will select a person to be recommended for the position of Department Chairperson, Counseling Department Chairperson and Head Librarian. The appropriate division administrator or dean shall have overall responsibility for ensuring that the election process occurs as outlined below. Final selection will be made by the President of the College after review by the appropriate division administrator and Dean. If the President does not select the person, the department faculty may select another faculty member who shall be appointed. In the event no candidates are recommended, the President may make the appointment. The Department Chairperson, Counseling Department Chairperson and Head Librarian will serve for one (l) year, except where there is mutual agreement between the President and the faculty members of the affected department. The incumbent Department Chairperson shall initiate and oversee an election process between April 1 and May 1 for the purpose of selecting a Department Chairperson for the following year. Election shall be by secret ballot and all faculty

members are eligible to vote on an equal basis. Results shall be published and records (including ballots) kept for one year.

a) Eligibility

- 1) Any contract faculty member must not be on extended leave for more than 60 days during the academic year of the year they plan to serve, or any part-time faculty member who has had an assignment in the department during the current academic year is eligible to run and serve as department chair.
- 2) Any contract faculty member and any part-time faculty member who currently has an assignment in the department (or cluster) is eligible to nominate candidates and vote for chair.
 - i. If the election of a part-time faculty member as chair or co-chair will result in a load over 67%, the part-time faculty member shall indicate their preferred assignment to the VPI (or designee) in writing by the last day of the spring semester. In cases where preference is not given, the faculty member's teaching load will be reduced so that their total load does not exceed 67%.
- 3) Disputes over eligibility will be heard by a committee made up of the current chair, the dean. and a PFT representative.
- 4) Candidates must be able as chairs to attend to department business meetings in person on campus.

b) Nominations

- 1) The current chair distributes a nomination form (see attached) to all eligible faculty by April 1, or the closest business day following April 1; the form shall also be sent to the dean and the PFT rep(s) to verify nominations have begun.
- 2) If the department chair fails to send out nomination forms by April 1, the dean shall work to ensure that the process is completed.
- 3) Nominations will take place over ten business days. including at least one weekend for weekend instructors.
- 4) Co-chairs have to be paired on the nomination, and both have to accept and sign. The expectation is that co-chairs shall serve jointly over the entire academic year.
- 5) Self-nominations are acceptable.
- 6) Nominations are returned to a collection box in a central location; designated incumbent chair along with PFT rep(s) will distribute forms back to appropriate chair (or PFT designee).
- 7) The nominations are closed on the designated date; no additional nominations are allowed.
- 8) If a department chair finds that a nominee is ineligible, they will notify the PFT reps and the PFT president.
- 9) Distance Ed faculty must mail in their nominations to the dept. chair; nomination forms must be received by the close of the nomination period.

c. Election:

1) A copy of the blank ballot must be sent to the PFT reps at the time the ballots are distributed to the department.

- 2) Ballots must have space for a write-in.
- 3) Election takes place over ten business days, including at least one weekend for weekend instructors.
- 4) Ballots have to be placed in one envelope, with no name or signature on it, and then sealed. This envelope must then be placed in a larger envelope which has the employee's name (legible) and their signature on it. This envelope must be sealed.
- 5) Completed ballots should be returned to a secure ballot box in the VPI's office.
- 6) Once the elections are closed, no additional ballots will be allowed.
- 7) If no one in the department has voted, then the college President can make an appointment.
- 8) In the event of a tie for first place, the election must be rerun, with the tied candidates on the ballot and a space for a write-in. If there is another tie in the rerun election, the college President shall select the winner among the candidates who tied. The President's selection is not grievable, but violations of the procedure are grievable.
- 9) The election results. including vote counts, are posted/e-mailed to faculty by the incumbent chair.
- 10) If there is any question as to the validity of a vote, the PFT president makes final determination.
- 11) As per Article 14, the final selection will be made by the college president after review by the appropriate administrator and dean. If the president does not select the person elected, the department shall hold another election to select a different faculty member who shall be automatically appointed. If a co-chair team is elected but not chosen by the college president, the faculty who ran as co-chairs can run as individuals in the second election, but the same team cannot run again. If a chair or a co-chair cannot complete their term, a new election shall be held in accordance with the provisions above (co-chairs are elected as teams; therefore, if one of the co-chairs steps down, a new election must be called).
- 12) In the event that there are no nominees and no write-ins on the election ballot, the college president may make an appointment.
- 13) Distance Ed faculty must mail in their ballots to the VPI in care of the college; nomination forms must be received by the close of the election period.

d. Ballot Counting:

- 1) Ballots are counted by PFT (at least one rep) and dean/administrator. Other interested parties may attend.
- 2) A summary of votes is created. The final summary is signed by the vote-counters.
- 3) The summary and all raw votes are kept for one year in the VPI's office.

e. Unexpected Vacancies:

1) If there occurs a vacancy in the chair's position, either because of a tie in the Spring election, the result of the resignation of the chair or a co-chair or co-chairs or any other situation creating a vacancy during the course of the year, the duties and obligations are continuous.

2) These duties and associated release time pay may temporarily fall to either the cochair (if they exist), the previous chair, or a volunteer. The dean or administrator must call an immediate emergency meeting of the department faculty, both full and part-time. Nominations may be verbally given, but the proposed chair or cochairs must be present to attest to their availability. A secret ballot (not a double envelope) will be taken, and the result will be the temporary chair. A quorum at the emergency meeting will consist of those present. The winner will be elected from a simple majority. If no faculty attend this meeting, then the temporary chair may be designated by the college President. The temporary chair's first duty will to be to start proper election procedures. This individual may not serve for longer than the time necessary to determine a new permanent chair.

C. Allocation Criteria and Procedures

- 1. The Vice President of Instruction (or the VP designee) of each college, after consulting with the Academic Senate President and the PFT Chapter Chairs, shall allocate the contractual FTE to each department (or cluster of disciplines) considering the following criteria in making such allocations:
 - a. Full-time FTE in the department;
 - b. Part-time FTE in the department;
 - c. The size and complexity of the departments' budget allocation;
 - d. Any facilities (such as laboratories) and/or equipment that must be monitored;
 - e. Classified staff FTE assigned to the department;
 - f. The need for the Department Chairperson to be involved in community groups or other outside agencies;
 - g. Departmental responsibility for assessment or admission of students to programs.
- 2. The President of the college and the PFT Chapter Chairs shall each appoint two (2) members of a joint faculty-administration appeals committee on Reassigned Time Allocation for Department Chairpersons, Head Librarians and Counseling Department Chairpersons. If the faculty members in a department believe that the allocation of reassigned time is inadequate for their department, they may appeal their allocation to this committee. The committee shall examine the arguments made by the faculty in the department in light of the criteria listed in Part 1 above, and make a recommendation to the President of the College. The President may accept or reject this recommendation.
- D. In the event that the District's financial status is seriously impacted by the passage of any state or federal law which restricts budgetarily any of the special assignments provided for in this Article, the released time ratios and/or stipends for Department Chairperson/Program Developer may be open for renegotiations.

E. Department Chair Evaluation Procedure

1. The Peralta Community College District ("District") recognizes the importance of providing a quality, rewarding educational experience for its students, staff, and faculty.

The District also recognizes that the success of achieving this goal will require better and improved communication among its stakeholders, including students, faculty members, department chairs, and the administration. To do that, the District is committed to providing timely feedback to department chairs in order for them to effectively carry out their responsibilities and at the same time promote collegiality among its faculty ranks.

- 2. The purpose of this procedure is to provide for efficient resolution of educational matters related to curriculum development, scheduling, budget development and other related duties and responsibilities as specified in the Department Chair job description (Appendix Al0).
- 3. A Dean shall meet with a Department Chair no later than December 15th to review the chair's performance for the preceding three months. The chair will receive a written evaluation and, if necessary, a needs improvement work plan containing future performance objectives for the next three months. The Dean is responsible for documenting the meeting and to follow up on any concerns the chair may have.
- 4. For those Chairs who have received a needs improvement work plan and have failed to meet the performance objectives in the intervening three months, the dean shall convene a second meeting no later than. March 1st and shall issue another written evaluation and needs improvement work plan to the chair. The chair may submit a written rebuttal to the written evaluation within five (5) working days after said meeting. The Chair may request a "vote of confidence" election from their department. If an election is to be held, it shall take place no later than March 10th and the ballots should be counted no later than March 20th.
- 5. The ballot will be conducted with a double envelope, secret ballot election on the issue, with a vote on whether the chair is performing "satisfactory" or "unsatisfactory".
- 6. Copies of the evaluation, the needs improvement work plan, the rebuttal (if provided) and the election result shall be forwarded to the Vice President of Instruction and the College President.
- 7. The president can use this evaluation as the basis of a veto per Article 14, Section B, Paragraph 2 above.

G. Release Time for Tenure Facilitators

Also See the Faculty Evaluation Handbook "College Evaluation Coordinators"

Beginning in 2015-16, the following formula shall be used to determine facilitator release time at each college:

- 1. Double the number of first year tenure review committees at the college as of the first day on instruction in the Fall semester. Add to that the number of 2nd, 3rd, and 4th year TRCs at the college, as of the first day of instruction in the Fall semester.
- 2. Multiply the total in "a" by 0.0115. This number, rounded to the nearest 0.1 FTEF, shall be the facilitator release at the college, unless the number is below 0.2 FTE. If the number is below 0.2 FTE, the facilitator shall receive 0.2 FTE release time.
- 3. Either side may reopen this section of the agreement if there is a significant change in the expected workload of this position.

H. Other Special Assignments

The process for the development of other new special assignments not already set forth elsewhere in the Contract, Appendix or Board Policy (such as Senate and Curriculum Committee assignments), including the process for determining the amount of any stipend above \$2000 and/or release time and the duration of any such special assignment shall be as follows:

- 1. Release Time and Stipend Special Assignments
 - a. The development of the special assignment and the determination of the stipend and/or release time shall be at the sole discretion of the College President or Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs. The placement of any faculty member in any such special assignment shall be by mutual agreement between the faculty member and either the District administration or College President or designee. Any such special assignments created pursuant to this Article may include both ZZOIS ("other assigned time") assignments and specific work done by faculty in return for a set monetary stipend.
 - b. For new and renewing special assignments under this Article, the College President, Vice President, or Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs (if a District Office assignment) shall notify College faculty of the availability of the assignment via a general email at least ten (10) working days before a final selection is made. The notification and selection process may take place during the semester prior to the start of the new assignment or during summer session but shall not take place during intersession or during a period when the College is not in session.
- 2. Any concern with the rate of pay or compliance with the announcement guidelines (see Article 14.H.3.) shall be submitted to the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources & Employee Relations. The Vice Chancellor shall respond within seven (7) days.
- 3. The email announcement shall include:
 - a. Notice that faculty are required to submit a "Statement of Interest" via email to the President and/or the appropriate Vice President or Vice Chancellor.
 - b. The length of the assignment, including a starting and ending date.
 - c. The amount of release time and/or stipend for the assignment.
 - d. The amount of time expected for completion of the assignment. A range of hours can be provided in cases of stipends. If assignments exceed hours in the initial posting, reposting is required.
 - e. Notice whether the assignment is "ancillary," as defined pursuant to Education Code 87482.5 subsection (c) (i), or counted towards load for part-time faculty.
 - f. The required and/or desired skills for the assignment.
 - g. A description or summary of the responsibilities of the assignment.
 - h. Notice of the selection process for the assignment, which shall be defined as the President or Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs reviewing the submitted Statements of Interest and making a decision.
 - i. Notice of whether or not the President or the appropriate Vice President or Vice Chancellor is planning to conduct interviews for the assignment, which shall be at their sole discretion.

- j. The assessment process for the assignment following the conclusion of the assignment.
- k. Notice that the President or Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs has the right, at their discretion, not to continue the faculty member in the special assignment after the posted ending date, and that this decision shall not be subject to the grievance procedure.
- 4. When a faculty member is chosen for a special assignment, the member shall be notified via email within five (5) working days after the selection is made. The email shall include the complete announcement (#3 above). A copy of the email shall be sent to the PFT President.
- 5. Each faculty member chosen for a special assignment shall be compensated at the faculty member's non-instructional rate.
- 6. The District choice of faculty member for an assignment under Article 14 H shall not be subject to the grievance procedure, but any allegation that the District failed to follow the process outlined above shall be subject to the grievance procedure.

ARTICLE 15: WORKING CONDITIONS

Information on faculty parking, clothing, equipment and supplies, etc.

A. Faculty Parking

All necessary parking decals or stickers shall be provided at no cost to the faculty members and no parking fees shall be charged to faculty members. When faculty assignments are located at sites that charge for parking, the District will reimburse faculty members for their parking expenses when validated by receipts.

B. Clothing/Uniform/Equipment

The District shall provide the faculty member with any protective clothing, uniforms, or equipment that is required by the District in order to teach in their discipline. In cases where employees are supplied with safety equipment, they will be required to wear and/or use such equipment.

C. Equipment and Supplies

The District will provide reasonable access to a telephone, a personal computer, a printer, and other equipment and supplies needed by a faculty member for the performance of their professional responsibilities.

D. Office Space

The District will provide faculty members with the office space necessary to perform their professional responsibilities. Provided the District has made a good faith effort in the provision office space, this paragraph shall not be grievable.

E. <u>Health Screening/Medical Records</u>

The District shall reimburse faculty members for health screening, physical examinations, testing, and immunization that is required by the District or outside agency contracting with the District. Special training required by the District or outside agency contracting with the District that is not required for state or District minimum qualifications for faculty service shall either be provided by the District or reimbursed by the District. Contracts with outside agencies shall require that all health screening, physical examination and testing information be kept confidential.

F. Special Training/Orientation

Faculty members shall receive Flex Day credit, up to the maximum allowed, for time spent in orientation and special training required by the District or outside agencies contracting with the District. Flex Day credit shall first be used to cover the required orientation and special training. The District shall compensate faculty members for orientation and special training required by the District or outside agencies contracting with the District at .50 pro rata if more time is required than is available for Flex Day Credit. Up to 100% of the time allotted for Flex Day activity may be used for the purpose, if necessary, of fulfilling the special training/orientation obligation.

ARTICLE 16: INTRA-DISTRICT MILEAGE

Information on reimbursement for mileage.

- A. Faculty members whose assignments necessitate travel within a single instructional day shall be compensated for the use of their automobile at the current federal rate per mile. The rate of compensation for travel shall be adjusted at the start of each fiscal year to match the IRS rate in effect on July 1.
- B. It is understood that the above reimbursement shall only be applicable in cases when the faculty member is assigned to more than one geographical location in a single instructional day.
- C. Request for automobile reimbursement shall be submitted monthly, and no obligation will exist for payment of reimbursement requests that are submitted 60 or more days after the date on which they were incurred.
- D. To receive reimbursement, a "Transportation Report" must be completed and submitted to the appropriate administrator.

ARTICLE 17: ACADEMIC CALENDAR

Information on calendar for full-time faculty members.

- A. The Academic Calendar of the District shall be jointly developed by the District and the Federation for a three-year period. This includes, but is not limited to, beginning and ending dates, holidays, professional days, early start, uniform calendar, and total number of workdays. The proposed calendars for any academic year shall be prepared in draft form by the District and then given to the Federation for agreement. (See Appendix for copy.)
- B. The College academic year calendar shall consist of 175 contracted days for full-time faculty members.
- C. Up to fifteen (15)¹ of the 175 days may be provided for faculty members to enable them to participate in professional development activities.
- D. The PFT and the District Academic Senate will jointly work with the District to develop the program and the content for any and all Professional Development Days that might be agreed upon by the District and the PFT.

¹ The present number of days is six (6) and will remain so during the life of this agreement unless it is changed by mutual agreement.

Page | 17-33

ARTICLE 18: HOURS, WORKLOAD, CLASS SIZE

A. Faculty Assignments

- 1. The District shall maintain load and assignment policies for all the colleges in the Peralta Community College District consistent with the provisions of this Agreement.
- 2. All regular and probationary faculty members shall provide a full professional service week that includes teaching, teaching preparation, advising, evaluation, class sign-up/enrollment, maintenance of office hours, meetings and participation in the governance structure of the college and District.
- 3. The full-time base contract load shall be fifteen (15) equated hours per week.
- 4. The full-time base contract load for non-instructional faculty members are the following:
 - a. Counselors 30 hours per week
 - b. Librarians 30 hours per week
 - c. Nurses 30 hours per week
 - d. Disabled Student Counselors and Coordinators 30 hours per week
 - e. All other non-instructional assignments 30 hours per week
- 5. Faculty load policies for the Peralta Colleges are the following:
 - a. All lectures including English composition shall be equated at 1.00.
 - b. CO-OP Education: 125 students

Any CO-OP education workload in excess of 125 students shall be treated as extra service. The extra service equated load is determined as follows: {Number of Students - 125}/125.

Example:

Assume a workload of 150 students for one semester.

150 - 125 = 25/125 = .2 equated load.

If the Title 5 Regulations affecting the workload for CO-OP education are changed, either party may reopen negotiations on this item.

- c. All labs shall be equated at 0.80.
- d. All non-instructional assignments shall be equated at 0.50.
- e. All counseling assignments shall be equated at 0.50.
- f. All librarian assignments shall be equated at 0.50.
- g. All part-time counseling, librarian, nursing and mental health specialist assignments shall be equated at 0.58.
- h. All other non-instructional assignments shall be equated at 0.50.

6. Full-time instructors shall schedule, post and maintain at least five (5) office hours per week, four (4) hours to be scheduled over four (4) days and one (1) hour to be arranged.

7.

- 7. Part-time and extra service office hours:
 - a. Office Hours shall be defined as follows whenever possible:
 - (i) Face-to-face classes: office hours shall be on campus (or at a location where class is held) at a designated time and location.
 - (ii) Online classes: office hours shall be online at a designated time.
 - (iii)Hybrid classes: office hours may be either online or in-person at a designated time and location.
 - b. Office hour compensation shall be included in monthly part-time faculty salary payments. Paid office hours shall not count towards the 67% load under Education code Section 87482.5, or towards step increases on the Part-time Faculty Salary Schedule.

8.

- a. The District and PFT agree that office hours for part-time faculty contribute to student success. Increasing the existing office hour compensation language in Article 18.7(1) is projected to be an annual ongoing cost of \$1.6 Million. To fund the Paid Office Hours Program, the District will use funds dedicated to student success. The potential funding sources are as follows:
- b. Student Equity funds from the State Chancellor's Office.
- c. State reimbursement provided to the District for paid office hours, under the State Chancellor's guidelines.
- d. General Funds or Measure B

e.

- f. Office Hours shall be defined as follows:
- g. Face-to face classes: office hours shall be on campus (or at location where class is held) at a designated time and location.
- h. Online classes: office hours shall be online at a designated time.
- i. Hybrid classes: office hours may be either online at a designated time and location.

j.

k. Office hour compensation shall be included in monthly part-time faculty salary payments.

1.

m. Paid office hours shall not count towards the 67% load under Education Code Section 87482.5, or towards step increases on the Part-time Faculty Salary Schedule.

n.

- o. Office Hour Form:
- p. The participating faculty shall submit a *Request to Participate in Office Hour Form to the Division Dean each semester and in accordance with the established timeline as follows:
- q. By the end of the first week of instruction, faculty will submit their syllabi and Office Hour Form. If, by the end of the first week of instruction, the information has not been submitted, faculty will be notified by the Vice President of Instruction (or designee), and shall respond and provide syllabi and Office Hour Form within two weeks of the notification or be ineligible for Office Hour compensation. *Faculty are encouraged to submit the form electronically.

r.

- s. <u>Part-Time Faculty</u>. <u>Eligibility to Participate in the Paid Office Hours Program:</u>
- t. Effective Fall 2017, part-time instructional faculty will be compensated for office hours at their non-instructional rate for full semester classes. This program is in effect during the regular academic year only. It excludes summer session and intersession.
- u. Eligibility to participate in the program shall be based on the following instructional assignment formula: The following assignment formula shall be used to pay for part-time office hours during regular semesters and office hours for all instructional faculty during summer and intersession:

INSTRUCTIONAL LOAD	PAID OFFICE HOURS
0-2.99 equated hours	0
3-5.99 equated hours	1
6-8.99 equated hours	2
9 or more equated hours	3

9. No instructor shall be assigned more than three course preparations during a given term (exclusive of extra service). For those disciplines in which there are courses with fewer than 3 equated hours, instructors may not be assigned more than 9 equated hours for course preparation. Exceptions may be made with the consent of the instructor.

- 10. If a faculty member develops a new course and it is put into the curriculum, the District will make a good faith effort to give the faculty member the first right of refusal to teach the course. This provision is not subject to the grievance procedure.
- 11. A new course is defined as a course not taught by the faculty member within the past two (2) years. No instructor shall be assigned more than two (2) new course preparations per year and no more than one (1) per term unless required to implement curriculum changes. For those disciplines in which there are courses with fewer than 3 equated hours, instructors may not be assigned more than 6 equated hours of new course preparation per year and no more than 3 equated hours per term unless required to implement curriculum changes. (This provision does not apply to the first term of employment.) The District shall make a good faith effort to give at least a twelve (12) weeks' notice for any new course/assignment required. The District shall give at least five (5) weeks' notice for any new course preparation required. If there is a documented emergency, the District may assign to a faculty member a new class preparation without notice.
- 12. The District may average load assignments for regular and probationary instructors over one academic year. To overload or to implement a scheduled underload, the District must notify the faculty member in writing six (6) weeks before the assignment is due to begin. The maximum amount the District may overload is .2 FTE per academic year.

The District may average load assignments for some faculty members over a two (2) year period. The two-year load averaging shall be limited to a maximum of 25 FTE faculty positions and to a maximum of 18 hours per term. Annual reports shall be forwarded to the PFT. The report shall contain the names of each faculty member, their work load, and the college at which they work.

The two-year load averaging provision will go into effect the semester that a faculty member is first underloaded or overloaded and will run for two (2) calendar years. It shall be the District's responsibility to notify in writing each faculty member it wishes to load average six (6) weeks before the assignment is due to begin. If the District fails to do so, the faculty member may elect to have the overload paid as extra service or entered into their leave banking program. An underload will be paid at the faculty member's full contract load rate.

- 13. Faculty assignments will be scheduled by the college administration in consultation with the department chairperson and the individual faculty member. Sixty (60) days' notice of the proposed assignment shall be given in writing to every faculty member. If there is a documented emergency that requires a change in a faculty member's assignment, notice shall be given as soon as the college administration becomes aware of the need for an assignment change.
- 14. With the exception of extra service, a faculty member may not be scheduled without their consent for the following assignments:

- a. For more than two college sites during any one term;
- b. A day assignment following an evening assignment with less than an eleven (11) hour break;
- c. A six (6) day per week assignment;
- d. Saturday classes for more than one term during one academic year;
- e. For more than four (4) consecutive hours of instruction or six (6) consecutive hours of counseling without a one hour intervening break (except for Saturday classes and summer session) unless a single course is scheduled for more than four (4) hours.

14. Syllabi

- a. At the first meeting of each course, instructors shall distribute a syllabus to students describing the course content, the times and places where office hours are held, the grading standards by which the work of students shall be evaluated, and other relevant information.
- b. Syllabi shall be submitted to the instructor's first level manager by Census to be included in the instructor's District Personnel File.
- c. Syllabi shall be the sole intellectual property of the instructor. No syllabi shall be shared or distributed without the written permission of the instructor.

15. Split Class Assignments

- a. A split class assignment is defined as a single class (lecture, lab, or lecture/lab combination) in which the instructional responsibilities and course load are shared between two or more instructors.
- b. No faculty shall be allowed to teach a split assignment without their voluntary agreement. Such agreement shall be memorialized in the attached "Split Class Assignment Agreement" form (see Appendix).
- c. The offer of a split class assignment does not constitute an offer of an assignment as outlined in Article 30, Section H of the CBA unless the faculty members have voluntarily agreed using the attached "Split Class Assignment Agreement."
- d. Current and/or future assignments of all faculty shall not be contingent upon their having agreed to a split class assignment.

B. Temporary Faculty

- 1. Part-time temporary faculty members may be employed up to five (5) days per week. Service as a day-to-day substitute shall not be counted either as part of load or for purposes of calculating eligibility for contract or probationary status.
- 2. Service by a part-time temporary employee with respect to employment in summer school shall not be included in computing service to the attainment of classification as a regular or probationary employee of the District.
- 3. When identifiable, temporary hourly faculty members shall have their names included in the class schedule for their classes each term. Such inclusion shall not constitute a

contract of employment between the faculty and the District, nor preclude any change in, or deletion of assignment.

C. Extra Service

- 1. Regular full-time instructors may not teach beyond their regular full-time assignments more than .2 equated load or one (1) class on an extra service basis, whichever is greater, except by mutual agreement between the faculty member and the District.
- 2. Regular full-time instructors may not teach beyond their regular full-time assignment for the purpose of extra service credit until the full-time assignment has been accomplished.
- 3. Counselors, librarians, nurses, disabled student counselors and coordinators may not work beyond their regular full-time assignments for more than six (6) hours per week in extra service counseling, librarian or nursing assignments, except by mutual agreement between the faculty member and the District. Counselors, librarians, nurses and disabled student counselors and coordinators may not be assigned to extra service academic assignments during the same semester during which they are employed in extra service counseling, librarian or nursing assignments except by mutual agreement between the faculty member and the District.
- 4. Extra service assignments for non-teaching faculty shall be equated at a 0.5 factor. (Two (2) hours of extra service equals one (1) teaching hour.)

D. Class Size

- 1. The minimum class size shall be set at 20 for vocational/technical classes, and 25 for all others.
- 2. Exception to the minimum class size may include:
 - a. Classes needed for transfer;
 - b. Classes needed for completion of a certificate;
 - c. Classes where there are a limited number of work stations;
 - d. Classes for students with disabilities;
 - e. Sequential classes:
 - f. Basic skills and remedial classes.

Courses falling below the minimum class size shall be determined by the Vice P resident of Instruction with input from the faculty within each discipline and with the concurrence of the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs.

The specific courses excepted from the minimum class size policy shall listed by title, course numbers, day, time and minimum number of students to be enrolled and shall be certified by the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs or the VCAA designee fifteen (15)

days (or more) prior to the beginning of the term. A copy of the list shall be mailed to the President of the PFT.

- 3. The PFT and the District agree to establish a joint committee, which includes membership designated by the District Academic Senate, to review and make recommendations to the Chancellor on the criteria and process used to determine when so called "low enrolled" courses will be canceled or continued.
- 4. The maximum class size shall be limited to the number of work stations or the physical limitations of the facility as made available by the District. In no case shall maximum classroom occupancy exceed maximum allowable occupancy as established by the fire department in the county in which the class is conducted.
- 5. The maximum class size for any course in the English Department and the ESOL Department where the primary objective is to teach writing shall be 30, any larger class size to be by mutual agreement. The courses covered by this clause are English 101A, 101B, 10A, 10B, 250, 201A, 201B, 51A, 51B, 1A, 1B, 5, all Creative Writing classes and Advanced Composition classes, and all ESOL composition classes. The computer will be set for a maximum of 35 students for the above classes until the first day of classes, and thereafter up to 30 students, up to and including the last day to add classes.
- 6. The maximum class size for any ESOL class where the primary objective is not to teach writing shall be 35, any larger class size to be by mutual agreement. The computer will be set for a maximum of 35 students up to and including the last day to add classes. The maximum class size may not exceed the number mandated by applicable governmental regulations.
- 7. The maximum class size may not exceed the number mandated by applicable governmental regulations.
- 8. Except for error or inadvertence, no class shall be canceled after the first census.

E. Saturday Classes

- 1. Saturday classes may be assigned as part of a faculty member's base load. During the term of this agreement, the District will make every effort to assign Saturday classes on a volunteer basis. When Saturday classes are assigned as a part of a faculty member's load, the District will ensure that person is assigned two (2) consecutive off days, one (1) of which will be Sunday.
- 2. All Saturday assignments shall be rotated term to term except by mutual consent between the employee and their first level manager.

F. All Counseling Contracts

The Peralta Federation of Teachers (the "PFT") and the Peralta Community College District (the "PCCD") agree to the following changes in CBA Article 18.F.

General Counselors, Categorically Funded Counselors and Coordinator/ Counselors (other than DSP&S Counselors and Coordinators)

- 1. Counselors' regular load coincides with the 175-day academic calendar, subject to the other provisions of this Article 18.F regarding the scheduling process at each site. However, Counseling needs in the District span the entire 12-month calendar year, including Saturdays. Whenever the college is open, at least one contract counselor should be available whenever possible, as necessary to meet student need. The District will seek volunteers willing to rearrange their schedules by working during days outside the 175 academic calendar days and substituting days off during the 175-day academic calendar. The college Vice President/Dean of Student Services and volunteer(s) will reach agreement about the days to be worked outside the academic calendar year and the substituted days off. If the college determines that the need exists and that funding is available, it shall schedule an hourly counselor to substitute for a volunteer who rearranged their schedule.
- 2. The District may also confer "eleventh-month" contracts for up to an additional 18 days of service at 100 percent per diem to counselors volunteering to provide such service at any time outside of the 175-day academic calendar and summer session. Said additional full or partial eleventh-month assignment shall be entirely at the option of the employee, and ordinarily will be on consecutive days. Counselors also may be assigned extra service (e.g. during the scheduled summer session), paid at the extra service rate provided in Article 18.C.3.2.
 - a. The college president or designee (normally, and hereafter, "the Vice President/Dean of Student Services") will make a preliminary determination of the number of eleventh-month contracts and the number of days of such contracts, if any, for each college by February 15th, to the extent possible. The college Vice President/Dean of Student Services will consult with the counseling department at each site before arriving at a final number for each college. The extent to which the college Vice President/Dean of Student Services will confer eleventh-month contracts at each college, including the number of days, if any, for such contracts, will depend on the extent of funding and the district and colleges' assessment of its fiscal condition, and is not grievable. To be compensated for such additional days, each counselor shall actually provide counseling to students during such days unless assigned otherwise by the Dean/Vice President in writing.
- 3. All counseling needs outside the regular 175 academic calendar days and summer session shall be covered by first offering the opportunity to contract counselor faculty. Counselors and management at each college shall work together to meet the counseling needs for the entire term of this Collective Bargaining Agreement and to

create a schedule for full and appropriate counseling coverage, as defined by college management for that year with input from the counseling department. They shall utilize the following procedure:

- a. To meet these needs, the chairperson or designated leader of the Counseling Department together with the Counseling Department faculty shall develop a staffing pattern recommendation by March 1 (or 15 days after the Vice President/Dean of Student Services determines the number of eleventh-month contracts and the number of days of such contracts) which must be agreed upon by a majority of the counseling faculty in the department who are eligible to work an eleventh-month. In the absence of a majority recommendation, the Vice President/Dean of Student Services will determine the eleventh-month assignments.
- b. The college Vice President/Dean of Student Services may accept, reject, or modify the departmental recommendation.
 - Any affected counselor who feels the outcome of 2 (11th-month contracts and scheduling) or 3 (a) (staffing pattern recommendation) is/are arbitrary, unfair or unreasonable may appeal the Vice President/Dean's decision to the College President within 3 working days. The appeal shall be in writing and shall state the basis for the appeal and the remedy sought. The College President shall consider the appeal and shall provide a written response to the counselor explaining the basis for the President's decision within 3 working days. The College President's decision is final and is not grievable.
- c. The Vice President/Dean shall be responsible for notification by April 1st of each year (or 15 days after the Counseling Department faculty have developed a staffing pattern recommendation). Notification is defined as: the specific assignment, the location of the assignment, the hours of the assignment, and the names of the counselors to be assigned. The names of the counselors to be assigned will be posted in each of the colleges' counseling offices.

DSP&S Counselors

1. DSP&S Counselors' regular load coincides with the 175-day academic calendar, subject to the other provisions of this Article 18.F regarding the scheduling process at each site. However, DSP&S Counseling needs in the District span the entire 12-month calendar year, including Saturdays. Whenever the college is open, at least one contract DSP&S counselor should be available whenever possible, as necessary to meet student need. The District will seek volunteers willing to rearrange their schedules by working during days outside the 175 academic calendar days and substituting days off during the 175-day academic calendar. The college Vice President/Dean of Student Services and volunteer will reach agreement about the days to be worked outside the academic calendar year and the substituted days off. If the college determines that the need exists

- and that funding is available, it shall schedule an hourly counselor to substitute for a volunteer who rearranged their schedule.
- 2. The District may also confer "eleventh-month" contracts for up to an additional 18 days of service at 100 percent per diem to counselors volunteering to provide such service at any time outside of the 175-day academic calendar and summer session. Said additional full or partial eleventh-month assignment shall be entirely at the option of the employee, and ordinarily will be on consecutive days. Counselors also may be assigned extra service (e.g. during the scheduled summer session), paid at the extra service rate provided in Article 18.C.3.2.
 - a. The college president or designee (normally, and hereafter, "the Vice President/Dean of Student Services") will make a preliminary determination of the number of eleventh-month contracts and the number of days of such contracts, if any, for each college by February 15th, to the extent possible. The college Vice President/Dean of Student Services will consult with the DSP&S counseling department and the DSP&S Coordinator at each site before arriving at a final number for each college. The extent to which the college Vice President/Dean of Student Services will confer eleventh-month contracts at each college, including the number of days, if any, for such contracts, will depend on the extent of funding and the district and colleges' assessment of its fiscal condition, and is not grievable. To be compensated for such additional days, each DSP&S counselor shall actually provide counseling to students during such days unless assigned otherwise by the dean in writing.
- 3. All DSP&S counseling needs outside the regular 175 academic calendar days and summer session shall be covered by first offering the opportunity to contract DSP&S counselor faculty. DSP&S Counselors and management at each college shall work together to meet the DSP&S counseling needs for the entire term of this Collective Bargaining Agreement and to create a schedule for full and appropriate counseling coverage, as defined by college management for that year with input from the counseling department. They shall utilize the following procedure:
 - a. To meet these needs, the DSP&S Coordinator together with the DSP&S counseling faculty shall develop a staffing pattern recommendation by March 1 (or 15 days after the Vice President/Dean of Student Services determines the number of eleventhmonth contracts and the number of days of such contracts) which must be agreed upon by a majority of the DSP&S counseling faculty in the department who are eligible to work an eleventh-month. In the absence of a majority recommendation, the Vice President/Dean of Student Services will determine the eleventh-month assignments.
 - b. The college Vice President/Dean of Student Services may accept, reject, or modify the departmental recommendation.
 - c. Any affected DSP&S counselor who feels the outcome of 2 (11th -month contracts and scheduling) or 3(a) (staffing pattern recommendation) is/are arbitrary, unfair or

unreasonable may appeal the Vice President's/Dean's decision to the College President within 3 working days. The appeal shall be in writing and shall state the basis for the appeal and the remedy sought. The College President shall consider the appeal and shall provide a response to the counselor explaining the basis for the President's decision within 3 working days. The College President's decision is final and is not grievable.

d. The Vice President/Dean shall be responsible for notification by April 1st of each year (or 15 days after the DSP&S counseling faculty have developed a staffing pattern recommendation). Notification is defined as: the specific assignment, the location of the assignment, the hours of the assignment, and the names of the DSP&S counselors to be assigned. The names of the counselors to be assigned will be posted in each of the colleges' DSP&S counseling offices.

DSP&S Coordinators

- 1. All DSP&S coordination needs outside the regular 175 academic calendar days and summer session shall be covered by first offering the opportunity to contract DSP&S Coordinators.
- 2. Faculty employed as DSP&S Coordinators shall be offered a full or partial eleventh- month of service.

3. Compensation

Counselor, DSP&S Counselor and DSP&S Coordinator compensation for the eleventh-month shall be 1/10 of the annual faculty salary schedule.

G. Contract Education

1. Definition

- a. Contract Education is defined as those classes in which the Peralta District contracts with a public or private entity for the purpose of providing instruction or services, or both, at or by, one of the Peralta Colleges.
- b.
- 1) "Credit" refers to any class offered for community college credit, regardless of whether the class generates state apportionments.
- 2) "Non-credit" refers to courses that meet the criteria for apportionment pursuant to Section 84711.
- 3) "Not-for-credit" refers to classes, including community services classes, that are offered without credit and which are not eligible for apportionments pursuant to Section 84711.

2. Staffing Provisions

- a. Faculty will be selected based on academic preparation, teaching experience, prior contract education experience, and the ability to teach a working adult population.
- b. It is understood that if the contracting agency or company requests in writing a particular person to teach in a program, or if the program demands a specialist,

arrangements will be made to hire such individual(s) and shall not be prohibited by any other provision in the PFT/PCCD Collective Bargaining Agreement. A "specialist" as used herein is defined as a person whose skills and abilities are unique and who is unavailable from PCCD personnel.

When such "specialist" is required to meet the request of the Contracting Agency or the needs of the program, a written explanation and verification of need shall be prepared by the appropriate administrator and shall be available for examination on request by the PFT.

- c. In cases where a program or course is developed and proposed by a particular faculty member, they shall be assigned the program or course unless there are compelling reasons not to do so. For all other courses and programs, Peralta faculty will be selected with the recommendation from the department chairperson where applicable through the Vice President of Instruction and the Campus Contract Education Coordinator. The District Coordinator shall reserve final approval of the selection based on these recommendations.
- d. Full-time faculty, part-time faculty and faculty on the eligibility list will be equally eligible to work contract education assignments. If no qualified faculty are available for the assignment, or if available faculty choose not to accept the assignment, the class may be offered to administrative employees of the District or to potential faculty not on the eligibility list.

3. Contract Education Assignments in Relation to Faculty Loads

In general, contract education assignments are extra duty assignments. However, they may be assigned as part of a faculty member's base load by mutual agreement between the District and the individual faculty member. They may also be assigned as part of the faculty member's base load whenever mutual agreement is not reached, provided there is no extra service or part-time faculty teaching at the college in a discipline in which the faculty member is minimally qualified.

4. Evaluation

- a. Instructors shall be evaluated in accordance with Article 11 of this Agreement.
- b. Since many Contracting Agencies will demand more frequent or different evaluations of programs or courses for which they contract, the faculty member shall be made aware of all unique evaluation methods or techniques, which will be a part of the contract before they are asked to accept or reject the assignment. These evaluating forms shall remain with the coordinator of contract education and shall not be made a part of the instructor's formal personnel file retained by the District.

5. Compensation

The compensation for Peralta Community College faculty members shall be in accordance with the salary schedule. In the event that a Contract Education proposal requires the development of a new curriculum, the faculty member, contractor and administration

shall reach mutual agreement over the faculty member's compensation for devising the course curriculum. Compensation for curriculum design shall not exceed the number of equated hours per course.

6. Career Development and College Preparation (CDCP) noncredit classes

Whereas effective July 1, 2015, state apportionment funding for Career Development and College Preparation (CDCP) noncredit classes became equivalent to credit classes apportionment funding:

- a. It is understood by the parties that this Agreement only applies to the CDCP non-credit classes for which the District receives apportionment funding.
- b. CDCP non-credit classes, which are funded by the state at the same level as credit classes, shall have faculty load determined for these classes in the same manner as

- with credit classes. For purposes of this MOU, "same manner" includes determining load based on classroom hours in accordance with the provisions of the PFT-District Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA); and, professional responsibilities for said classes shall be as specified in the CBA.
- c. Faculty assigned to teach the CDCP non-credit classes shall be compensated in accordance with the applicable full-time and part-time faculty salary schedules negotiated by the parties.

H. Health Services

- 1. PCCD will schedule thirty (30) hours of health and/or mental health services a week at each of the following colleges: Laney College, Merritt College and the College of Alameda. The colleges, at their discretion, shall determine the staffing needs, and how they will distribute the 30 hours each week to provide health services, mental health services or a combination thereof;
- 2. PCCD will employ a faculty member under a 12 month contract to serve as the District Health Coordinator. This position will be filled by July 1 and will have a two year term;
 - a. The District Health Coordinator shall be a faculty member. The standard minimum assignment shall be for two (2) years with an option of two one (1) year extensions, but not to exceed four consecutive years. The option of extension shall be contingent upon a positive evaluation from a majority of the College Health Coordinators who hall evaluate the District Coordinator and make their final recommendation to the Associate Vice Chancellor of Educational Services by April 15. If the Associate Vice Chancellor accepts the recommendation, they shall notify the District Health Coordinator and College Health Coordinators. If the decision is to continue for another year, it shall be done. If the decision is not to continue, the Associate Vice Chancellor will advertise the vacancy and convene the selection committee within seven (7) days. The position shall be filled by May 15.
 - b. The selection committee shall be composed of four (4) faculty members, one from each college, one of whom shall be the Chair. The faculty members shall be a current College Health Coordinator or Mental Health Specialist and shall be selected by the College Academic Senate President.
 - c. In the event that the College Health Coordinator and/or Mental Health Specialist are unable to serve, the Faculty Senate President shall select an appropriate faculty member with demonstrated expertise in the area of Health Services/Coordination.
 - d. The section committee will interview all eligible candidates and will recommend up to three (3) names to the Associate Vice Chancellor of Educational Services for them to interview and make the final selection.
 - e. The selection process shall be the same as for intra-district voluntary transfer (See Article 9, Section B) with the understanding that: (a) at least 50% of the faculty on the hiring committee will be College Health Coordinators or Mental Health Specialists; and (b) that up to three names will be forwarded to the Associate Vice Chancellor of Educational Services for them to interview and make the final selection.

3. The District will provide the health services through qualified, tenured, probationary, or part-time faculty who meets the minimum state requirements for licensing and the Title 5 Minimum Qualification for a registered nurse, and/or the minimum state requirements for licensing and the Title 5 Minimum Qualification under the counseling discipline for a specialized counselor in clinical psychology, counseling psychology, clinical social work, marriage and family therapy, family and child counseling, or the equivalent.

ARTICLE 19: GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

Information on grievant and grievance resolution procedure.

A grievance as defined in this Agreement shall be brought only through the following procedure.

A. Definitions

- 1. A grievance is a formal allegation by a faculty member that they have been adversely affected by a misinterpretation, a misapplication, or a violation of this Agreement, or of Board Policy, which affects or relates to the employment of the grievant.
- 2. In addition, the following also may be grieved:
 - a. a violation of provisions of the California Education Code, or California Labor Code affecting faculty members' wages, hours or negotiable working conditions, or provisions of regulations specifying requirements which the District is obligated to observe regarding wages, hours or negotiable working conditions, or employee entitlements regarding wages, hours or negotiable working conditions, or
 - b. a violation of union rights guaranteed by the California Education Code, California Labor Code or regulations specifying requirements which the District is obligated to maintain in respect to the Union.

Existing exclusions from the grievance procedure or arbitration in specific Articles of this Agreement shall not be made grievable or arbitrable by Article 19.A.2. In addition, Article 19.A.2 shall not modify or affect existing procedures relative to faculty evaluation processes (Article 11).

- 3. A grievant may be any member of the bargaining unit covered by the terms of this Agreement or any official of the Federation, or the Federation itself.
- 4. A "day" (for the purposes of this grievance policy only) is any day on which the central administrative office of the Peralta Community College District is open for business.
- 5. The "first level manager" is the immediate supervisor (outside of the bargaining unit) having direct jurisdiction over the grievant.

B. Scope of Arbitration

In addition to being able to arbitrate violations of this CBA or board policy pursuant to subsection A.1, the Union may, but is not required to, arbitrate grievances over:

1. laws or regulations regarding licensure, certification standards, or academic freedom which are inextricably intertwined with faculty member wages, hours or negotiable working conditions;

01

2. violation of union rights guaranteed by the Education Code, Labor Code, the Education Employment Relations Act (EERA), or derivative California regulation.

C. Exclusivity of Arbitration Process

In connection with a request to arbitrate under B.1 or B.2.:

- 1. The union will not initiate or fund litigation to enforce the same legal rights presented in arbitration. Processing a grievance to arbitration means that the Union expressly waives a right to initiate or fund litigation over the same subject matter. This waiver does not apply to actions under the California Arbitration Act (CCP §1280 et seq.), actions seeking injunctions or other provisional relief pending arbitration, or Union actions to intervene in judicial proceedings to protect its rights under the Agreement.
- 2. The District has the right to raise in arbitration any defense, which would have been available in litigation. If the arbitrator sustains such a defense and denies the grievance in whole or in part on that basis, the waiver above is effective against the Union to that extent. Otherwise, if the arbitrator does not decide the merits of the statute or regulations, such waiver shall not be effective.
- D. Forms for processing grievances shall be mutually developed by the Federation and the District. The forms shall be printed by the District and given to the president of the PFT. (See Appendix 1 (A1) for copy.)

E. A grievance may be lodged:

- 1. By a faculty member;
- 2. By a faculty member accompanied by a representative;
- 3. By a Federation representative.
- F. The grievant and the Federation shall have the right to have a representative present at each step of the grievance procedure. In instances where a faculty member files a grievance directly with the District, or when a faculty member elects not to have the PFT represent themselves, the District shall send a copy of said grievance to the PFT within ten (10) days of its filing date.
- G. If the same grievance is made by more than one faculty member, the Federation shall be allowed to consolidate such grievances. The final decision of such a grievance shall apply to all grievants.

- H. No faculty member at any stage of the grievance procedure shall be required to meet with any administrator concerning any aspect of a filed grievance without Federation representation if so requested by the grievant.
- I. Written notices to be given under this grievance procedure may be hand delivered to the appropriate person, left with the first-level manager, or sent by U.S. mail. If delivered by hand, the date of delivery shall be considered as the date of the notice.
- J. No threats or retaliation shall be made against any participants in the grievance procedure by reason of such participation. Grievance materials shall not be placed in the personnel files.
- K. A decision rendered at any level in this procedure becomes final unless appealed by the aggrieved person within the time limit specified.
 - 1. By mutual agreement the time limits contained herein may be waived. Also, by mutual agreement the grievance may revert to a preceding level for consideration (excluding Step 3).
 - 2. Failure of the administrator to respond within the time limits shall automatically move the grievance to the next step of the grievance procedure.
- L. Decisions rendered at Steps 1 and 2 of the grievance procedure set forth herein shall be in writing, setting forth the decision and the reasons therefore, and will be transmitted promptly to the grievant and the President of the Federation. Time limits for appeal provided in each level shall begin three (3) days following posting by certified mail of the written decision by the parties in interest.
- M. If the grievance hearing is scheduled during the grievant's or representative's working hours, the grievant and representative shall suffer no loss of pay in order to attend the hearing. In addition, faculty members shall receive reasonable released time with no loss of pay, in order to testify and/or comply with any subpoena to testify in a grievance hearing.
- N. Upon reasonable request, the District shall provide the PFT with all information which the Federation requests, consistent with the District's obligation to disclose information under the Public Records Act. Such data and/or information will be made available in a format that does not require research and/or analytical manipulation.

O. Grievance Resolution Procedure

The Multi-step grievance process shall be used for all grievances. Grievances pertaining to District office problems and procedures such as:

- 1. Salary placement
- 2. Payment of salary
- 3. Fringe benefits

- 4. Sick leave accrual
- 5. Faculty Service Area placement
- 6. Personnel files
- 7. Seniority
- 8. Safety
- 9. Retirement

shall go directly to Step 2. All other grievances shall follow the INFORMAL AND FORMAL REVIEW PROCESS as provided below. During both the informal and formal phase of the grievance procedure, faculty members are entitled to have a union representative present.

I. <u>INFORMAL REVIEW</u>

Prior to a faculty member initiating the procedure, an informal review shall take place between the faculty member and the first level manager. This process can take place through an informal discussion or written statements. Within seven (7) working days of the initiation of the informal review process, the first level manager shall communicate orally or in writing their response. If the faculty member's proposed resolution is denied or modified, the first level manager shall include in their response the reason for the denial or modification.

II. FORMAL REVIEW

STEP-1

- a. Within ten (10) working days after the first level manager's response to the INFORMAL REVIEW, the faculty member may file a formal written grievance with the College President on the Faculty Grievance Form if it is within seventy-seven (77) working days after the grievant knew of the condition upon which the grievance is based. Copies of the Faculty Grievance Form shall be sent to the Federation and the Vice Chancellor for Human Resources and Employee Relations by the College President.
- b. Within ten (10) working days after receiving the written grievance, a conference including the grievant, the Federation representative, the College President, and the appropriate manager(s) shall be held.
- c. Within seven (7) working days of the conference, a written decision including appropriate reasons shall be rendered by the College President to the grievant and the Federation.

STEP - 2

a. Within ten (10) working days after receipt of the written decision of the College President, the grievant may forward a copy of the Faculty Grievance Form to the Vice

- Chancellor for Human Resources and Employee Relations or designee for further review, if the grievant is not satisfied with the College President's decision.
- b. Within ten (10) working days of receipt of the request for further review, a conference including the grievant, the Federation representative, if any, the College President or designee, and the Vice Chancellor for Human Resources and Employee Relations or designee shall be held.
- c. Within seven (7) working days of the conference, a written decision including appropriate reasons shall be rendered by the Vice Chancellor for Human Resources and Employee Relations or designee to the grievant and the Federation.

STEP - 3

Only the Federation may take a grievance to Step <u>3.</u>

- a. If the Federation is not satisfied with the decision at Step 2, the union, may appeal the decision from Step 2 to mediation or other dispute resolution methods. If a conclusion is reached that is agreeable to both parties, the resolution will be binding.
- b. **Binding Arbitration:** If the Federation or District elects not to utilize an alternative dispute resolution method, the Federation shall have the right to refer the matter to binding arbitration. A request for binding arbitration must be submitted to the Chancellor within thirty (30) working days of the written decision of the Vice Chancellor for Human Resoures and Employee Relations or designee after review as provided in Step 2. (This time requirement will be held in abeyance from June 1 through September 1.)
- c. **Selection of Arbitrator:** Within ten (10) days after receipt of the appeal to binding arbitration, the parties shall attempt to agree upon an arbitrator. If agreement cannot be reached within five (5) working days, the parties shall request a panel of five (5) arbitrators from the California Mediation and Conciliation Service. Each party shall alternately strike two (2) names from the panel; the remaining arbitrator shall be appointed.
- d. **Opinion and Award:** The arbitrator shall have no power to add to, subtract from, alter or modify any of the terms of this agreement. The arbitrator shall submit their opinion and award within thirty (30) days after the conclusion of the hearing (or the receipt of the court reporter's transcript, whichever is later). The opinion and award of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on the parties. Nothing herein shall preclude either party from seeking further legal remedy.
- e. **Cost:** The mediation and the arbitration fees and expenses shall be shared equally by the parties.

ARTICLE 20: DISCIPLINARY ACTION AND INVESTIGATIVE PROCEDURES

- A. <u>Preface:</u> The parties understand and agree that the District has the authority and obligation to investigate complaints, reports, and/or other credible information that a unit member has engaged in misconduct. The parties further understand and agree that unit members are entitled to be presumed innocent of wrongdoing during the investigation process and are entitled to certain protections during the investigation process.
- B. Misconduct Investigation Defined: A misconduct investigation is a District initiated investigation of a unit member into allegations that the unit member violated District policy and/or law, based on information received from a formal or informal complaint made by an identifiable author; a report of misconduct; manager observations; or other credible sources of information. An investigation is initiated at the point that the District determines to go beyond meeting with the accuser and the accused to interview other potential witnesses. An anonymous accusation shall not form the basis for initiating an investigation but may form the basis of an inquiry.
 - 1. Inquiry: an inquiry, for the purpose of an anonymous complaint, is defined as the informal questioning of a unit member. If such questioning could lead to an investigation against the unit member, the unit member may bring a representative of their choice and be provided with a summary of the complaint.
- C. <u>Investigatory Meetings</u>: An "investigatory meeting" is any formal written communication, face-to-face meeting or oral conversation between the District and a unit member in which the unit member is being asked questions regarding a complaint against them and for which the District reasonably believes that corrective and/or disciplinary action could be imposed.
 - 1. Corrective action is counseling, a written warning, or written reprimand.
 - 2. **Discipline or disciplinary action** is defined as a suspension or dismissal based on a violation of law or District Policy, or pursuant to Section 87732 of the Education Code.
- <u>D.</u> There are three (3) types of investigatory meetings that could lead to corrective and/or disciplinary action:
 - 1. an investigatory meeting relating to any general complaint against a unit member;
 - 2. an investigatory meeting relating to a Student Grievance; and
 - any investigatory meeting relating to Discrimination or Unlawful Harassment as defined by Title 5 or relating to EEOC/DFEH/OCR complaints or lawsuits against the Faculty Member.
- E. Non-Investigatory Meetings: The parties understand and agree that in the day-to-day operation of the District, managers and unit members meet regularly to share information. These are not investigatory interviews. However, the parties further understand and agree that, if a manager reasonably expects that such a meeting may elicit information that warrants discipline, the manager shall notify the unit member in advance. The unit member so notified shall have the right to bring the appropriate PFT Grievance Officer or the union

designee to the meeting. In addition, a unit member may act independently to bring the appropriate PFT Grievance Officer or the union designee to the meeting if the unit member reasonably believes that it could lead to discipline.

F. <u>Notice of Investigation</u>: An employee who is under investigation shall be sent a Notice of Employee Investigation Form no later than seven (7) days before their appointment for an investigatory interview. The negotiated form is attached to this Agreement.

The Form is intended to provide employees subject to misconduct investigations with due process, including timely and sufficient notice of the subject matter of the investigatory interview, and their right to information and representation. The Form shall include the following:

- 1. An introductory statement that:
 - a. The District takes a neutral stance when investigating possible misconduct and no findings of wrong-doing have been made;
 - b. The District maintains the confidentiality of the investigation to the fullest extent possible;
 - c. No findings will be made prior to completion of the investigation, and the investigation will not be closed until after the employee's interview is conducted;
 - d. The information received could lead to corrective action and/or discipline and the employee is entitled to have representation at the meeting;
 - e. Every effort will be made to complete the investigation within ninety (90) days of when the District first received the complaint or information triggering the investigation. When this is not possible, the employee and PFT shall receive a status update on when the district expects the investigation to be completed.
 - f. The employee shall receive a summary of the Investigator's Report, findings of the investigation, and whether the allegations investigated were or were not sustained;
 - g. The PFT is entitled to the full investigation report upon request whether or not the findings were sustained;
 - h. In the event the investigation leads to corrective and/or disciplinary action, the employee shall be afforded all of the pre-discipline due process rights to which the employee is entitled. This includes providing the employee, and the union, with a copy of the information the District relied upon to issue the charges; and
 - i. District policy and law prohibit retaliation of any kind against anyone the employee believes to have provided information or otherwise cooperated in the investigation, and that such conduct constitutes an independent basis for serious discipline up to and including termination.
- 2. The written complaint, if one was submitted to the District or another public agency. If no written complaint was submitted, the District shall include a written summary of the specific allegations complained of, including:
 - a. The name of the complainant(s), or individual(s) whose concerns caused the District to initiate an investigation.
 - b. What allegedly occurred. The employee shall be entitled to a description of the subject matter or allegations of the investigation.

- c. When the incident(s) allegedly occurred. The notice will be as specific as possible, based on the information available at the time the Notice is given.
- d. Where the incident(s) allegedly occurred. The notice will be as specific as possible, based on the information available at the time the Notice is given.
- G. <u>Paid Administrative Leave During an Investigation</u>: Placement of a member on Paid Administrative Leave of Absence while an investigation into alleged misconduct is pending shall conform to the following standards and procedures:
 - 1. Placement on Paid Administrative Leave of Absence while an investigation is pending constitutes a non-disciplinary action;
 - 2. Placement on Paid Administrative Leave of Absences shall not be automatic, and it is not an action that the District takes lightly. The District will not take this step unless:
 - a. The allegations, if true, indicate that the employee poses a safety threat to themselves or others;
 - b. The allegations, if true, involve harassment, retaliation and/or dishonesty; and/or
 - c. Other circumstances with the written approval of the Chancellor.
 - 3. The notice placing an employee on Paid Administrative Leave of Absence shall provide information about the Leave, including but not limited to:
 - a. The basis or bases on which they are being placed on Paid Administrative Leave of Absence;
 - b. That, as this investigation could lead to discipline, the employee is entitled to representation during the investigatory interview;
 - c. That placement on Paid Administrative Leave of Absence constitutes a directive not to attend work or perform work duties and that the employee is not to be present at work or in the work area without prior written consent; and
 - d. That placement on Paid Administrative Leave of Absence constitutes does not constitute a directive to stay away from public events or public areas of campus.
 - 4. The decision to place a faculty member on Paid Administrative Leave of Absence is not subject to the grievance process but can be appealed to the Chancellor for reconsideration. A written request for reconsideration shall be made directly to the Chancellor within three working days of receipt of notice of administrative leave. The chancellor (or their designee) shall respond within three working days. The decision of the Chancellor shall be final and not grievable. The effective date of the Administrative Leave of Absence shall not be held in abeyance during the appeal process.

H. Completion of Investigation and Notice of Completion:

- 1. At the conclusion of the investigation, the Investigator's report, including the Investigator's findings, shall be provided to the faculty member.
- 2. The Faculty Member shall have the right to submit a written response to the Investigator's report within ten (10) working days of receipt. The District shall consider the Faculty Member's response, if received within ten (10) days, prior to making a final determination that results .in corrective and/or disciplinary action.

 This provision does not preclude a faculty member from submitting a written response for placement in their file after the deadline has passed.
- 3. Every effort will be made to complete the investigation within ninety (90) days, and when this is not possible, the member under investigation shall receive a status update on

where the District is in its investigation only as to the timeline, but regarding the details of the district's investigative process such as not who has or will be interviewed and witness statements when it expects to be completed.

I. Security of Investigation Files:

In the event that an investigation does not lead to discipline, the District confirms that it is its practice, and will continue to be its practice to maintain the investigation file in a secure location, separate and apart from the employee's Personnel File. Further, access to these files shall be on a "needs to know" basis only, as determined by the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources & Employee Relations.

ARTICLE 21: SALARY

Salary schedule, temporary employees, longevity.

A. Salary Ranges

1. Effective Fall 2008, all new faculty hires will be placed between Steps 7 through 10, wherever they qualify.

Current salary schedules are online at: http://pft1603.org/?page_id=189

B. Salary Increases

1. Fiscal Year 2022-23

Effective the first full pay period following bargaining unit ratification and Peralta Board of Trustee's approval, the District shall provide a cost of living adjustment (COLA) of six percent (6%). The District will provide up to ninety (90) days of retroactivity for this COLA, which shall be effective no sooner than July 1, 2022.

The six percent (6%) COLA will apply to the full-time and part-time faculty salary schedules.

In addition to the COLA, contingent on SISC health insurance plans going into effect on January 1, 2023, faculty salary schedules will be increased by four percent (4%) effective January 1, 2023. The changes to Article 22 and this market increase are contingent on District-wide implementation.

2. Fiscal Year 2023-24

Effective July 1, 2023, the District will provide a Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) equal to eighty-five percent (85%) of the Cost of Living Adjustment funds it receives from the State. The parties acknowledge that State COLA funding may be adjusted part-way through the fiscal year, which may result in a salary reduction.

Effective January 1, 2024, the District will assess the District-wide savings that has resulted from the transition to SISC health insurance plans between January 1, 2023 and January 1, 2024. If the savings resulting from the health insurance plan change for calendar year 2023 exceeds \$3,900,000, the District will:

a. Divide the amount of additional savings in excess of \$3,900,000 for calendar year 2023 by the number of full time faculty and classified staff. Once informed of the amount of the PFT share, PFT will determine and inform the District of the formula for distributing the lump sum payments to full and part time faculty.

b. Effective January 1, 2024, salaries for faculty and classified staff will be increased in an amount equal to the amount of savings above \$3,900,000 in 2023.

3. Fiscal Year 2024-25

The parties agree to reopen Article 21, subsection B for Fiscal Year 2024-25 for negotiations over salary.

C. Salary Schedule Column Placement Procedure

COLUMN A

Condition 1:

Possession of a Master's degree from an approved college or university, OR

Condition 2:

Possession of a Bachelor's degree from an approved college or university plus a certification by an approved college or university of achievement equivalent to a Master's degree with a minimum of 45 units completed after the Bachelor's degree.

Condition 3:

Possession of an Associate degree plus six (6) years of occupational experience

COLUMN B

Condition 1:

Possession of a Master's degree from an approved college or university with 45 units completed after the Bachelor's degree, OR

Condition 2:

Possession of a Bachelor's degree from an approved college or university plus a certification by an approved college or university of achievement equivalent to Master's degree with a minimum of 60 units after the Bachelor's degree.

Condition 3:

Possession of an Associate degree plus six (6) years of occupational experience plus 15 units after the Associate degree, OR

Condition 4:

Possession of an Associate degree plus seven (7) years of occupational experience.

COLUMN C

Condition 1:

Possession of a Master's degree from an approved college or university with 60 units completed after the Bachelor's degree, OR

Condition 2:

Possession of a Bachelor's degree from an approved college or university plus a certification by an approved college or university of achievement equivalent to a Master's degree with a minimum of 75 units after the Bachelor's degree

Condition 3:

Possession of an Associate degree plus six (6) years of occupational experience plus 30 units after the Associate degree, OR

Condition 4:

Possession of an Associate degree plus eight (8) years of occupational experience.

COLUMN D

Condition 1:

Possession of a Master's degree from an approved college or university with at least 75 units completed after the Bachelor's degree, OR

Condition 2:

Possession of a Bachelor's degree from an approved college or university plus a certification by an approved college or university of achievement equivalent to a Master's degree with a minimum of 90 units after the Bachelor's degree.

Condition 3:

Possession of an Associate degree plus six (6) years of occupational experience plus 45 units after the Associate degree.

COLUMN E

Condition 1:

Possession of an earned Doctorate degree from an approved college or university, OR

Condition 2:

Possession of a Master's degree from an approved college or university with 90 units completed after the Bachelor's degree.

Condition 3:

Possession of a Bachelor's degree from an approved college or university plus the required years of occupational experience for the discipline.

C. Step Placement Procedure

Step placement shall be as follows:

Step 1 – No experience	Step 14 – 13 years experience
Step 2 – 1 year experience	Step $15 - 14$ years experience
Step 3 – 2 years experience	Step 16 – 15 years experience
Step 4 – 3 years experience	Step 17 – 16 years experience
Step 5 – 4 years experience	Step 18 – 17 years experience
Step 6 – 5 years experience	Step 19 – 18 years experience
Step 7 – 6 years experience	Step 20 – 19 years experience
Step 8 – 7 years experience	Step $21 - 20$ years experience
Step 9 – 8 years experience	Step $22 - 21$ years experience
Step 10 – 9 years experience	Step 23 – 22 years experience
Step 11 – 10 years experience	Step 24 – 23 years experience
Step 12 – 11 years experience	Step 25 – 24 years experience
Step 13 – 12 years experience	

1. Teaching

For contract and regular faculty members, prior full-time teaching may be credited on a year-for- year basis up to a maximum of eight (8) years. For part-time, temporary faculty members, prior full-time teaching may be credited on a year for year basis up to a maximum of six (6) years. (Full-time teaching or supervision for at least 16 weeks and less than 30 weeks in any one school year is counted as one-half year; 30 weeks or more is counted as one year of experience). Part- time teaching experience may be credited on the percentage it bears to full-time requirement as it was performed. Overlapping part-time experience may be totaled only to a maximum of one week for one week.

2. Practical Experience

Credit for full-time non-teaching experience may be allowed when it has been recognized as related to the teaching assignment. Part-time experience may be credited on the percentage it bears to full-time requirement as it was performed. Overlapping experience may be totaled only to a maximum of one <u>week</u> for one <u>week</u>.

3. Total Credit

For contract and regular faculty members, total credit allowed for experience shall not result in initial salary placement beyond Step 9 of the salary schedule (Step 10 beginning in Fall 2008). No exceptions will be made to initial placement beyond the ninth (9th) step [tenth (10th) Step beginning in Fall 2008] unless recommended and approved by the President of the college, the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs, the Chancellor, and the Board of Trustees.

Before recommending an exception, the President shall consult with the President of the College Academic Senate. If there is disagreement, the Senate President may state their position in a document which will accompany the College President's recommendation to the Vice Chancellor. If the disagreement is not resolved by the Vice Chancellor, the College President's recommendation, the Senate's comments and the Vice Chancellor's recommendation will be submitted to the Chancellor. Final authority in all cases rests with the Board of Trustees.

For part-time, temporary faculty, total credit allowed for experience shall not result in initial placement beyond Step 7 of the salary schedule.

4. Verification

Prior teaching experience and related practical experience for initial placement is allowed if verified before the end of the 90-day calendar period, which begins with the first day of the teaching assignment. It is the responsibility of the faculty member to provide college and university official transcripts bearing the impressed seal of the institution or the original signature of the registrar, transcript clerk, or recorder within this 90-day calendar period. When verification is impossible to obtain within the 90-day period through no fault of the instructor, an extension of time may be granted by the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs upon written request.

D. Advancement on the Salary Schedule

1. Initial Column and Step Placement

Faculty member employed on a temporary (part-time) basis or on an extra service assignment receive step and column placement in accordance with the procedures described in Appendices A7 and A8.

"25 Step" Placement Guidelines

- a. Any faculty member currently at step 6 or below on an existing salary schedule for the 2013-2014 fiscal year shall stay at that current step on the new "25 step" salary schedules, set forth above.
- b. Any faculty member who advanced from step 6 to step 7 since the 2008-2009 fiscal year will have their step on the new schedule calculated using PeopleSoft records.
- c. Any faculty member who has been on step 7 since 2008-2009, use either:

1) IF THEY ARE NOT A PERALTA CONTRACT RETIREE:

- a) calculate average annual load since 08-09;
- b) project backwards to initial hire date; and
- c) assume they were hired at step 5.

2) IF THEY ARE A PERALTA CONTRACT RETIREE:

- a) calculate average annual load since 08-09;
- b) project backwards to RETIREMENT date from contract position; and
- c) assume they were hired at step 7.

- d. In either case, above, figure out not only their new step, but also how many equated hours they have on that new step towards the 30 equated hours they will need to move to the next step. This information will be available to all part-time faculty and PFT.
- e. Part-time faculty members who disagree with their step placement by the district have 30 days from date of receipt of the email to appeal the decision in writing, with supporting_ documentation, to the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources and Employee Relations, who shall respond with a written explanation of the faculty member's placement within 15 working days, with a copy of the response to PFT. In the event additional time is needed by the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources and Employee Relations, the faculty member and PFT will be provided with the notification in writing.
- f. The method to determine the cost of the new steps plus the across-the-board increase shall be as follows:
 - 1) The total for each faculty member's actual load for Fall 2013, plus their load for Summer 2013 and Spring 2013 shall equal the faculty member's projected load for 2013-2014.
 - 2) Determine if the faculty member is on the new "PT salary schedule (no other full- time employment), 25-step salary schedule" (formerly the 75% pro-rata schedule per Article 21.D.3) or "PT salary schedule (with other full-time non-Peralta income) 25-step salary schedule" (formerly the 60% pro-rata schedule per Article 21.D.2).
 - 3) Project a 1.57% increase for steps 1-7 on both part-time salary schedules
- g. The new hourly rates for step 8 and up will be determined by adding an equal amount to each new step, 8 to 25, such that the total cost of both the across-the-board increase and the new steps as applied to part-time faculty will be projected to equal \$653,145 for 2013-2014.
- 2. The end of the fourth week of instruction of any term is the final date for filing official transcripts required for column advancement. Official transcripts from an accredited institution bearing the impressed seal of the institution, or the original signature of the registrar, transcript clerk, or recorder are required. After initial placement based on assignment and qualifications, column advancement will be based on the initial assignment even if a future assignment would have produced a lower column placement. For example, if initial placement is in an occupational or vocational assignment and the faculty member's subsequent assignment is primarily academic, the faculty member will not have their pay rate reduced and will retain eligibility to be advanced as if they had remained in an assignment that was at least 0.5 in an occupational or vocational area.
- 3. Column advancement may be granted to a faculty member successfully completing undergraduate courses that enhance the instructor's ability to perform their assignment effectively. The content of the course must directly relate to the faculty member's professional development in a significant way that benefits the college, the District, and the individual faculty member.

A final determination as to whether a course meets the required criterion will be made by a majority vote of a Column Advancement Committee comprised of:

- a. The District Staff Development Officer.
- b. The District Academic Senate President or designee.
- c. The Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs or designee.

A maximum of 20 undergraduate semester units may be applied to column advancement under this provision. No units above the 20-unit maximum outlined above shall be approved after December 1, 2016.

- 4. A course description or outline of the course must be submitted to the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs along with the request for approval. The Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs will be responsible for convening the Column Advancement Committee to consider the request. The Column Advancement Committee must respond within four weeks of submission of the request for approval and all supporting documents.
- 5. A written statement must be issued by the Column Advancement Committee to the faculty member in response to each request for approval. The written notice shall indicate the number of units granted toward column advancement or reason(s) for denial.
- 6. The faculty member may obtain prior approval for the course. For prior approval, the course description/outline must be submitted to the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs at least six weeks prior to the beginning of the course.
- 7. Upon completion of the above requirements and the filing of official transcripts, movement on the salary schedule shall be granted when sufficient units have been completed.
- 7. The provision for column advancement may be grieved only for a procedural violation.
- 9. Effective Spring 2017, part-time faculty who serve as substitute teachers in PCCD will have those hours credited toward step increases pursuant to Appendix 9 (A9) Section E of the CBA. Application of such hours will be according to the following formula:

The number of units calculated in this way will be rounded to the nearest whole number and those units will be applied to step advancement.

F. Annual Salary Schedules

Effective January 1, 2007 all new tenure track faculty hires will be placed on Step 7 as a

minimal placement.

Current pay schedules can be found on the PFT website at: http://pft1603.org/?page_id=189

G. Temporary (Part-Time) Faculty and Extra Service Assignments

Temporary (part-time) faculty and extra service assignments shall be compensated at the part-time and extra service rates, respectively.

H. Temporary (Part-Time) Employees

- 1. Part-time temporary faculty employees shall be paid on a semester basis in five equal monthly installments.
- 2. Part-time temporary employment after retirement see Article 29 C.
- 3. In all instances it shall be the faculty member's responsibility to inform the District of academic work completion for column advancement on the salary schedule (A-E). All documentation must be submitted to the District Personnel Office by the end of the fourth week of instruction.
- 4. It shall be the District's responsibility to move faculty members on experience steps if such experience occurs in the Peralta District.

I. Method of Payment

Contract and Regular Faculty

All annual salaries are paid in twelve installments with the first installment for the college year being payable at the end of the month in which the first class meeting occurs. Faculty employed after that date will have an adjustment in the following July and August pay warrants or will be paid based on a monthly salary rate if a July and August adjustment will not produce the appropriate earnings for the academic year.

Extra Service and Part-Time Regular Faculty

Pay rates are based on the pro-rata, equated hour pay schedule. For each full term, payments are made as follows:

	1st Payment	<u>Last Payment</u>
Fall Semester	End of August	End of December
Spring Semester	End of January	End of May

However, there will be an additional payment if the first day of instruction is August 15 or earlier.

Substitutes

Hourly and daily temporary (substitute) assignments will be compensated on the basis of the per hour pro-rata salary system. If a daily substitute remains in a specific assignment for

more than twenty (20) working days, they will be reimbursed according to their education and experience, on the appropriate Faculty Salary Schedule, retroactive to the first day of that specific assignment.

Employee Qualification

Each faculty member is responsible for meeting state and District minimum qualifications and providing documentation. No salary can be paid to anyone as a faculty member who does not meet minimum qualifications.

J. Coaching Stipends

Coaching stipends shall be paid per coaching assignments, as voluntary assignments, per sport season as follows:

1. Regular and Probationary Faculty (full-time)

As a term of this agreement, a full or partial eleventh-month assignment shall be considered as an extra-duty assignment. Faculty members shall not be required to assume such an additional full or partial eleventh-month assignment without their consent; said additional full or partial eleventh-month assignment shall be entirely at the option of the employee. Any regular faculty member who performs said additional full or partial month shall receive 100% pro rata pay for said service.

- a. Football Head Coach: 11-month assignment (193 days) plus nine (9) equated hours released time.
- b. Basketball Head Coach: 10.75-month assignment (189 days) plus four (4) equated hours released time.
- c. Baseball Head Coach: 10.75-month assignment (189 days) plus four (4) equated hours released time.
- d. All other Head Coaches: 10.67-month assignment (187 days) plus three (3) equated hours released time.
- e. All Assistant Coaches: 10.5-month assignment (184 days) plus one intercollegiate course equated at 7.5 hours assigned as part of full-time (15 equated hours) contract load.
- 2. Temporary Part-Time faculty, per season/per sport (Effective July 1, 2013)

a.	Head Coach	\$3,258
b.	Assistant Head Coaches:	
	1) Football	\$5,215
	2) Baseball	\$4,076
	3) Basketball	\$4,076
	4) All other:	\$3,258

Effective July 1, 2022, part-time coaching stipends will be increased by ten percent (10%) in addition to the 6% COLA and 4% salary increase. The parties will work to calculate and work toward parity in the future.

- 3. The stipend shall be given to each head coach and each assistant head coach.
- 4. The Head Coach may divide the stipend for a full assistant coach among two or more faculty, splitting the stipend based upon the duties assigned to the faculty member. The split shall not exceed the stipend amount for a full assistant coach. Commitments must be executed through appropriate District processes.
- 5. Salary increases applied to the salary schedule shall also be applicable to the stipulated compensation for coaches.
- 6. Additions or replacements to the coaching staff, regular or temporary, shall be in accordance with the applicable provisions of this Agreement.

K. Non-Academic Column Advancement

Occupational and vocational instructors refer to those instructors who have at least a 0.5 assignment in an occupational or vocational area. Column movement for occupational vocational instructors applies to: (1) those who were originally hired to teach in an occupational or vocational subject area and who are still teaching in such area; (2) those who were originally hired to teach in a non-occupational or vocational area, but due to further retraining and the District's educational needs are currently teaching in an occupational or vocational training area. Application for advancement on the salary schedule will be based on current 0.5 employment in a vocational or occupational area.

The 0.5 assignment shall be applicable to full-time instructors only. Part-time, temporary instructors teaching one or more occupational and/or vocational classes will be allowed movement on the salary schedule on a pro-rata basis.

Non-academic salary advancement may be granted to vocational faculty for training courses sponsored by recognized business and industrial firms or professional organizations subject to the following provisions:

- 1. Approval may be granted by a majority vote of the College Professional Development Committee, and two (2) vocational faculty members, one of whom shall be designated by the PFT and the other by the Academic Senate.
- 2. A course description or outline of the Vocational Training Program must be submitted to the above committee along with the request for approval.
- 3. The content of the Vocational Training Program must directly relate to the faculty member's current FSA or an FSA, which the committee believes will benefit the College, the District, and the individual faculty member.
- 4. A written statement must be issued by the Professional Development Committee to the faculty member in response to each request for approval. The written notice shall indicate the number of units granted for completion of the course of study or work, or reason(s) for denial.
- 5. Section E shall not be subject to the grievance procedure.

Upon completion of the above requirements and documentation of completion of the Vocational Training Program, movement on the salary schedule shall be granted according to the following formula: 32 hours of training is equivalent to one semester unit.

L. Salary Notification

At least annually, all faculty members shall receive a statement of their placement on the salary schedule, including column and step. See Appendix A-12 for the Faculty Salary Schedule and other related salary information.

M. Management Retreat and Placement on the Salary Schedule

1. Initial placement on the salary schedule for retreating managers will follow the same procedures and require the same verification of work experience and academic/vocational credit as new faculty hires.

Retreating managers and new faculty hires who seek a salary placement higher than the maximum allowable initial placement must make their request for an exception following the procedures in Article 21 and Appendix A-8, Faculty Salary Schedule, Step Placement Procedures of the contract. Verification for each year of full-time paid related service and satisfactory completion of approved college credit must accompany the request to be moved to a higher Step or Column. No exception will be granted until HR verifies the work experience and college credit. No one will be assigned to a higher step or column than they have earned and been verified.

Service as a Peralta manager will count as experience credit on a year-for-year basis toward initial placement and toward placement beyond the maximum step of initial placement. Each credited year shall only be counted once: either toward initial placement or toward placement beyond the initial placement maximum

- 2. Retreating managers who request it who have not been faculty members in the previous five (5) years will be given up to one semester to refresh their skills before beginning their faculty assignments. During this period, they will be paid according to their initial faculty placement on the faculty salary schedule.
- 3. Tenured Peralta faculty members who become managers and then retreat to the faculty will return to their previously assigned (not elected or appointed) instructional/non-instructional position if available, or a comparable position if not. They will move one step on the faculty salary schedule for every year they were a full-time manager. For example, if they were on Step 17, Column D when they became a manager and served as a manager for 5 years, they will be placed on Step 22 when they return to the faculty. If they successfully completed related course work (work that would be counted toward column advancement by a faculty member), that work would be counted toward column advancement for the retreating manager.
- 4. Retreating managers who were probationary faculty before becoming managers will be treated as managers who are not tenured, that is as new faculty hires.

- 5. No tenured or probationary faculty member will be involuntarily reassigned, transferred, or displaced to create a position for a retreating manager who did not previously acquire tenure as an academic employee.
- 6. Tenured or probationary academic employees may be involuntarily reassigned, transferred, or displaced to create a position for a retreating manager who previously acquired tenure and is more senior than the employee to be involuntarily moved.
- 7. Part-time faculty, including those in the preferred hiring pool, may be reassigned, transferred or displaced to create a position for a retreating manager.
- 8. When determining the assignment of a retreating manager, every effort will be made to not reassign or displace long-term part time faculty and faculty in the preferred hiring pool. If anyone is displaced, it shall not be grievable.
- 9. If any tenured, probationary, or part-time faculty members are displaced by a retreating manager, the District will immediately notify the PFT so the District and the PFT can explore the possibility of employment elsewhere in the district.
- 10. The assignment for a retreating manager shall be given to the person in writing no later than the last day of the spring academic calendar for a fall assignment and with 60 days minimum notice, as per the contract, for a spring assignment.
 - See Appendix (A-7 through A-12) for Faculty Salary placement procedures and other related salary information

N. <u>Re-Openers on District Available Resources and the PFT Share of Those</u> Resources

- 1. Each year, both sides agree to make a "good faith effort" to determine the "PFT Share" of Projected Net Increase or Decrease in "District's Available Resources" during the spring prior to the beginning of the fall semester.
 - "PFT Share" can be positive or negative
- 2. If the PFT Share is positive, after the deduction for the increase in cost of health benefits, and the increase in the cost of part-time faculty office hours, after consultation with the District, PFT is allowed to distribute dollars in various ways, including but not limited to
 - Across-the-board salary increases for all faculty
 - Funding steps on the part-time faculty salary schedule
 - Adding percentage points to part-time (75%) pro-rata rate.
- 3. If PFT Share is negative, the PFT will come up with temporary "give backs:' These "give backs" may include, but are not limited to:

- Additional temporary (one-year) cuts to release time for department chairs,
 Tenure Facilitators, district Staff Development officer, SLO coordinators and
 Distance Ed coordinators,
- Temporary (one-year) progressive cuts to the salary schedule (a greater percentage cut for faculty at higher salaries)
- Temporary (one-year) partial step/column cutbacks or a complete temporary (one-year) freeze on step/column movement for contract faculty.
- 4. Projected Net Increase or Decrease in District's "Available Resources" shall consider all of the following, which both parties shall make a good faith effort to determine based upon the best possible data. The District agrees to provide PFT with information which the PFT determines is necessary for these calculations and determinations:
 - Peralta's state-funded COLA (if any)
 - Benefits cost changes, including number of employees in each bargaining unit
 - State workload, apportionment and property taxes
 - Peralta's share of any tax initiatives which pass or are passed by the legislature during 2012-15
 - Peralta's ending balance and reserves
 - OPEB bond expenses and income
 - District payments to consultants
 - Other
 - Faculty Obligation Number
 - o 50%1aw
 - o 75% 25% law

O. Late Payment Penalty

- 1. Eligibility
 - a. Late payment penalties shall not apply to underpayments resulting from improper initial salary placements for the first two (2) pay cycles after first rendering service as a new full- or part-time faculty.
 - b. This agreement shall not apply to underpayments equal to less than 5% of wages owed on the scheduled payday.
- 2. Underpayment Restitution
 - a. Any unit member who is paid less than the wages owed to them in a regularly scheduled pay cycle shall receive, as restitution, a sum equal to fifty dollars (\$50) per calendar day that wages are late.
 - b. Restitution shall cease to accrue and be due upon payment of wages.

This provision shall not be considered a waiver of any rights a unit member has to pursue a wage claim under federal or state law.

ARTICLE 22: HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS:

Active employees, retirees, temporary, part-time faculty.

Effective January 1, 2023, the District will transition its health insurance plans to plans offered by the Self-Insured Schools of California (SISC) as described below. The District will continue to fund the Health and Welfare Program and absorb and increase in premium rate at the current benefit level for the duration of this Agreement. See APPENDIX 14 (A14).

A. General Conditions

Both parties acknowledge:

- 1. No reduction in any benefit that is provided in the 2022 Agreement shall occur due to failure to include said benefit in this Agreement, unless such reduction is specifically indicated in this Agreement.
- 2. Benefits shall be equal to or greater than existing benefits as summarized in the plans described in Section B (including dependents' coverage where applicable).
- 3. The health and welfare plans shall be contractually arranged by the District. Said contracts are hereby made a part of this Agreement and shall be consistent with the terms of this Agreement. Said contracts and related documents (loss rations, premium rates, et al) are to be made available to the PFT representative(s) during normal District business hours. There are no changes to the plans that provide Life Insurance and Accidental Death and Dismemberment (AD&D) benefits, the Delta Dental Plan, the Flexible Benefits Plan, and the Commuter Expense Plan.
- 4. The description of the employee's medical benefits plan included in this Agreement shall replace the Blue Cross PPO and modify the current Kaiser plan. The current medical benefit plans shall remain in effect until the new plans are fully operational and implemented. All health and welfare plans shall be contractually arranged by the District and said contracts are hereby made a part of this agreement as per Article 22.A.3.
- 5. The District shall cover the cost of any changes in PCCD's SISC plan or Kaiser plan that result in reduced benefits or increased contributions for members during the term of this 2022 agreement. In subsequent agreements, the union reserves the right to negotiate with the District over Peralta's ongoing responsibility to cover such costs.
- 6. The PFT and the District agree to meet and discuss the resolution of any unforeseen service delivery problems that may arise concerning the administration of health and welfare benefits.
- 7. This agreement does not supersede any rights vested under California law.
- 8. The District shall provide to each regular, probationary and LTS faculty member and their eligible family members' health and welfare benefits. Health and welfare benefits are defined as medical, prescription drugs, dental, vision, employee and dependent life insurance, accidental death and dismemberment, long-term disability, and the employee assistance program (EAP).

B. District-Offered Health and Welfare Benefit Plans

The district will offer the following health and welfare benefit plans to regular, probationary and long-term substitute faculty represented by the bargaining unit:

1. Medical Insurance

Effective January 1, 2023, the District will contribute to the cost of health insurance premiums for full-time faculty as follows:

- a. Kaiser Foundation Health Plan will be at no cost to eligible employees and their qualifying dependents.
- b. PPO Plan: Eligible employees enrolled in the PPO plan shall pay twenty percent (20%) of the premium cost of the PPO plan, and the District will pay eighty percent (80%) of the premium cost of the PPO plan, for the level of coverage in which the employee is enrolled (single party, two party, family); except as follows:
 - (i) For eligible employees hired before December 31, 2022 and enrolled in the PPO "Lite" plan as of December 31, 2022, who choose to enroll in the PPO plan effective January 1, 2023, will be grandfathered with an employee monthly contribution of:

Single \$15/month

Two-party \$30/month

Family \$45/month

c. Within ninety (90) days of the Board of Trustees' approval of this side letter, the District agrees to work with SISC to find an additional PPO plan option with a lower employee cost share and with the same provider network as the new SISC PPO Plan, and will add the plan effective March 1, 2023. The District will provide a new open enrollment opportunity when the new plan is added. If there is a delay in implementation, between March 1, 2023 and when the SISC "Lite" plan becomes available, all eligible employees will be able to participate in the SISC PPO at a member cost of:

Single \$15/month

Two-party \$30/month

Family \$45/month

- 2. **Delta Dental Insurance** or such other plan that provides equivalent benefits.
 - a. Eligible employees may select among the plans as follows:
 - (i) Delta Dental
 - (ii) United Healthcare Dental
 - b. The District's maximum contribution for dental for full-time faculty will be at the United Healthcare (UHC) Dental family rate.
- 3. **Basic Life Insurance** is paid for by the District for regular, probationary and LTS faculty.
- 4. **Long-Term Disability Insurance** is paid for by the District for regular, probationary and LTS faculty.

5. Vision Coverage

At no cost to the District, a voluntary vision benefit is available for employee optional enrollment.

6. Employee Assistance Program

C. Regular, Probationary, and Long-Term Substitutes

- 1. All regular, probationary, and long-term substitute faculty shall receive at District expense the following health and welfare benefits, subject to the terms and conditions of the policies and this agreement:
 - a. Medical Insurance
 - b. Dental Insurance
 - c. Life Insurance
 - d. Long-term Disability Insurance
 - e. Employee Assistance Program

In addition, such employees may at their own expense purchase additional life and/or disability insurance.

- 2. The District shall provide all necessary enrollment forms and information to new employees in a timely fashion. Failure of the District to do so shall result in the District holding the employee harmless for any covered claims incurred in this period.
- 3. Coverage begins on the first day of assignment.
- 4. It shall be the faculty members responsibility to return all enrollment forms for health and welfare benefits to the District by the agreed upon deadline. Failure to do so shall hold the District harmless for any claim made in this period. In any case, all enrollment forms must be received by the District within thirty (30) days of the date of hire. Failure to comply may result in a delay of coverage.
- 5. If spouses are employed by the District, they shall each be eligible separately for all health and welfare benefits. The only exception is that the shared dependent children shall not be covered by both covered parents.
- 6. All dependents must be added at the time of the employee's enrollment, or within thirty (30) days of the date the Dependent becomes eligible for enrollment or during the open enrollment period. The following plans include dependent coverage:
 - a. Medical Insurance.
 - b. Dental Insurance.
 - c Life Insurance.

7. The District shall provide new employees with an orientation which will include brochures describing each benefit program and provider, a summary sheet explaining the differences among policies, information about other insurance that is available to purchase and a sign-off sheet that indicates the new person has been given choices they have regarding benefits.

8. Cash-in-lieu /Opt-Out Option (Medical and Dental for Active Employees Only)

- a. Full-time faculty who sign an attestation and release and provide proof of other miminum essential group medical coverage as defined by the Affordable Care Act, and/or group dental coverage may decline enrollment into a District-provided medical insurance and/or dental insurance plan.
 - (i) Full-time faculty who receive medical insurance cash-in-lieu effective December 31, 2022, who continue to opt out of District-paid medical insurance coverage effective January 1, 2023, will receive a monthly amount of two hundred twenty-five dollars (\$225) (this reimbursement is an all-or- nothing option, employee and all eligible dependents, if applicable, must waive the plan to be eligible for this flat reimbursement amount). Faculty receiving cash-in-lieu as of January 1, 2023 who subsequently enroll in District medical insurance plans, and then opt-out at a later date, will no longer be eligible for medical insurance cash-in-lieu. No other employees will be eligible for cash-in-lieu if they opt out of District medical insurance.
 - (ii) Full-time faculty who decline enrollment in the District-provided dental insurance plan will receive a flat monthly amount of twenty-five dollars (\$25) for group dental waiver. This reimbursement is an all-or-nothing option. The employee and all eligible dependents (if applicable) must waive the plan to be eligible for this flat reimbursement amount.
 - Participation on the Opt-Out Option for group medical and/or group dental is 100% voluntary; and
 - The amount is paid on a monthly basis; and
 - The amount is paid on an after-tax basis (taxable income to the employee); and
 - The amount will not be pro-rated to the FTE; and
 - Election of group medical and group dental opt-out is not mutually exclusive, the member may elect to opt-out of medical only, dental only or medical and dental combined.

(iii)Opt-out Election

It is the responsibility of the member to complete the requisite items as indicated below during open enrollment (no exceptions):

Cash-in-lieu form and written verification of other group medical and/or dental coverage from the insurer within thirty (30) days from the election to participate in the District's cash-in-lieu plan.

(iv)Opt-in

It is the responsibility of the member to complete the enrollment form and submit documentation within 30 days of initial hire, open enrollment or a qualifying

event as defined by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996.

9. Upon attaining Medicare eligibility (presently, at age 65), retirees shall enroll in Medicare A & B, provided the District pays 100% of the current and future costs of Medicare premiums. Such enrollment is a precondition to the District continuing to pay for their medical insurance coverage. No individual shall receive less coverage (for example: reduced benefits, increased co-pays or increased deductibles) as a result of enrolling in Medicare. This provision shall not be precedential.

10. Medicare Part D:

- a. PFT and PCCD have always agreed that it is mutually beneficial to undertake programs which do not violate PFT/PCCD contract(s) and also lower long-run costs of PCCD programs. This agreement Medicare Part D follows from that principle. This Agreement is not intended to, nor does it annul or diminish, any previously vested retiree health benefits. This Agreement shall also not be precedent setting for either PCCD or PFT in regard to any other areas of disagreement that may arise in the future, nor may it be relied upon to determine the nature, scope and extent of retirees' previously vested retiree health benefits.
- b. Medicare Part D Prescription Drug Benefit Program became effective on March 22, 2005.
- c. The District will reimburse retirees enrolled in Kaiser Senior Advantage, or the self-funded plan a secondary coverage, who continuously meet the eligibility requirements in (1) and (2) below for their cost for Medicare Part D Income-Related Monthly Adjustment Amount (Part D-IRMAA).
 - (1) This agreement only covers regular and contract faculty who retire form the District after May 1, 2013. It will cover Medicare Part D Income-Related Monthly Adjustment Amount (Part D-IRMAA). This agreement does not cover individuals no longer represented by PFT.
 - (2) The retiree and eligible dependents who are continuously enrolled in Kaiser Senior Advantage, or the self-funded plan as secondary coverage, and become subject to the Medicare Part D Income-Related Monthly Adjustment Amount (Part D-IRMAA), as assessed by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) will be eligible for Medicare Part D Income-Related Monthly Adjustment Amount (Part D-IRMAA) reimbursement, if all of the following conditions are met by the retiree and/or eligible dependent:
 - (a) The retiree was employed by the District before July 1, 2004, and retired after May 1, 2013.
 - (b) The retiree and/or eligible dependent is enrolled in a Peralta group-sponsored medical plan at the time the Medicare Part D Income-Related Monthly Adjustment Amount (Part D-IRMAA) is assessed.
 - (c) The retiree and/or eligible dependent is not concurrently enrolled in another privately held Medicare D program.
 - (d) The retiree and/or eligible dependent or caregiver completes and submits the Medicare Premium Claim Form (see Appendix) and documentation of Part D-

IRMAA paid to the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, no later than March 30 following the calendar year in which the Part D-IRMAA was assessed. It is understood that if the District does not receive the completed claim form and proof of premium payment, it is under no obligation to provide reimbursement.

In order to cover retirees since May 1, 2013, reimbursement shall include 2013 Part D-IRMAA payments as long as the form for these payments is submitted by March 30, 2016, and each March 30th thereafter, or within 60 calendar days of receipt of the Part D-IRMAA charge, whichever date is later. (Any deadline falling on a weekend or Peralta holiday, shall be extended to the next Peralta business day in which the District offices are open.) To be eligible, the member must have retired on or after May 1, 2013. Expenses incurred or paid after January 1, 2015 will be eligible for reimbursement.

11. Make Whole Process for Faculty Who Retire Before SISC Implementation PCCD will create a clear, simple process for faculty who retire after the date of this agreement and before SISC implementation to be "made whole" in terms of their benefits, out-of-pocket costs, deductibles, and co-pays.

12. COBRA Rights

- a. If group health coverage ends due to termination (for other than gross misconduct) of a covered employee's employment or loss of coverage due to a reduction in hours, including loss of coverage due to an employer filing for Chapter 11 reorganization, continued coverage for the employee and the employee's dependents will end on the last day of the eighteen (18) month period following the date that the group coverage ended.
- b. If a spouse or dependent loses insured status due to the reasons set forth in D1 above, the death of the employee, employee's divorce or legal separation, employee's entitlement to Medicare, or if a dependent child no longer meets the definition of dependent, coverage for the spouse or dependent will end on the last date of the thirty-six (36) month period following the date coverage ended.
- c. COBRA benefits are paid by the employee or dependent.
- d. The Benefits Office at the District can provide additional details and the cost of continuing coverage under the provisions of COBRA.

D. Survivor Rights

1. Upon the death of the employee, the surviving spouse shall receive paid medical benefits for themselves, all dependent children and posthumous children until all such children would no longer be eligible to receive paid medical benefits had the employee survived. Said spouse shall then have the option of buying into the District medical benefits program by the timely payment of premiums as stipulated by the District for the lifetime of the spouse or as long as they are eligible under the guidelines above.

- a. Only the surviving spouse and dependent children (including posthumous children) covered by the employee's medical plan at the time of the death of the employee are eligible for this coverage.
- b. In the event of the death of the employee and/or their spouse, the dependent children and posthumous children of the employee shall receive paid medical benefits until all such children would no longer be eligible to receive paid medical benefits had the employee survived.
- c. If there are no dependent children, the surviving spouse shall have the option of buying into the District medical benefits program by the timely payment of premiums as stipulated by the District, for the lifetime of the spouse or until they are no longer eligible under the guidelines identified above.
- d. Eligibility for medical benefits will terminate for the surviving spouse and dependent children upon the remarriage of the surviving spouse.
- e. Eligibility for medical coverage will apply only if the surviving spouse and dependent children have no other group medical coverage or if the surviving spouse must pay for other group health coverage. Annual documentation will be required.
- f. Coverage under the District's medical plan will be secondary to any other medical coverage.
- g. Eligibility for this benefit replaces COBRA. The surviving spouse and dependent children will not be eligible for COBRA.

E. Retirees Health and Welfare Benefits

1. Definitions

- a. As used herein, the phrase "at District expense" means the District will continue to pay the entire premium for the retiree and, where covered, retiree's eligible spouse/dependents, under the conditions specified herein.
- b. As used herein, the phrase "consistent with the coverage offered to active employees at the time of retirement" means, for example, "no reduced benefits, increased co-pays, or increased deductibles." The District shall continue to cover retirees medically necessary or appropriate services, subsequently included within District plans for active employees.
- c. The definitions and conditions, which apply to medical and life insurance only, as stated in Article 22.B shall apply to retiree health and welfare benefits.

2. Newly Hired Faculty Members Hired on or after July 1, 2004

a. Eligible faculty members retiring from regular contract service at the age of 55 or older with at least ten years of creditable service (as defined by STRS or PERS) receive these retiree benefits.

The term "newly hired unit faculty members" is defined as faculty who are hired as probationary or permanent on or after July 1, 2004.

- Contract (probationary) or regular [tenured or permanent] faculty with prior service as Peralta temporary faculty (i.e. part-time temporary, sabbatical replacement, categorically funded etc.) will receive pro-rated credit in the proportion that each year of temporary faculty service bears to a year of full-time service based on the full-time base contract load (CBA Article 18.A).
- b. Qualifying employees hired on or after July 1, 2004 who retire before attaining the age of Medicare eligibility (currently, age 65 with minor exceptions) will be able to continue coverage, including spousal and eligible dependent coverage, that is consistent with the coverage offered to active employees at the time of retirement, at District expense, until they reach the age of Medicare eligibility (currently, age 65). When they become eligible for Medicare, these employees shall enroll in Medicare Parts A and B. Upon reaching Medicare eligibility age, the District's obligation to pay benefits shall cease, and no other District paid benefit shall be available.
- c. Any spouse or dependent of a retired faculty member who was hired on or after July 1, 2004, shall be covered during the retiree's lifetime consistent with the coverage offered to active employees at the time of retirement, until the spouse or dependent reaches the age of Medicare eligibility (currently, age 65), or until they are no longer a spouse or dependent as defined in Article 22.E.1.a., b., and d. above.
- d. Survivor rights: In the event of the death of the retiree prior to the spouse or dependent reaching the age of Medicare eligibility (currently, age 65), the spouse or dependent may buy the plan consistent with the coverage offered to active employees at the time of retirement, under the terms described herein, until they reach the age of Medicare eligibility (currently, age 65).
- e. Employees hired on or after July 1, 2004 who work full-time beyond the attainment of Medicare eligibility (currently, age 65) will remain on the District's medical plans, like any other active employee. Upon retirement, they may elect COBRA (self-pay) on the plan in which they were enrolled.
- f. Retiree Medical (retirements after 7/1/2012)
 - 1) Mandated Enrollment in Medicare A & B Retired Unit members, upon reaching Medicare eligibility—sign up with the District their election in Medicare Parts A & B. Medicare sign-up shall be required in order to maintain retirement medical benefits. For any unit member who retires after July 1, 2012, if the retiree willfully elects not to enroll in Medicare Parts A & B, the District may terminate the retiree's District-paid health benefits, provided:
 - a) The retiree is provided two notices via certified mail, the first at least 60 days prior to termination; the second at least 30 days prior to termination.
 - b) The notices shall be written in plain language.
 - c) The PFT shall be sent a copy of both notices.
 - d) The District shall make at least two efforts to speak to the retiree telephonically during the 60-day period in #1above. The times and dates of the calls shall be made available to the PFT.
 - e) If the retiree has a legal guardian or someone with power-of-attorney, the District shall undertake reasonable effort to notify such person via mail and

- the telephone number on record with the District. The retiree or designee will notify the District in the event that a legal guardian or power-of-attorney is appointed
- f) The Vice Chancellor of Human Resources and Employee Relations shall meet and discuss any planned termination of benefits with the PFT President on request at least 15 working days prior to the termination of medical benefits.
- g) The benefits shall not be terminated retroactively.
- h) The Vice Chancellor of Human Resources and Employee Relations shall have the authority to continue retiree benefits in cases where unforeseen circumstances did not allow the retiree to enroll in Medicare Parts A & B in a timely fashion.
- i) Should a retiree whose District benefits have been terminated due to failure to enroll in Medicare subsequently enroll, the District shall reinstate the retiree's District-paid health benefits. The amended Medicare enrollment language will be a part of the contract clean-up language.

2) Hold PFT harmless in case of retiree lawsuit

Should

- a) the requirement to enroll in Medicare;
- b) the termination of any unit member who retires after 7/1/2012 and spouse or dependents resulting from a failure to enroll in Medicare; or
- c) the decision to provide the PPO lite plan, but not the PPO Traditional plan, to post-7/1/2012 retirees without premiums, be challenged in any forum, and if the PFT is named as a party, the District hereby agrees to defend, hold harmless and indemnify PFT, its officers, agents, representatives and affiliates, including but not limited to the CFT and AFT, for any adverse final judgment. The District shall have the exclusive right to decide and determine whether any such action shall be compromised, resisted, defended, litigated or appealed.

3. Faculty Members Hired Before July 1, 2004

- a. Consistent with the status quo, faculty members retiring from regular contract service at the age of 55 or older with at least five years of creditable service (STRS or PERS) shall receive these retiree benefits.
- b. All regular and contract faculty retiring from the District during the term of this Agreement shall be offered lifetime medical coverage at District expense that is consistent with the coverage offered to active employees at the time of retirement. This includes spouse and eligible dependents.
- c. Employees hired before July 1, 2004 shall either become eligible for Medicare by paying District-reimbursed Medicare tax, or become eligible for STRS or PERS reimbursement of Medicare Part A at no cost to the employee.

 When such employees reach the age of Medicare eligibility (currently page 65) they shall enroll in Medicare Parts A and B, provided the District pays 100% of the current and future costs of Medicare premiums. The District shall pay or reimburse the retiree

for the current and future costs of the Medicare premiums. The District shall pay the Medicare taxes of such employees.

- After enrolling in Medicare, no individual shall receive less coverage (for example reduced benefits, increased co-pays, increased deductibles) as a result of enrolling in Medicare.
- d. Any spouse or dependent of a vested, retired faculty member who was hired prior to July 1, 2004, shall be covered during the retiree's lifetime at District expense under medical coverage that is consistent with the coverage offered to active employees at the time of retirement, or until they are no longer a spouse or dependent as defined in Article 22.E.1. a., b. and d. herein. The retiree and spouse/eligible dependent shall, upon reaching the age of Medicare eligibility (currently, age 65), each enroll in Medicare Parts A and B and the District shall immediately, and thereafter, pays 100% of the current and future costs of Medicare premiums. No individual shall receive less coverage (for example: reduced benefits, increased co-pays, increased deductibles) as a result of enrolling in Medicare.
- e. Employees hired prior to July 1, 2004 who work full-time beyond the attainment of Medicare eligibility (currently, age 65) will remain on the District's medical plans, like any other active employee. However, in accordance with Article 22.F.3.c. and 22.F.3.d. above, when they retire, they must enroll in Medicare Parts A and B. The District shall immediately and thereafter pay 100% of the current and future costs of Medicare premiums for the employee. No individual shall receive less coverage (for example: reduced benefits, increased co-pays, increased deductibles) as a result of enrolling in Medicare.
 - The employee's spouse/dependents shall enroll in Medicare when eligible and no individual shall receive less coverage (explained above) as a result of enrolling in Medicare.
- f. Survivor Rights: Upon the death of the retiree, the surviving spouse and eligible dependent(s) shall have the option of buying into the District Medical benefits program consistent with the coverage offered to active employees at the time of the retiree's retirement by the timely payments of premiums as stipulated by the District for the lifetime of the spouse or until such time as they are no longer eligible as defined in language above.
- g. The above option (Article 22.F.2.f.) shall also be applicable to dependent children.
- h. All regular and contract faculty members from age 55 to 65 who retire from regular service shall be maintained (at the District's expense) through age 65 on the District group life insurance policy provided for employees through age 65. The retired employee shall have the option to convert to an individual permanent plan at their own expense.

F. Temporary, Part-time Faculty:

100% Buy-In Plan for Medical and/or Dental Coverage

The 100% buy-in plan for part-time faculty will continue to offer Kaiser HMO and the PPO options, continuing past practice with the 100% buy-in.

- 1. If during the term of this Agreement, State funds are allocated to the District for the specific purpose of enhancing medical benefits for part-time faculty, or if new legislation requires District maintenance of effort on part-time faculty health benefits, the parties shall negotiate over medical benefits for part-time faculty.
- 2. Voluntary fringe benefits under this Agreement include the present District medical and dental insurance plans. All references to medical also include coverage for prescription drugs and vision benefits.
- 3. Part-time faculty members may subscribe for medical and dental insurance under the District's group coverage program.
- 4. The part-time faculty member contribution for participation in medical and/or dental benefits under the 100% buy in plan shall be an amount exactly equal to the prevailing amount the amount paid by the District for individual contract faculty members. Plan enrollment options are:
 - a. Medical at 100% buy-in cost, with three options for medical plans at the expense of the part-time faculty member:
 - Kaiser HMO Plan
 - Preferred Provider Organization Traditional (in-network and out-of-network benefits available)
 - Preferred Provider Organization Lower Cost SISC PPO Plan (once available)
 - b. Dental at 100% buy-in cost, with two options for dental plans at the expense of the part-time faculty member:
 - Delta Dental
 - United Health Care Dental
- 5. To be eligible, part-time faculty members must have completed four (4) semesters in the immediately preceding four (4) years. Partial semesters are not included in computation of completion for the fulfillment of four (4) semesters.
- 6. Part-time faculty members may subscribe for dependent's coverage under this program.
- 7. Part-time faculty members who select this option must subscribe for membership no later than the 20th day of the month preceding the period for which coverage is requested.
- 8. Part-time faculty members may, at their option, have monthly premium payments for medical insurance deducted directly from their paychecks.
- 9. Due dates for premium payments, if paid by check, shall be the 20th day of the month for a minimum of two (2) months advance coverage.

- 10. For any part-time faculty member paying by check, who fails to submit advance premiums for two (2) months, coverage shall be dropped from the District program on the first of the month following delinquency. There will be no exceptions.
- 11. In the event of a break in service, part-time faculty members will not lose their eligibility for benefits after return from break in service, provided that:
 - a. They maintained their benefits pursuant to COBRA for the duration of their absence;
 - b. They were absent for no more than 18 months; and
 - c. One of the following situations applies:
 - 1) They have had approved leave in a category available to part-time faculty under article 26; or
 - 2) Cancellation of classes due to low enrollment, budgetary reasons, program needs or reassignment of the class to a contract or regular faculty instructor.

12. SDI Program for Part-time faculty

- a. The part-time, temporary faculty have voted to be included in the State Disability Insurance ("SDI") program in accordance with A.B. 381 (Unemployment Insurance Code Section 710.9).
- b. Part-time faculty shall pay 100% of the contribution required to participate in the California SDI program through regular payroll deductions. .
- c. PCCD shall implement this program as soon as practicable, but in no event, no later than an effective date of January 4, 2011.
- d. PCCD may hereafter cease participation in this program only to the extent allowed by law.

e

13. 125 plans for payments

a. The District shall establish a 125 plan for part-time temporary faculty which will permit part-time faculty to tax-shelter health benefits premiums.

G. Temporary, Part-time Faculty Medical

Part-time Faculty 50/50 Medical Plan Coverage:

Effective Fall 2014, the Part Time Community College Faculty Health Insurance Program, as defined by Education Code Section 87863 and referred to herein as the "50/50 Medical Plan" shall only apply to and provide the Kaiser Plan. (Note: The 100% buy-in plan for part-time faculty set forth in Article 22.F above shall still offer both Kaiser and the PPO options, continuing past practice with the 100% buy in.)

- 1. If during the term of this Agreement, State funds are allocated to the District for the specific purpose of enhancing medical benefits for part-time faculty, or if new legislation requires District maintenance of effort on part-time faculty health benefits, the parties shall negotiate over medical benefits for part-time faculty.
- 2. Voluntary fringe benefits under this Agreement include the present District medical insurance plans. All references to medical also include coverage for prescription drugs and vision benefits.
- 3. Part-time faculty members may subscribe for medical insurance under the District's group coverage program as follows:

Kaiser Plan

Effective fall 2014, Kaiser HMO is the only medical plan enrollment option available for part time faculty who wish to participate in the "50/50 Medical plan."

- The District will contribute exactly one half of the premium cost to the monthly premium for the eligible part-time faculty member; the part-time faculty member contribution for participation in this program shall also be an amount exactly one half of the prevailing amount paid by the District for individual contract faculty members.
- Eligibility Part-time faculty whose teaching assignment equals or exceeds 40% of the cumulative equivalent of a minimum full-time teaching assignment are eligible to enroll in this 50/50 Plan.

PPO Plan

Additional enrollment options are available, and the part-time faculty member will pay 100% of the prevailing monthly COBRA-equivalent cost.

Preferred Provider Organization – Traditional (in network and out-of-network benefits available.

- 4. Faculty members may enroll dependents under this program.
- 5. Faculty members who select this option must subscribe for membership no later than the 20^{th} day of the month preceding the period for which coverage is requested.
- 6. Faculty members may, at their option, have monthly premium payments for medical insurance deducted directly from their paychecks.
- 7. Due dates for premium payments, if paid by check, shall be the 20th day of the month for a minimum of two (2) months' advance coverage.
- 8. Any part-time faculty member paying by check, who fails to submit advance premiums for two (2) months, coverage shall be dropped from the District program on the first of the month following delinquency. There will be no exceptions.

AB 190 Part-Time Faculty Medical Insurance Program

In accordance with California Education Code Sections 87860-87868, the District will expand its part-time faculty medical insurance program effective July 1, 2023, subject to and in accordance with the following conditions and provisions:

The AB 190 Part-Time Faculty Medical Insurance Program will be in effect contingent on sufficient State funding to cover the maximum potential cost of the program for the District. If, in any future fiscal year, the District pays more than the amount spent for the 50/50 plan in Year 2021/22 after receipt of State funding ("overage"), the District will send to the PFT the audited actuals following the end of the Fiscal Year in which the coverage occurred. The PFT and District will meet in good faith to discuss how to address the full shortfall/overage, including implementing cost reductions to the District in other areas of the PFT Collective Bargaining Agreement. If the parties do not reach agreement on how to address the shortfall in funding within sixty (60) days of the District sending the audited actuals to PFT, the District will revert to the 50/50 Medical Plan Coverage Plan for qualifying faculty members for the following semester.

In order to cover one-time budget overages for AB 190 Part-Time Faculty Medical Insurance, the District will create a reserve which will be capped at two (2) times the amount spent by the District for the 50/50 plan in Fiscal Year 2021/22 ("benchmark amount"). The District will fund the reserve using the FY 23/24 State reimbursement up to the benchmark amount (\$480,000) following FY 23/24, and will fund the reserve using the FY 24/25 State reimbursement with an additional benchmark allocation (\$480,000) following FY 24/25. If the District is required to use the reserve to cover additional costs beyond the benchmark amount, the District will have additional time to fund the reserve. The reserve will be capped at \$960,000. The reserve will be used solely for one-time costs to the District resulting from budget overages to pay for AB 190 Part-Time Faculty Medical Insurance. The District reserves the right to eliminate the reserve in the event it has not been needed for Part-Time Faculty Health Insurance costs during the term of the agreement.

Eligibility for and coverage under the Part-Time Faculty Medical Insurance Program will be as follows:

- 1. A part-time faculty member whose teaching assignment equals or exceeds 40% of the cumulative equivalent of a minimum full-time teaching assignment, as defined by Education Code Section 87861, are eligible to receive full medical insurance benefits equal o benefits provided to full-time faculty by the District, under the same terms defined in Article 22 of the CBA between the District and PFT. In no event shall a part-time faculty member pay more than the actual individual premium paid by full-time faculty in the District.
- 2. Notwithstanding Section 1, if a multi-district part-time faculty member whose teaching assignments at two or more community college districts equals or exceeds 40% of the cumulative equivalent of a minimum full-time teaching assignment (as defined by Education Code Section 87861) individually purchases health insurance benefits (including coverage for dependents), the multi-district part-time faculty member shall be reimbursed for the District's proportionate share of their total health insurance premium by the District. The District's proportionate share shall be determined by dividing the

total health insurance premium paid by the multi-district part-time faculty member by the total number of community college districts in which the multi-district part-time faculty member works for purposes of meeting the requirements of subdivision (b) of Section 87861 of the Education Code, and multiplying the quotient by the percentage of health care costs paid by the District toward the total cost of the health insurance premium.

- 3. A multi-district part-time faculty member may purchase benefits from the District. The District shall reimburse its proportionate share of the multi-district part-time faculty member's total health insurance premium as described in Section 2 above.
- 4. The benefit periods are September through February for Fall semester and March through August for Spring semester.
- 5. The District may require reasonable documentation from a multi-district part-time faculty member once per benefit period to verify that the faculty member's total cumulative teaching assignments at two or more community college districts equals or exceeds 40% of the cumulative equivalent of a minimum full-time teaching assignment. The District may require reasonable documentation from a multi-district part-time faculty member to determine the District's proportionate share, including documentation verifying enrollment in a health insurance plan and the premium paid for the health insurance plan.
- 6. A part-time faculty member, multi-district part-time faculty member, or their dependents whose premiums for medical insurance are paid by an employer other than a community college district are not eligible to participate in the program.
- 7. A faculty member's eligibility under this program will not be a factor in scheduling of classes and instructors. The District will not be liable for insurance costs for part-time faculty members whose eligibility for this program changes due to schedule changes.

H. Dental Plans

- 1. Individual unit members may select among the plans as follows:
 - a. Delta Dental
 - b. United Healthcare Dental
- 2. The District's maximum contribution for dental will be at the United Healthcare (UHC) Dental family rate.

I. 120625Future increases in the cost of health benefits:

PFT and the District agree that the increased cost to health benefits will be deducted before determining PFT's share of the Projected Net Increase or Decrease in District's Available Resources.

J. Health and Welfare Benefits Committee

The District will continue the Health and Welfare Committee consisting of representatives from PFT, SEIU Local 1021, Local 39 and Management to review the potential changes and/or modifications to health and welfare plan.

The role of the Health and Welfare Committee shall be limited to making recommendations to the PFT and District.

K. Domestic Partners

Health and Dental Insurance Plans have been extended to domestic partners.

L. State or Federal Health Plan Legislation/Regulation

If, during the term of this agreement, the state or federal government adopts health insurance legislation/regulations that affect either the cost and/or benefits received by employees eligible to participate in the District health plans as defined in this agreement, the health plan provisions of this Article may be re-opened.

ARTICLE 23: SENIORITY LIST

Seniority list and probationary or regular employees.

- A. Pursuant to Education Code Sections 87414 and 87415, the District is required to maintain a list reflecting the order of employment of all probationary or regular employees in the manner prescribed by Sections 87400 to 87424 inclusive, and to keep a roster of same as a public record and to post such roster at each college by October 31. The intent of these statutes is to provide probationary and regular employees with their respective order of employment (seniority standing) in the District.
- B. Every probationary or regular employee employed after June 30, 1947, shall be deemed to have been employed on the date upon which they first rendered paid service in a probationary or regular position.
- C. Records showing date of employment shall be accessible, on demand, to any faculty member of the District or to their designated representative.
- D. In the absence of records as to the determination of the first date of rendered paid service in a probationary or regular position, the District, in accordance with evidence presented, shall determine the order of employment after giving employees a reasonable opportunity to present such evidence.

E. Corrections on Seniority List

The Board shall have the power and it shall be its duty to correct any errors discovered from time to time in its records showing the order of employment. Any faculty member may submit documents for review which may correct their first date of rendered paid service in a probationary or regular position. The President of the Peralta Federation of Teachers shall be notified in writing whenever a change or a correction is made to the seniority list.

F. Same Date of Paid Service in a Probationary or Regular Position

Every probationary or regular employee who first rendered paid service on the same date in a probationary or regular position shall participate in a single drawing to determine the order of employment.

- 1. A drawing shall take place at the District Office.
- 2. The President of the Peralta Federation of Teachers and the affected employees shall be notified of the time and date of the drawing.
- 3. Any employee who cannot be present or who refuses to participate in the drawing will not be omitted. The employee will be given the opportunity to designate a representative to act in their place. This proxy selection shall be in writing and provided to the Office of Employee Relations prior to the drawing.

- 4. The "drawing date" shall be mutually agreed upon with the President of the Peralta Federation of Teachers.
- 5. Each person will draw twice.
 - a. The first drawing will be according to alphabetical order and will determine the order of drawing for seniority.
 - b. The second drawing will determine actual seniority placement.
- 6. Whenever the District discovers that an employee has been given an incorrect first date of rendered paid service in a probationary or regular position or whenever it is ordered by a court to change an employee's first date of rendered paid service in a probationary or regular position, it shall make the appropriate corrections. If the correction results in a first date of rendered paid service in a probation or regular position, which is the same date as one or more other employees, the employee's seniority ranking within this group of employees shall be determined as follows:
 - a. The first drawing will be according to alphabetical order and will determine the order of drawing for seniority.
 - b. The second drawing will determine actual seniority placement.
 - c. The total number of slips for the drawing shall be the total number of employees with the same first date of rendered paid service in a probationary or regular position, including those employee(s) to be added to the sequence.
 - d. The number drawn shall rank the added employee in the group following the employee's name with the same number of the sequence for that first date of rendered paid service in a probationary or regular position. (Example: When #2 is drawn, the employee shall be placed after the second employee's name on the seniority list with the same date of rendered paid service in a probationary or regular position.)
- 7. Any determination of an employee's order of employment pursuant to "breaking ties" shall be made within thirty (30) days of the date service was first rendered by the employee or thirty (30) days from the receipt of a judicial order compelling the District to comply.

ARTICLE 24: REDUCTION IN FORCE

Information on procedure and process.

A. Faculty Service Areas

- 1. **Definition**: For purposes of Education Code Sections 87743, 87743.1, 87743.2, 87743.3, 87743.4 and 87743.5, 87744, and 87745 the list of "Faculty Service Areas" (FSA) in the Peralta Community College District shall be the same list as the state minimum qualifications for hire list as defined by the Board of Governors in compliance with Education Code 87356, 87357, 987358 and 87359.
- 2. A faculty member will be considered "competent" in an FSA if the faculty member:
 - a. Possesses a valid California Community College subject matter credential in the discipline(s) covered by the FSA, or
 - b. Holds the state minimum qualifications for hire; including the equivalency provision as defined by the Board of Governors' discipline list, as well as any local qualifications that the PCCD has jointly agreed to with the Peralta District Academic Senate, or
 - c. Has legally taught in the FSA at the post-secondary level for at least one quarter or semester.
- 3. An employee may petition for recognition of competence in an FSA by filing a petition for such recognition with the District. It shall be the responsibility of the employee to provide the District with all non-Peralta records necessary to substantiate the claim of competence.
- 4. The District shall provide, within sixty calendar days of hire, each regular and probationary faculty employee with a list of those FSAs for which the faculty member possesses competence as determined by the employees' records on file with the District.
- 5. Refusal to grant recognition in an FSA is grievable under Article 19, Grievance Procedure.
- 6. The last day to apply for recognition of an FSA for use in any academic year is February 15th of that academic year.
- 7. The District shall provide each faculty member with current and updated information regarding policies and changes in FSAs, minimum qualifications, and competencies as they pertain to employment in Peralta. The District shall also be responsible for providing information to all new faculty members and to all current faculty members who wish to increase the number of FSAs they are eligible to work in to meet the required minimum qualifications and competencies. Once a year, by October 31, the District shall publish and mail to each Vice President of Instruction, each college library and the PFT a list of all of the FSAs currently approved by the District.

- 8. The responsibility for meeting the minimum qualifications and competencies lies with the individual instructor. No salary can be paid to anyone who is not so qualified.
- 9. Each faculty member's official personnel file shall reflect the faculty service areas for which the faculty member has been granted recognition.

B. Reduction in Force

1. Whenever the District determines that it must reduce or discontinue a particular kind of service which will cause the decrease in the number of academic employees in the District, the PFT will be notified of such action in advance and will be given, in writing, the specific grounds for the reduction and the number of FTE to be reduced. When this determination is made, the District and the PFT shall begin good faith discussions to seek methods of reducing the number of faculty employees without use of layoff procedures which may include retirement incentives, transitional employment, severance pay, and out placement services.

[Note: The term "discussions" is used rather that "negotiations" because the determination to implement a layoff is not a mandatory subject of negotiation.]

- 2. Any reduction in workforce will be in compliance with applicable provisions of the California Education Code and California Government Code.
- 3. In order to avoid a reduction in force, the District will encourage employees to participate in programs that will provide an alternative to layoff, such as retraining leave, reassignment, transfer, multi-campus assignment, Saturday assignments, day/evening assignments, evening assignments, or other duties beneficial to the District as determined by the Board.
- 4. The District will make assignments and reassignments in order to retain employees to render any service, which their seniority and qualifications entitle them to render.
- 5. In the event the budget requires that the District lay off faculty members, the Board shall offer reductions in contracts to any faculty members who are willing to agree to such reductions and such reductions shall count toward reducing the total number of layoffs. The same shall be true of all retirements, resignations, or other permanent vacancies that occur in a reduction in force academic year.
- 6. The District shall notify the PFT in writing of each regular and contract unit member who is to be reduced or terminated along with notice of any proposed reassignment, transfer or offer of reappointment.
- 7. Faculty members who are laid off and subsequently either accept or decline offers of temporary service or partial reinstatement retain their statutory preferred right to reappointment as provided in the California Education Code.
- 8. As provided in Education Code Section 87743, no tenured faculty member may be laid off "while any probationary employee, or any other employee with less seniority, is retained to render a service in a faculty service area in which the records of the District

- maintained pursuant to Section 87743.4 reflect that the tenured employee possesses the minimum qualifications prescribed by the Board of Governor and is competent to serve under District competency criteria."
- 9. The PFT shall receive the same notices as are given to each unit member during the 39-month or 24-month period of rehire rights. Within the statutory period of rehire rights any former permanent or probationary unit member shall be offered re-employment if they meet the minimum qualifications for employment in the discipline/service area within the District, and if any of the following options become available:
 - a. replacing a faculty member on sabbatical;
 - b. replacing a portion of a faculty member's load that is created by a reduction in load;
 - c. replacing a faculty member on any form of leave;
 - d. replacing a faculty member who has died, retired or resigned;
 - e. replacing a faculty member who has been reassigned or transferred.
- 10. If reemployed under this section, faculty members shall be paid a rate of 100% of their column and step placement.

ARTICLE 25: PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Information on funding and committee membership and responsibilities.

The Professional Development committee at each college is responsible for making advisory recommendations to the College President/designee regarding disbursement of all professional development funds for faculty. See APPENDIX 5 (A5) (Professional Days Agreement).

A. Funding

- 1. The District shall allocate \$120,000 each year for faculty professional development activities. These funds shall be dedicated to faculty professional development at each college and shall be disbursed to each college on a pro-rata basis based upon total faculty FTE per college.
- 2. The District shall allocate State Staff Development funds in accordance with provisions of the California Education Code and applicable regulations.

B. College Professional Development Committee Membership

- 1. A Professional Development Committee shall be established at each college and shall consist of three (3) administrators designated by the College President, and three (3) faculty members: one chosen by the PFT Chapter Chairs, one chosen by the College Academic Senate, and one by mutual agreement.
 - The Professional Development Committee is advisory to the College President/designee and the District administration.
- 2. The term of service shall be for two (2) years, and no one shall serve for more than four (4) consecutive years. Term of service shall commence on the first day of school of each academic year.
 - If someone replaces a member, they will fill out that member's term and then be eligible to serve their own two-year term, if reappointed. Members appointed before January 1996 have the right to serve four consecutive years without reappointment, as long as at least one faculty member on the committee is changed during that four-year period. In no case may anyone serve beyond four consecutive years.
- 3. If a faculty vacancy on the committee is anticipated, there shall be a written notice no later than April 15th of the preceding academic year to every faculty member from both the PFT Chapter chairs and the college Academic Senate notifying all faculty:
 - a. of any vacancies on the committee;
 - b. that all are eligible to serve;

- c. what the responsibilities for committee members are;
- d. what the procedures for application are.

In the event of an unanticipated vacancy, notice to faculty as described above shall be given within fifteen (15) working days.

- 4. A member of the committee shall be replaced if they have more than three (3) unexcused absences from committee meetings. The replacement shall be selected by the President, the chapter chairs or the senate depending on who appointed the person being replaced. If the vacancy is a faculty seat, the person who missed the meetings may be reappointed only after the notification and application procedures have been completed (see c. above).
- 5. Every year, no later than September 30, the PFT Chapter Chairs, the College Academic Senate and the College President shall send to the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs and the District Officer of Professional Development, in writing, the names of their membership choices.
- 6. Once a year, after the membership and the amount of released time are determined, the Committee shall elect a chairperson. The chairperson shall be a faculty member but does not have to be a member of the Committee. If the chair is not a member, the chair shall not be eligible to vote. The term of office shall be for one year and shall not exceed four consecutive terms. (See D, below for responsibilities of the chairperson.)

C. <u>Responsibilities of the Professional Development Committee</u>

In addition to recommending disbursement of funds per Article 25.A, the Professional Development Committee at each college shall fulfill the following functions:

1. **Sabbatical Leaves**: The committee shall oversee the sabbatical leave process (see Article 26, Paragraph R and the Sabbatical Leave Handbook for description of guidelines, procedures, applicants, etc.); and shall review, score and rank all applicants. The committee shall make its recommendations to the College President and the Chancellor.

In the event the College President does not approve a Committee recommendation, both the Committee's recommendation and the President's written recommendation with written rationale shall be forwarded to the Chancellor for final determination. The Committee shall partially fund applicants whose leaves are approved in the following manner:

a. The committee shall fund 1/3 of the hourly replacement costs for any faculty member who is on an approved Sabbatical Leave; but

- b. No more than 1/3 of the Committee's faculty designated funds may be spent on Sabbatical leaves (except at Berkeley City College where the maximum spent shall not exceed 20% of the faculty designated funds);
- c. The remaining rehire costs shall be borne by the District.
- 2. **Retraining Leaves**: The Committee shall oversee the Retraining Leave Process (See Article 26, Paragraph S for description of guidelines, procedures, applications, etc.). The Committee shall make its recommendations to the College President, who shall evaluate the recommendations and make a recommendation to the Chancellor. In the event that the College President does not approve, both the Committee's recommendation and the President's written recommendation with written rationale shall be forwarded to the Chancellor for final determination. Funding for Retraining Leaves shall not come from the Professional Development Committee's budget. It shall be provided by the College.
- 3. **Flex (Professional Day) Activities**: The Committees shall plan, develop, coordinate, review, and evaluate all of the Professional Development activities that take place at the College. Specifically, each Committee is responsible for planning the flex day activities for the scheduled District-wide days as well as local, college-wide, on-going Professional Development activities. The cost of these activities shall be paid according to Paragraph 5 of the PFT-PCCD Professional Days Agreement (See APPENDIX 5 (A5).
- 4. Establish priorities and procedures and make advisory recommendations for faculty in each of the following areas:
 - a. Use of professional development funds for faculty;
 - b. Collaborative/Special Projects: to bring new techniques, information, skills, and technology to the college, including the identification of special themes and topics to be explored;
 - c. Institutional subscriptions and memberships;
 - d. Individual travel and conferences;
 - e. Tuition reimbursement:
 - f. Unique staff development needs of counselors and librarians;
 - g. Other appropriate uses.
- 5. Issue twice yearly report to the College Community and the District Officer of Staff Development: on expenditures, funding priorities, procedures, deadlines, activities, schedule of meetings, attainment of goals, needs assessments, etc.
- 6. Professional Development Committee decisions and recommendations shall not be subject to the grievance process.

D. Responsibilities of the Chairperson

1. The chairperson shall be responsible for implementing all of the policies, procedures, and guidelines that have been established by the College Professional Development Committee and the PFT-PCCD collective bargaining agreement.

2. The chairperson shall:

- a. Call and schedule all meetings of the committee, including special meetings as requested or needed; prepare an agenda; distribute minutes; conduct all communication, including the committee's recommendations and decisions, to all interested parties;
- b. As assigned, write all official College reports, local and state, as required, in a timely manner:
- c. Make sure the business of the Committee is conducted in a fair, open, and timely manner:
- d. Oversee all College Flex (Professional Day) Activities, including registration, room assignments, equipment availability, designating facilitator, evaluations, etc.
- e. Communicate with the College community on a regular, on-going basis in order to discuss, refine, and update the Professional Development Committees funding goals and priorities;
- f. Meet on a periodic basis, as needed, with the District Officer of Staff Development and the other Professional Development chairs;
- g. Plan, develop, initiate, co-ordinate the College's collaborative/special projects and college-wide activities and be generally responsible for the overall improvement of skills, knowledge, and morale of all segments of the College community.
- h. The following are the maximum amounts of released time that may be assigned effective fall 1998:
 - 1) C.O.A. up to .3
 - 2) Laney up to .4
 - 3) Merritt up to .3
 - 4) Berkeley up to .2
- 3. The amount of release time shall be determined by the College Professional Development Committee before it selects its chair. The amount shall be reviewed, voted upon every year, and reported to the College community along with all other Committee expenditures. The monies to pay for this released time shall come from the College Professional Development Committee's budget. The amount paid shall be equal to the hourly cost necessary to replace the chairperson from their regular assignment.

E. <u>Utilization Review Process</u>

Faculty member requests for utilization of professional development funds shall be referred through the appropriate manager to the professional development committee at the College. After evaluating the request, the Committee shall make an advisory recommendation to the President. The President shall evaluate the recommendation within 10 days. Should the President be inclined to overrule the Committee, the President shall refer the matter back to the Committee for reconsideration within ten days, and shall meet with the Committee upon its request. If the Committee and President disagree, the matter will be referred to the Chancellor/designee for final determination, which shall not be subject to the grievance procedure. In reviewing the Committee's advisory recommendations, the President and Chancellor/designee shall rely primarily upon the advice and judgment of the Committee.

F. District Office of Staff Development

Eleventh-month Contract: An eleventh-month contract is defined as covering the regular academic year plus eighteen (18) additional days of service. The eleventh-month consists of the eighteen (18) days.

As a term of this Article 25, a full or partial eleventh-month assignment shall be considered as an extra-duty assignment. Faculty members shall not be required to assume such an additional full or partial eleventh-month assignment without their consent; said additional full or partial eleventh-month assignment shall be entirely at the option of the employee. Any regular faculty member who performs said additional full or partial month shall receive 100% pro rata pay for said service.

1. The District Officer of Staff Development shall be a faculty member. The standard minimum assignment shall be for 10 months. The term of office shall be for two (2) years with an option of two one (1) year extensions, but not to exceed four consecutive years. The option of extension shall be contingent upon a positive evaluation from a majority of the Professional Development Committee chairs after consulting with their Professional Development Committees. The chairs shall evaluate the District Officer and make their recommendation to the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs by April 15. If the Vice Chancellor accepts the recommendation, the Vice Chancellor shall notify the District Staff Development Officer and the chairs. If the decision is to continue for another year, it shall be done. If the decision is not to continue, the Vice Chancellor will advertise the vacancy and convene the selection committee within seven days. The position shall be filled by May 15.

The selection committee shall be composed of eight (8) faculty members, two from each college, one of whom shall be the Chair. The second faculty person shall be a current member of the College Staff Development Committee and shall be selected by the College Academic Senate President after consulting with the Chair. In the event that either

the Chair and/or the second person are unable to serve, the Faculty Senate President shall select the third faculty member of the College Staff Development Committee. If there is no third member currently serving or if two people are still not able to serve, the college Academic Senate President shall, after consulting with the Chair, select a faculty person who has served on the College Staff Development Committee within the past three years (and so on down the line a year at a time).

The selection committee will interview all eligible candidates and will recommend up to three (3) names to the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs for the VC to interview and make the final selection.

The selection process shall be the same as for an intra-district voluntary transfer (See Article 9, Section B) with the understanding that: (a) at least 50% of the faculty on the hiring committee will be the chairs of the College Professional Development Committees; and (b) that up to three names will be forwarded to the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs for them to interview and make the final selection.

- 2. The District Officer of Staff Development shall be responsible for implementing all of the procedures, policies, and guidelines that have been established by the Ed Code, Board Policy, the collective bargaining agreement, the Flex Day Agreement, and the Sabbatical Leave Handbook.
- 3. The District Officer of Staff Development shall:
 - a. Meet on a regular basis with the College Professional Development Committees, the chairs of those Committees, and the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs to review, refine, modify, and evaluate the District's professional development policies and programs;
 - b. Be a member of the District Professional Development Committee;
 - c. Make sure the business of each of the Committees is conducted in a fair, open, and timely manner;
 - d. As assigned, write all official District reports, local and state, as required, in a timely manner;
 - e. Communicate, on a regular basis, with all employees of the District to keep them informed about Professional Development activities, opportunities, issues, funds, etc.;
 - f. Oversee the District-wide Flex (Professional Day) Activities, including preparation and distribution of the schedule of activities and the receiving of Professional Development credit;
 - g. Review all requests for Individual Project Professional Development credit;
 - h. Develop a professional development library and resource center;
 - i. Implement and oversee an exchange program;
 - j. Facilitate the faculty evaluation process and work directly with those faculty members who receive a less than satisfactory evaluation by developing a plan of improvement with them and their college Professional Development Committee.

G. On Line Reporting Form

1. The PCCD and the PFT agree to develop an on-line form to record Professional Development activities of the faculty. Activities reported may include, but will not be limited to, shared governance activities, scholarly, educational, and pedagogical pursuits, involvement with community, educational and related organizations, skills, knowledge, attitude enhancement, and college activities to support or enhance the learning experiences for the students. The form shall be submitted by contract faculty each semester prior to the first week of instruction of the following semester. All reports generated from this information shall be provided to the PFT and the District Staff Development Officer.

ARTICLE 26: LEAVES

A. Leave of Absence

Regular and probationary employees may be granted a leave of absence for a period equivalent to two (2) successive semesters, exclusive of summer session. Upon return from such authorized leave, the employee shall be reinstated into the position occupied at the time of the granting of such authorized leave. Leaves may be extended upon request for a maximum of two years.

B. Effect of Leaves on Faculty Status

- 1. Probationary contract and regular tenured faculty members on paid leave shall be granted credit for regular service for the purpose of advancement on the salary schedule. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, faculty members on approved leave without pay shall be granted the opportunity of continuing benefits available to other faculty members on a self-pay basis if allowed by the insurer.
- 2. Probationary contract and regular tenured faculty members who avail themselves of unpaid leave in this section may be allowed advancement on the salary schedule. Faculty members requesting advancement under this section shall submit such request to the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs or their designee no later than August 15, and advancement, if granted, shall occur the following academic year. Denial of such advancement shall not be subject to the grievance procedure.

C. Sick Leave

1. Contract, Regular and Long-Term Substitute Employees

- a. Full-time faculty members (contract, regular and long-term substitutes) shall earn ten (10) days of sick leave for each contract year, to be credited as of the first day of assignment. Faculty who have more than a ten-month contract shall earn and accrue an additional day of sick leave for each additional month over the ten months contracted.
- b. Less than full-time faculty members shall earn sick leave computed in the ratio that this assignment bears to a full-time load. The days shall be credited as of the first day of the faculty member's assignment and shall be available for use as of the first day of assignment.
- c. Unused portions of sick leave days shall be cumulative on a year to year basis, indefinitely, without limit, for all contract and regular faculty members.
- d. The District shall provide each faculty member once a year with a written statement of the accrued sick leave benefits to which they are entitled. Such statement shall be provided no later than October 31st of each academic year.

- e. Any employee who is on paid status while on sick leave, or other paid leave, shall continue to earn all employee sick benefits to which they are entitled. An employee who is on leave of absence without pay shall retain all accumulated sick leave benefits but shall not accrue any additional sick leave benefits during such period of absence.
- f. Sick leave credit received by transfer from the previous employer of a new employee shall be accepted pursuant to the provisions and limitations provided in the Education Code. It shall be the responsibility of the employee to notify the District Personnel Office, in writing, of the name and address of the District by whom they were employed and request credit for the accumulated leave of absence for illness or injury to which they are, or had been, entitled at the time of separation.
- g. Any person utilizing sick leave benefits under provisions of this Article may be required to provide the District with a signed "Certificate of Illness" and, if absent more than five (5) consecutive duty days, may be required to provide the college, upon return, with a statement from a physician verifying the illness or injury, and verifying the employee's fitness to return to duty.
- h. After all sick leave is exhausted, when a faculty member is absent from their duties on account of illness or accident for a period of five (5) school months or less, whether or not the absence arises out of, or in the course of, employment of the employee, the amount deducted from the salary due them for any month in which the absence occurs shall not exceed the sum which is actually paid a temporary employee employed to fill their position during their absence or, if no temporary employee was employed, the amount which would have been paid to the temporary employee had they been employed.
- i. If sick leave is not transferred to another District pursuant to the California Education Code, all sick leave rights or accumulations shall be cancelled when an employee terminates employment with the District. Upon written request pursuant to the provisions of the Education Code, accumulated sick leave shall be transferred to a subsequent employing District within the school year succeeding the school year in which such employment is terminated.
- j. Employees who are members of the State Teachers' Retirement System shall be granted service credit for unused sick leave at the time of retirement. The service credit amount granted for unused sick leave is determined by dividing the number of accumulated unused sick leave days (as certified by the employer) by the number of service days required to complete a school year.
- k. Except in cases of emergency, the employee shall notify the college designated office prior to scheduled duty time on the workday in order to qualify for payment of accrued sick leave.

2. Temporary, Part-Time Employees

Part-time employees shall have their sick leave computed as follows:

a. Sick leave for each term is equal to total number of equated hours assigned, divided by 15 equated hours, multiplied by 17.5 weeks.

- Example: 5.2 equated hours assignment, divided by 15 equated hours = (0.347 hours) X (17.5 weeks) = 6.067 hours.
- b. Accumulated sick leave for part-time temporary faculty employees shall be accrued from year to year and retained on District sick leave records for a period not to exceed two years after the part-time, temporary employee's last assignment.
- c. Sick leave hours shall be available for use on the first day of assignment. When the class is canceled at any time during the term or period of the assignment, the sick leave credit will be pro-rated.
- d. Sick leave time is utilized as follows:
 - 1) Number of equated hours used, subtracted from the sick leave balance of accrued earnings.

Example (continuing the example above): 1 equated hour missed due to illness. Subtract 1.0 from 6.067, leaving a balance of 5.067 equated hours.

- e. Any temporary, part-time employee who is on paid status while on sick leave, or other paid leave, shall continue to earn all employee sick benefits to which they are entitled
- f. Upon request, a temporary, part-time employee will be provided with a verification of their sick leave balance.

3. Retirees working part-time

Retirees from the PCCD faculty working part-time in the District, whether or not it is pursuant to a Negotiated Retirement Incentive, shall have their sick leave computed in the same way the sick leave is computed for temporary, part-time employees.

D. Bereavement Leave

- 1. Contract, regular, long-term substitutes and temporary part-time faculty employees shall be granted, without loss of salary, sick leave, or other benefits, a leave of absence not to exceed four (4) working days (six (6) working days if over 200 miles of travel is required) per occurrence on account of death of any member of the employee's immediate family.
- 2. Members of the immediate family as used in this section D means: mother, father, stepparent, grandmother, grandfather, grandchild, son, daughter, stepchild, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother, sister of the employee or spouse, and the spouse, aunts, uncles, nephew and niece of the employee, foster child, ward of the court, legal guardian, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, domestic partner or any persons living in the household of the employee (except paying tenants). The District may require documentation.
- 3. Any eligible employee utilizing bereavement leave under this Article shall notify the designated college office in advance of taking the leave, and may be requested to provide the college with verification of absence.

E. <u>Use of Sick Leave for Personal Reasons</u>

- 1. Contract, regular, long-term substitute and temporary, part-time faculty members shall be entitled to use sick leave earned pursuant to paragraph C of this article in cases of compelling personal importance.
- 2. Leave taken pursuant to the above paragraph shall not exceed seven (7) days in any single school year.
- 3. The term "compelling personal importance" shall include:
 - a. Illness of a family member requiring the faculty member's presence
 - b. Household Emergencies
 - c. Personal matters
 - d. Personal emergencies
 - e. A personal or family matter for which the faculty member accesses the District Employee Assistance Program or a personal health care practitioner.
- 4. Verification of the basis for the leave request may be required if requested leave is for more than five (5) days.
- 5. If the requested leave is for more than five (5) days and involves health or personal matters that the faculty member does not feel comfortable discussing with college management, the faculty member may elect to submit the supporting documentation in a sealed envelope to the College President. If the College President concludes that the request should be denied, they shall consult with the faculty member and PFT representatives before denying the request.
- 6. In all cases, the College President will only release or discuss personal information submitted by a faculty member when the faculty member authorizes the release in writing.

F. Industrial Accident and Illness Leave

- 1. All faculty members (contract, regular, long-term substitute and temporary, part-time employees) absent from duty because of illness or injury resulting from an accident or condition incurred on duty which qualifies under industrial accident insurance shall be granted an industrial disability leave for each such accident. The number of days for such allowable leave or leaves shall be for not less than sixty (60) working days in any one academic year.
- 2. Industrial disability leave shall be granted from first day of disability.
- 3. Only absences which are supported by a doctor's certificate and have been verified by

the District's industrial insurance carrier to be the result of a duty connected injury or illness can be paid under industrial disability leave. Any absence that cannot be so verified shall be charged against the employee's sick leave or other appropriate leaves.

- 4. Should the employee's absence due to an industrial injury or illness extend beyond sixty days, the employee shall be permitted to use accrued sick leave until temporary disability payments cease, until the employee returns to duty, or until sick leave accrual has been used up. In no case, however, shall the total exceed five school months.
- 5. During any period, an employee is receiving their regular salary from the District, the employee is required to endorse over to the District all temporary disability payments received from the District's industrial insurance carrier in accordance with Section 87787 of Education Code. Charges to the employee's sick leave balance shall be as follows:
 - a. Industrial disability leave shall be reduced by one day for each day of authorized absence regardless of temporary disability payments paid by the District's industrial insurance carrier.
 - b. Sick leave shall be reduced only by the amount necessary to provide a full day's wage or salary when added to temporary disability benefits.
- 6. Any employee who is absent because of a work incurred illness shall not be entitled to receive wages or salary from the District which, when added to temporary disability benefits, will exceed their full salary during the period of their absence.
- 7. Any employee receiving industrial disability leave benefits must remain within the State of California unless the Board of Trustees authorizes travel outside the state.
- 8. When an industrial accident or illness leave overlaps into the next fiscal year, the member shall be entitled to only the amount of unused industrial accident or illness leave due them for the same illness or injury.

G. Parental Leave

Parental leave shall be granted to contract, regular, long-term substitute and temporary, parttime faculty employees. Parental leave is a continuous leave of up to 6 months for the birth and/or care of the newborn child of the employee or for placement with the employee of a child for adoption or foster care. To be eligible for parental leave, the employee will be required to submit medical certification of the birth or legal evidence of the adoption or foster care placement. During this period qualified employees may use accrued sick hours. Upon the exhaustion of accrued sick hours, the remainder of the leave will be unpaid and the employee will be responsible for the cost of medical, dental, life, and disability benefits.

H. Quarantine Leave

Contract, regular, long-term substitute and temporary, part-time faculty members shall receive salary in full when quarantined by city, county, state, or federal health officials because of another's illness. If the faculty member is not ill no deduction will be made from their sick leave.

I. Jury Duty

- 1. A contract, regular, long-term substitute and temporary, part-time faculty member called for jury duty shall not be encouraged in any way to seek exemption from such duty nor shall they be discriminated against in any way for not seeking such exemption.
- 2. When regularly called for jury duty in the manner provided by law, a faculty member shall be granted a leave of absence without loss of pay for the time the employee is required to perform jury duty during the employee's regularly assigned working hours.
- 3. Request for jury service leave should be made by presenting, within two (2) working days of receipt and in advance of the absence, the official court summons to jury service to the employee's first level manager.
- 4. Employees are required to return to work during any day in which jury duty services are not required.
- 5. The District may require verification of jury duty time prior to providing jury duty compensation.
- 6. Reimbursements to District: Any payment received by the employee from an agency for jury duty shall be endorsed to the Peralta Community College District and forwarded to the District Payroll Supervisor.

J. Subpoena Leave

All faculty members subpoenaed or otherwise required to appear at a hearing, trial, investigation or other legal proceeding in any instance where the District is a party or arising from the course of their employment with the District, shall suffer no loss of pay if such appearance occurs during duty time.

K. Federation Leave

- 1. The Federation shall have a maximum of fourteen (14) days for release time to be used for:
 - a. Local, state and national conferences sponsored by AFT/CFT, FACCC and/or statewide academic senate.

- b. Participation in seminars and institutes sponsored by institutions of higher learning and/or governmental agencies or bodies.
- c. Participation and/or attendance at meetings called by governmental agencies or bodies.
- 2. Persons eligible will be the President of the PFT and/or their designee.
- 3. The request of the above stipulated Federation leave shall be made at least two weeks prior to the event for which the leave is being requested. The request shall be submitted in writing to the Director of Employee Relations, who will be responsible for notifying the appropriate first level administrator(s).

L. Educational Leave

- 1. A faculty member, upon request, shall be granted a leave of absence for one year without pay for the purpose of educational improvement. The District, upon request by the faculty member, may extend or renew their educational leave for one (1) additional year.
- 2. The following leaves will not be granted for two academic years after completion of an educational leave, except by mutual agreement:
 - a. Leaves of Absence without Pay
 - b. Educational Leave
 - c. Research/Work Experience Leave
 - d. Exchange Leave
 - e. Professional Development Leave
 - f. Retraining Leave

Application for education leave shall be on forms provided by the District and must be filed by October 1 for Spring leave and by April 1 for Fall leave.

- 3. In cases where a department, discipline or program is less than three (3) FTE, one (1) FTE may be out on educational leave in any one semester.
- 4. Faculty members on approved educational leave without pay shall be covered by the District for medical, dental, life and disability only.

M. Research/Work Experience Leave

1. Any faculty member who is awarded a research grant may be granted a leave of absence without pay for a period not to exceed two semesters.

- 2. Requests for research/work experience leaves must be submitted in writing to the college Professional Development Committee at least eight (8) weeks before the proposed starting date for the leave.
- 3. Leaves shall be recommended to the President, the Chancellor and the Board of Trustees by the college Professional Development Committee.
- 4. Faculty members on approved research/work experience leave without pay shall be covered by the District for medical, dental, life and disability only.
- 5. The District, upon request of the faculty member, after review and recommendation by the college Professional Development Committee, may extend such leave for a maximum of two (2) consecutive years at a time.

N. Long-term Personal Necessity Leave

- 1. Any faculty member shall, with eight (8) weeks advance notice, be granted a leave of absence without pay for personal reasons. The leave shall be granted for no less than one (1) semester, with the provision that such leave shall not extend beyond the end of the academic year in which the leave is granted.
- 2. Leaves of absence shall not be granted for the purpose of accepting employment elsewhere. Acceptance of employment elsewhere while on leave shall, unless otherwise provided for herein, be considered as resignation from the Peralta Community College District.
- 3. If the need for the long-term personal necessity leave no longer exists, the faculty member must request reemployment by the District. If reemployment is not offered, the provisions of the immediately preceding paragraph shall be waived for the remainder of the semester.
- 4. The District, upon eight (8) weeks advance request by the faculty member, may extend or renew their long-term personal necessity leave for one (1) additional year.
- 5. The eight (8) week advance stipulated above shall be waived in the event of documented protracted illness of a family member as defined in this Agreement.
- 6. Faculty members on approved long-term personal necessity leave without pay shall be covered by the District for medical, dental, life and disability only.
- 7. Failure of a faculty member to return from authorized leaves shall constitute resignation of the faculty member from employment with the District.

O. Legislative Leave

- 1. Every permanent faculty employee who is elected to the Legislature (State or Congress) shall be granted an unpaid leave of absence from their duties as an employee of the District during the term(s) of office.
- 2. During the term(s) of such leave of absence, the permanent faculty employee may be employed by the District to perform such less than full-time service requiring academic qualifications. Compensation shall be based on the employee's placement on the Faculty Salary Schedule and pro-rated according to hours of work.
- 3. Legislative leave of absence shall not affect in any way the classification of such employee.
- 4. The faculty member on such leave shall notify the District of an intended return at least four (4) weeks in advance.
- 5. The faculty member on such leave shall be entitled to return to employment at the end of the leave within six months after the term of office expires.

P. Military Leave

An academic employee will be granted military leave in accordance with the provisions of the State of California Education Code and of the Military Veterans Code. Request for military leave shall be submitted in writing, accompanied by military leave orders, two (2) weeks prior to the leave starting date, except in the case of a state or national emergency. Copies of the Code are available in the Peralta Community College District Office of Employee Relations.

Q. Exchange Leave

The District shall grant exchange leave to regular faculty members in accordance with the provisions of Sections 87422, 87423 and 87424 of the California Education Code.

R. Professional Development Leave (Sabbatical)

1. Criteria

Professional development leave, with pay, may be granted to regular faculty members for the purpose of carrying out an approved program which will benefit the District, students, the college and the faculty member. It is understood that professional development leaves are not to be granted as a reward for work already performed, but rather as a means of providing improved service in the future. For salary information see paragraph 12 of this section.

2. Requirements

All provisions pertaining to professional development leaves will conform to statutory requirements.

3. Announcement

By September 30th of every year the College Staff Development Committee Chairperson will send an announcement to all tenured regular faculty informing them of the following:

- a. The eligibility requirements;
- b. The amount of FTE available for sabbatical leaves for the following academic year;
- c. The deadlines and procedures for applications; and
- d. The time, date, and location of an introductory workshop that the Staff Development Committee will sponsor to inform interested faculty members about the procedures.

4. <u>Introductory workshop</u>

By October 15th, in years when sabbaticals are available, the college Staff Development Committee Chairperson will conduct a workshop for any and all faculty members interested in applying for a sabbatical. The workshop will include information about the following:

- a. Deadlines;
- b. Eligibility requirement;
- c. Detailed descriptions of the reviewing, scoring, and ranking process;
- d. Review of recipients' responsibilities and obligations to the College and District; and
- e. Review of the required evidence of support.

5. Deadlines

Applications must be submitted by November 15th, so that a decision and notification can be made by the January preceding the academic year of the sabbatical leave.

6. Eligibility

The faculty member must have completed at least six (6) consecutive years of regular faculty service preceding the granting of the leave. No more than one sabbatical leave shall be granted in each six-year period. Except for sabbatical leaves, no other approved leave shall be deemed a break in service when computing the six-year minimum service requirement for a sabbatical leave.

7. Application Ranking

Application ranking shall be a two-step process. An applicant must pass Step One to move onto Step Two. When in the judgment of the committee more information is needed in order to make a determination, the committee may, in its sole discretion, invite one, some, or all candidates for an interview. The committee's decision to invite or not invite a candidate for an interview shall not be grievable.

Step One: Applications will be reviewed for the following:

- a. A clear statement of purpose;
- b. Evidence of Institutional Support: (This section seeks to answer the question: what support mechanisms need to be in place for this sabbatical to be successful? For example, if the purpose of the sabbatical is to develop new curriculum for a department or discipline, there should be evidence of preparation and institutional support within the division and/or department. If the sabbatical is to learn new skills and/or knowledge, there should be evidence of acceptance into the training program or evidence of having met the preliminary qualifications, i.e., taking the GRE exam if the person is going to graduate school, or letters of acceptance from the appropriate agencies or individual);
- c. The purpose must be achievable;
- d. There should be clear, identifiable project or result and a method by which to measure completion.

Step Two: Applicants who have successfully completed Step One will have their applications scored and ranked in Step Two. Scoring will be based on the following:

- a. The plan of work relates significantly to the applicant's professional assignment: (15 points)
- b. The plan of work will greatly enhance the applicant's background and improve professional competence: (15 points)
- c. The plan of work will greatly benefit students: (15 points)
- d. The plan of work will greatly benefit colleagues and/or department: (15 points)
- e. The plan of work will greatly benefit the college: (15 points)
- f. The plan of work shows evidence of innovation and creative approaches to the issue and concerns addressed: (15 points)
- g. The plan of work is thorough and complete and definitely worth funding; (10 points) The score range shall be a scale of 0 100 points. An applicant must achieve a minimum score of 80 to be placed in a pool of applicants to be considered for a sabbatical leave. Applicants in the pool shall be ranked numerically in order of final score (highest first, lowers last). Seniority will be used as one of the factors in breaking a tie.

h. Notification

All applicants shall be notified in writing of the Staff Development Committee's decisions and recommendations. The Committee shall send its recommendations to the College President for determination, per the procedure referenced at §25. E.

i. <u>Letter of Agreement</u>

Any faculty member granted a one-year leave will be required to sign a contract (See Appendix A-15) guaranteeing full time service to the District for two years after returning to their regular assignment. Contractual agreements for people receiving sabbatical leaves of less than one year shall be pro-rated. It may also be necessary for the person on sabbatical to receive bonding to guarantee their service (Educational Code 87770). A professional development leave may be approved for separate semesters rather than for a continuous one-year period, provided that the sabbatical leave for both of the separate semesters shall be

commenced and completed within a three-year period. Any period of service by the individual intervening between the two separate semesters of the sabbatical leave shall comprise a part of the service required for a subsequent sabbatical leave. If a faculty member has been approved for a sabbatical leave for a particular semester or year, any change in the dates of the leave must be by mutual consent of the faculty member and the appropriate College President. Any change from the approved dates shall be reported in writing to the College Professional Development Committee.

j. Illness, Injury, Death

In case of an injury to or illness of the faculty member while on professional development leave which prevents completion of the purpose of the leave, the leave will be terminated and all provisions for sick leave shall apply. If death prevents the faculty member from fulfilling their agreement to return to service in the District, no repayment of salary shall be required of the faculty member's estate. Upon return to service and prior to completion of two obligatory years of service, if illness or injury qualifying for disability retirement occurs, the faculty member shall be exempt from further obligations relative to their leave.

k. Committee Membership

- 1) The Professional Development Committee shall be established at each college and shall consist of three administrators, designated by the College President, and three faculty members, one appointed by the college Academic Senate, one by the PFT chapter chairs, and one by mutual agreement.
- 2) All members shall have equal weight in all respects, and a chairperson, whose function is nominal, shall be selected by the Committee as a whole at the beginning of each academic year.
- 3) No member shall serve more than four consecutive years.
- 4) At least one administrator and one faculty member shall be replaced every two years.
- 5) Professional Development Committee recommendations shall not be subject to the grievance procedure.
- 6) The committee shall provide regular reports to the College and the District on the expenditure of funds and the attainment of goals. (Other committee assignments include, but are not limited to, approving Professional Development monies for the faculty at each college and approving retraining leaves).

1. <u>Salary</u>

- 1) Professional development leaves may be arranged for one (1) year with a grant equal to 66-2/3% of the annual year's salary, or for one (1) semester with a grant of 100% of one-half year's salary.
- 2) While on professional development leave, the salary the faculty member would have received if they had been in regular service shall be the basis for computing their compensation. Salary for professional development leave shall be paid in the same manner as that paid during regular service.
- 3) Professional development leave shall count for full salary increments, health and welfare benefits, sick leave, and retirement benefits.

m. <u>Professional Development Report</u>

A faculty member returning from professional development leave shall be required to submit to the Chancellor, in writing, two copies of a report describing in detail the learning activities that took place during such leave, and the concomitant benefits accrued to the faculty member and to the District. College or university course work taken as part of professional development leave shall also be described via such a report and shall be counted towards salary advancement. A copy of the report shall be filed in the college library. Where appropriate, an oral report to the faculty, students, and community is encouraged.

n. Professional Development Leave Allocation

A total of nine (9) FTE professional development leaves will be available during the duration of this contract.

- 1) Professional development leaves shall be recommended by the college Professional Development Committee.
- 2) If a college is unable to fund the recommended leave out of the college's budget, the leave, if approved by the Board of Trustees, will be funded by the District Office.
- 3) Leaves will only be funded by the District Office to assure reasonable equity in the distribution of available leaves among the colleges. This equity criterion will be based on the proportion of total District probationary and regular faculty FTE assigned to each college.
- 4) Faculty members on Professional Development Leave shall be prohibited from teaching extra service for the duration of the leave. During Professional Development Leave, the expectation is that the Faculty member will devote the equivalent of their full FTE to the activities, purposes and objectives of the approved leave.
- 5) Any unused FTE designated for sabbatical leaves will roll over and be available in future years. The method of use shall be determined by mutual agreement between the PFT and the District.
- o. Grievances pertaining to this section shall be limited to procedure violations.

S. Retraining Leave

1. Eligibility

Faculty members must have been employed by the District as regular, contract employees for at least four years prior to application for retraining leave. The purpose of such leave is to improve and enhance the effectiveness of faculty member's on-the-job performance.

2. Requirements

Faculty members receiving such a retraining leave will be required to enroll in an accredited college or university, or some other approved program acceptable to the District, which will qualify the individual to meet the minimum qualifications and competencies necessary to provide service in the area they are preparing to work in.

3. Application

Application for retraining leave shall be on forms provided by the District (See Appendix for copy) and must be filed by October 1 for Spring leave and by April 1 for Fall leave. Evidence of application for a plan of study and/or training must be submitted with the application to the Professional Development Committee. Leaves shall be recommended to the College President and Chancellor by the college Professional Development Committee. In the event that the College President does not approve, both the Committee's recommendation and the President's recommendation will be submitted to the Chancellor.

4. Committee Membership

The Professional Development Committee shall be the same committee that was established in Section R, Paragraph 11 above.

5. Criteria for Acceptance of Leave Application

- a. Faculty members who have been evaluated as in need of skills and/or knowledge upgrading, or
- b. Faculty members for whom retraining is in the best interest of the District and the faculty member, and
- c. Faculty members who can achieve the retraining objectives in four or fewer consecutive semesters.

6. Criteria for Granting Leave

To receive the leave, faculty members must be accepted in an education/retraining program, which will allow them to achieve the retraining objectives. Before the retraining leave begins, evidence of such acceptance shall be submitted to the Office of Employee Relations.

7. Salary

- a. Retraining leave pay will be based on 75% of the approved leave portion of the employee's regular contract. For example, if an employee's regular contract is 1.0 and their approved retraining leave is 0.50, computation of pay is as follows: 0.50 at regular contract rate of pay; 0.50 at 75% of regular contract rate of pay.
- b. In the case of a faculty member who retrains within a program or agency conducted by a private business enterprise or other non-academic agency acceptable to the District, the District shall pay the difference between their Peralta salary and the salary of the non- academic institution not to exceed 75% of salary. Pursuant to STRS regulations, faculty members will not be eligible for full-time (1.0) service credits.
- c. While on retraining leave, a faculty member shall not be assigned an extra service assignment.

- d. While on retraining leave, the salary the faculty member would have received if they had been in regular service shall be the basis for computing their compensation. Salary for retraining leave shall be paid in the same manner as that paid during regular service.
- e. Retraining leave shall count for full salary increments and health and welfare, sick leave, and retirement benefits. Credits earned while on retraining leave shall count toward advancement on the salary schedule upon receipt of official verification from an accredited institution or approved training program.

8. Service Obligation

Recipients shall contract to serve the District for a period equal to twice the length of the leave after completion of a retraining leave. In the event of failure to render such a period of service after return from retraining leave, the grantee shall indemnify the District against the loss by furnishing suitable bond, or by executing a contract with the District binding the faculty member to return for at least the above period.

9. Illness, Injury, Death

In case of injury to or illness of the faculty member while on retraining leave which prevents the faculty member from completing the purpose of the leave, the leave will be terminated and all provisions for sick leave shall apply. If death prevents the member from fulfilling their agreement to return to service in the District, no repayment of salary shall be required of their estate. Upon return to service and prior to completion of obligatory years of service, if illness or injury qualifying for disability retirement occurs, the faculty member shall be exempt from further obligations relative to their leave.

10. Number of Retraining Leaves

The District will guarantee up to 5.0 FTE Retraining Leaves for the duration of this contract. Upon return to service following completion of a Retraining Leave, the District shall make every effort to assign the faculty member in their new area of expertise.

- 11. In cases where a department, discipline, or program is less than three (3) FTE, one (1) FTE may be out on retraining leave in any one semester.
- 12. Grievances pertaining to this section shall be limited to procedural violations.

T. Leave Banking Program

1. In order to encourage professional development and faculty revitalization, a Leave Banking Program is established. Upon request, the Leave Banking Program allows regular permanent (tenured) faculty to save up (or "bank") any contracted assigned "extra service" hours in lieu of immediate compensation. For example, in a future semester, after

fifteen (15) banked equated hours have been accumulated, the faculty member may exchange the banked hours for one full semester of leave at full pay.

Probationary faculty are eligible to accrue Leave Banking hours. Upon approval of the Tenure Review Committee and College President, the probationary faculty member with two or more years of service may be granted Banked Leave.

Partial contract (less than full-time) regular permanent (tenured) faculty members may accrue Leave Banking hours during the summer session calendar only.

- 2. At the request of the faculty member, contracted assigned extra service and summer session hours shall be bankable. Extra service is defined as all assigned equated hours above a full-time load. If a full-time faculty member is "under loaded," they are not eligible for extra service and may therefore not accrue hours toward Banked Leave.
- 3. A faculty member may bank up to a total of thirty (30) semester equated hours. If a faculty member reaches this limit, no additional hours may be banked until the faculty member uses the time or cashes it out.
- 4. A faculty member may use banked equated hours for leaves of up to one (1) semester within two (2) years; or two (2) semesters within three (3) years. A faculty member may also use banked equated hours for partial leaves.
- 5. A faculty member may not bank time while they are on Banked Leave.
- 6. In the case of a protracted illness while a faculty member is on Banked Leave, which prevents the completion of the leave, the Banked Leave will be terminated and all provisions for sick leave contained in this Agreement shall apply.
- 7. When a Banked Leave is completed, the faculty member shall return to their regular assignment.
- 8. In any one semester, not more than one (1) FTE out of three (3) FTE faculty members in a department, discipline, or program may be out on Banked Leave.
- 9. In cases where a department, discipline or program is less than three (3) FTE, one (1) FTE may be out on Banked Leave in any one semester.
- 10. In the event that more faculty are eligible in a given term for Banked Leave than are authorized to be on this leave, approval will be based on the District Seniority List for faculty members by date of hire.

After a person takes a Banked Leave, the faculty member is rotated to the bottom of the seniority list for the department, discipline or program for Banked Leave purposes.

A faculty member with a split load shall be counted in the department, discipline, or program where they have the majority of their load.

- 11. Extra service may be banked in whole or in part.
- 12. While a faculty member is on Banked Leave, the faculty member shall receive full salary payment, credit for anniversary salary step increments, health and welfare benefits, sick leave and retirement in the same manner as if they were on regular assignment.
- 13. Faculty members on Banked Leave may apply for Professional Development funds.
- 14. If granting all requested and authorized Banked Leaves would put the District out of compliance with State regulations, e.g., 75/25 ratio, the total number of faculty FTE (Full-Time Equivalent) authorized to take leaves will be reduced to comply with the State regulations, e.g., 75/25 ratio. The criteria for this reduction will be by seniority (date of hire) as specified in this article. Any person eliminated as a result of this paragraph will automatically be given first priority the next time they apply.
- 15. Banked Leave shall count towards accumulated time served and shall not constitute a break in service.
- 16. Every year, at the faculty member's request, the faculty member shall receive from the District an accounting of the number of equated hours and cash value accrued for each term/year that they have banked.
- 17. A faculty member who has accumulated hours toward Banked Leave may cash out some or all of the hours for documented critical financial emergencies² or to pay out nominal residual balances. The cashed-out hours shall be paid at the rate in force at which the funds were earned. In the case of death, disability, retirement, resignation or termination for any

Documentation must be submitted to the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources & Employee Relations.

For any other documented critical financial emergency (not listed above), such as a serious medical emergency in the immediate family, documentation shall be submitted to both the PFT President and the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources and Employee Relations, and the Vice Chancellor shall make the final decision as to whether the documented critical financial emergency meets the criteria of IRS Code 1.451-2 (Constructive receipt of income), after consultation with the PFT President.

Page | 26-115

² "Documented critical financial emergencies" shall include one of the following documented events occurring within the six months preceding the request to cash out: death of unit member, death in their immediate family, bankruptcy, foreclosure, divorce, birth or adoption, retirement, termination, resignation, or permanent disability of the unit member, or their spouse or domestic partner.

reason, the amount of unused time shall be cashed out at its full value at the rate at which it was earned.

18. General information

- a. The Leave Banking Program became effective with the 1991-92 Academic Year
- b. To access this program, obtain a Leave Banking Program Application form from the Office of the Dean of Instruction/Student Services at any of the Peralta Colleges or from the District Personnel Office.
- c. It is the responsibility of the faculty member to request that contracted extra service hours be banked as part of this program. If not specifically requested, extra service hours will be compensated as bas been the practice.
- d. Notice of election of bank extra service hours must be given to the appropriate Assistant Dean six (6) weeks before the staI1 of the semester, quarter or summer session or at the time of assignment, whichever is later.
- e. Under this program a family member may save any Contracted extra service hours in lieu of immediate compensation.
- f. Extra service is defined as all assigned equated hours above a full-term load.

19. Benefit

- a. Up to a maximum of thirty (30) semesters equated hours, and forty-five (45) quarter equated hours may be banked. Once these limits are reached. No additional hours may be banked until time has been used or cashed- out.
- b. Banked hours may be used for up to one (1) semester or two (2) quarters within two (2) years; or two (2) semester or three (3) quarters within three (3) years.
- c. Extra service hours may be banked in whole or in part

20. Eligibility

The following faculty members are eligible for participation in the Leave Banking Program:

- a. All regular, permanent (tenured) faculty.
- b. Probationary faculty. with two (2) or more years of service, and the approval of the Tenure Review Committee and the College President
- c. Tenured partial contract faculty may accrue hours for leave banking during the summer session calendar ONLY.

21. Cash-Out Procedures

- a. Complete the Leave Banking Program Application form.
- b. Attach a Certificated Time Sheet. On the time sheet indicate:
 - 1) Reporting pay period;
 - 2) personal data requested;
 - 3) write in the number of hours to be paid. Do not forget to sign the form in section B.
- c. Forward the forms to the appropriate College Assistant Dean's Office for approval and processing.
- d. The College will receive, document and forward the completed application and timesheet to UIC District Personnel and Business Offices for processing.

e. Cash out may result in adverse tax (IRS) consequences. You should check with your tax advisor.

22. Application

- a. The faculty member shall notify the Dean/Vice President that they wish to accrue Leave Banking hours six (6) weeks before the start of the semester, summer session, or at the time of assignment, whichever is later. Such notification shall be in writing with the completion of applicable section(s) on Leave Banking Program Form (See Appendix).
- b. To utilize banked time, the faculty member must submit a completed Leave Banking Program Form to the Dean/Vice President by September 1st for Spring usage and by February 1st for Fall usage.
- c. The District will notify the faculty member of approval or disapproval in writing by October 15th for Spring requests and by March 15th for Fall requests.

U. Family Care Leave

- 1. Any eligible faculty member shall be granted an unpaid leave of absence for family care pursuant to California State Law and Federal Law, once they have exhausted all their paid leaves in this contract. This unpaid leave may be used
 - for the birth and care of the newborn child of the employee;
 - for placement with the employee of a son or daughter for adoption or foster care;
 - to care for an immediate family member (spouse, child, or parent) with a serious health condition; or
 - to take medical leave when the employee is unable to work because of a serious health condition.
- 2. Faculty members on unpaid family care leave shall be covered by the District for medical, dental, life and disability benefits only.
- 3. A faculty member shall be authorized to use of up to fifteen (15) days of accrued sick leave in any school year to care for an immediate family member (spouse, child, or parent) with a serious health condition.

V. Skills Refreshment Leave

Faculty who request it who have not had an instructional assignment in the previous five (5) years will be given up to one semester to refresh their skills before beginning their faculty assignments. During this period, they will be paid according to their placement on the faculty salary schedule.

ARTICLE 27: REDUCED WORKLOAD PROGRAM

Information on reduced workload program.

A. Program

- 1. The Peralta Community College District provides this reduced workload program in accordance with Section 87483 of the Education Code.
- 2. Individual agreements will be developed for participation in the program for a period not to exceed ten (10) years.
- 3. The period of such part-time employment shall not exceed ten (10) years.
- 4. Over the period of an employee's early retirement agreement, they will not be permitted to serve either less than a 0.5 load or less than the equivalent of one-half (1/2) the number of days of service required by the employee's assignment during the final year of service in a full-time position. The percent of load and number of days to be served shall be specified in each individual agreement. Extra Service assignments shall not be allowed.
- 5. An individual agreement and program participation can only be revoked through the mutual consent of the employee and the District. Revocation shall be agreed to at least six (6) months prior to a return to full-time assignment.

B. Qualifications

To qualify for this program an employee must have met the following requirements prior to the reduced workload program:

- 1. Ten (10) years of full-time faculty service in California, of which the immediately preceding five (5) years were full-time in the Peralta Community College District.
- 2. During the period immediately preceding a request for a reduction in workload, the employee must have been employed full-time in a faculty position for a total of at least five (5) years without a break in service. Approved leaves of absence shall not constitute a break in service. Such leaves shall not be used in computing the five-year full-time service requirement.
- 3. The employee shall be fifty-five (55) years of age or over before the beginning of the term in which their reduced employment commences.

C. Application and Approval

- 1. Qualified, interested employees shall initiate this procedure by formal written request to the Board of Trustees delivered to the college president.
- 2. Initial requests shall be received by the college president no later than May 15 for implementation in the following academic year.
- 3. Individual agreements will be developed for each approved applicant.

ARTICLE 28: MATRICULATION

Information on Student Personnel Services Specialists.

Student Personnel Services Specialists assigned to counseling departments shall assist counselors in providing academic, vocational and student support service. This position shall not replace counselors and will not replace the responsibilities of counselors as delineated in the applicable Education Code Sections and Title V.

Student Personnel Services Specialists shall not provide counseling services as may be defined in the Education Code or Title V but may, however, provide information of a technical nature.

It is agreed by the parties hereto that the implementation of the Matriculation Plan shall not violate any of the provisions of this Peralta Federation of Teachers/PCCD collective bargaining Agreement.

ARTICLE 29: RETIREMENT

Definitions and retirement plan general information.

A. Definitions of "Full Retirement"

"Full Retirement" means withdrawal from active service with a retirement from the State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS) or PERS. "Full Retirement" does not preclude employment by, with, or in the District.

B. Retirement Plans and STRS

1. General Information

- a. Eligibility for retirement and retirement allowances are determined by the State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS).
- b. Information requested by STRS in determination of retirement benefits that is not provided may result in a delay in benefits being paid. All faculty members have the right to review their file maintained by STRS upon request and submission of proper identification.
- c. Application for Retirement packets may be obtained from the Office of Personnel at the PCCD Offices.
- d. It is the employee's responsibility to obtain, prepare, and mail the application forms to STRS in Sacramento.
- e. Notification in writing of any name change or change of address should be made directly to the State Teachers' Retirement System, Post Office Box 15275-C, Sacramento, California 95851.
- f. Correspondence to STRS should include full name, address, social security number, and telephone number with area code.
- g. When converting from hours to days for the purposes of STRS, the sick-leave retirement conversion factor shall be 6.0 hours = 1 day

2. Regular Service Retirement Plans

Faculty members may retire from regular contract service at the age of 55 or older with at least five years of credited service.

3. Under Age 55 With 30 Years of Service Plan

Faculty members may retire from regular contract service if they are at least age 50 with 30 years or more of credited service verified by the State Teachers' Retirement System. Any employee who applies for retirement under this plan and who qualifies by STRS rules will receive District approval.

4. Health and Welfare Benefits

See relevant sections of Article 22.

5. Exit Interviews

The District shall be responsible for notifying all retirees (in writing) of their rights, including, but not limited to, their health and benefits rights and the consequences of not utilizing them. Retirees shall be required to sign off on their rights at the time of retirement. (See APPENDIX 3 (A3)).

C. Post Retirement Part-time Faculty Pay

- 1. Contract faculty members who retired between June 30, 1992 and June 30, 1997 and are reemployed by the District to provide part-time temporary services shall be compensated based on 100% of the column and step placement applicable at the time of retirement. Retirees shall be eligible for this pay rate for a period of five of the seven years following retirement. Thereafter, retirees will be paid at the regular part-time rate.
- 2. It is understood that faculty members who retired between June 30, 1992, and June 30, 1997, will be offered post retirement employment at the sole discretion of the District, unless they are covered by a retirement incentive agreement that provides otherwise.
- 3. Pay adjustments in the years following retirement shall be made on the same basis as the pay adjustment for faculty who retired between January 1, 1991 and August 26, 1991.
- 4. Annual earnings may not exceed the current STRS maximum.
- 5. If the State modifies the current 75/25 faculty ratio calculations in a manner that affects the District's ability to treat hours worked under this agreement as full-time faculty hours, this agreement clause may be opened for renegotiation.

Example #1: Assume STRS maximum increases by 5% from \$16,500 to \$17,328 and PCCD faculty pay schedule increases by 4%. The maximum earnings under the retirement incentive program would increase by 4% to \$17,160 which is the lesser of two amounts.

Example #2: This rate change calculation would apply to a pay schedule rate change for each retiree in the event of differential pay rate adjustments. Assume STRS maximum increases by 5% to \$17,325 and PCCD faculty pay rate at E 18 increases by 8%. Retiree who was placed on E 18 at time of retirement would receive a 5% increase because the STRS 5% increase is the lesser of the two amounts.

³ Post Retirement Part-time Pay Calculation Examples

ARTICLE 30: PART-TIME TEMPORARY INSTRUCTORS

Information on benefits and assignment.

A. Working Conditions

Including, but not limited to, relevant provisions of Article 18.

B. Salary

Including, but not limited to, relevant provision of Article 21.

C. Health and Welfare Benefits

Including, but not limited to, Voluntary Health Benefits in Article 22, Section D.

D. Eligibility List

The District shall establish, maintain, and circulate each term a list of all temporary parttime faculty members who are currently working in the District. The list shall circulate to all Dean/Vice Presidents of Instruction at each of the colleges.

The list is to inform the Dean/Vice Presidents about the availability of part-time faculty members for assignments in colleges where they do not currently work. Before new faculty members are hired, the list shall be reviewed, and Dean/Vice Presidents shall make an effort to hire first from this list.

The list shall include:

- 1. Names, addresses, and telephone numbers of all part-time faculty members who have worked in the District during the preceding two years;
- 2. Disciplines in which each faculty member is minimally and locally qualified;
- 3. Date of initial hire in the District;
- 4. Gender and ethnicity of each person listed;
- 5. Current College(s) to which they are assigned;
- 6. Courses taught and/or services provided to the District during the preceding two years.

A copy of the list shall be mailed to the PFT each term. This provision shall not be used to interfere with or violate the District's and the PFT's commitment to Equal Employment Opportunity.

E. Full-Time Contract Positions

Part-time temporary faculty members shall be guaranteed the right to an interview for any publicly advertised regular contract, probationary, or long-term substitute position if that position is in the specific area the faculty member is currently working, or has worked in the District, and for which that person applies. Application must be made, in writing, to the District Personnel Office no later than the closing date posted on the specific announcement.

This provision shall not be used to interfere with or violate the District's and the PFT's commitment to Equal Employment Opportunity

F. Letters of Assignment

1. The District will offer, as a standard practice, one-year employment agreements to parttime temporary faculty who have at least two (2) years of effective service with the District.

If a part-time temporary faculty member, who is eligible for a one-year letter of assignment and has received a positive evaluation, is not offered a one-year assignment, the College President, upon request by the faculty member, shall provide a written statement to the person explaining the reason(s) why they were not offered a one-year assignment. A positive evaluation must be completed and properly filed before a part-time temporary faculty member is eligible for a one-year letter of assignment. This provision is not grievable if the College President complies with the faculty member's request for a written explanation for not offering a one-year letter of assignment.

- 2. The colleges, whenever possible, shall issue letters of assignment to all other part-time faculty by June 30 for the fall term and by December 1 for the spring term. The letter shall specify the course, the number of hours the class meets, the location and the time.
- 3. Whenever possible, the college shall issue letters of assignment for one (1) full year.
- 4. The issuances of such letters of assignment shall not preclude the District's right of assignment of underloaded regular and probationary faculty members to classes currently taught by or assigned to part-time temporary faculty members, or the right to cancel when deemed appropriate.
- 5. Such letters of assignment do not constitute a contract for employment.

G. Impact of Full-Time Layoffs

Whenever the layoff of contract and regular instructors requires that part-time temporary instructors be terminated or not rehired, as provided by the Education Code, the District as a courtesy, will send to the PFT a list of the name(s) and discipline(s) of part-time temporary faculty who are affected.

H. Part-time Faculty Rehire Preference Pool

The District and the PFT are committed to the principles and law of Equal Employment Opportunity. In addition, it is recognized that the communities and students served by the District are diverse in their cultures, ethnicities, language groups and abilities, and the District and the PFT are therefore committed to fully representing that diversity in its workforce. The District and the PFT value diversity and strive to assure that a plurality of represented groups participates in the development and delivery of its instructional and student services programs.

The District and the PFT recognize that the success of its instructional and student services programs is in large part dependent upon a valued and competent part-time faculty that is committed to consistently delivering a high quality of instruction and student services.

- 1. **Preferred Hiring Pool**: Part-time faculty in the Preferred Hiring Pool will be given preference in assignment over part-time faculty in the Non-Preferred Hiring Pool. Within the Preferred Hiring Pool, seniority will be considered as specified in #3 below. This policy is in no way meant to modify or change existing PCCD policies and practices in assignment of extra service classes to contract faculty (see Article 18). The Preferred Hiring Pool shall consist of part-time faculty who meet <u>all</u> the following criteria:
 - a. Employed as a part-time faculty member OR Long-Term Substitute (LTS) in the College(s)/Discipline(s) for at least <u>eight</u> of the last <u>twelve</u> semesters, or currently employed part-time faculty who have successfully completed the Peralta Faculty Diversity Internship program.
 - b. Performance Evaluation.
 - 1) The Performance Evaluation shall follow all guidelines outlined in Part Two of the Faculty Evaluation Handbook with the rating provided on the summary form. A "surpasses requirements" performance evaluation or better shall be required for initial entry into the Preferred Hiring Pool for a given discipline.
 - 2) Faculty who teach in multiple disciplines must be evaluated in each discipline for entry into the Preferred Hiring Pool for that discipline. In cases where a single department chair oversees multiple disciplines, the faculty member and department chair can agree to use a single evaluation for multiple disciplines

2) Surpasses requirements

⁴ The Evaluation rating system for part-time Peralta evaluations shall be:

¹⁾ Is exemplary

³⁾ Meets all requirements

⁴⁾ Does not consistently meet requirements

⁵⁾ Does not meet requirements

- using the approved form (Placement in Preferred Hiring Pool for Multiple Disciplines). If the evaluation rating is "surpasses requirements" or better and the form is signed, the faculty member will be placed into the Preferred Hiring Pool for all approved disciplines.
- 3) Once in the Preferred Hiring Pool, a "surpasses" performance evaluation or better shall be required for an instructor to remain in the Preferred Hiring Pool.
- 4) Once in the Preferred Hiring Pool, a faculty member who receives a "Meets Standards" rating can request a second evaluation for the following semester. The faculty member will stay in the Preferred Hiring Pool until the second evaluation is completed.
 - (a) An improvement plan will be developed by the responsible Dean, in collaboration with the department chair before the end of the semester in which the first evaluation occurs. The terms of that improvement plan will need to be met the following semester as part of the second evaluation.
 - (b) "Improvement Plan" guidelines and timeline should use tenure track language modified to fit part-time evaluation process and schedule.
- 2. Non-Preferred Hiring Pool: Consists of part-time faculty members currently employed by the District but not in the Preferred Hiring Pool or applicants for part-time teaching positions who meet state minimum qualifications.
 - a. If part-time faculty positions are open but there are no available qualified individuals in the discipline from the Preferred Hiring Pool, the Division Dean or designee shall consider faculty members currently employed in the department discipline or at another college in the District who are not in the Preferred Hiring Pool. The Dean or designee may also contact the Office of Human Resources regarding selected outside discipline candidates who are currently in the central District database, screen candidate materials for desirable skills and attributes, and interview candidates prior to making a recommendation for employment.
 - b. Faculty assignments shall comply with Article 18-A-12.
- **3. Seniority:** Within the Preferred Hiring Pool, part-time faculty assignments shall be made by seniority up to base load as follows:
 - a. When assignments are made, the part-time faculty members' availability and preference will be considered. Such availability and preference is to be provided to the VPI (or designee) by December 15 for the following fall semester and by May 15 for the following spring semester using the agreed upon preference form.
 - b. If all faculty in the Preferred Hiring Pool are assigned their base load, additional classes may be assigned to either part-time faculty in the Preferred Hiring Pool or to part-time faculty not in the Preferred Hiring Pool irrespective of seniority.
 - c. If there are not enough scheduled classes available for an upcoming semester (in a particular department in a college) to allow all part-time faculty in the Preferred

d. Hiring Pool to be assigned their base load, classes will be assigned by seniority up to base load for each faculty on the list starting with the most senior faculty member until all classes have been assigned.

Exceptions to this process shall only be by mutual agreement of the faculty members affected and approval of the Vice President of Instruction (or designee).

e. If seniority is not used to make an assignment, a letter of explanation shall be provided along with the 60-day letter of assignment.

The explanation shall be based on the knowledge, skills, and abilities required for the position and may consider such things as: possession of unique job-related skills, possession of specific licensing requirements, and/or possession of unique experience. The required letter of explanation to the faculty member shall indicate the skills, licensing and/or experience upon which the selection decision was made. Employment performance, evaluations, discipline history, and/or complaint history shall not be considered in the decision.

The explanation shall cover only a specific class for one semester.

- f. Seniority in a department shall be based on the date of hire in that department in that college. Any ties shall be broken by lottery, at which the faculty involved and a PFT representative shall be present. In cases where the hire date is prior to 2008 and the college/department hire date is unavailable. seniority shall be based on the initial hire date within the district.
- g. Reset of Seniority Date Within Rehire Pool

Except for protected leaves (See Article 26 CBA, state and federal laws), any voluntary (declined assignment and resignation) and continuous break in service of 2 years (4 semesters) or more shall reset the seniority hire date to the date when the faculty member is reemployed at the college in a discipline.

- **4.** Lottery System (also see Faculty Evaluation Handbook "Lottery Pool System")
 - a. When it is necessary to choose an evaluator by lottery, the lottery process shall be started by the Dean during or before the 6th week of the semester. The Dean shall notify the college PFT cochairs, the Academic Senate President, the college Vice President of Instruction and the faculty evaluee for whom the lottery is being held that a Lottery pool will be created, and a Lottery drawing will take place. The Dean shall further notify all parties of the actual lottery drawing at least 5 business days in advance, so that they may observe the drawing if they choose to do so.
 - b. When it is necessary to choose an evaluator by lottery, the College Academic Senate President, one PFT Chapter Co-Chair (designated by the PFT Chapter Co-

Chairs), and the college Vice President of Instruction shall jointly assign eligible faculty members to a Lottery pool consisting of at least 4 individuals. Faculty in the Lottery should be in the same or related disciplines. The Lottery pool shall consist of:

- 1) Contract faculty in the same or related disciplines who have not been assigned three evaluations during that academic year. An evaluator who was "challenged" by that evaluee or an evaluator who did the 'first evaluation' on that evaluee (specified in parts 3B or 3G of January 2009 agreement) shall not be included.
- 2) Contract faculty in the same or related disciplines who have already been assigned three evaluations during this academic year and have agreed to be included in the Lottery pool.
- 3) Currently employed part-time faculty may also be added to the Lottery pool if they agree to be included and if the Dean and Dept. Chair both concur. If a part-time faculty member or a contract faculty member already doing 3 evaluations in the academic year is chosen to do the lottery evaluation, the faculty member shall be paid a \$100 stipend.

5. Removal of Part-time Faculty from the Preferred Hiring Pool:

The following conditions constitute grounds for removal from the Preferred Hiring Pool:

- a. <u>Permanent removal</u> from the Preferred Hiring Pool shall result pursuant to Educational Code 87665.
- b. A <u>sustained complaint</u> concerning harassment or discrimination only, the outcome of which did not rise to the level of suspension or dismissal pursuant to the Education Code. A sustained complaint implies a thorough investigation (refer to Investigation Article of CBA) was carried out and the faculty member in question was accorded due process as per the Ed Code and CBA, including any side letters.
 - A sustained complaint is a complaint which, after a fact-based investigation, is found to be supported by the preponderance of the evidence standard. The District's investigation finding is not subject to the grievance process.
 - Process for request for reinstatement from removal due to sustained complaint
 concerning harassment or discrimination only:
 A part-time faculty member who is removed from the Preferred Hiring Pool due
 to a sustained complaint of harassment or discrimination may submit a request to
 the College President to be reinstated to the Preferred Hiring Pool after one

academic year, if all of the following conditions are met:

- a) The faculty member has not engaged in any of the conduct described above during the one-year period, and
- b) The faculty member is evaluated during the one-year period, and receives at least a "surpasses requirements" rating and
- c) The faculty shall be required to attend, and successfully complete harassment or discrimination awareness training provided by the District.

Reinstatement to the Preferred Hiring Pool is discretionary. A decision not to reinstate is not subject to the grievance procedure. However, failure to follow the process described in this article is subject to the grievance procedure.

- c. <u>Failure to turn in census rosters</u>, attendance rosters, or grade rosters by the deadline provided by the district, given sufficient notification and at no fault of the district offices/administration.
 - 1) Sufficient notification shall be defined as at least one email to the faculty member via PCCD email account within two days of the roster becoming available on the Faculty Center.
 - 2) Process for removal due to failure to turn in records in a timely manner:
 - a) After two consecutive semesters of failure to turn in rosters in a timely manner, a faculty member in the part-time hiring pool may be recommended for removal from the Preferred Hiring Pool.
 - b) A three-person committee shall be formed to consider the recommendation to remove due to failure to turn in rosters.
 - c) The committee shall be made up of the Vice President of Instruction (or designee), the Academic Senate President (or designee), and a Department chair (or designee).
 - d) The committee shall review all faculty records to ensure that all faculty who have not met the obligation are treated fairly.
 - e) The committee shall allow the faculty member and the Dean a minimum of two weeks during the regular semester to provide supporting documents for review, before a decision is made on the case.
 - f) If the committee does not meet according to the established guidelines (outlined below), then the faculty member shall remain in the Preferred Hiring Pool.
 - g) Committee timelines are as follows:
 - (1) The Vice President of Instruction (or designee) shall send written notification of the committee meeting within two weeks of the start of the semester following the failure to turn appropriate documentation in to the district.
 - (2) The notification will provide at least two weeks' notice to the faculty member to prepare for the meeting.
 - (3) The committee meeting will occur by the 6^{th} week of the semester.
 - (4) The decision of the committee shall be by majority vote and shall be made by the 8th week of the semester.
 - h) Supporting documents presented to this committee may include:
 - (1) Notifications to the faculty regarding due dates for the submission of census roster, attendance roster or grade roster, and regarding the submission process.
 - (2) Notifications to the faculty that a document was not received by the due date.
 - (3) Instructions to the faculty on how to turn in the documents after missing the due date.

- (4) Requests to the Dept. Chair to contact the faculty using the faculty's home phone or non-Peralta email regarding turning in the documents
- (5) Evidence presented by the faculty member that they tried to turn the documents in, but problems with the District's Information Technology system (or Admissions and Records system) prevented the District from receiving the documents.
- (6) Extenuating circumstances which may have prevented the faculty member from receiving emails, instructions, or notices; or which may have prevented the faculty member from acting on notices that were received.
- (7) Evidence submitted by other faculty in the department regarding the process of notification of these events.
- (8) Evidence submitted by any Peralta faculty regarding problems with Peralta's Information Technology system and Admissions and Records system in regard to submitting census rosters, attendance rosters and grade rosters.
- (9) Supporting documents may be submitted to the committee in person, in writing, or via email.
- i) The decision of the committee is not grievable but violations of the process described in this article are.
- d. Process for reinstatement upon removal due to failure to turn in rosters:
 - 1) A part-time faculty member who is removed from the Rehire Preference Pool due to failure to turn in rosters may submit a request to be reinstated to the Vice President of Instruction.
 - 2) Requests must be made no later than the end of the third full week of the fall/spring term following at least two consecutive semesters in which roster submission timelines were met. The request will automatically be approved upon validation of the roster submissions.

6. Program Operational Components:

a. Electronic List

The Office of Human Resources will create and maintain an updated electronic list of all individuals currently in the Preferred Hiring Pool, and will provide shared access to Division Deans, other designated College administrators, and to the PFT President, PFT Grievance Officer, Faculty Senate Presidents and College Department Chairs.

Human Resources will update the list as required. Designated individuals shall have query access to view the list (view sorts by College or District-wide) by discipline from their desktop. Part-time employees shall have computer access to their individual information.

The electronic list shall include contact information, each discipline for which minimum qualifications have been met, confirmation of receipt of required

performance evaluation received in Human Resources, base load (see #c below), confirmation of the most recent District semesters worked, and the discipline of service. The data shall not include reference to gender, ethnicity, age, ability, or other category as protected by Equal Employment Opportunity law.

The list shall be updated with current assignment information within four weeks of the start of each semester.

b. Assignment

Members of the Preferred Hiring Pool shall be offered assignments for their base load (see #c. below) if such assignments are available. Assignments beyond base load are not precluded by this agreement. The College retains the right of assignment of regular or contract faculty and to cancel part-time assignments based on the needs of the College and the District.

An assignment is defined as the load described in the Letter of Assignment or the load of the faculty member at the census date, whichever is greater. In the event of any error, the letter may be amended after the contractually mandated Letter of Assignment and prior to the first day of class.

c. Base Load

The base load of a part-time instructor shall be the average equated hours assigned to the part-time faculty member in each discipline at each college in the Spring and in the Fall semesters during the most recent three years, including the semester in which the list is made. Base load shall be calculated separately for the Spring and Fall semesters, up to a maximum of 67% of base contract load. Base load for former Diversity Interns shall be based on their internship assignment. The assignment preference is only at the college (s) where the part-time faculty member works. If a part-time faculty member is bumped from an assignment or has classes canceled, the base load calculation will include their base load as originally assigned. Exceptions to removal from the list will also be made in the event of approved family leave, documented medical circumstances, or a documented medical emergency.

For faculty in the Preferred Hiring pool in multiple disciplines per the form "Placement in Preferred Hiring Pool for Multiple Disciplines," the base load shall be the sum of all assignments within those disciplines. Colleges will be permitted to assign faculty to any discipline for which placement into the Preferred Hiring Pool has been established.

d. Emergency Hires

Emergency hires fill part-time faculty positions that become vacant due to the sudden unavailability of staff during an ongoing semester or during the four weeks immediately prior to a semester, summer session, or intersession, or when classes or services are added following the start of a semester, summer session, or intersession

due to increased enrollment demands.

When an Emergency Hire position is identified, the Division Dean and Department Chair (if applicable, and/or other discipline faculty as designated by the Dean) shall make every effort to employ a part-time faculty member in the Preferred Hiring Pool.

If the Emergency Hire position cannot be filled with a part-time faculty member in the Preferred Hiring Pool, the Division Dean and department chair (if applicable, and/or other discipline faculty as designated by the Dean) shall make a good faith effort to:

- 1) Review the database of discipline employees not in the Preferred Hiring Pool
- 2) Coordinate with Human Resources for the review application materials of outside candidates
- 3) Interview candidates who most closely meet the desirable skills and experience of the position(s)
- 4) Select an individual to fill the unexpected vacancy.

Emergency hires from the non-Preferred Hiring Pool will not automatically enter the Preferred Hiring Pool, unless they qualify as described above.

e. Bumping Rights

Members of the Preferred Hiring Pool will not have the right to bump from an assignment of another Part-time Faculty member.

ARTICLE 31: SUMMER SESSION AND INTERSESSION

Faculty selection.

A. Definitions:

- 1. Summer Session is a six-week session between mid-June and late July
- 2. Intersession is any schedule of courses offered outside of the 175 academic days and Peralta's six-week summer session

B. Selection of Faculty for summer session

Summer session faculty shall be selected by the College President of each college on the following priority basis:

- 1. Regular or probationary faculty members at the college who were not employed during the preceding summer session;
- 2. Regular or probationary faculty members at the college who were employed during the preceding summer session;
- 3. Part-time temporary faculty members who were employed by the college during the preceding academic year;
- 4. All others.

If a faculty member is not selected in the above order, the College President, upon request of the faculty member, shall provide the person with a written statement explaining the reason(s) why they were not selected. If the College President complies with the faculty member's request for a written statement, the provisions of this subsection B are not grievable.

C. <u>Summer Session equated hour limit.</u>

1. Summer session faculty members may be offered more than one course during a summer session, but no more than nine (9) equated hours.

D. <u>Selection of Faculty for Intersession assignments</u>

Intersession faculty shall be selected by the College President of each college. All intersession assignments shall be voluntary.

- 1. There shall be no contractual preference for intersession assignment for either regular or probationary faculty (as a group) or hourly faculty (as a group). However,
 - a. Among regular or probationary faculty, priority shall be given to faculty who did not teach intersession during the previous academic year.
 - b. Among hourly faculty, priority shall be given to hourly faculty in the Rehiring Preference Pool (Article 30, sec H).

If a faculty member is not selected in the above order, the College President, upon request of the faculty member, shall provide the person with a written statement explaining the reason(s) why they were not selected. If the College President complies with the faculty member's request for a written statement, the provisions of this subsection are not grievable.

E. Intersession assignments

- 1. Intersession assignments by hourly faculty shall not count towards the maximum (.6) load specified in Ed Code 87474(a) (2) and 87482.5, as it pertains to requiring the offer of a contract position to an hourly faculty member.
- 2. Intersession assignments worked by hourly faculty will count towards time worked (for advancement on the salary schedule)
- 3. Intersession assignment will add to sick leave accumulated (and will count towards STRS or other retirement, in any way allowed by law)
- 4. Intersession assignments can be banked and/or part of load for regular or probationary faculty, with mutual agreement of their Dean.
- 5. Intersession assignments can be used to qualify hourly faculty for 50/50 health plan.
- F. All other provisions of the PFT/PCCD contract shall be applied to summer school and intersession faculty.

ARTICLE 32: VOLUNTARY SICK LEAVE CONTRIBUTION

Catastrophic illness contribution.

A voluntary Sick Leave Contribution Program may be established to meet the needs of faculty experiencing catastrophic illness or injury. Catastrophic illness or injury means an illness or injury that is expected to incapacitate the employee for an extended period of time, and that taking extended time off work creates a financial hardship for the employee because they have exhausted all of their sick leave and other paid time off (Ed. Code 87045 a 1). The Program shall be administered according to the provisions below.

A. Contributions

The five-member, PFT appointed Voluntary Sick Leave Contribution Program Committee shall call for voluntary contributions of accrued sick leave days/hours when a need is identified and verified. Individual contributions by members of the PFT bargaining unit may be made under all of the following conditions.

- 1. The minimum contribution per call is one day (8 hrs.).
- 2. The maximum contribution per call is five (5) days.
- 3. The minimum sick leave balance after the contribution is at least five (5) days.
- 4. Transfer of contributions shall be limited to the number of days used subject to the maximums provided in this article.

B. Eligibility

- 1. A recipient of sick leave contributions must be an employee at the time the request is made.
- 2. Other Paid Leave Accounts

No faculty member will be eligible for benefits until all other available paid leave accounts under the PFT-PCCD Contract Agreement have been exhausted.

C. Benefits

- 1. **Full-Time Faculty:** The Program may contribute up to 50 days at 100% of pay but no more than necessary for an employee to be eligible for long-term disability.
- 2. **Part-Time Faculty:** The Program may contribute up to 50 hours at the rate of the faculty member's current load and rate of pay; this leave shall terminate at the end of the semester in which it begins.
- 3. **Limitations on Use:** No faculty member may receive benefits from the Program more than two times in their lifetime.
- 4. Faculty members receiving sick leave donations shall be covered by the District for medical, dental, life and disability benefits, which they would be otherwise qualified to receive.

5. **Effect of Receiving Benefits:** Benefit recipients shall be solely responsible for any state and federal taxes on the donated time. Such taxes shall be withheld at the normal rate for the recipient employee. In the event that the state or federal governments rule that a tax liability is due other than as taxed, the recipient shall be solely liable for such liabilities.

D. Request Procedures

Request for benefits shall be submitted in a sealed envelope to the Vice Chancellor for Human Resources and Employee Relations. The Vice Chancellor shall receive the request and supporting medical documentation and certification to determine whether the faculty member meets eligibility requirements. Such requests must include a physician's certification that the faculty member is unable, as a result of a catastrophic illness or injury, to perform the material duties of their occupation. At its discretion, the District may require additional medical information or require examination by a second physician of the District's choosing and at the District's expense. After reviewing the application and supporting documentation, the Vice Chancellor shall submit to the committee a statement which indicates whether the faculty member has met the criteria and furnished all documentation and number of days needed to bridge to eligibility for long-term disability benefits (this applies to contract and regular faculty). For part-time, temporary faculty, the statement shall include the number of days or hours needed to cover the remainder of the term.

The five-member PFT committee shall review the request and approve the call for sick leave contributions. Faculty may not contribute more days/hours than needed. The decision of the committee shall not be subject to the grievance and arbitration provisions of the PFT-PCCD Contract Agreement.

ARTICLE 33: DISTANCE EDUCATION

Information on online courses.

A. <u>Purpose</u>

The purpose of this Article is to provide for an environment where the use of technology enhances, and in no way diminishes, the right of the student to a quality state and academic experience and the responsibility of the faculty and the college to provide that experience. It is intended to be interpreted in a manner consistent with federal law. Unless otherwise specified in this Article, all distance learning courses shall be subject to the provisions of this Agreement and District Policies, as they may be amended from time to time, that govern non-distance learning offerings, including but not limited to provisions relating to the development, assignment, size, compensation for, and evaluation of classes.

B. Definitions

Distance Learning means any form of education where students are separated from their instructors by time and/or space, including both on-line courses and telecourses. **Online course** means a course in which communication between the student and instructor is primarily through computer or internet technology.

Telecourse means a course of televised lectures or other televised programs.

C. Development of Distance Learning Courses

- 1. Proposals for new distance education courses, including distance education versions of current courses, shall be subject to the same procedures and policies as any other curriculum development proposal. The offering and scheduling of distance education courses and the assignment of faculty volunteers shall remain the exclusive prerogative of the District.
- 2. Developing distance education courses requires special skills and shall be voluntary. When the District and a faculty member agree that the faculty member will develop a distance education course, that faculty member should be provided with adequate preparation and training, and should be additionally compensated for the extra time required to develop such a course or program.
- 3. The faculty member who creates a distance education course, whether a new distance education course or an existing course converted to a distance education course, has the right of first refusal for teaching it for a period of two years so long as they remain in good standing. This right is contingent on adequate enrollment.

- 4. Copyright on Distance Education Material
- 5. The copyright on all course materials developed by a faculty member for use in District Education, including specific distance education classes, shall belong 100% to that faculty member, unless a separate agreement is negotiated (see section c below). The District shall not utilize such material in any way without written permission from that faculty member.
 - a. This copyright section does not apply to course outlines and other materials (such as catalogue descriptions) submitted to the District specifically for accreditation or publicity.
 - b. The District and faculty may, in lieu of 4.a. above, execute a separate agreement where the member is commissioned or engaged, at their discretion, to develop materials for a specific Distance Education Course, in which case the terms of that agreement shall prevail. The agreement must be on the "District Ownership of Online and Web Based Material" Form (see Appendix).

D. Technical Support

The District will endeavor to provide adequate technical instructional support services to assure the ability of the instructor and students to send and receive data and to communicate effectively.

E. Distance Learning Class Assignments

All distance learning assignments shall be voluntary. A distance learning class may not be assigned as a part of a contract load without the consent of the faculty member.

F. Online Class Size

The maximum class size for any on-line course shall be equal to the lowest maximum class size of any section of the same course taught at that college during that academic year. In courses with separate lecture and laboratory sections, the laboratory maximum shall be used.

If the course is only taught on-line during that academic year, the maximum class size shall be determined by mutual agreement of the Department Chair and Dean, in consultation with the faculty member, by reviewing class size maximums of comparable courses in the department. Class size maximums for "online only" classes shall be subject to approval by the PFT President and Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs.

Exceptions to maximum class size may be made by mutual agreement of the Dean and the instructor. Either side may reopen this provision with notice to the other. The parties agree to begin additional negotiations on class size for online classes no later than September 1, 2007. This date may be extended by mutual agreement. In the event that the parties do not reach agreement on class size by November 1, 2007, the parties agree that the language in this Section F automatically sunsets and the parties shall revert to previous past practice in setting class size.

G. Evaluation of Faculty Assigned to Teach Distance Learning Courses

Evaluation of Faculty Assigned to teach distance learning courses shall recognize the special circumstances of teaching such a class.

- 1. In any situation where an instructor can be evaluated in either a classroom setting or online, the instructor shall be evaluated in a classroom setting.
- 2. In circumstances where evaluations of on-line classes must be conducted to comply with Education Codes:
 - a. Student evaluations shall be conducted on the web, using identical questions to those in the currently approved student evaluation form.
 - b. The Faculty Evaluator and Instructor shall make a good faith effort to agree on a classroom observation plan which will allow the Evaluator to fill out the current Classroom Evaluation for the on-line class and follow, as best they can, the current evaluation procedures. This shall include a pre-evaluation meeting, an evaluation, and a post-evaluation meeting. These meetings may be conducted on-line. The Evaluator will spend at least one hour observing the on-line class, but is not limited to one hour.
 - c. Deans and Department Chairs will make a good faith effort to ensure that evaluators of on-line classes have experience in on-line instruction.
- 3. Beginning in Fall 2009, the PFT and PCCD will work together on a pilot project to evaluate the use of web-based student evaluations for regular classes. For the purpose of this project, web-based student evaluations shall only be used in evaluation of tenured faculty, if both evaluator and the instructor being evaluated agree to participate.

H. Educational Technology Committee

The Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs shall convene an Educational Technology Committee, composed of representatives of the PFT, DAS, and administration. The committee shall report its findings by May 2007. Any areas in which the committee reaches consensus shall be reduced to writing and recommended to both bargaining teams as modifications of this article.

ARTICLE 34: USE OF CAMERAS IN CLASSROOMS

A. Introduction

- 1. This second Letter of Agreement addresses the conditions under which District audio or video recording equipment and recordings apply to or affect faculty. This Second Letter of Agreement includes the First Letter of Agreement, and all the attachments cited in these letters. These letters and attachments will become part of the PCCD-PFT contract and added to Article 12, Safety.
- 2. Camera Inventory: The District confirms that at the time this agreement was signed there were 130 Smart Classroom cameras and 47 non-Smart classroom, Legacy and non-Legacy cameras, in place, as per the lists of cameras and classrooms given to the PFT by the District (See Appendix).
- 3. What is covered: All existing cameras, existing classrooms, new or subsequently added cameras, and any new classrooms that are built or established within District-owned, leased, or operated property shall be governed by and in accordance with these letters of agreement regarding security cameras in the classrooms. Faculty working in "public spaces" shall have the same rights and protections as faculty working in regular classrooms.
- 4. The Associate Vice Chancellor of Information Technology, or an alternate Peralta administrator designated by the Chancellor, will be the administrator-in charge of the infrastructure and data of the video recording system and will have full authority to manage, maintain, oversee, monitor, and access the entire recording system, including hardware, software, and all recordings (digital and printed) made by and stored on the system.

B. Terms and Conditions

- 1. Whenever the District is permitted to make recordings, it shall make only video recordings, not audio recordings.
- 2. Recordings will be maintained for no more than thirty (30) days, after which time they will be recorded over or destroyed, except when allowed to be retained beyond the time period by mutual written agreement of the PFT and PCCD.
- 3. If a faculty member has been recorded while performing their work in violation of the terms of this Agreement, the District shall promptly destroy any recording made (with the exception of the recording of criminal activity) if demanded by the PFT President and the faculty employee after reviewing the video.
- 4. Should the District administrator-in-charge, or the VPI's, or any other college or district

- administrator become aware that any faculty member has been recorded in the faculty member's classroom while teaching, the PFT President and the teacher will be notified within 48 hours.
- 5. The recording of any and all faculty members shall not be used to discipline or evaluate any faculty, except in cases of alleged criminal activity and/or criminal investigation where the faculty member is either the victim or alleged perpetrator. Prior to viewing video recordings for any actual or potential criminal investigation or activity, the PFT President shall be notified of the District's intent 72 hours before viewing, except in cases of immediate potential bodily injury.
- 6. PFT will have the right of access, upon reasonable request, to any recording and monitoring areas or other areas which contain cameras, or which are within the view of cameras. These rights include the rights to walk through such areas upon giving reasonable notice. In addition, the PFT President shall be notified and promptly allowed to view any recordings made of faculty in their classrooms. Upon request, PFT shall be provided a copy of faculty recording(s).
- 7. District video recording of classrooms that are permissible by this Agreement shall be set and limited to the hours between 11:30 p.m. until 5:00 a.m. and will cease at 5:01a.m. each day. Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the PFT and the PCCD, no recording will begin earlier than 1.5 hours after the last evening class in the District ends, or 1.0 hours before the first morning class in the district begins 5.
- 8. The District shall notify and negotiate with PFT before it purchases and places any additional cameras in new, existing, or additional classrooms; the District will notify PFT before it replaces and/or upgrades cameras in new, existing, and additional classrooms; all new, additional, and upgraded cameras will have a signaling device that indicates to a normal viewer if and when they are recording.
- 9. If any District administrator, whether employed at the District Office or at the colleges, is charged with willful violation any of the provisions in these letters of agreement, the District, upon receipt of a complaint, will take the appropriate action at the discretion of the Chancellor.
- 10. Police monitoring of the security recordings will be done under the full and complete authority of the Chancellor, who may designate administrative oversight to the Associate Vice Chancellor of Information Technology or the Chancellor's designee. See attached agreement between Alameda County Sherriff's Department and the PCCD.
- 11. Recording cameras in the Smart Classrooms will be programed to emit an easily seen flashing red light visible from every location in the classroom to indicate when the camera is recording.
- 12. Legacy and non-Legacy cameras are not programmable and contain no warning light. When the Legacy and non-Legacy cameras are replaced, they will be replaced with cameras or other recording devices that are programmable to have a clear, visible, flashing warning light or some other visible warning to indicate the cameras are recording.

⁵ See PFT President for additional information.

- 13. The Associate Vice Chancellor of Information Technology or their designee will send the attached verification form to each college VPI every semester, intersession, and summer school to verify the hours the cameras will be recording and to obtain written verification from the VPIs that the colleges have scheduled all classes to end at least one hour before the recordings begin and have scheduled all classes to begin at least one hour after the recordings have ended. The PFT President will receive a copy of all of the verification forms. (See attached form)
- 14. The Associate Vice Chancellor of Information Technology or their designee will also be responsible for calibrating the clocks at the district office, the four colleges, and for the computer system.
- 15. Within twelve months of the signing of this Letter of Agreement, PCCD will notify the PFT President about the status of the transition of the camera surveillance system from being overseen and operated by an outside consultant to being fully overseen and operated by the PCCD administration.
- 16. A faculty member may request the District to record one or more of their classes for good cause. Good cause shall consist of the faculty member's fear of misconduct or threatening behavior for which a recording might provide disincentive and/or evidence. The faculty member shall submit a request on an agreed-upon form. A copy of the form shall be given to the PFT within 48 hours of receipt of the form. The PFT, District, and faculty member shall meet to agree upon the terms of recording, including storage, access, use, beginning and ending dates, etc. No recording will be permitted unless all three parties (PFT, PCCD, and faculty member) sign a MOU regarding terms and conditions. (See attached form)
- 17. Either party may re-open this article.

ARTICLE 35: TERM OF AGREEMENT

July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2025

The PFT and the District mutually agree to commit to participate in Interest Based Bargaining in successor agreement negotiations. If either party feels that amendments, additions and/or deletions to the Agreement are required, either party may request negotiations. If both parties agree, such negotiations shall commence within fifteen (15) working days of the request.

All Appendices will be reviewed and revised to be in compliance with this Agreement and with current practice.

This agreement was ratified by the Peralta Federation of Teachers (PFT) on Aug. 17, 2023(date).

This agreement was approved by the Peralta Community College District Board of Trustees on <u>Sept. 12, 2023</u> (date).

Signed and entered into this 04 day of Apr il 2025.

For Peralta Community College District:

Ronald McKinley

Ronald McKinley (Apr 16, 2025 11:49 PDT)	0 1/ = 0/ = 0 = 0
Ronald McKinley, Vice Chancellor HR & Chief Negotiator	Date
Tamheil Gilkerson (Apr 22, 2025 10:53 PDT)	04/22/2025
Tammeil Gilkerson, Chancellor	Date
For Peralta Federation of Teachers:	
Jelkery Sanceri (Apr 18, 2025 13:06 PDT)	04/18/2025
Jeff Sanceri, President, PFT	Date
Richard Greenspan Richard Greenspan (Apr 21, 2025 22:06 PDT)	04/21/2025
Rick Greenspan, Chief Negotiator, PFT	Date

04/16/2025



Peralta Community College District

FACULTY EVALUATION HANDBOOK

POLICIES & PROCEDURES
For All Faculty

Part One: Tenure Track Faculty Part Two: Part-Time Faculty Part Three: Tenured Faculty

Note: This Faculty Evaluation Handbook is also **Appendix A20 to the PCCD-PFT Contract**, the provisions of which have been amended and extended by several Side Agreements, currently through June 30, 2017.

June 2023

Berkelev City	College	College of	Alameda	.Lanev (College	Merritt	College
J - J	. 0	- 0		,	- 0		

PERALTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Board of Trustees

Dyana Delfin Polk-President
Louis Quindlen-Vice President
Cindi Napoli-Abella Reiss
Sheweet Yohannes
Nicky Gonzalez Yuen
Bill Withrow
Paulina Gonzalez-Brito
Natasha Masand, Student Trustee

Interim Chancellor Jannett Jackson, Ph.D.

Interim Deputy Chancellor/Chief Operating Officer
Stephanie Droker, Ed.D

College Presidents

Dr. Denise Richardson, Interim President, Berkeley City College Dr. Diana Bajrami, Interim President, College of Alameda Dr. Rudy Besikof, President, Laney College Dr. David Johnson, President, Merritt College

FACULTY EVALUATION POLICIES & PROCEDURES

CONTENTS

INTR	OD	UCTION TO THIS HANDBOOK	5
A.		FACULTY EVALUATION POLICIES & PROCEDURES	5
В.		PURPOSE	
C.		STATEMENT OF FACULTY EXCELLENCE	6
PART	01	NE: TENURE TRACK FACULTY EVALUATION POLICY	11
A.		INTRODUCTION TO TENURE TRACK EVALUATIONS	11
В.		PARTICIPANTS: THEIR RESPONSIBILITIES AND RIGHTS	12
	1.	TENURE REVIEW COMMITTEE	
	2.	DEAN / ADMINISTRATIVE SUPERVISORRESPONSIBILITIES	
	3.	CANDIDATE FOR TENURE	
	4.	COLLEGE TENURE FACILITATOR	
	5.	COMPENSATION FOR THE TENURE REVIEW COMMITTEE	
	6.	CODE OF ETHICS FOR MEMBERS OF THE TENURE REVIEW COMMITTEE	
	7.	REPLACEMENT OF TRC MEMBERS	
	8.	ADMINISTRATIVE OVERSIGHT RESPONSIBILITY/IMPLEMENTATION	
	9.	FACULTY MENTORS	
	10		
C.		TENURE REVIEW PROCESS AND APPEALS	
	1.	THE TENURE REVIEW EVALUATION PORTFOLIO	
		a. Evaluation Plan (EP) (See Appendix H)	
		b. Student Evaluations	
		c. Classroom Observations by TRC Members	
		e. Administrative Evaluations	
		f. Self-Evaluations	
		g. Non-Classroom Observation Form (Optional)	
		h. Tenure Review Conferences/Reports	
		i. Improvement Plan	
		j. Other Documentation	
	2.	TENURE REVIEW OVERSIGHT/RECOMMENDATION CERTIFICATION	
	3.	ON-LINE EVALUATIONS	
	4.	APPEALS	
	5.	RIGHTS OF PFT	
_	6.	TIMELINES FOR TENURE REVIEW	
D.		RECOMMENDATIONS FOR NEW FORMS AND CHANGES TO EXISTING FORMS FOR TENURE TRACK FACULTY	
PART	T۷	NO: PART-TIME EVALUATIONS POLICY	33
A.		INTRODUCTION TO PART-TIME FACULTY EVALUATIONS	
В.		TENURE REVIEW EVALUATION PORTFOLIO	
c.		EVALUATION FREQUENCY	
D.		RESPONSIBILITIES IN THE EVALUATION	
E.		EVALUATION PROCESS CRITERIA AND FORMS	
F.		SCHEDULING AND ASSIGNING EVALUATIONS	
G.		EVALUATION PROCESS	
Н.		RECOMMENDATIONS FOR NEW FORMS AND CHANGES TO EXISTING FORMS FOR PART-TIME FACULTY	
I.		COLLEGE EVALUATION COORDINATOR	40
PART	TH	REE: TENURED FACULTY EVALUATIONS	
Α.		INTRODUCTION TO TENURED FACULTY EVALUATIONS	
В.		TENURE REVIEW EVALUATION PORTFOLIO	46
c.		EVALUATION FREQUENCY	
D.		RESPONSIBILITIES IN THE EVALUATION	
E.		EVALUATION PROCESS CRITERIA AND FORMS	47

F.	SCHEDULING AND ASSIGNING EVALUATIONS	48
G.	EVALUATION PROCESS	49
H.	RECOMMENDATIONS FOR NEW FORMS AND CHANGES TO EXISTING FORMS FOR TENURED FACULTY	52
l.	COLLEGE EVALUATION COORDINATOR	52
APPEI	NDIX A: TIMELINES FOR TENURE REVIEW AND FACULTY EVLAUATIONS (CALENDARS) AND EVALUATION FORMS	57
APPEI	NDIX B: GUIDELINES FOR TENURE REVIEW TIMELINES	58
APPEI	NDIX d: FILING A GRIEVANCE	63
APPEI	NDIX E: PFT SIDE LETTER ON TENURED AND PART-TIME EVALUATIONS	64
APPEI	NDIX F: PART TIME FACULTY REHIRE PREFERENCE POOL AGREEMENT	65
APPEI	NDIX G: PART-TIME, LTS* AND TENURED FACULTY EVALUATION FORMS USED	71
APPEI	NDIX H. TENURE REVIEW EVALUATION PLAN	72

INTRODUCTION TO THIS HANDBOOK

A. FACULTY EVALUATION POLICIES & PROCEDURES

This Faculty Evaluation Policies and Procedures Handbook includes the policies and procedures for evaluation of all faculty in the Peralta Community College District: tenure track, tenured and part-time faculty (including Faculty Diversity Internship Program [FDIP Interns]). The Faculty Evaluation Handbook is also **Appendix A20 to the PCCD-PFT Contract**, the provisions of which have been amended and extended by several Side Agreements, currently through June 30, 2017. This policy can only be changed or modified after consultation between the Peralta Federation of Teachers (PFT) and the District Academic Senate (DAS); such changes or modifications must also be negotiated between the PFT and the Peralta Community College District.

Part One of this handbook covers the evaluation of tenure track faculty under Board Policy 3.30 and procedures implementing Board Policy 3.30 (as revised and approved by the Board of Trustees June 13, 2000).

Part Two relates to the evaluation of part-time faculty. The procedures for evaluating part-time faculty as well as tenured faculty were streamlined in a Side Agreement signed February 2, 2009; then further revised in Spring and Fall 2011, and fully approved in a Side Agreement signed December 19, 2011. The procedures herein are those currently in use for evaluating part-time faculty (including FDIP Interns).

Part Three relates to the evaluation of tenured faculty. The procedures for evaluating part-time faculty as well as tenured faculty were streamlined in a Side Agreement signed February 2, 2009; then further revised in Spring and Fall 2011, and fully approved in a Side Agreement signed December 12, 2011. The procedures herein are those currently in use for evaluating tenured faculty (including FDIP Interns).

Forms and Timelines for Tenure Review/Faculty Evaluations: Please see Appendix A.

B. PURPOSE

Peralta Community College District's tenure review is a four-year process to assure excellence in all aspects of the academic enterprise. The evaluation criteria are derived from those academic qualities, skills and attitudes of professional behavior which constitute excellence. The tenure review system is founded upon the following principles:

- a. recognition and acknowledgement of good performance;
- b. enhancement of satisfactory performance;
- c. continual development of faculty who are performing satisfactorily to further their own growth;
- d. improvement of performance;
- e. promotion of professionalism.

The faculty has the professional responsibility to play a central role in evaluating their peers. Only through the mutual effort of faculty and administration can the goal of promoting quality education be achieved. Adherence to this policy assures that only highly qualified professional staff will be recommended for tenure to the Board of Trustees of the Peralta Community College District.

C. STATEMENT OF FACULTY EXCELLENCE

The basis for review of probationary faculty is composed of four categories collectively containing 30 criteria for assessing performance: knowledge base; application of knowledge base; motivation and interpersonal skills; and professional responsibilities.

The faculty and the administration of the Peralta Community College District affirm the following definition of teaching excellence.

a. Knowledge Base

Excellent faculty members of the Peralta Community College District, whether classroom teachers, librarians, counselors, health services coordinators or those serving in another capacity:

- 1) Are knowledgeable about their work areas and disciplines.
- 2) Are knowledgeable about how students learn.
- 3) Are current in their field.
- 4) Provide perspectives that include a respect for diverse views.
- 5) Do their work in a well-prepared and well-organized manner.

b. Application of Knowledge Base

Excellent faculty members of Peralta Community College District, whether classroom teachers, librarians, counselors, health services coordinators or those serving in another capacity:

- 1) Make the material intelligible, interesting, and relevant to the students.
- 2) Continually assess the teaching-learning process and modify strategies as necessary to retain student interest, stimulate independent thinking, and encourage students to be analytical.
- 3) Use clear, explicit criteria, relevant to the subject matter, to evaluate students' work fairly and equitably to ascertain effective learning of the material presented.
- 4) In addition, excellent librarian faculty members of the Peralta Community College District:
 - a) Provide reference services and library instruction that are appropriate to the needs of students, faculty and staff; possess thorough, up-to-date, working knowledge of reference materials and resources, service practices, and instructional techniques.
 - b). Seek evaluative feedback from students, faculty, and staff regarding the contribution of the library to their information needs and to students' classroom performance.
 - c). Regularly evaluate the breadth, composition, and organization of the library collection, and the array of services offered to the campus community, to identify and implement improvements wherever possible.

c. Motivation and Interpersonal Skills

Excellent faculty members of Peralta Community College District, whether classroom teachers, librarians, counselors, health services coordinators or those serving in another capacity.

- 1) Are enthusiastic about their work.
- 2) Are committed to education as a profession.
- 3) Set challenging performance goals for students.
- 4) Project a positive attitude about students' ability to learn.
- 5) Treat students with respect and recognize they operate in a broader perspective beyond the classroom.
- 6) Respect diverse talents and accommodate cultural and individual differences.
- 7) Are available to students.
- 8) Listen attentively to what students say.
- 9) Are responsive to student needs.
- 10) Are fair in their evaluation of student progress.

- 11) Present ideas clearly.
- 12) Create a climate that is conducive to learning.

d. Professional Responsibilities

Excellent faculty members of Peralta Community College District, whether classroom teachers, librarians, counselors, health services coordinators or those serving in another capacity:

- 1) Display behavior consistent with professional ethics; listed in the AAUP Code of Ethics.
- 2) Work collaboratively with colleagues by participating in a variety of academic projects, for example, attend discipline meetings, and participate on departmental and District committees and projects.
- 3) Keep abreast of changing knowledge base of their discipline/program and develop curriculum to keep programs current.
- 4) Participate in non-classroom responsibilities, including attendance at discipline, department, division, college and District meetings, and governance committees and activities; understand that service on college and District committees, including those for hiring and evaluation, is an obligation of every faculty member.
- 5) Maintain and expand their knowledge and skills in subject matter appropriate to their professional area.
- 6) Adhere to approved course outlines, goals, and objectives.
- 7) Be aware that the District expressly forbids sexual harassment of its students and employees by faculty, administrators, supervisors, staff, students or members of the general public. If an allegation of sexual harassment is substantiated, a violation of this rule may lead to personnel disciplinary actions including a letter of reprimand, suspension, or termination of employment in accordance with the California Ed. Code. In addition to the common criteria stated above, responsibilities specific to the professional area of the faculty member are:

Instructors

At the first meeting of a course, instructors shall: distribute a syllabus to students describing course content, the times and places where office hours are held, the grading standards by which the work of students shall be evaluated, and other relevant information; it is especially important that students be made aware of exactly what is required of them in order to succeed in the course.

Counselors

Counselors shall:

- 1. clearly state the objectives of the counseling interview;
- 2. continually update referral resources for students; and
- 3. assume appropriate responsibility for the matriculation processes defined by the assignment.

Librarians

Librarians shall:

- 1. perform those duties and assume those responsibilities of the area to which they are assigned; and
- 2. be available for consultation with faculty, students, co-workers, managers, and others in need of their assistance.

Health Services Coordinators

Health Services Coordinators shall:

- 1. be knowledgeable of current methods of health care and disease prevention;
- 2. continually update community health resources for students; and
- 3. be knowledgeable and possess skill in assessing emergency situations, giving first aid, CPR, and other appropriate nursing care.

Statutory Basis: Education Code Sections 87660, 87661, 87662, 87663, 87664

Revisions approved by the Board of Trustees September 28, 1993; June 27, 1995; and June 13, 2000

PERALTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT	FACULTY EVALUATION POLICIES & PROCEDU				
PART ONE: Tenure Track F	aculty Evaluation Policy				

PART ONE: TENURE TRACK FACULTY EVALUATION POLICY

A. INTRODUCTION TO TENURE TRACK EVALUATIONS

The period during which prospective members of the permanent Peralta Community College District faculty are reviewed for tenure is best understood as a continuation of our District's search and selection processes. Indeed, the recommendation we make to the Board of Trustees to grant tenure is a more important recommendation than the initial decision to hire. When tenure is granted, the faculty member becomes a permanent part of our community. Thus, the review period for tenure becomes that crucial interval within which we create the future of our colleges, we limit or expand their vision of that future, and we enhance or diminish the quality of the educational opportunity that our enormously diverse students are provided when they enter our doors.

Peralta's approach to this period is based on the premise that the tenure recommendation is best formed by a partnership of faculty and administrative colleagues, and students through the student evaluation process, a partnership in which the perceptions of each inform the others.

The Tenure Review portion of this Handbook has been developed jointly by the Academic Senate, the Peralta Federation of Teachers, faculty and administration to provide the framework for tenure candidates to follow and within which the Tenure Review Committees (TRCs) can perform the crucial task of evaluating a candidate for permanent status on our faculty. As you work with these guidelines, please keep in mind the following:

- 1. The timelines are intended to be a guide to the tasks that need to be performed. They provide a recommended schedule for accomplishing those tasks. Committees may decide to complete the various steps of the process somewhat earlier than the timelines provide, and special circumstances may necessitate later schedule. The timelines established in the handbook are an effort to allow committee members to meet with a candidate, conduct evaluations, identify areas that may need improvement, schedule further meetings if necessary, meet to prepare their report, and present their report to the College Tenure Review Certification Committee, the Vice President and the College President in a timely manner. The President must then make his or her recommendation to the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs, who makes his or her recommendation to the Chancellor, who makes his or her recommendation to the Board of Trustees, who makes the final decision regarding tenure, termination or continuation of service by March 15th in accordance with provisions of Ed. Code section 87610.
- 2. While these timelines are not meant to be understood or interpreted as rigid and absolute, they are essential to a fair, professional, and objectively administered process. The timelines are important to the overall process, but they are intended neither to be traps for candidates or committee members nor technicalities by which the entire process can be invalidated. Non-prejudicial procedural errors shall not serve to invalidate the recommendation of the TRC/Evaluation Committee or the College President or the action of the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs, the Chancellor or the Board of Trustees.

B. PARTICIPANTS: THEIR RESPONSIBILITIES AND RIGHTS

1. TENURE REVIEW COMMITTEE

- a. Tenure Review Committee (TRC) shall be established for each probationary tenure-track faculty member (hereafter referred to as the "candidate"). The TRC committee: shall be established at the same time as the formation of the hiring committee; notified in writing of their selection; and confirmed by the date of hire.
- b. The TRC shall be composed of four members, for at least years one and two of the probationary period:
 - 1) A tenured faculty member serving on the hiring committee from the discipline, selected by the chair of the hiring committee. If a designee from the discipline is not available, a tenured faculty member from a closely related discipline may be selected. Should a replacement for this TRC member be required later in the tenure process, the President of the College Academic Senate shall appoint the replacement, using the criteria above.
 - 2) An additional tenured faculty member from the discipline selected by the President of the College Academic Senate in consultation with the department or discipline of the candidate; if a designee from the discipline is not available, a tenured faculty member from a closely related discipline may be selected. If a faculty member with necessary expertise is not available at the candidate's college site, a tenured faculty member from another Peralta college may be selected.
 - 3) One tenured faculty member designated by the College President, to assure that no Tenure Review Committee shall consist of all men or all women or be all the same ethnicity. In cases where this is not possible, committee composition must be approved by the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources, the DAS President and the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs.
 - 4) The fourth member of the TRC shall be the Dean or the immediate supervisor of the candidate. The Dean shall vote only in case of a tie vote of the TRC faculty members.
 - 5) Only one member of any TRC may be a retired tenured faculty member.
 - 6) Faculty are limited to chairing four TRCs and to serving on a maximum of five TRCs during an academic year.
- c. The TRC shall have the initial responsibility for determining whether a candidate meets or exceeds the standard for a tenured Peralta faculty member. It serves as the guiding group in the evaluation process which culminates in the tenure decision. The TRC makes its recommendations to the President of the College.
- d. All TRC members are expected to attend all TRC meetings and conferences, but the process will not be invalidated and is not grievable if all members are not able to attend all meetings.
- e. Responsibilities of the TRC Faculty Members
 - 1) To carry out the evaluation process according to the Code of Ethics (*Part One, Section B, 6.*
 - 2) To complete administration of classroom observations.
 - 3) To expedite the student evaluation process.
 - 4) To provide consultation with the candidate to give objective observation and plans for improving practice.
 - 5) To write objective observations and summary statements.
 - 6) To complete the required tenure review work on time.

f. Responsibilities of the TRC Chair

- 1) To be knowledgeable about the tenure review process and responsibility.
- 2) To provide leadership to develop, and be responsible for the preparation of, the Evaluation Plan after consultation with the candidate and the other TRC members.
- 3) To organize and carry out the TRC meeting schedule.
- 4) To schedule classroom observations.
- 5) To assure confidentiality of the TRC's work.
- 6) To assure that all required documents are written on the approved District forms and are on file in the Vice President's office on time. (See "Timelines" in Appendices A and B.)
- 7) To see that the timelines are met to ensure that the recommendation is made to the College President by the required date.

2. DEAN / ADMINISTRATIVE SUPERVISOR--RESPONSIBILITIES

- a. Establishment of the TRC, in accordance with the TRC composition guidelines (*set forth in Part One, Section B, 1 above*), is the responsibility of the Dean (or the immediate administrative supervisor of the candidate). Faculty selected to serve on the TRC shall be notified in writing of their selection.
- b. The Dean shall call the first meeting of the TRC of the first year, at which meeting a faculty member shall be elected chair. The chair schedules all subsequent meetings. The TRC meetings shall be scheduled at mutually agreeable times.
- c. During the first two semesters, the candidate's teaching schedule and class assignments shall be arranged by the Dean in consultation with the TRC Chair. It is the intent of this policy that the teaching assignments during the first two semesters allow the candidate sufficient preparation time for a fair and reasonable evaluation. The candidate may not grieve this teaching schedule.
- d. To serve as a regular member of the TRC and to keep the TRC membership stable. Should faculty members be unable to continue to serve due to illness, leaves, etc., the Dean shall work with the Faculty Academic Senate President to reconstitute the TRC and keep the work on target.
- e. To meet regularly with the College Tenure Facilitator regarding the status of the TRCs in their area and to ensure that the standards used in all evaluations and portfolio documents are in compliance with the Statement of Faculty Excellence (*see "Introduction, Section C" above*). Any documents based on rumors or hearsay shall not be included in the portfolio and may not be used at all in the tenure review process.
- f. To immediately inform the college Vice President of Instruction and the College Tenure Facilitator if they note any problems in compliance with timelines, guidelines or in any other tenure review areas, and work with the Vice President and College President to resolve such problems. If a complex problem cannot be solved at the college level, the Vice President of Instruction shall request a consultation meeting with the Faculty Academic Senate President, PFT President, and the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs.
- g. At the beginning of the Spring semester, the Vice President of Instruction and the Faculty Academic Senate President serving as the Certification Committee, shall review the portfolios and certify whether the tenure review process has been followed for each candidate. If they cannot so certify or the portfolio for any candidate is not complete, they shall submit a written explanation to the College President. In the event that they are not satisfied that the tenure review process is being followed, they shall request corrective action on the part of the TRC.

- h. In the rare case in which a TRC does not meet the requirement to complete the portfolio by January 31st, the Dean and Vice President of Instruction shall use the materials present in the portfolio, and, in consultation with the College Tenure Facilitator, may administer student evaluations and perform classroom observations to assure information needed, to make their tenure recommendation to the College President in a timely basis for recommendation to the Board of Trustees.
- i. The parties agree, as per Ed Code 87776, that sick leave, banked leave, and all other paid leaves, when granted, shall not "be construed as a break in service in the continuity of service required for the classification of the employee as tenure(d)." Time spent on paid leave shall count toward the service percentage set forth below.

The parties agree that a probationary faculty member shall "have completed his or her first contract year if he or she provides service for 75% of the first academic year." This requirement applies only to the first year or tenure track service. Thereafter, the following conditions apply during the year two, three and four for an employee to receive tenure track credit:

- 1) The employee must have an equated load consisting of more than 67% of a full-time load for the academic year; and
- 2) Notwithstanding any compensated leave, the Tenure Review Committee and the District shall have been afforded sufficient time to complete the required evaluations of the employee during the academic year.

3. CANDIDATE FOR TENURE

- a. Rights; The Candidate has the right to:
 - 1) Be informed of the organization and procedures of the tenure review process, including all appeals processes and of the basis on which tenure decisions are made. S/he must be informed of what is expected of her/him during the probationary service period.
 - 2) Be assigned a faculty mentor who shall serve as an independent advisor as needed during the tenure review process.
 - 3) Have any weaknesses perceived by the Tenure Review Committee specifically identified.
 - 4) Have the TRC tenure decisions based only on factors related to performance of the candidate's job.
 - 5) Expect members of the Tenure Review Committee to adhere to the Tenure Review Code of Ethics, and to expect that they will strive to maintain objectivity, and that any decisions regarding tenure do not contravene established principles of academic freedom as defined in the AAUP guidelines.
 - 6) Have tenure decisions which are not based upon criteria which are arbitrary, capricious, or unreasonable.
 - 7) Review and receive copies of all documents developed or received during the Tenure Review process. (The District may charge for actual cost of reproduction.)
 - 8) Take any leave guaranteed to probationary employees under the Ed. Code, the PFT Contract, or other state and federal laws without adversely affecting their tenure process.
 - 9) Challenge the appointment of one faculty member of the TRC.
 - a). The candidate shall give notice of the challenge to the College Academic Senate President and the College Tenure Facilitator within three weeks of the first meeting of the candidate with the TRC, or as soon as substantiated evidence of non-objectivity of a TRC faculty member is shown. The College Academic Senate President shall appoint the replacement faculty member.

- b) The candidate may exercise a challenge during any year of the four-year tenure evaluation process, but only once during the tenure process unless just cause for an additional challenge is shown.
- c) If just cause exists, additional challenge(s) may be heard by the District Academic Senate Ethics Committee along with the College Vice President of Instruction. The committee shall decide by majority vote if just cause exists for an additional challenge.
- d) See Section 7 below: "Replacement of TRC members."
- 10) Consult as necessary with the College Tenure Facilitator about questions or problems which arise.
- b. Responsibilities: The Candidate is required to:
 - 1) Attend all orientation sessions, as well as all meetings and conferences scheduled with the Tenure Review Committee.
 - 2) Participate fully in the development of the Evaluation Plan
 - 3) Assemble materials for the portfolio including submitting materials used in classes, self-evaluations as called for in the Tenure Review Process, and other materials relevant to the tenure decision.
 - 4) Join with the Tenure Review Committee in creating an improvement plan to address any identified weaknesses, and to participate in the activities agreed upon in the plan. The candidate is required to cooperate with the TRC in the implementation of any improvement plan.
 - 5) Maintain a professional and collegial relationship with the members of the Tenure Review Committee.

4. COLLEGE TENURE FACILITATOR

- a. A College Tenure Facilitator shall be jointly appointed by the PFT Representatives (with both PFT Representatives sharing one vote), the College Faculty Senate President, and the Vice President of Instruction, by majority vote. Qualifications for College Tenure Facilitator will preferably include experience in implementing and applying written regulations and procedures.
- b. College Tenure Facilitator will serve for a period of one year and can be reappointed for three additional one-year terms. The College Tenure Facilitator cannot serve for more than four consecutive years.
- c. The following formula shall be used to determine facilitator release time at each college:

 1)
 - 2) Double the number of first year tenure review committees at the college as of the first day on instruction in the Fall semester. Add to that the number of 2nd, 3rd, and 4th year TRCs at the college, as of the first day of instruction in the Fall semester.
 - 3) Multiply the total in "1)"(above) by 0.0115. This number, rounded to the nearest 0.1 FTEF, shall be the facilitator release at the college, unless the number is below 0.2 FTE. If the number is below 0.2 FTE, the facilitator shall receive 0.2 FTE release time
 - 4) Either side may reopen this section of the agreement if there is a significant change in the expected workload of this position.
- d. Responsibilities of the College Tenure Facilitators: The College Tenure Facilitators shall be responsible for:
 - 1) Training TRC members to ensure that they are knowledgeable about the tenure review process including techniques and appropriate criteria for evaluating faculty.
 - 2) Monitoring the TRC's implementation of the tenure review process. Such monitoring shall include a meeting each term with each TRC, the candidate's peer advisor, and

the college Vice President of Instruction in order to review the TRC's activities including whether recognized standards are being applied in the evaluation process, and whether the TRC is following the tenure review process, procedures and timetables.

- 3) Meeting at least once each term with the candidate to assure that any concerns about the TRC or the tenure review process are addressed.
- 4) Reviewing each tenure track portfolio every two weeks to check on compliance with Tenure Procedure guidelines, timelines, and the Evaluation (or Improvement) Plan.
- 5) Checking that the standards used in all portfolio documents are in compliance with the Statement of Faculty Excellence (*see Introduction, Section C above*). Any documents containing allegations based on rumors or hearsay will not be allowed in the portfolio and may not be used at all in the Tenure process.
- 6) Immediately informing the Dean and the College Vice President of Instruction if they note any problems with compliance with timelines, guidelines or other areas in any tenure review, and work with the Vice President to resolve such problems.
- 7) There shall be monthly meetings between the College Tenure Facilitators, the Vice Presidents, and the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs to review the portfolios and to identify problems and develop plans of action. The monthly meetings shall be scheduled at the beginning of the academic year. The President of the District Academic Senate (or designee) and the President of the Peralta Federation of Teachers (PFT) (or designee) may attend these meetings.

5. COMPENSATION FOR THE TENURE REVIEW COMMITTEE

a. TRC Stipends/Compensation.

TRC Chairs shall receive a stipend of \$600 per full academic year, and other faculty TRC members shall receive a stipend of \$500 per full academic year. All TRC stipends are paid at the end of the academic year, after the College Tenure Facilitator has reviewed the portfolio and verified that all work has been completed. Stipends for those serving less than a full academic year will be prorated for the months actually served.

The Tenure Facilitator will validate the work of each TRC member to the Office of Vice Chancellor, Academic Affairs, which is responsible for seeing that the TRC stipends are paid.

b. If a faculty member is chosen from another Peralta College, the faculty member may be compensated for mileage as per the PFT contract.

6. CODE OF ETHICS FOR MEMBERS OF THE TENURE REVIEW COMMITTEE TRC Members shall:

- a. Read all tenure review materials and follow all guidelines, timetables and procedures.
- b. Be as objective as possible in the evaluations when personally observing classroom performance. Judgments shall not be based on rumor or hearsay.
- c. Be constructive in their criticism, pointing out specific areas of weakness and recommending a plan for correcting those weaknesses within a reasonable time frame.
- d. Take care to evaluate the candidate on professional conduct and ability to teach rather than personal characteristics unrelated to job performance, such as general lifestyle, religious beliefs, sexual preferences, political affiliations, and social customs.
- e. Recognize that the candidate may have a different philosophy of education and teaching style than theirs. The main concern should be the effectiveness of the candidate in the classroom.
- f. Disqualify themselves if they believe they are prejudiced toward a candidate.

- g. Decline to serve on the TRC for a candidate if they know that relatives or close friends have successfully or unsuccessfully applied for the position held by the candidate.
- h. Respect the confidentiality of the tenure process, with evaluations and the views of members regarded as private information.

7. REPLACEMENT OF TRC MEMBERS

- a. If a faculty member of the TRC is challenged, becomes unable to perform his/her responsibilities due to illness or injury, becomes an administrator, takes a leave, resigns, retires (and becomes the second retired TRC faculty member), or must be replaced for any other reason, a replacement shall be designated by the College Academic Senate President.
- b. At the end of the second year of probationary status, if the prior years' overall performance ratings of the candidate have been "Satisfactory" or "Superior", the TRC may determine to proceed with two faculty members and the Dean in probationary years three and four. In choosing the two continuing faculty members on such committees, the affirmative action guideline in Part One, Section B, 1 shall apply, and all three faculty members on the TRC must agree on the choice. Regarding divisions of the TRCs with only two faculty members, if the faculty members on the TRC do not reach consensus, the Dean may vote in case of a tie vote.
- c. A faculty member of a TRC may be removed if they are not performing their duties satisfactorily or in a timely manner. Such removal must be approved by a majority of the Faculty Senate President, the College President, and a designated PFT college representative. Such removal is not grievable. Anyone involved (Tenure Track Candidate, TRC Chair, TRC member, Administrator on TRC, or Tenure Facilitator) can begin the process to remove a TRC member by informing the Tenure Facilitator in writing. The College Tenure Facilitator should be the one who calls together the meeting to decide removal. If a TRC member is removed, a replacement shall be designated by the President of the College Academic Senate.
- d. If a candidate files a grievance or appeal and there is a finding that the TRC has exceeded its authority or acted with prejudice towards the candidate, the College President may remove committee members as part of a resolution of the grievance, provided such resolution is agreed to by the candidate and the PFT Grievance Officer.

8. ADMINISTRATIVE OVERSIGHT RESPONSIBILITY/IMPLEMENTATION

- a. The Vice Presidents and the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs shall provide on-going oversight, orientation and consultation as needed to support consistency and improvements in the evaluation process across the colleges. This oversight responsibility shall include:
 - 1) Providing in-service training for new Deans and TRC chairs to ensure that they are knowledgeable about the tenure review process, in cooperation with the College Tenure Facilitators.
 - 2) Responsibility for monitoring the TRC's implementation of the tenure review process at all college sites.
 - 3) Annual evaluation of process and recommendations for change, in consultation with the PFT, regarding ongoing improvement of practice.
 - 4) Institutional support for the candidate: Institutional support is defined as support from the College or District, or both, and shall include, but not be limited to, appropriate and adequate tenure review orientation.
 - 5) If allegations of a procedural violation are presented to the College President or designee or to the Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs or designee, an investigation shall be conducted to determine the accuracy of the allegation. If the College

President or the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs concludes that a violation of tenure track review procedures has occurred, the College President or the Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs shall have the authority to require that one or several parts of the evaluation procedure be redone. In addition, the College President or Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs may initiate the removal procedures as provided in Part One, Section B, 7.of this Faculty Evaluation Handbook.

b. The Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs and the College Vice Presidents shall be responsible for ensuring that a tenure review orientation is provided each academic year, in cooperation with the College Tenure Facilitators. New Deans, new TRC chairs and members, and new candidates are required to attend said orientation. The tenure review orientation shall include the purpose of evaluation and tenure review activities, the procedures and forms employed, and the timelines required. The orientation shall be one component of the staff development program for new faculty.

9. FACULTY MENTORS

- a. The College and/or department/discipline shall establish a pool of faculty volunteers who agree to serve as unpaid Faculty Mentors to assist new faculty members.
- b. The candidate may choose to have a Faculty Mentor but has the option to decline.
- c. If desired, the Dean shall appoint the Faculty Mentor from said pool or from suggestions by others, including the probationary faculty member.
- d. The Faculty Mentor is available to provide assistance to the candidate in such areas as:
 - 1) styles and strategies of teaching;
 - 2) theories and styles of student learning;
 - 3) multi-cultural issues related to student learning and teaching strategies;
 - 4) district and college policies and procedures;
 - 5) workshops, conferences, courses and classes;
 - 6) introductions to colleagues;
 - 7) development of the candidate's tenure portfolio;
 - 8) help with student problems.
- e. The Faculty Mentor may not serve on the candidate's TRC.

10. LONG TERM SUBSTITUTES

A long-term substitute who teaches a full academic year and is hired under contract the following academic year will be considered in their second probationary year (Ed Code 87478). In this or any case where a candidate has not been or will not be evaluated in each of four years of probationary status, additional evaluations should be done to make up for this lack of a full four-year evaluation process.

C. TENURE REVIEW PROCESS AND APPEALS

1. THE TENURE REVIEW EVALUATION PORTFOLIO

To support the stated goals of the evaluation system, each Tenure Review Committee, in conjunction with their candidate, will establish and develop an evaluation portfolio. This portfolio will serve as the evidentiary base for all evaluation and tenure decisions. All components of the evaluation process discussed below will be gathered and placed in the portfolio.

The portfolio shall be established at the first meeting of the TRC and the candidate.

The portfolio shall be held confidential in a locked cabinet in the college Vice President of Instruction's Office and shall be available for viewing to members of the TRC and other authorized personnel as needed.

The Vice President of Instruction shall establish reasonable procedures for monitoring and protecting the integrity of the portfolio. The portfolios are to remain in the office of the Vice President of Instruction, except for temporary removal for TRC conferences with the candidate, or for review by the College Tenure Facilitator, TRC chair, Vice President, College President or Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs. A log shall be kept by the Vice President's staff in noting temporary removal of the portfolios by authorized persons.

The portfolio shall be available, with reasonable notice, for the candidate to review, as well as for review by the TRC members. In the event of a grievance or appeal, the portfolio shall also be available for viewing by the candidate's authorized representative of the PFT. Copies of documents shall be provided at cost upon request at any time to the candidate or TRC members. Copies should be marked as such and should be kept confidential.

All evaluations should be placed in the files immediately after they are done. TRC members, including Administrators and TRC Chairs, should not hold onto evaluations or TR documents, but make sure they are put in the files immediately.

The portfolio shall be reviewed by the TRC with the candidate in accordance with established timelines.

Required elements of the portfolio:

- 1) Evaluation Plan
- 2) Transcriptions and tabulations of Student Evaluation Forms
- 3) Classroom Observations by TRC Members
- 4) Peer Evaluation Forms
- 5) Administrative Evaluation Forms
- 6) Self-Evaluation Forms
- 7) Non-Classroom Observation Forms (optional)
- 8) Tenure Review Conference Report Forms
- 9) Improvement Plan (if necessary)
- 10) Other documentary evidence
- 11) Recommendation Reports as described below.

a. Evaluation Plan (EP) (See Appendix H)

- 1) The Evaluation Plan (EP) -- a written schedule of committee meetings, activities and visitations -- shall be jointly developed by the TRC and the candidate during the first three weeks of the candidate's first year.
- 2) The EP shall be updated each year by mutual agreement between the TRC and the candidate.
- 3) The EP shall incorporate a plan to measure the four evaluation criteria (*see Introduction, C.*) which are the foundation of this evaluation process as they apply to the candidate's particular job responsibilities, and the EP shall contain timelines for the peer, student, administrative and self-evaluations, as well as a timeline for review of the candidate's portfolio.
- 4) The EP must be approved by the College Vice President of Instruction.

b. Student Evaluations

- 1) The Tenure Review Committee shall designate members of the Committee to administer and collect student evaluations. Different members of the Committee may be designated for different classes, and different members of the Committee may be designated for the same class during different evaluation cycles (mid-term, end of term, etc.) if necessary. Student evaluations are not to be conducted by an administrator.
- 2) The candidate for tenure should be given, if possible, at least one week's notice that a member of the TRC will attend a class session in order to administer and collect student evaluations.
- 3) The TRC member administering the evaluations will come to the class at least ten minutes before it ends. The candidate will leave the room. The TRC member will explain that student evaluations are being collected for the purpose of improving instruction at the college. Students will be assured of the anonymity of their responses, including that original copies of any written comments will be transcribed and presented to the instructor only in compiled form and without identification of the student evaluator. The TRC member shall collect the student responses and dismiss the class.
- 4) The Student Evaluation forms along with an appropriate cover sheet shall be delivered immediately following the evaluation to the office of the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs for processing (see Part One, Section C.3). (When the colleges obtain appropriate equipment, the processing of student evaluations may be shifted to the college Vice President of Instruction's office for expediency of return to the TRCs.)
- 5) Short answer ratings shall be scored and averaged. A summary sheet shall be prepared for each class in which student evaluations were administered. All written comments will be transcribed in a list and attached to this same form which shall be returned to the TRC Chair to be placed in the portfolio.
- 6) Original student evaluations shall be returned to and retained by the Office of Instruction until tenure is attained or until one year after all appeals, grievances or challenges to the tenure decision are final, whichever is later.
- 7) As soon as possible following the administration and processing of student evaluations, the TRC shall meet with the candidate to discuss the student evaluations, and to update the Evaluation Plan in light of the student responses, as well as any other evaluation data gathered by the Committee.
- 8) The frequency of student evaluations shall be determined by the committee, but a minimum of three student evaluations during each of the first two semesters of the first full academic year, is required. For mid-year hires, these evaluations may begin the Spring semester preceding the first full academic year. If practical, each class taught by the candidate shall be given a student evaluation during the first two semesters.
- 9) Student evaluations shall be administered in accordance with the timetable specified in the Tenure Review process.
- 10) The form used for student evaluations shall be the approved District form.
- 11) TRC members may perform a Classroom Observation and distribute student evaluations during the same class period if desired.
- 12) See Part One, Section C.3 of this Handbook regarding on-line faculty evaluations.

c. Classroom Observations by TRC Members

1) Classroom observations by TRC members shall be conducted by members of the TRC in accordance with the timelines specified in the tenure review process. The

frequency of classroom observations shall be determined by the TRC, as long as the timelines are generally followed. If practical, classroom observations shall be done in each class taught by the candidate during the first two semesters. The faculty members of the TRC shall each conduct classroom observations, and the Dean shall conduct at least one classroom observation.

- 2) Whenever possible, classroom observations shall be scheduled with at least one week advance notice to the candidate.
- 3) Whenever possible, the evaluator shall meet with the candidate in a pre-evaluation conference prior to the actual observation. The evaluator may obtain appropriate materials and/or information regarding course syllabi, outlines, objectives of the observed session and current examinations or quizzes. In the case of counselors, librarians, nursing staff, DSPS Coordinators, and Learning Disability Specialists, the evaluator may obtain materials used in the course of job performance.
- 4) The observer shall observe for a reasonable amount of time to obtain full understanding of job performance:
 - a) for classroom instructors -- at least one classroom or lab hour and preferably one full class period;
 - b) for counselors, librarians, and health services coordinators -- a minimum of one hour.
- 5) A post-evaluation conference shall be scheduled between the evaluator and candidate in accordance with the timeline specified in the Tenure Review Policy. At that conference, the observed performance shall be discussed in terms of the ratings given. If applicable, the candidate and the TRC may create a plan for improvement (*see Part One, Section C., 1. i. for Improvement Plan*).
- 6) The form used for Classroom Observation shall be the approved District form.

d. Peer Evaluations

- 1) Peer Evaluations/Faculty Input from the Discipline and Input from Outside the Discipline.
- 2) Peer Evaluations/input from the discipline will be invited on a voluntary basis from faculty teaching in the discipline at the college by the Dean and submitted to the TRC along with the Administrative Evaluation Form. The form used for input from faculty in the discipline shall be the approved District form.
- 3) The Faculty Mentor may use this form for input on the candidate which will become part of the candidate's portfolio.
- 4) If relevant, input from outside the discipline may be solicited by the candidate or members of the TRC. The form used shall be the approved District form.
- 5) All input from faculty must reflect the criteria set forth in the Statement of Faculty Excellence (*Introduction, Section C, above*). The Dean shall be responsible for assuring that nothing in the portfolio reflects allegations based on rumors or hearsay.

e. Administrative Evaluations

- 1) In accordance with the timeline specified in the Tenure Review Policy, and as part of their duties as a member of the TRC, the Dean will complete the Administrative Evaluation form.
- 2) The administrator shall also perform at least one classroom or other (e.g., counselor, librarian, health services coordinators) observation as a member of the TRC. The administrator completes this classroom or other (e.g., counselor, librarian, health services coordinators) observation every Fall semester of all four years the candidate is under tenure review.

3) The College President may elect not to renew first and second year contracts for reasons other than non-performance; such as adjustment of a program due to lack of students, and fiscal and curricular needs.

f. Self-Evaluations

- 1) Near the end of each term, the candidate shall provide the TRC with a written self-evaluation documenting her/his own perception of how s/he has satisfied the criteria for evaluation described in Introduction, Section C. The form used for the candidate's self-evaluation shall be the approved District form.
- 2) The candidate is encouraged to share materials and activities not part of the formal evaluation process, especially those undertaken during times when the faculty member is not being evaluated.

g. Non-Classroom Observation Form (Optional)

- 1) This form may be used for input by persons having personally observed the candidate in non-classroom settings, i.e., persons with direct knowledge, not hearsay or rumor.
- 2) The information submitted must be relevant to the Statement of Faculty Excellence (*Introduction, Section C*).

h. Tenure Review Conferences/Reports

- 1) The TRC and the candidate shall meet according to the schedule specified in the tenure review process timeline (see Appendix A) in order to discuss all aspects of the evaluation process. Additional conferences may be held.
- 2) The Chair of the TRC shall schedule such meetings at mutually agreeable times.
- 3) At these conferences, the TRC should:
 - a) discuss student, peer and administrative evaluations
 - b) develop any necessary improvement plan
 - c) review progress on any previously developed improvement plan
 - d) develop or update the Evaluation Plan if necessary.
- 4) All members of the TRC should participate in all tenure review conferences and all members of the TRC must be present when recommendations are made (*see Part One, Section C, 1. h*).
- 5) The Chair of the TRC shall complete a Tenure Review Conference Report Form, and the members of the TRC and the candidate shall sign the Form to indicate that they have read it. Any member of the TRC or the candidate may append written comments to the Tenure Review Conference Report Form if they do not feel it reflects shared perceptions. The Tenure Review Conference Report Form, as well as any such written comments, shall be included in the faculty evaluation portfolio.

i. Improvement Plan

- 1) If the TRC determines that a candidate is "below standards" or "unsatisfactory" in any portion of the Evaluation Plan (EP), the TRC must develop a specific plan for improvement.
- 2) The improvement plan (IP) shall be written and shall include specific recommendations and timetables for action. It shall also include a plan for the TRC to monitor the candidate's progress in implementing the improvement plan. The improvement plan shall conform to the Code of Ethics for members of the TRC (*Part One, Section B, 6.*) of this policy. The improvement plan must include student evaluations in each class taught by the candidate.
- 3) The improvement plan must be approved by a majority of the TRC.

- 4) The improvement plan must be presented to the candidate and Vice President at least six instructional weeks prior to any meeting at which the TRC makes a recommendation for termination. While the candidate may appeal the improvement plan (*Part One, Section C, 4.*), this six-week timeframe will remain in effect unless the candidate wins his/her appeal.
- 5) After a minimum of six instructional weeks of working towards the goals of the improvement plan, the TRC may determine that the candidate's progress in implementing the specific improvement plan is unsatisfactory and may recommend termination in accordance with Ed. Code section 87610 (March 15th notification deadline).
- 6) See template below.

Date: Candidate's Name: TRC Members:

Area of Improvement*	Recommendation	Timeline	TRC check-in date(s)	Actions taken by candidate	Actions taken by TRC member(s)	TRC feedback	Candidate response to feedback	Recommendations for next step (s)
- 1000 -								

TRC Improvement Plan Template* (see II. A. 9 in Handbook)

TRCs are not required to use this specific template, as long as they follow the policies/procedures in the Handbook.

Plan should be updated each semester for as long as it is in effect.

- *Align to Standards from Statement of Faculty Excellence (pp. 6-8, Faculty Evaluations Policies & Procedures Handbook, Part One (Tenure-Track Faculty):
- 1. Knowledge Base
- 2. Application of Knowledge Base
- 3. Motivation and Interpersonal Skills
- 4. Professional Responsibilities

^{*}This template represents a suggested way to create and track an improvement plan.

j. Other Documentation

- 1) Other documents should be included in the portfolio including representative samples of the candidate's handouts, exams, assignments, syllabi, and reading materials.
- 2) If the TRC and the candidate have mutually agreed to include additional items to document the objectives of the EP, such documents should be submitted to the TRC at least one week prior to a tenure review conference. (See Part One, Section C, 1. h)
- 3) A joint discussion of such documentation shall be part of the tenure review conference. (See Part One, Section C, 1. h.)

k. Tenure Recommendation/Report(s)

- 1) The TRC shall prepare a report on the candidate's progress rating together with their recommendation (*see Part One, Section C, 2. below*) on the District approved Summary Report Form. Their recommendation shall also be submitted to the Vice President and the College President on the District approved Certification form. The categories of evaluation ratings are:
 - a) "Superior" Performance surpasses requirements; exceeds expectations.
 - b) "Satisfactory" Performance meets all standards of excellence as described in this policy.
 - c) "Below Standards" of Performance does not consistently meet requirements and standards of excellence; marginal.
 - d) "Unsatisfactory" Performance does not meet requirements; ineffective.
- 2) In accordance with the deadline specified in the Tenure Review Policy, or as appropriate, the TRC, by majority vote and by consensus if possible, must make one of the recommendations listed below (Ed. Code sections 87608, 87608.5, 87609). No abstentions shall be permitted.
 - a) Grant Tenure at the end of the four-year probationary period.
 - b) **Continuation of Probationary Status** at the end of year one of the probationary period for one additional year; at the end of year two of the probationary period for two additional years.
 - c) **Termination of Service** by March 15th of the first, second or fourth probationary year.
 - d) After the recommendation is written, the TRC shall meet with the candidate to allow him/her the opportunity to respond to the report and to have the report added to the portfolio before the recommendation is forwarded to the College President.
 - e) If the TRC is unable to agree upon a recommendation by January 31 of the first, second or fourth full contract year, the Vice President shall make a recommendation to the College President based on the material available in the portfolio at that time.

2. TENURE REVIEW OVERSIGHT/RECOMMENDATION CERTIFICATION

a. The TRC shall also submit a completed copy of the Tenure Review Summary Report Form to the Certification Committee composed of the Vice President of Instruction and the Academic Senate President to certify that the TRC has followed the required procedures and timetables and applied the expected standards. In the event that the Certification Committee cannot so certify, the Vice President of Instruction must submit a separate report to the College President detailing their concerns.

- b. The Certification form with the recommendations of the TRC shall be forwarded to the Certification Committee, the Vice President and the College President in accordance with the timeline specified in the Tenure Review Policy.
- c. Should the College President not concur with the recommendation of the Tenure Review Committee he/she shall meet with the Vice President, Dean and the TRC chair to discuss his/her reasons. The Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs shall then review all relevant documentation. A member of the TRC holding a majority view shall have an opportunity, equal to that of the College President, to defend the TRC's recommendation before the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs, who will make a recommendation to the Chancellor.
- d. The College President shall forward his/her recommendation (to grant tenure, continue in probationary status, or terminate services), on the approved District Certification form, to the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs and the candidate in accordance with the timeline specified in the Tenure Review Policy. The Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs shall make a final recommendation report to the Chancellor on all tenure review decisions.
- e. The Chancellor shall forward a final recommendation to grant tenure, continue in probationary status, or terminate services to the Board of Trustees prior to March 15th in accordance with provisions of Education Code Section 87608 & 87610.
- f. The Board of Trustees shall make the final decision regarding tenure, termination or continuation of service by March 15th in accordance with provisions of Education Code Section 87610.

3. ON-LINE EVALUATIONS

- a. In any situation where an instructor can be evaluated in either a classroom setting or online, the method of evaluation shall be determined by mutual agreement of Evaluee and Evaluators.
- b. In the case of online classes:
 - 1) Student evaluations shall be conducted on the Web, using identical questions to those in the currently approved student evaluation form.
 - 2) The Faculty Evaluator and the Evaluee shall make a good faith effort to agree on a Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation plan which will allow the Evaluator to fill out the current Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation form for the on-line class and follow, as best they can, the current evaluation procedures. This shall include a pre-evaluation meeting, an evaluation, and a post-evaluation meeting (which can be the Summary Evaluation Meeting). These meetings may be conducted on-line. The Evaluator will spend at least one hour observing the on-line class, but is not limited to one hour.

4. APPEALS

- a. Appealing Part of the Portfolio.
 - 1) If a candidate for tenure believes that the content of a peer evaluation, administrative evaluation, evaluation plan, improvement plan, or other item in the portfolio has been unfair or in violation of the Tenure Review Committee Code of Ethics, s/he may file a written appeal, within thirty (30) working days after the candidate becomes aware of the conditions upon which the appeal is based, with the College Tenure Review Appeal Committee composed of the Vice President of Instruction, College Academic Senate President and PFT representative.
 - 2) The Vice President of Instruction shall notify the members of the Tenure Review Committee that the candidate has filed an appeal over an item in the portfolio. The

- College Tenure Review Appeal Committee shall attempt to resolve the appeal in an informal way at the college level.
- 3) It shall be the responsibility of the Vice President of Instruction to communicate the findings of the College Tenure Review Appeal Committee to the candidate and to the members of the TRC within one week of reaching their decision. S/he will also assure that the College Tenure Review Appeal Committee's recommendations are implemented.
- 4) If the appeal is not resolved informally at the college level within two weeks, the College Tenure Review Appeal Committee shall meet with the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs to review the appeal. They will be charged with investigating the allegations raised in the appeal and making a recommendation for action. The recommendation may include redoing one or several parts of the evaluation procedure or other appropriate remedial actions. They may also determine that the allegations of unfairness are groundless. The decision of this District appeal group shall be by majority vote. They will make their findings known as soon as is practicable, but no later than thirty (30) days after being formally charged with resolving the appeal.
- b. Appealing Procedural Violations of the Tenure Review Process

 The candidate should attempt to resolve an appeal of violations of the procedures in the tenure review process at the college level through the college Tenure Review Appeal

 Committee as set forth above (see Part One, Section C, 4.). If the appeal is not resolved at the college level, the candidate may file a grievance within thirty (30) days after the candidate becomes aware of the condition upon which the grievance is based. To do so, the candidate shall use the formal grievance procedure as set forth in the current Peralta Federation of Teachers-Peralta Community College District contract. (See Appendix D)

 Non-prejudicial procedural errors shall not serve to invalidate the recommendation of the TRC.
- c. Appealing Denial of Tenure When the Candidate Alleges that the Decision was Unreasonable or Violated, Misinterpreted, or Misapplied District Policies If a candidate alleges that a decision to not grant tenure or not continue in probationary status was unreasonable, or violated, misinterpreted, or misapplied any District policies or procedures, the candidate may appeal the negative tenure decision by filing a grievance using the formal grievance procedure defined in the current Peralta Federation of Teachers-Peralta Community College District contract. (See Appendix D)

d. Reconsideration Procedure

1) In the event that a decision not to grant tenure, or not to be given an additional probationary contract, results in a grievance which is resolved with a recommendation order that said decision requires reconsideration, the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs will form a Tenure Reconsideration Committee of the Vice President, College President and three faculty members, a majority of whom shall be from the discipline and, if possible, from the college. The candidate shall select a member of the committee, the President of the local Academic Senate shall select a member of the committee, and the administrator at the college in charge of the discipline shall select a member of the committee. The candidate may challenge one member of the committee. (That member will be replaced by a new member nominated by the person who made the original nomination.) None of the members of the original Tenure Review Committee may serve on the Tenure Reconsideration Committee. The Tenure Reconsideration Committee must be approved by the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources.

- 2) The Tenure Reconsideration Committee shall review the specific policy provisions or procedures found to have been violated to determine the degree to which such violation was prejudicial in the tenure decision. The Tenure Reconsideration Committee may meet with the candidate to discuss the contents of the portfolio, or interview members of the original Tenure Review Committee, if they deem it useful. The Tenure Reconsideration Committee members may conduct classroom visitations, collect additional student evaluations, and request completion of a self-evaluation form by the candidate if they determine that additional documentation is required.
- 3) The Tenure Reconsideration Committee shall determine whether or not to recommend the granting of tenure or continued probation, or to reaffirm the decision not to grant tenure or continue probation, within ninety (90) days of the formation of the Tenure Reconsideration Committee.

5. RIGHTS OF PFT

The PFT may designate representatives to attend and observe any meetings conducted as part of the Tenure Review process even over objection of candidate.

TIMELINES FOR TENURE REVIEW

The timelines referred to in Appendices A and B are intended to be a guide to the tasks that need to be performed. They provide a recommended schedule for accomplishing those tasks. Tenure Review Committees may decide to complete the various steps of the process somewhat earlier than the timelines provide, and special circumstances may necessitate a later schedule. To provide needed flexibility, the written timelines shall be adhered to within a period of five working days before and five working days after the dates stated in the timeline, absent unavoidable circumstances preventing this adherence.

The timelines below have been established to allow TRC members to evaluate the candidate, identify areas that may need improvement, schedule further evaluations if necessary, meet to prepare their report, and present their report to the College President in time for the President to make his/her recommendation to the Chancellor and to the Board of Trustees.

In the case of a mid-year hire, the TRC is encouraged to begin the evaluation process the candidate's first semester, and all evaluations done that semester will count towards work done the first probationary year. However, the four-year tenure review process is based on academic years and does not formally begin until July 1st following the mid-year candidate's date of hire. The timeline is important to the overall process, but it is not intended to be a technicality by which the entire process can be invalidated. Non-prejudicial procedural errors shall not serve to invalidate the recommendation of the TRC.

If for any reason the TRC fails to perform its duties and complete the required evaluations, the Vice President of Instruction shall be responsible for forwarding a recommendation to the College President based on all documents in the portfolio at the time. (See Part One, Section C, 1., h.)

The appeals process (*Part One, Section C, 4.*) includes provisions which are designed to promptly address inappropriate deviations from the established timeline, to address issues of bias, and to correct any such problems as soon as possible. Every effort should be made to resolve issues within the TRC, at the College level, prior to invoking the appeals procedures.

(See Appendices A and B for Timeline Guidelines and Sample Semester Timelines.)

D. RECOMMENDATIONS FOR NEW FORMS AND CHANGES TO EXISTING FORMS FOR TENURE TRACK FACULTY

- 1. Should any faculty group or administrator recommend the creation of a new form for evaluation or recommend changes in existing forms or student evaluations, such recommendations must be made in writing to the College Vice President of Instruction and the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs who will confer with the other college Vice Presidents of Instruction and the appropriate PFT representative and College Tenure Facilitators.
- 2. If approved by the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs and the appropriate PFT representative, the revised/new forms will be distributed to all Deans and TRC Chairs, and will be used in all subsequent evaluations to which they apply.
- 3. Whenever possible, all forms (other than Scantron Forms) shall be available on disc (or online) to be filled out on a computer. However, the District approved forms cannot be altered in form or substance other than in spacing available for responses. If any evaluation form is found to be altered, it may be removed from the portfolio or be required to be rewritten on the approved District form. Once signed, the originals of all forms shall remain in the portfolio. (Part One, Section C, 1.)

PART TWO: Part-Time Faculty Evaluation Policy

PART TWO: PART-TIME EVALUATIONS POLICY

A. INTRODUCTION TO PART-TIME FACULTY EVALUATIONS

The current procedures for evaluating part-time faculty are the same procedures as those for evaluating tenured faculty, that were streamlined in a Side Agreement signed February 2, 2009, were clarified in negotiations during 2011 and attached to a Side Agreement dated December 19, 2011, and were further clarified during negotiations in 2016. The revised procedures are incorporated into the document, which follows herein, set forth the current procedures for all part-time and tenured faculty evaluations, effective August 2016.

See Appendix E for complete wording of the Part-Time agreement 2017.

Please see the general information in "Introduction to This Handbook," particularly the section on "Statement of Faculty Excellence," for other information relating to the evaluation of part-time faculty.

(Also see the PCCD/Academic Affairs website for approved Part-Time and Tenured Faculty Evaluation Forms Appendix C.)

PURPOSE

Evaluation of faculty is consistent with the Community Colleges' mission of educational excellence as required by Section 87663 of the Education Code (Ed Code). The purpose of the evaluation is to benefit the faculty member through peer review. The primary objective is to evaluate the faculty member's effectiveness in relationship to good teaching; currency in the field; department/discipline responsibilities; and effectiveness of service to students, the departments/disciplines and the college. The evaluation is the joint responsibility of the Administrative Supervisor (referred to herein as Vice President or designee) and the department/discipline faculty. The most positive effects of the evaluation will be obtained at the department/discipline level and accrue to the individual. The evaluation should recognize the accomplishments of faculty, and make recommendations for correcting deficiencies.

B. TENURE REVIEW EVALUATION PORTFOLIO

1. STUDENT EVALUATIONS

The purpose of the Student Evaluations of Instructor (SEI) is to gain from students their opinions of the overall effectiveness of the instructor. Students will be assured of the anonymity of their responses, including that original copies of any written comments will be transcribed and presented to the instructor only in compiled form.

2. SELF-EVALUATION

Using the Instructor Self-Evaluation Form, faculty members are expected to provide evidence of professional competence and teaching effectiveness. The following are general criteria that will be used in the self-evaluation:

- a. Appropriateness of methods in achieving objectives.
- b. Knowledge of current teaching methods, materials, and trends in his/her field of instruction.
- c. Successful strategies to improve student performance and retention.
- d. Preparation and planning of curriculum.

- e. Knowledge of recent advances in the discipline.
- f. Demonstration of continued professional growth.
- g. Reflection on the use of assessment tools to make improvements.

3. FACULTY/CLASSROOM OBSERVATION/EVALUATION

The following are general criteria that will be used in the faculty/classroom observation/evaluation by peers and administrators:

- a. Expertise in subject matter or professional field.
- b. Effectiveness in carrying out duties in instruction.
- c. Effectiveness of communications with students, and if applicable, staff.
- d. Behavior consistent with AAUP Code of Ethics, Title 5 and the Ed. Code.

4. ADMINISTRATIVE EVALUATION

The purpose of the administrative review is to provide the Evaluation Committee with information regarding the faculty member's professional responsibilities in the context of certain administrative criteria. The focus of this evaluation is on the syllabus (including grading policy), timely submission of textbook orders, submission of syllabito the Office of Instruction, responsiveness to communications, professional behavior, holding classes for full class period, participation in professional development activities, and timely submission of grades and census rosters.

C. EVALUATION FREQUENCY

Part-time faculty shall be evaluated within the first year of employment. Whenever possible, this should be done during the first term of employment. Thereafter, evaluation shall be once every six regular semesters, unless a summary rating of "Does not consistently meet requirements" or "Does not meet requirements" is received.

When a part-time faculty member receives a summary rating of "Does not consistently meet requirements" or "Does not meet requirements", an evaluation will take place during the next semester that the faculty member has an assignment. For part-time faculty, the second evaluation will be used to determine eligibility to enter into or remain in the Rehire Preference Pool.

D. RESPONSIBILITIES IN THE EVALUATION

The evaluation of each instructor who is being evaluated shall involve:

1. <u>Vice President or designee – </u>

The responsibility for administering the evaluation system rests with the Vice President or designee. The Vice President or designee who has responsibility for the discipline shall initiate the evaluation procedures, in consensus with the Department Chair, ensuring that the evaluation procedures are followed, timelines are met, classroom visits are held, records are kept, preliminary and summary evaluation meetings are held. The Vice President or designee shall complete the Administrative Evaluation Form. A copy of the evaluation Summary Report Form and the completed Administrative Evaluation shall be given to the faculty Evaluee, the Evaluator, the Department Chair, the Vice President or designee, the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs, and then sent to Human Resources by the end of the semester being evaluated.

2. Faculty Evaluator --

- a. The Department Chair shall choose a single Faculty Evaluator from the Evaluee's discipline (or if necessary a related discipline, as defined by the Board of Governors' list of minimum qualifications) during the first four (4) weeks of the semester. For short-term classes, the Department Chair shall choose a single Faculty Evaluator during the first 25% of course meeting days. The Faculty Evaluator cannot have been evaluated by the Evaluee within the same academic year.
- b. If the Department Chair does not meet the deadline, the Vice President or designee shall choose a single Faculty Evaluator during week five (5) of the semester.
- c. The Vice President or designee and the Department Chair will make a good faith effort to ensure that evaluators of on-line classes have experience in on-line instruction.
- d. The faculty Evaluee may challenge that Evaluator during the two (2) weeks following notification. If the faculty Evaluee challenges the Evaluator, the evaluation will be conducted no later than the following semester, but can be done during the same semester with another evaluator selected via lottery.
- e. The Faculty Evaluator holds the Preliminary Evaluation Meeting, does a Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation, completes the appropriate items on the Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation Report Form, and holds a Summary Evaluation Meeting.
- 3. <u>The Evaluee--</u> The Evaluee is responsible for completing the Instructor Self-Evaluation Form and submitting it to the Evaluator, and attending the Preliminary and Summary Evaluation Meetings.

E. EVALUATION PROCESS CRITERIA AND FORMS

The five (5) forms to be used in evaluations of part-time faculty are:

1. Student Evaluations of Instructors:

The purpose of the Student Evaluations is to gain from students their opinions of the overall effectiveness of the faculty member. Students will be assured of the anonymity of their responses.

2. <u>Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation(s):</u>

There are standard District forms to be completed when conducting a Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation. Please use the form appropriate to the evaluee's assignment. This form can also be completed by the Vice President or designee, if the Vice President or designee does a Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation.

3. Administrative Evaluation:

The Administrative Evaluation addresses the faculty evaluee's overall attention to academic and professional matters as related to the evaluee's assignment. Different forms exist for classroom faculty and non-classroom faculty.

If the Administrative Evaluation is not completed by the Administrator, the chair of the evaluation committee shall send an email (using Peralta email addresses) requesting a completed Administrative Evaluation at least two weeks prior to the summary meeting. A copy of the email requesting the Administrative Evaluation will be submitted in lieu of a completed Administrative Evaluation.

4. <u>Self-Evaluation:</u>

The Self Evaluation is an opportunity for the Evaluee to address all evaluations which have been conducted. In addition, the Evaluee is provided the opportunity to address

his/her professional growth and development. Classroom faculty evaluees shall submit: syllabi, with methods of student assessment, and a listing of assignments. In addition to the Self Evaluation form, the Self-Evaluation may include additional support material. Examples of additional support material for non-classroom faculty evaluees may include workshop agendas and handouts, completed Student Educational Plans, etc. If the Self-Evaluation is not completed by the Evaluee, the chair of the evaluation committee shall send an email (using Peralta email addresses) requesting the completed Self-Evaluation at least two weeks prior to the summary meeting. A copy of the email requesting the Self-Evaluation will be submitted in lieu of a completed Self-Evaluation.

5. Summary Report Form (including overall Rating):

The Summary Report Form provides an overall summary of all evaluations of the Evaluee conducted during the semester. The overall summary evaluation rating is based on a five-point rating system. If a second faculty/classroom observation/evaluation is done by the Vice President or designee, and there is a tie vote, the faculty member will be evaluated again, the next semester that they teach.

- 6. The <u>evaluation rating system</u> for all faculty evaluations shall be:
 - a. Is exemplary
 - b. Surpasses requirements
 - c. Meets all requirements
 - d. Does not consistently meet requirements
 - e. Does not meet requirements

F. SCHEDULING AND ASSIGNING EVALUATIONS

- 1. During first four (4) weeks of the semester, each Department Chair will update the yearlong plan of what will be a 3-year (6-semester) evaluation timeline (schedule) for all part-time in their department/cluster. (The schedule will be updated or revised as needed by the Department Chair during the 4th week of the semester.) If Department Chairs do not meet the deadline, the Vice President or designee will create the first semester of the 3-year evaluation timeline during the 5th week of the semester. At that time, a copy of the schedule shall be sent to the Vice President or designee, the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs, the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources, and the PFT.
- 2. When creating the 3-year evaluation schedule, the Department Chair (or Vice President or designee) shall make a good faith effort to apply the following priority system: Part-time faculty evaluations shall be prioritized as follows:
 - a. New part-time hires.
 - b. In order of seniority by hire date, with most senior faculty first (hire dates shall be provided by the District Human Resources office).
 - c. If evaluated within the last six (6) assigned semesters, the next evaluation shall be six (6) assigned semesters after the last evaluation
- 3. Part-time faculty may evaluate other part-time faculty. All evaluations by part-time faculty (as evaluators) shall be mutually agreed upon by the faculty member, the Vice President or designee, and the Department Chair. All evaluations by a part-time faculty member shall be paid a \$120 stipend. The payment shall be made if a Faculty Evaluator completes his/her responsibility, even if the Administrator and/or Faculty Evaluee do not fulfill his/her responsibilities in the process.

4. Part-time faculty shall have a one-time right, during each three (3) year evaluation cycle, to request another evaluation that must be completed before the end of the following semester. The second evaluation will be the determining evaluation for the Rehire Preference Pool. The Evaluator in such an evaluation shall be chosen by a lottery system.

5. Lottery Pool System

- a. When it is necessary to choose an evaluator by lottery, the lottery process shall be started by the Dean during or before the 6th week of the semester. The Dean shall notify the college PFT co-Chairs, the Academic Senate President, the college Vice President of Instruction and the faculty evaluee for whom the lottery is being held that a lottery pool will be created and a lottery drawing will take place. The Dean shall further notify all parties of the actual lottery drawing at least five (5) business days in advance, so that they may observe the drawing if they choose to do so.
- b. When it is necessary to choose an evaluator by lottery, the College Academic Senate President, one PFT Co-Chair (designated by the PFT Chapter Co-Chairs), and the college Vice President of Instruction shall jointly assign eligible faculty members to a lottery pool consisting of at least four (4) individuals. Faculty in the lottery should be in the same or related disciplines. The lottery pool shall consist of:
 - 1) Contract faculty in the same or related disciplines who have not been assigned three (3) evaluations during that academic year. An evaluator who was "challenged" by that evaluee or an evaluator who did the 'first evaluation' on that evaluee (specified in parts 3B or 3G of January 2009 agreement) shall not be included.
 - 2) Contract faculty in the same or related disciplines who have already been assigned three (3) evaluations during that academic year and have agreed to be included in the lottery pool.
 - 3) Currently employed part-time faculty may also be added to the pool if they agree to be included and if the Dean and the Department Chair both concur
- c. If a part-time faculty member or a contract faculty member already doing three (3) evaluations in the academic year is chosen to do the Lottery evaluation, the faculty member shall be paid a \$120 stipend.

G. EVALUATION PROCESS

- 1. The Vice President or designee contacts the evaluee in order to provide him/her with a copy of the evaluation procedures.
- 2. The Vice President or designee notifies the evaluee of the composition of the Evaluation Committee and offers him/her the opportunity to challenge the choice of the faculty evaluator. If the Vice President or designee wishes to be a voting member of the Evaluation Committee and perform a Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation, the Vice President or designee shall notify the evaluee of his/her participation. This does not preclude the Vice President or designee from performing a faculty evaluation (outside the standard evaluation procedure), provided the Administrator has given the faculty member one week's notice of the visit.
- 3. The faculty evaluator shall convene the Preliminary Evaluation Meeting. At this Preliminary Evaluation Meeting, the faculty evaluator and the evaluee shall review all of the evaluation forms and establish dates for Student Evaluation(s), Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation(s), submission of the Self-Evaluation Report Form to the faculty evaluator, and the Summary Evaluation Meeting. The faculty evaluator shall notify the Vice President or designee of the proposed timeline. Completion of the Administrative

Evaluation Form and Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation by the Vice President or designee (if planned) should be included on the schedule. The evaluee and the faculty evaluator sign off to verify that this meeting took place.

4. The faculty evaluator administers the student evaluations using the standard District form. The procedure is the same as that set forth in the Tenure Review Handbook for administering Student Evaluations. Student Evaluations may be done during the same class session as the Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation. Student Evaluations will be administered before the class ends. The evaluee will leave the room. The evaluator will read the directions on the student evaluation form and inform students of their right to add written comments on the back of the form; no other communication will take place with the students related to the instructor or his/her performance. Students will be assured of the anonymity of their responses. The evaluator shall collect the student responses and dismiss the class. If mutually agreed by the evaluee and the evaluator, student evaluations may be conducted online within a 48-hour period.

The evaluator may compile the Scantron form scores at the College and may transcribe the student comments (from the Student Evaluations) themselves. Alternatively, the evaluator may send the Student Evaluation forms along with an appropriate cover sheet to the Office of the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs to process the Scantron Report.

Original Student Evaluations shall be retained in the College Office of Instruction for one year after which time they can be destroyed.

- 5. As scheduled, the faculty evaluator conducts a Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation of a whole class period (or counseling or library period, etc.), of at least one hour. The faculty evaluator then completes the Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation Report Form, or other appropriate form. The observed class may be a lecture or a lab.
- 6. The Vice President or designee submits the completed Administrative Evaluation Form to the faculty evaluator.
- 7. The evaluee submits the completed Self-Evaluation Form to the faculty evaluator prior to the Summary Evaluation Meeting.
- 8. Prior to the Summary Evaluation Meeting, the faculty evaluator completes the evaluation Summary Report Form. If the Vice President or designee completed a Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation form, the faculty evaluator and Vice President or designee complete the Summary Report Form together. If the Vice President or designee completed a Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation, and if the faculty evaluator and Vice President or designee cannot agree, separate Summary Report Forms shall be completed. In cases where two classroom observations/evaluations are done, and the two evaluators do not agree on the summary rating, the faculty member will be evaluated again the following semester with a new Administrator chosen by the VPI and a new faculty evaluator chosen by lottery. The Vice President or designee shall be notified if the evaluee is rated as either—"Does not consistently meet requirements," or —"Does not meet requirements."

- 9. The Summary Evaluation Meeting is held to review and discuss all evaluations with the evaluee. The evaluee reviews the Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation Report Forms, the Student Evaluations of Instructor summary, the Administrative Evaluation Form, and the Summary Report Form(s). If the Vice President or designee did a Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation, s/he shall attend the Summary Evaluation Meeting. The evaluee is given an opportunity to respond in writing to any issues raised by the evaluations
- 10. All evaluation documents, including the summary of Student Evaluations, the Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation Report Form(s), the Administrative Evaluation Form, the Self-Evaluation Form, the Summary Report Form(s), and any evaluee response, shall be forwarded to the Vice President or designee for inclusion in the evaluee's Personnel File; copies of the documents should also be forwarded to the evaluee and the Department Chair. The Vice President or designee is responsible for sending all Summary Report Forms and Administrative Evaluations for all part-time and tenured faculty to the District Office of Human Resources, with a copy also sent to the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs by the end of the semester.

11. Incomplete Evaluations

If the student evaluations, Faculty/Classroom Observation(s)/Evaluation(s), Self-Evaluation or Summary Report Form(s) are not completed with four (4) weeks left in the semester (or with 25% of the course meetings left for short-term classes), the Vice President or designee and the College Academic Senate President (or representative) shall jointly develop a plan by the end of the semester to complete the process. In cases when the evaluation is not completed, the evaluee shall have the right to receive a full evaluation during the following semester, if s/he makes a request for a full evaluation (in writing) to his/her Vice President or designee (with a copy to the PFT) within the first two (2) weeks of the following semester.

An incomplete self-evaluation shall not constitute an incomplete evaluation so long as the Evaluation Committee Chair attaches a copy of an email requesting the Self-Evaluation from the evaluee at least two weeks prior to the summary meeting.

12. Electronic Submission of Forms

All forms may be submitted online. Submission of the form from the evaluee, evaluator, or administrator's Peralta email account shall constitute a completed and signed form for use in the evaluation. A printout of the email with the attachment must be submitted along with the completed form for inclusion in the evaluation documents.

13. On-line Evaluations

In any situation where an instructor can be evaluated in either a classroom setting or online, the method of evaluation shall be determined by mutual agreement of evaluee and evaluators.

In the case of online classes:

Student evaluations shall be conducted on the Web, using identical questions to those in the currently approved student evaluation form.

The faculty evaluator and the evaluee shall make a good faith effort to agree on a Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation plan which will allow the evaluator to fill out the current Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation form for the on-line class and follow, as best they can, the current evaluation procedures. This shall include a pre-evaluation meeting, an evaluation, and a post-evaluation meeting (which can be the Summary Evaluation Meeting). These meetings may be conducted on-line. The evaluator will spend at least one hour observing the on-line class but is not limited to one hour.

H. RECOMMENDATIONS FOR NEW FORMS AND CHANGES TO EXISTING FORMS FOR PART-TIME FACULTY

- 1. Should any faculty group or administrator recommend the creation of a new form for evaluation or recommend changes in existing forms or student evaluations, such recommendations must be made in writing to the College Vice President of Instruction and the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs who will confer with the other college Vice Presidents of Instruction and the appropriate PFT representative and College Tenure Facilitators.
- 2. If approved by the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs and the appropriate PFT representative, the revised/new forms will be distributed to all College Deans/Administrative Supervisors, Tenure Facilitators, and Department Chairs, and will be used in all subsequent evaluations to which they apply.
- 3. Whenever possible, all forms (other than Scantron Forms) shall be available on disc (or on-line) to be filled out on a computer. However, the District approved forms cannot be altered in form or substance other than in spacing available for responses. If any evaluation form is found to be altered, it may be removed from the portfolio or be required to be rewritten on the approved District form. Once signed, the originals of all forms shall remain in the portfolio.

I. COLLEGE EVALUATION COORDINATOR

- 1. Scope of Work of the College Evaluation Coordinator:
 - a) Training of faculty evaluators and evaluees in the evaluation process is the responsibility of the college Vice President of Instruction or designee, working with the college evaluation coordinator.
 - b) Monitor the evaluation process at the college. Such monitoring shall include meeting as needed with the college Vice President of Instruction (or designee), the college Senate President and the college PFT co-chairs in order to review the college's evaluation activities, including whether recognized standards are being applied in the evaluation process, and whether the process, procedures and timetables are being followed. Data on compliance with scheduled evaluations shall be forwarded on or before the last day to submit grades for that semester to the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs and the PFT using the appropriate spreadsheet(s).
 - c) Meet with evaluees, evaluators and/or the college Vice President of Instruction (or designee) as needed to assure that any concerns about the evaluation process are addressed.
 - d) Review the college's progress in following the evaluation schedule every two weeks to ensure compliance with guidelines and timelines

- e) Check that the standards used in all evaluation documents are in compliance with the Statement of Faculty Excellence (*see Introduction, Section C*). Any questions about evaluation documents shall be reviewed with the college Vice President of Instruction or designee, who will make a determination as to whether the document is in compliance or not. Any documents containing allegations based on rumors or hearsay will not be allowed and may not be used in the evaluation process.
- f) If the coordinator notes any problems with compliance with timelines, guidelines or other areas involving evaluation, the coordinator shall inform the college Vice President of Instruction (or designee), the dean and the PFT President (or designee), and work with them to resolve such problems.
- g) The coordinator shall meet with the Vice President of Instruction (or designee), and the President of the College Academic Senate (or designee), no later than 4 weeks prior to the end of the semester to review incomplete evaluations.
- h) The Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs (or designee) shall convene two meetings each semester, to include the College Evaluation Coordinators, the PFT President (or designee), and the Vice President of Instruction (or designee) from each college. The purpose of the meeting will be to review the process, identify problems and develop plans of action. The meetings shall be scheduled at the beginning of the academic year. The President of the District Academic Senate (or designee), the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs (or designee), or any College Vice President (or designee) may attend these meetings.
- i) Verify stipends for faculty evaluators as per the collective bargaining agreement.

2. The coordinator shall be chosen as follows:

- a) Three weeks before the end of each spring semester, the college President shall decide whether to appoint a classified coordinator for the following academic year
- b) In the event that a classified coordinator is not identified, the President shall appoint a faculty coordinator for the following academic year. A faculty coordinator appointed by the President may be replaced by the President after one semester if the minimum threshold for evaluations is not met
- c) The minimum threshold for evaluations at each college shall be as follows: 75% of the part-time and regular faculty with assignments in a given semester must have a current evaluation*
- d) If a college does not meet the 75% threshold for a full academic year, a committee made up for the Academic Senate President, the Vice President of Instruction (or designee), and the PFT College representatives (with both PFT Representatives sharing one vote) shall jointly appoint, by a majority vote, a faculty coordinator for the following full academic year.
 - 1) If circumstances require it, the committee may appoint a replacement faculty evaluation coordinator to serve for the remainder of the one-year term.
 - 2) At the end of the academic year, the term of a committee-appointed coordinator shall expire, and the process shall begin (again) at "2. a)" above.

3. Coordinator Release Time:

- a) If a classified coordinator is appointed at a college, the classified release time shall be 0.5
- b) If a faculty coordinator is appointed:
 - 1) Aggregate of 2.0 FTEF release time shall be allocated across all 4 four colleges for Faculty Evaluation Coordinator

- 2) Release time shall be distributed based on percentage of headcount of scheduled evaluations
- 3) If a college has a classified coordinator, that college shall not also get release time for a faculty evaluation coordinator, and the total District release time of 2.0 shall be reduced accordingly for that semester or academic year.

PART THREE: Tenured Faculty Evaluation Policy

PART THREE: TENURED FACULTY EVALUATIONS

A. INTRODUCTION TO TENURED FACULTY EVALUATIONS

The current procedures for evaluating tenured faculty are the same procedures as those for evaluating part-time faculty, that were streamlined in a Side Agreement signed February 2, 2009, were clarified in negotiations during 2011 and attached to a Side Agreement dated December 19, 2011 and were further clarified during negotiations in 2016. The revised procedures are incorporated into the document, which follows herein, set forth the current procedures for all tenured faculty evaluations, effective August 2016.

Please see the general information in "Introduction to This Handbook," particularly the section on "Statement of Faculty Excellence," for other information relating to the evaluation of tenured faculty.

This policy can only be changed or modified after consultation between the Peralta Federation of Teachers (PFT) and the District Academic Senate (DAS); such changes or modifications must also be negotiated between the PFT and the Peralta Community College District (District).

(Also see the PCCD/Academic Affairs website for approved Tenured Faculty Evaluation Forms.)

PURPOSE

Evaluation of faculty is consistent with the Community Colleges' mission of educational excellence as required by Section 87663 of the Education Code (Ed Code). The purpose of the evaluation is to benefit the faculty member through peer review. The primary objective is to evaluate the faculty member's effectiveness in relationship to good teaching; currency in the field; department/discipline responsibilities; and effectiveness of service to students, the departments/disciplines and the college. The evaluation is the joint responsibility of the Administrative Supervisor (referred to herein as —Vice President or designee) and the department/discipline faculty. The most positive effects of the evaluation will be obtained at the department/discipline level and accrue to the individual. The evaluation should recognize the accomplishments of faculty and make recommendations for correcting deficiencies.

The faculty play a central role in evaluating their peers. Only through the joint effort of faculty and administration can the mutual goal of promoting quality education be achieved. Adherence to this policy assures the District, its colleges and students a highly qualified professional staff.

Evaluation of tenured faculty is a four-part process which involves self-evaluation, faculty/classroom observation/evaluation, administrative evaluation, and student evaluation. Together, these four evaluations plus the summary report form the complete evaluation.

B. TENURE REVIEW EVALUATION PORTFOLIO

1. STUDENT EVALUATIONS

The purpose of the Student Evaluations of Instructor (SEI) is to gain from students their opinions of the overall effectiveness of the instructor. Students will be assured of the anonymity of their responses, including that original copies of any written comments will be transcribed and presented to the instructor only in compiled form.

2. SELF-EVALUATION

Using the Instructor Self-Evaluation Form, faculty members are expected to provide evidence of professional competence and teaching effectiveness. The following are general criteria that will be used in the self-evaluation:

- a. Appropriateness of methods in achieving objectives.
- b. Knowledge of current teaching methods, materials, and trends in his/her field of instruction.
- c. Successful strategies to improve student performance and retention.
- d. Preparation and planning of curriculum.
- e. Knowledge of recent advances in the discipline.
- f. Demonstration of continued professional growth.
- g. Reflection on the use of assessment tools to make improvements.

3. FACULTY/CLASSROOM OBSERVATION/EVALUATION

The following are general criteria that will be used in the faculty/classroom observation/evaluation by peers and administrators:

- a. Expertise in subject matter or professional field.
- b. Effectiveness in carrying out duties in instruction.
- c. Effectiveness of communications with students, and if applicable, staff.
- d. Behavior consistent with AAUP Code of Ethics, Title 5 and the Ed. Code.

4. ADMINISTRATIVE EVALUATION

The purpose of the administrative review is to provide the Evaluation Committee with information regarding the faculty member's professional responsibilities in the context of certain administrative criteria. The focus of this evaluation is on the syllabus (including grading policy), timely submission of textbook orders, submission of syllabi to the Office of Instruction, responsiveness to communications, professional behavior, holding classes for full class period, participation in professional development activities, and timely submission of grades and census rosters.

C. EVALUATION FREQUENCY

Tenured faculty shall be evaluated once every three years, unless a rating of "Does not consistently meet requirements" or "Does not meet requirements" is received.

When a tenured faculty member receives a summary rating of "Does not consistently meet requirements" or "Does not meet requirements", an evaluation will take place during the next semester that the faculty member has an assignment.

D. RESPONSIBILITIES IN THE EVALUATION

The evaluation of each instructor who is being evaluated shall involve:

1. <u>Vice President or designee – </u>

The responsibility for administering the evaluation system rests with the Vice President or designee. The Vice President or designee who has responsibility for the discipline shall initiate the evaluation procedures, in consensus with the Department Chair, ensuring that the evaluation procedures are followed, timelines are met, classroom visits are held, records are kept, preliminary and summary evaluation meetings are held. The Vice President or designee shall complete the Administrative Evaluation Form. A copy of the evaluation Summary Report Form and the completed Administrative Evaluation shall be given to the faculty Evaluee, the Evaluator, the Department Chair, the Vice President or designee, the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs, and then sent to Human Resources by the end of the semester being evaluated.

2. Faculty Evaluator --

- a. The Department Chair shall choose a single Faculty Evaluator from the Evaluee's discipline (or if necessary a related discipline, as defined by the Board of Governors' list of minimum qualifications) during the first four (4) weeks of the semester. For short-term classes, the Department Chair shall choose a single Faculty Evaluator during the first 25% of course meeting days. The Faculty Evaluator cannot have been evaluated by the Evaluee within the same academic year.
- b. If the Department Chair does not meet the deadline, the Vice President or designee shall choose a single Faculty Evaluator during week five (5) of the semester.
- c. The Vice President or designee and the Department Chair will make a good faith effort to ensure that evaluators of on-line classes have experience in on-line instruction.
- d. The faculty Evaluee may challenge that Evaluator during the two (2) weeks following notification. If the faculty Evaluee challenges the Evaluator, the evaluation will be conducted no later than the following semester, but can be done during the same semester with another evaluator selected via lottery.
- e. The Faculty Evaluator holds the Preliminary Evaluation Meeting, does a Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation, completes the appropriate items on the Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation Report Form, and holds a Summary Evaluation Meeting.
- 3. <u>The Evaluee--</u> The evaluee is responsible for completing the Instructor Self-Evaluation Form and submitting it to the evaluator, and attending the Preliminary and Summary Evaluation Meetings.

E. EVALUATION PROCESS CRITERIA AND FORMS

The five (5) forms to be used in evaluations of tenured faculty are:

1. Student Evaluations of Instructors:

The purpose of the Student Evaluations is to gain from students their opinions of the overall effectiveness of the faculty member. Students will be assured of the anonymity of their responses.

2. Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation(s):

There are standard District forms to be completed when conducting a Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation. Please use the form appropriate to the evaluee's assignment. This form can also be completed by the Vice President or designee, if the Vice President or designee does a Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation.

3. Administrative Evaluation:

The Administrative Evaluation addresses the faculty evaluee's overall attention to academic and professional matters as related to the evaluee's assignment. Different forms exist for classroom faculty and non-classroom faculty.

If the Administrative Evaluation is not completed by the Administrator, the chair of the evaluation committee shall send an email (using Peralta email addresses) requesting a completed Administrative Evaluation at least two weeks prior to the summary meeting. A copy of the email requesting the Administrative Evaluation will be submitted in lieu of a completed Administrative Evaluation.

4. Self-Evaluation:

The Self Evaluation is an opportunity for the Evaluee to address all evaluations which have been conducted. In addition, the Evaluee is provided the opportunity to address his/her professional growth and development. Classroom faculty evaluees shall submit: syllabi, with methods of student assessment, and a listing of assignments. In addition to the Self Evaluation form, the Self-Evaluation may include additional support material. Examples of additional support material for non-classroom faculty evaluees may include workshop agendas and handouts, completed Student Educational Plans, etc. If the Self-Evaluation is not completed by the Evaluee, the chair of the evaluation committee shall send an email (using Peralta email addresses) requesting the completed Self-Evaluation at least two weeks prior to the summary meeting. A copy of the email requesting the Self-Evaluation will be submitted in lieu of a completed Self-Evaluation.

5. Summary Report Form (including overall Rating):

The Summary Report Form provides an overall summary of all evaluations of the Evaluee conducted during the semester. The overall summary evaluation rating is based on a five-point rating system. If a second faculty/classroom observation/evaluation is done by the Vice President or designee, and there is a tie vote, the faculty member will be evaluated again, the next semester that they teach.

6. The evaluation rating system for all faculty evaluations shall be:

- a. Is exemplary
- b. Surpasses requirements
- c. Meets all requirements
- d. Does not consistently meet requirements
- e. Does not meet requirements

F. SCHEDULING AND ASSIGNING EVALUATIONS

1. During first four (4) weeks of the semester, each Department Chair will update the yearlong plan of what will be a 3-year (6-semester) evaluation timeline (schedule) for all part-time and tenured faculty in their department/cluster. (The schedule will be updated or revised as needed by the Department Chair during the 4th week of the semester.) If Department Chairs do not meet the deadline, the Vice President or designee will create the first semester of the 3-year evaluation timeline during the 5th week of the semester. At that time, a copy of the schedule shall be sent to the Vice President or designee, the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs, the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources, and the PFT.

- 2. When creating the 3-year evaluation schedule, the Department Chair (or Vice President or designee) shall make a good faith effort to apply the following priority system: Tenured faculty evaluations shall be prioritized as follows:
- a. If evaluated within the last three (3) years, the next evaluation shall be three (3) years after the last evaluation.
- b. If not evaluated within the last three (3) years, evaluations shall be scheduled in order of seniority, with most senior faculty first (hire dates shall be provided by the District Human Resources office).
- 3. Faculty are limited to chairing four (4) TRCs and to serving on a maximum of five (5) TRCs during an academic year.
- 4. Contract faculty may conduct more than three (3) faculty evaluations. All evaluations by any contract faculty evaluations over three (3) shall be mutually agreed upon by the faculty member, the Vice President or designee, and the Department Chair. All evaluations over 3 during any academic year by a tenured contract faculty member shall be paid a \$120 stipend. The payment shall be made if a Faculty Evaluator completes his/her responsibility, even if the Administrator and/or Faculty Evaluee do not fulfill his/her responsibilities in the process.

G. EVALUATION PROCESS

- 1. The Vice President or designee contacts the evaluee in order to provide him/her with a copy of the evaluation procedures.
- 2. The Vice President or designee notifies the evaluee of the composition of the Evaluation Committee, and offers him/her the opportunity to challenge the choice of the faculty evaluator. If the Vice President or designee wishes to be a voting member of the Evaluation Committee and perform a Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation, the Vice President or designee shall notify the evaluee of his/her participation. This does not preclude the Vice President or designee from performing a faculty evaluation (outside the standard evaluation procedure), provided the Administrator has given the faculty member one week's notice of the visit.
- 3. The faculty evaluator shall convene the Preliminary Evaluation Meeting. At this Preliminary Evaluation Meeting, the faculty evaluator and the evaluee shall review all the evaluation forms and establish dates for Student Evaluation(s), Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation(s), submission of the Self-Evaluation Report Form to the Faculty Evaluator, and the Summary Evaluation Meeting. The faculty evaluator shall notify the Vice President or designee of the proposed timeline. Completion of the Administrative Evaluation Form and Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation by the Vice President or designee (if planned) should be included on the schedule. The evaluee and the faculty evaluator sign off to verify that this meeting took place.
- 4. The faculty evaluator administers the student evaluations using the standard District form. The procedure is the same as that set forth in the Tenure Review Handbook for administering Student Evaluations. Student Evaluations may be done during the same class session as the Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation. Student Evaluations will be administered before the class ends. The evaluee will leave the room. The faculty evaluator will read the directions on the student evaluation form and inform students of

their right to add written comments on the back of the form; no other communication will take place with the students related to the instructor or his/her performance. Students will be assured of the anonymity of their responses. The evaluator shall collect the student responses and dismiss the class. If mutually agreed by the evaluee and the evaluator, student evaluations may be conducted online within a 48-hour period.

The evaluator may compile the Scantron form scores at the College and may transcribe the student comments (from the Student Evaluations) themselves. Alternatively, the evaluator may send the Student Evaluation forms along with an appropriate cover sheet to the Office of the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs to process the Scantron report.

Original Student Evaluations shall be retained in the College Office of Instruction for one year after which time they can be destroyed.

- 5. As scheduled, the faculty evaluator conducts a Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation of a whole class period (or counseling or library period, etc.), of at least one hour. The faculty evaluator then completes the Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation Report Form, or other appropriate form. The observed class may be a lecture or a lab.
- 6. The Vice President or designee submits the completed Administrative Evaluation Form to the faculty evaluator.
- 7. The evaluee submits the completed Self-Evaluation Form to the faculty evaluator prior to the Summary Evaluation Meeting.
- 8. Prior to the Summary Evaluation Meeting, the faculty evaluator completes the evaluation Summary Report Form. If the Vice President or designee completed a Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation form, the faculty evaluator and Vice President or designee complete the Summary Report Form together. If the Vice President or designee completed a Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation, and if the faculty evaluator and Vice President or designee cannot agree, separate Summary Report Forms shall be completed. In cases where two classroom observations/evaluations are done, and the two evaluators do not agree on the summary rating, the faculty member will be evaluated again the following semester with a new Administrator chosen by the VPI and a new faculty evaluator chosen by lottery. The Vice President or designee shall be notified if the evaluee is rated as either "Does not consistently meet requirements," or "Does not meet requirements."
- 9. The Summary Evaluation Meeting is held to review and discuss all evaluations with the evaluee. The evaluee reviews the Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation Report Forms, the Student Evaluations of Instructor summary, the Administrative Evaluation Form, and the Summary Report Form(s). If the Vice President or designee did a Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation, s/he shall attend the Summary Evaluation Meeting. The evaluee is given an opportunity to respond in writing to any issues raised by the evaluations
- 10. All evaluation documents, including the summary of Student Evaluations, the Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation Report Form(s), the Administrative Evaluation Form, the Self-Evaluation Form, the Summary Report Form(s), and any Evaluee response, shall be forwarded to the Vice President or designee for inclusion in

the evaluee's Personnel File; copies of the documents should also be forwarded to the evaluee and the Department Chair. The Vice President or designee is responsible for sending all Summary Report Forms and Administrative Evaluations for all part-time and tenured faculty to the District Office of Human Resources, with a copy also sent to the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs by the end of the semester.

11. Incomplete Evaluations

If the student evaluations, Faculty/Classroom Observation(s)/Evaluation(s), Self-Evaluation or Summary Report Form(s) are not completed with four (4) weeks left in the semester (or with 25% of the course meetings left for short-term classes), the Vice President or designee and the College Academic Senate President (or representative) shall jointly develop a plan by the end of the semester to complete the process. In cases when the evaluation is not completed, the evaluee shall have the right to receive a full evaluation during the following semester, if s/he makes a request for a full evaluation (in writing) to his/her Vice President or designee (with a copy to the PFT) within the first two (2) weeks of the following semester.

An incomplete self-evaluation shall not constitute an incomplete evaluation so long as the Evaluation Committee Chair attaches a copy of an email requesting the Self-Evaluation from the evaluee at least two weeks prior to the summary meeting.

12. Electronic Submission of Forms

All forms may be submitted online. Submission of the form from the evaluee, evaluator, or administrator's Peralta email account shall constitute a completed and signed form for use in the evaluation. A printout of the email with the attachment must be submitted along with the completed form for inclusion in the evaluation documents.

13. On-line Evaluations

- a. In any situation where an instructor can be evaluated in either a classroom setting or on-line, the method of evaluation shall be determined by mutual agreement of evaluee and evaluators.
- b. In the case of online classes:
- 1) Student evaluations shall be conducted on the Web, using identical questions to those in the currently approved student evaluation form.
- 2) The faculty evaluator and the evaluee shall make a good faith effort to agree on a Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation plan which will allow the Evaluator to fill out the current Faculty/Classroom Observation/Evaluation form for the online class and follow, as best they can, the current evaluation procedures. This shall include a pre-evaluation meeting, an evaluation, and a post-evaluation meeting (which can be the Summary Evaluation Meeting). These meetings may be conducted on-line. The evaluator will spend at least one hour observing the on-line class but is not limited to one hour.

H. RECOMMENDATIONS FOR NEW FORMS AND CHANGES TO EXISTING FORMS FOR TENURED FACULTY

- 1. Should any faculty group or administrator recommend the creation of a new form for evaluation or recommend changes in existing forms or student evaluations, such recommendations must be made in writing to the College Vice President of Instruction and the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs who will confer with the other college Vice Presidents of Instruction and the appropriate PFT representative and College Tenure Facilitators.
 - 2. If approved by the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs and the appropriate PFT representative, the revised/new forms will be distributed to all College Deans/Administrative Supervisors, Tenure Facilitators, and Department Chairs, and will be used in all subsequent evaluations to which they apply.
 - 3. Whenever possible, all forms (other than Scantron Forms) shall be available on disc (or on-line) to be filled out on a computer. However, the District approved forms cannot be altered in form or substance other than in spacing available for responses. If any evaluation form is found to be altered, it may be removed from the portfolio or be required to be rewritten on the approved District form. Once signed, the originals of all forms shall remain in the portfolio.

I. COLLEGE EVALUATION COORDINATOR

- 3. Scope of Work of the College Evaluation Coordinator:
 - a) Training of faculty evaluators and evaluees in the evaluation process is the responsibility of the college Vice President of Instruction or designee, working with the college evaluation coordinator.
 - b) Monitor the evaluation process at the college. Such monitoring shall include meeting as needed with the college Vice President of Instruction (or designee), the college Senate President and the college PFT co-chairs in order to review the college's evaluation activities, including whether recognized standards are being applied in the evaluation process, and whether the process, procedures and timetables are being followed. Data on compliance with scheduled evaluations shall be forwarded on or before the last day to submit grades for that semester to the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs and the PFT using the appropriate spreadsheet(s).
 - c) Meet with evaluees, evaluators and/or the college Vice President of Instruction (or designee) as needed to assure that any concerns about the evaluation process are addressed.
 - d) Review the college's progress in following the evaluation schedule every two weeks to ensure compliance with guidelines and timelines
 - e) Check that the standards used in all evaluation documents are in compliance with the Statement of Faculty Excellence (*see Introduction, Section C*). Any questions about evaluation documents shall be reviewed with the college Vice President of Instruction or designee, who will make a determination as to whether the document is in compliance or not. Any documents containing allegations based on rumors or hearsay will not be allowed and may not be used in the evaluation process.
 - f) If the coordinator notes any problems with compliance with timelines, guidelines or other areas involving evaluation, the coordinator shall inform the college Vice President of Instruction (or designee), the dean and the PFT President (or designee), and work with them to resolve such problems.

- g) The coordinator shall meet with the Vice President of Instruction (or designee), and the President of the College Academic Senate (or designee), no later than 4 weeks prior to the end of the semester to review incomplete evaluations.
- h) The Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs (or designee) shall convene two meetings each semester, to include the College Evaluation Coordinators, the PFT President (or designee), and the Vice President of Instruction (or designee) from each college. The purpose of the meeting will be to review the process, identify problems and develop plans of action. The meetings shall be scheduled at the beginning of the academic year. The President of the District Academic Senate (or designee), the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs (or designee), or any College Vice President (or designee) may attend these meetings.
- i) Verify stipends for faculty evaluators as per the collective bargaining agreement.

4. The coordinator shall be chosen as follows:

- e) Three weeks before the end of each spring semester, the college President shall decide whether to appoint a classified coordinator for the following academic year
- f) In the event that a classified coordinator is not identified, the President shall appoint a faculty coordinator for the following academic year. A faculty coordinator appointed by the President may be replaced by the President after one semester if the minimum threshold for evaluations is not met
- g) The minimum threshold for evaluations at each college shall be as follows: 75% of the part-time and regular faculty with assignments in a given semester must have a current evaluation*
- h) If a college does not meet the 75% threshold for a full academic year, a committee made up for the Academic Senate President, the Vice President of Instruction (or designee), and the PFT College representatives (with both PFT Representatives sharing one vote) shall jointly appoint, by a majority vote, a faculty coordinator for the following full academic year.
 - 3) If circumstances require it, the committee may appoint a replacement faculty evaluation coordinator to serve for the remainder of the one-year term.
 - 4) At the end of the academic year, the term of a committee-appointed coordinator shall expire, and the process shall begin (again) at "2. a)" above.

3. Coordinator Release Time:

- c) If a classified coordinator is appointed at a college, the classified release time shall be 0.5
- d) If a faculty coordinator is appointed:
 - 4) Aggregate of 2.0 FTEF release time shall be allocated across all 4 four colleges for Faculty Evaluation Coordinator
 - 5) Release time shall be distributed based on percentage of headcount of scheduled evaluations
 - 6) If a college has a classified coordinator, that college shall not also get release time for a faculty evaluation coordinator, and the total District release time of 2.0 shall be reduced accordingly for that semester or academic year.

APPENDIX

APPENDIX A: TIMELINES FOR TENURE REVIEW AND FACULTY EVLAUATIONS (CALENDARS) AND EVALUATION FORMS

Forms: Forms for all evaluations and committees will be found on the website for Academic Affairs (https://www.peralta.edu/academicaffairs/faculty-evaluations-policies-procedures-forms) and the PFT website (https://pft1603.org/?page_id=215).

Timeline For Tenure Review/Faculty Evaluations: The yearly calendar with deadline dates is now found online at: (https://www.peralta.edu/academicaffairs/faculty-evaluations-policies-procedures-forms) and the PFT website (https://pft1603.org/?page_id=215).

APPENDIX B: GUIDELINES FOR TENURE REVIEW TIMELINES

FOUR YEAR OVERVIEW OF TENURE REVIEW PROCESS

DISTRICT APPROVED FORMS	YEAR 1 Dates/Activities for Year	YEAR 2 Dates/Activities for Year	YEAR 3 Dates/Activiti es for Year	YEAR 4 Dates/Activitie s for Year
1. EVALUATION PLAN	1. TRC meets/develops Eval. Plan w/candidate by end of 3rd week 2. Eval. Plan to be given to Candidate, Tenure Facilitator & Vice President	1. TRC meets/develops Eval. Plan w/candidate by end of 3rd week 2. Eval. Plan to be given to Candidate, Tenure Facilitator & Vice President	Same as year 2	Same as years 2 & 3 (to be completed in Fall term)
2. STUDENT EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTOR (Scantron form)	1. Each class taught or min. of 3 sets each of 1st two semesters in 1st acad. yr. 2. No. to be determined for counselors, librarians, DSPS cnslrs/coords, health services coordinators, etc. (Approx. 4 sets of 10 evals.)	1. 3 classes per acad. yr. for teaching faculty 2. No. to be determined for counselors, librarians, DSPS enslrs/coords, health services coordinators, etc. (Approx. 3 sets of 10 evals)	Same as year 2	Same as years 2 & 3 (to be completed in Fall term)
3. CLASSROOM (or Faculty) OBSERVATION FORM for TRC Members	1. Each class taught for teaching faculty or min. of 3 each of 1 st two semesters in 1 st academic year. 2. No. to be determined for counselors, librarians, DSPS cnslrs/coords, health services coordinators etc. (Approx. 4 evals.)	1. 3 classes per acad. yr. for teaching faculty 2. No. to be determined for counselors, librarians, DSPS cnslrs/coords, health services coordinators, etc. (Approx. 3 evals.)	Same as year 2	Min. of one in Fall semester for admin. on TRC, and min. of one for faculty on TRC (to be completed in Fall term).
4. PEER EVALUATION REPORT (for other non-TRC faculty in discipline)	Optional	Optional	Optional	Optional

Page 5

				Page 59
5. ADMINISTRATIVE EVALUATION RPT. (Immediate supervisor of candidate)	Prior to end of Fall term	Prior to end of Fall term	Same as year 2	Same as years 2 & 3
6. CANDIDATE SELF- EVALUATION RPT.	Each term	Each term	Each term	Fall only
7. NON- CLASSROOM OBSERVATION/ INFORMATION REPORT FORM	Optional	Optional	Optional	Optional
8. CONFERENCE REPORT FORM	All TRC meetings with Candidate (Mtgs to be held ASAP after evaluations done)	All TRC meetings with Candidate (Mtgs to be held ASAP after evaluations done)	All TRC meetings with Candidate (Mtgs to be held ASAP after evals. done)	All TRC meetings with Candidate (Mtgs to be held ASAP after evals. done)
9. SUMMARY REPORT	Prior to end of Fall term	Prior to end of Fall term	Same as year 2	Same as years 2 & 3
10. CERTIFICATION FORM	Complete same time as Summary Report	Complete same time as Summary Report	Complete same time as Summary Report	Complete same time as Summary Report

(Note: Numbers of evaluations are minimums; OK to do more, and may be necessary to do more under certain circumstances.) rev.8-10-06

APPENDIX C: DISTRICT APPROVED TENURE REVIEW / FACULTY EVALUATION FORMS

Evaluation Forms for	Special Evaluation Forms	NON-TENURE TRACK	
TENURE TRACK	For TENURE TRACK	PART-TIME &	
Faculty TENTINE TRACK	Faculty	TENURED FACULTY	
TENURE TRACK	ALL FORMS SAME AS WITH	Part-Time and	
INSTRUCTOR	"INSTRUCTOR" SET except	Tenured Faculty	
	for the following specialty forms		
1.Evaluation Plan (sample)	that replace the corresponding	(New Forms and Procedures,	
	numbered form in the Instructor	Pursuant to Art. 30, Sec. H of the	
2.a. Student Evaluations	forms listed to the left:	PFT CBA, streamlined eff. Feb.	
(Orange Scantron)		2, 2009, and further revised, eff.	
OR	COUNSELOR	Jan. 2012.)	
2.b. Student Evaluation of	2. Student Evaluation of		
ESL Instructor	Individual Counseling	The following forms are to be	
(Pink Scantron)	Session, and	used by Evaluation Teams which	
OR	Counselor Performance Eval.	evaluate	
2.c. Online Evaluations	(by TRC / Eval. Comm.	Part-Time and Tenured Faculty.	
	Member)		
3. Faculty/Classroom		P-T & Tenured INSTRUCTOR	
Observation (by	LIBRARIAN	Student Evaluations (w/cov.pg.)	
TRC/Eval. Team Member)	Student Evaluation of Library	Faculty/Classroom	
	Instruction/Assistance, and	Observation**	
4. Peer Evaluation	Classroom/Professional Observ.	Administrative Evaluation**	
	(by TRC / Eval. Comm.	Self- Evaluation**	
5. Administrative Evaluation	Member)	Summary Report Form (5-pt)**	
6. Candidate's Self-	DSPS/EOPS COUNSELOR	P-T & Tenured COUNSELOR	
Evaluation	Student Evaluation of Individual		
	DSPS/EOPS Cnslng. Session	Faculty Observation of	
7. Non-Classroom	DSPS/EOPS Cnslr. Faculty	Counselor**	
Observation	Observ. (by TRC / Eval. Comm.	Administrative Eval. Of	
	Member)	Counselor**	
8. Conference Report			
	DSPS/EOPS COORDINATOR	P-T & Tenured LIBRARIAN	
9. Summary Report	2. Student Evaluations Not		
	Applicable —	Faculty Observation of	
10. Certification Form	(Coord. Does not	Librarian**	
	teach/counsel students)	Administrative Eval. Of	
11. TRC Improvement Plan	DSPS/EOPS Coord. Faculty	Librarian**	
Template	Observ. (by TRC / Eval. Comm.		
	Member)	Other than Student Evaluation	
Other TR-Related Forms	,	forms, the above "P/T &	
	LD SPECIALIST	Tenured" forms are NOT the	
Also used in the Tenure	2.a. Student Evaluations-	same forms as used with Tenure	
Track Faculty Evaluation	(Orange Scantron)	Track faculty.	
process are the following	2.b. Student Eval. Of Advising		
forms:	Session (with LD	(Note: Additional special forms	
	Specialist)	for evaluating non-classroom	
	* '		
	Specialist) 3. LD Specialist Faculty Obs.	faculty may be developed, and if	

- Calendar (showing 4-yr overview of Tenure Review. Process)
- Calendar (showing timelines for Fall or Spring semesters)
- Cover Sheets (for submitting Student Evaluations to District Office for Processing)

list above.

(by TRC / Eval.Comm. Member)

HEALTH SERVICES COORDINATORS

- 2. Student Evaluations of Health Services Coordinators
- 3.a. Faculty Observation Form (For Health Disc.

Observers)

3.b. Faculty Observation Form (For Non-Health Disc. Observers); and 12. Consent to be Observed

LEARNING ASSISTANCE

 Student Evaluations of Learning
 Assistance Session

ARTICULATION OFFICER

Articulation Officer—Faculty Obs. Form

so, will appear on the Peralta/Ed Services webpage as they are developed and approved.)

**(New Forms, 1/12)
***New Forms 2014

*NOTE 1: The nos. of the forms above (2nd/middle column) refer to the corresponding forms numbered similarly in the "INSTRUCTOR" list (1st column above left). The same forms are used for all teaching and non-teaching Tenure Track faculty for Forms nos. 4-10, as shown on the "Instructor"

*NOTE 2: All faculty evaluation forms are available on the Peralta web page under Educational Services at: https://www.peralta.edu/academicaffairs/faculty-evaluations-policies-procedures-forms

APPENDIX D: FILING A GRIEVANCE (If Appeals Cannot Be Resolved at The District Level)

- 1. When filing a grievance, it is highly recommended that the candidate confers with the PFT grievance officer on his/her campus. In the event that the grievance is not resolved to the candidate's satisfaction within the District, the decision to take the grievance to binding arbitration is left to the PFT Executive Council or to the candidate, as the case may be. The candidate is entitled to pursue a matter to arbitration with or without the representation of the PFT. If a candidate pursues a grievance to arbitration, the PFT shall have access to all information in the portfolio. The arbitrator is without power to grant tenure except for failure to give notice on or before March 15th. Also, when the union does not initiate the arbitration, the District shall require the employee to file adequate security to pay the employee part of the cost of arbitration (Ed. Code 87610). Any final decision reached as a result of the grievance procedure shall be subject to review pursuant to Section 87611 of the Ed. Code.
- 2. If the grievance is resolved in favor of the candidate, the College President shall work with the candidate and the PFT grievance officer to implement the decision. For this purpose, the College President shall have the authority to require that one or several parts of the evaluation procedure be redone, or other appropriate remedial actions, including replacement of members of the TRC with consent of the candidate and the PFT grievance officer.

APPENDIX E: PFT SIDE LETTER ON TENURED AND PART-TIME EVALUATIONS

PFT Side Letter on

Tenured and Part-Time Faculty Evaluations

The Peralta Community College District (PCCD) and the Peralta Federation of Teachers (PFT) agree to adopt and implement the use of the streamlined evaluation procedures for both tenured and part-time faculty, as set forth in the attached EVALUATION POLICY AND PROCEDURES FOR TENURED AND PART-TIME FACULTY, negotiated in Spring & Fall 2011 and attached hereto; said policy and procedures as revised will become effective January, 2012.

SO AGREED, 12/19 2011 SO AGREED, 000 19 201

Matt Goldstein, PFT President Debbie Budd, VC Ed. Services for PCCD

APPENDIX F: PART TIME FACULTY REHIRE PREFERENCE POOL AGREEMENT

Part-time Faculty Rehire Preference Pool

The District and the PFT are committed to the principles and law of Equal Employment Opportunity. In addition, it is recognized that the communities and students served by the District are diverse in their cultures, ethnicities, language groups and abilities, and the District and the PFT are therefore committed to fully representing that diversity in its workforce. The District and the PFT value diversity and strive to assure that a plurality of represented groups participates in the development and delivery of its instructional and student services programs.

The District and the PFT recognize that the success of its instructional and student services programs is in large part dependent upon a valued and competent part-time faculty that is committed to consistently delivering a high quality of instruction and student services.

- 1. **Preferred Hiring Pool**: Part-time faculty in the Preferred Hiring Pool will be given preference in assignment over part-time faculty in the Non-Preferred Hiring Pool. Within the Preferred Hiring Pool, seniority will be considered as specified in #3 below. This policy is in no way meant to modify or change existing PCCD policies and practices in assignment of extra service classes to contract faculty (see Article 18). The Preferred Hiring Pool shall consist of part-time faculty who meet <u>all</u> the following criteria:
 - a. Employed as a part-time faculty member OR Long-Term Substitute (LTS) in the College(s)/Discipline(s) for at least <u>eight</u> of the last <u>twelve</u> semesters, or currently employed part-time faculty who have successfully completed the Peralta Faculty Diversity Internship program.

b. Performance Evaluation.

- 1) The Performance Evaluation shall follow all guidelines outlined in Part Two of the Faculty Evaluation Handbook with the rating provided on the summary form. A "surpasses requirements" performance evaluation or better shall be required for initial entry into the Preferred Hiring Pool for a given discipline.
- 2) Faculty who teach in multiple disciplines must be evaluated in each discipline for entry into the Preferred Hiring Pool for that discipline. In cases where a single department chair oversees multiple disciplines, the faculty member and department chair can agree to use a single evaluation for multiple disciplines using the approved form (Placement in Preferred Hiring Pool for Multiple Disciplines. If the evaluation rating is "surpasses requirements" or better and the form is signed, the faculty member will be placed into the Preferred Hiring Pool for all approved disciplines.
- 3) Once in the Preferred Hiring Pool, a "surpasses" performance evaluation or better shall be required for an instructor to remain in the Preferred Hiring Pool.
- 4) Once in the Seniority within the Preferred Hiring Pool, a faculty member who receives a "Meets Standards" requirements can request a second evaluation for the following semester. Faculty member will stay in the Preferred Hiring Pool until the second evaluation is completed.
 - (a) An improvement plan will be developed by the responsible Dean, in collaboration with the department chair before the end of the semester in which the first

- evaluation occurs. The terms of that improvement plan will need to be met the following semester as part of the second evaluation.
- (b) "Improvement Plan" guidelines and timeline should use tenure track language modified to fit part-time evaluation process and schedule.
- 2. Non-Preferred Hiring Pool: Consists of part-time faculty members currently employed by the District but not in the Preferred Hiring Pool or applicants for part-time teaching positions who meet state minimum qualifications.
 - a. If part-time faculty positions are open but there are no available qualified individuals in the discipline from the Preferred Hiring Pool, the Division Dean or designee shall consider faculty members currently employed in the department discipline or at another college in the District who are not in the Preferred Hiring Pool. The Dean or designee may also contact the Office of Human Resources regarding selected outside discipline candidates who are currently in the central District database, screen candidate materials for desirable skills and attributes, and interview candidates prior to making a recommendation for employment.
 - b. Faculty assignments shall comply with Article 18-A-12.
- **3. Seniority:** Within the Preferred Hiring Pool, part-time faculty assignments shall be made by seniority up to base load as follows:
 - a. When assignments are made, the part-time faculty members' availability and preference will be considered. Such availability and preference is to be provided to the VPI (or designee) by December 15 for the following fall semester and by May 15 for the following spring semester using the agreed upon preference form.
 - b. If all faculty in the Preferred Hiring Pool are assigned their base load, additional classes may be assigned to either part-time faculty in the Preferred Hiring Pool or to part-time faculty not in the Preferred Hiring Pool irrespective of seniority.
 - c. If there are not enough scheduled classes available for an upcoming semester (in a particular department in a college) to allow all part-time faculty in the Preferred Hiring Pool to be assigned their base load, classes will be assigned by seniority up to base load for each faculty on the list starting with the most senior faculty member until all classes have been assigned.
 - Exceptions to this process shall only be by mutual agreement of the faculty members affected and approval of the Vice President of Instruction (or designee).
 - d. If seniority is not used to make an assignment, a letter of explanation shall be provided along with the 60-day letter of assignment.
 - The explanation shall be based on the knowledge, skills, and abilities required for the position and may consider such things as: possession of unique job-related skills, possession of specific licensing requirements, and/or possession of unique experience. The required letter of explanation to the faculty member shall indicate the skills, licensing and/or experience upon which the selection decision was made. Employment performance, evaluations, discipline history, and/or complaint history shall not be considered in the decision.

The explanation shall cover only a specific class for one semester.

4. Transition Plan to Implement for Fall 2018 Assignments:

- a. Faculty in "Meets Standards" category can request a new evaluation in Fall 2017.
- b. If, at the end of the Fall 2017 evaluation, a faculty member receives a "Meets Standards" rating and requests a second evaluation, the person will be placed into the Seniority Pool until the second evaluation is completed in Spring 2018, for the purposes of Fall 2018 assignments.
- c. The faculty member will be provided a base load assignment in Fall 2018, pending their Spring 2018 evaluation results.
- d. At the end of Spring 2018, the second evaluation will determine whether the part-time faculty is in or out of the Preferred Hiring Pool.
- e. If any evaluation is not completed in accordance with the evaluation process (at no fault of the faculty), and the faculty meets the time requirements of eight out twelve semesters, the faculty will remain, or be placed into, the Preferred Hiring Pool.
- f. Faculty who have taught four or five semesters by the end of Spring 2017 may request an out of schedule evaluation during 2017-2018. If this evaluation rating is "Surpasses" or "Exemplary," they will be placed in the Preferred Hiring Pool in Fall 2018, when the seniority system begins. If the evaluation rating is lower, they will be allowed to request a second evaluation, as per current policy.

5. Removal of Part-time Faculty from the Preferred Hiring Pool:

year, if all of the following conditions are met:

The following conditions constitute grounds for removal from the Preferred Hiring Pool:

- a. <u>Permanent removal</u> from the Preferred Hiring Pool shall result pursuant to Educational Code 87665.
- b. A <u>sustained complaint</u> concerning harassment or discrimination only, the outcome of which did not rise to the level of suspension or dismissal pursuant to the Education Code. A sustained complaint implies a thorough investigation (refer to Investigation Article of CBA) was carried out and the faculty member in question was accorded due process as per the Ed Code and CBA, including any side letters.
 - A sustained complaint is a complaint which, after a fact-based investigation, is found to be supported by the preponderance of the evidence standard. The District's investigation finding is not subject to the grievance process.
 - Process for request for reinstatement from removal due to sustained complaint
 concerning harassment or discrimination only:
 A part-time faculty member who is removed from the Preferred Hiring Pool due to a
 sustained complaint of harassment or discrimination may submit a request to the
 College President to be reinstated to the Preferred Hiring Pool after one academic
 - a) The faculty member has not engaged in any of the conduct described above during the one-year period, and
 - b) The faculty member is evaluated during the one-year period, and receives at least a "surpasses requirements" rating and
 - c) The faculty shall be required to attend, and successfully complete harassment or discrimination awareness training provided by the District.

Reinstatement to the Preferred Hiring Pool is discretionary. A decision not to reinstate is not subject to the grievance procedure. However, failure to follow the process described in this article is subject to the grievance procedure.

- c. <u>Failure to turn in census rosters</u>, <u>attendance rosters</u>, <u>or grade rosters</u> by the deadline provided by the district, given sufficient notification and at no fault of the district offices/administration faculty member.
 - 1) Sufficient notification shall be defined as at least one email to the faculty member via PCCD email account within two days of the roster becoming available on the Faculty Center.
 - 2) Process for removal due to failure to turn in records in a timely manner:
 - a) After two consecutive semesters of failure to turn in rosters in a timely manner, a faculty member in the part-time hiring pool may be recommended for removal from the Preferred Hiring Pool.
 - b) A three-person committee shall be formed to consider the recommendation to remove due to failure to turn in rosters.
 - c) The committee shall be made up of the Vice President of Instruction (or designee), the Academic Senate President (or designee), and a Department chair (or designee).
 - d) The committee shall review all faculty records to ensure that all faculty who have not met the obligation are treated fairly.
 - e) The committee shall allow the faculty member and the Dean a minimum of two weeks during the regular semester to provide supporting documents for review, before a decision is made on the case.
 - f) If the committee does not meet according to the established guidelines (outlined below), then the faculty member shall remain in the Preferred Hiring Pool.
 - g) Committee timelines are as follows:
 - (1) The Vice President of Instruction (or designee) shall send written notification of the committee meeting within two weeks of the start of the semester following the failure to turn appropriate documentation in to the district.
 - (2) The notification will provide at least two weeks' notice to the faculty member to prepare for the meeting.
 - (3) The committee meeting will occur by the 6^{th} week of the semester.
 - (4) The decision of the committee shall be by majority vote and shall be made by the 8th week of the semester.
 - h) Supporting documents presented to this committee may include:
 - (1) Notifications to the faculty regarding due dates for the submission of census roster, attendance roster or grade roster, and regarding the submission process
 - (2) Notifications to the faculty that a document was not received by the due date.
 - (3) Instructions to the faculty on how to turn in the documents after missing the due date.
 - (4) Requests to the Dept. Chair to contact the faculty using the faculty's home phone or non-Peralta email regarding turning in the documents
 - (5) Evidence presented by the faculty member that they tried to turn the documents in, but problems with the District's Information Technology system (or Admissions and Records system) prevented the District from receiving the documents.
 - (6) Extenuating circumstances which may have prevented the faculty member from receiving emails, instructions or notices; or which may have prevented the faculty member from acting on notices that were received.
 - (7) Evidence submitted by other faculty in the department regarding the process of notification of these events.
 - (8) Evidence submitted by any Peralta faculty regarding problems with Peralta's Information Technology system and Admissions and Records system in regard to submitting census rosters, attendance rosters and grade rosters.

- (9) Supporting documents may be submitted to the committee in person, in writing, or via email.
- i) The decision of the committee is not grievable but violations of the process described in this article are.
- d. Process for reinstatement upon removal due to failure to turn in rosters:
 - 1) A part-time faculty member who is removed from the Rehire Preference Pool due to failure to turn in rosters may submit a request to be reinstated to the Vice President of Instruction.
 - 2) Requests must be made no later than the end of the third full week of the fall/spring term following at least two consecutive semesters in which roster submission timelines were met. The request will automatically be approved upon validation of the roster submissions.

d. Program Operational Components:

a. Electronic List

The Office of Human Resources will create and maintain an updated electronic list of all individuals currently in the Preferred Hiring Pool, and will provide shared access to Division Deans, other designated College administrators, and to the PFT President, PFT Grievance Officer, Faculty Senate Presidents and College Department Chairs.

Human Resources will update the list as required. Designated individuals shall have query access to view the list (view sorts by College or District-wide) by discipline from his/her desktop. Part-time employees shall have computer access to his/her individual information.

The electronic list shall include contact information, each discipline for which minimum qualifications have been met; confirmation of receipt of required performance evaluation received in Human Resources, base load (see #c below), confirmation of the most recent District semesters worked, and the discipline of service. The data shall not include reference to gender, ethnicity, age, ability, or other category as protected by Equal Employment Opportunity law.

The list shall be updated with current assignment information within four weeks of the start of each semester.

b. Assignment

Members of the Preferred Hiring Pool shall be offered assignments for his/her Base load (see #c. below) if such assignments are available. Assignments beyond Base load are not precluded by this agreement. The College retains the right of assignment of regular or contract faculty and to cancel part-time assignments based on the needs of the College and the District.

An assignment is defined as the load described in the Letter of Assignment or the load of the faculty member at the census date, whichever is greater. In the event of any error, the letter may be amended after the contractually mandated Letter of Assignment and prior to the first day of class.

c. Base Load

The base load of a part-time instructor shall be the average equated hours assigned to the part-time faculty member in each discipline at each college in the Spring and in the Fall semesters during the most recent three years, including the semester in which the list is made. Base load shall be calculated separately for the Spring and Fall semesters, up to a maximum of 67% of base contract load. Base load for former Diversity Interns shall be based on his/her internship assignment. The assignment preference is only at the college (s) where the part-time faculty member works. If a part-time faculty member is bumped from an assignment or has classes canceled, the base load calculation will include his/her base load as originally assigned. Exceptions to removal from the list will also be made in the event of approved family leave, documented medical circumstances, or a documented medical emergency.

For faculty in the Preferred Hiring pool in multiple disciplines per the form "Placement in Preferred Hiring Pool for Multiple Disciplines," the base load shall be the sum of all assignments within those disciplines. Colleges will be permitted to assign faculty to any discipline for which placement into the Preferred Hiring Pool has been established.

d. Emergency Hires

Emergency hires fill part-time faculty positions that become vacant due to the sudden unavailability of staff during an ongoing semester or during the four weeks immediately prior to a semester, summer session, or intersession, or when classes or services are added following the start of a semester, summer session, or intersession due to increased enrollment demands.

When an Emergency Hire position is identified, the Division Dean and Department Chair (if applicable, and/or other discipline faculty as designated by the Dean) shall make every effort to employ a part-time faculty member in the Preferred Hiring Pool.

If the Emergency Hire position cannot be filled with a part-time faculty member in the Preferred Hiring Pool, the Division Dean and department chair (if applicable, and/or other discipline faculty as designated by the Dean) shall make a good faith effort to:

- 1) Review the database of discipline employees not in the Preferred Hiring Pool
- 2) Coordinate with Human Resources for the review application materials of outside candidates
- 3) Interview candidates who most closely meet the desirable skills and experience of the position(s)
- 4) Select an individual to fill the unexpected vacancy.

Emergency hires from the non-Preferred Hiring Pool will not automatically enter the Preferred Hiring Pool, unless they qualify as described above.

e. Bumping Rights

Members of the Preferred Hiring Pool will not have the right to bump from an assignment of another Part-time Faculty member.

APPENDIX G: PART-TIME, LTS* AND TENURED FACULTY EVALUATION FORMS USED

Note: Special forms for evaluating non-classroom part-time faculty are being develop and will appear on the both the PCCD webpages and the PFT website as they are developed and approved. **

Other that Student Evaluation Forms, the above "Part-time and Tenured Forms" are **NOT** the same forms as those used with Tenure Track Faculty.

The following forms are to be used by Evaluation Teams who evaluate part-time, LTS* and Tenured Faculty

Part-Time and Tenured Instructor

Student Evaluation Faculty/Classroom Evaluation Administrative Evaluation Self-Evaluation Summary Report Form

Part-Time and Tenured Counselor

Faculty Observation of Counselor Administrative Evaluation of Counselor

Part-Time and Tenured Librarian

Faculty Observation of Librarian Administrative Evaluation of Librarian

Scannable Student Evaluation Forms cannot be coped and used; our Scantron machine will not process photocopies of scannable Student Evaluations of Instructors (SEIs); only original printed SEI forms

^{*} LTS working one semester/year only and who will not convert to full-time https://www.peralta.edu/academicaffairs/faculty-evaluations-policies-procedures-forms and https://pft1603.org/?page_id=215

APPENDIX H. TENURE REVIEW EVALUATION PLAN

For (Year) _____

Tenure Track CANDIDATE:		College:
TRC Chair: TRC Member: TRC Member:		Dean/Supervisor:
		Faculty Mentor (optional):
Date(s)	<u>Activity</u>	20() Fall Semester/Year:
TRC Eval 1st T Stud SEI into TRC 2nd [See Peer port TRC 3rd [See Adn TRC Self TRC Cert If do	RC Faculty/Classroom Observation lent Evaluations (SEIs) with Cover Strain Report w/Comments will be returned Candidate's TR portfolio, housed in the Emets with Candidate to review (strain I TRC Faculty/Classroom Observations above for in Evaluations sent (by Dean) to faculty folio housed in the Vice President's Emets with Candidate to review (strain I TRC Faculty/Classroom Observations and Faculty/Classroom Observations with Candidate to review evaluation to be completed by Can Emets with Candidate to review evaluation/Recommendation form; Telesired, Candidate may do written research, Candidate may do written research, Candidate may do written research of the valuation form; Telesired, Candidate may do written research, Candidate Summary Reposite the valuation of the valuation	roved by VPI & Tenure Facilitator, and copies distributed. In and 1st set of Student Evaluations to be done. Once done, forward original Sheet to Ann Childress at VC-AA/District Office for processing/tallying. In the Vice President's Office. Indent and faculty) evaluations done so far. In truction and 2nd [] set of Student Evaluations to be done. Instructions on processing/filing.] Ity in Candidate's discipline. Once done, Peer Evaluations are put into Office. Itudent and faculty) evaluations done so far. In tructions of processing/filing.] Ity in Candidate's discipline. Once done, Peer Evaluations are put into Office. Itudent and faculty) evaluations done so far. It will be the done.
	luations to be done. [See Sept (12) ege Tenure Review Certification Co ident for review & signature or. TT Candidate or if necessary] 5th luations to be done. [See Sept (12) Academic Affairs meets w/Tenure FAcademic Affairs to have reviewed yr. TT Candidate or if necessary] 6th luations to be done. [See Sept (12) Evaluation to be done by Candidate or meets with Candidate to review all lure Facilitator meets with TRC and lure Facilitators certify to VC Academents are in the portfolio.	TRC Faculty/Classroom Observation and 4 th [] Set of Student — <i>I</i> st evaluations above for instructions on processing/filing.] mmittee meets to review/concur with TRC recs. & send Certs./Recs. to TRC Faculty/Classroom Observation and 5 th [] Set of Student — <i>I</i> st evaluations above for instructions on processing/filing.] Facilitators to review all TRC Certification/Recommendations and sent all TR Certification/Recommendations to Chancellor TRC Faculty/Classroom Observation and 6 th [] Set of Student — <i>I</i> st evaluations above for instructions on processing/filing.] TRC and placed in Candidate's portfolio by TRC Chair.
Vice Presid	ent of Instruction	College Tenure Facilitator

^{*} Use of this form/sample Evaluation Plan is optional. TRCs are free to develop their own Evaluation Plan, but it should essentially be a timeline of activities involved in the Tenure Review process for their Candidate, following the policies and procedures in the Handbook, as suggested above. [Rev. 8-16]

The Peralta Community College District

And

Peralta Federation of Teachers

For Contract Period July 1, 2022 – June 30, 2025 APPENDIX – Successor Agreement 2023-2025

Table of Contents

A1.	[FORM] FACULTY GRIEVANCE FORM	1-1
A2.	[FORM] RESIGNATION	2-5
A3.	[FORM] RETIREMENT BENEFITS	3-6
A4.	ACADEMIC CALENDARS	4-7
A5.	PROFESSIONAL DAYS AGREEMENT	5-8
A6.	[FORM] RESPONDENT'S NOTIFICATION SUMMARY	6-11
A7.	[CONTRACT] PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT LEAVE / SABBATICAL	
A8.	CORESOURCE / BLUE CROSS / MEDCO / SPECTERA	8-14
A9.	[CONTRACT] RETRAINING LEAVE CONTRACT	9-20
A10.	JOB DESCRIPTIONS	10-21
10.1 10.2 10.3 10.4 10.5 10.6 10.7	JOB DESCRIPTION FOR COUNSELING DEPARTMENT CHAIR JOB DESCRIPTION FOR DEPARTMENT CHAIRPERSON DESCRIPTION FOR DSP&S COORDINATOR JOB DESCRIPTION FOR HEAD LIBRARIAN JOB DESCRIPTION FOR HEALTH SERVICES COORDINATOR JOB DESCRIPTION FOR STUDENT HEALTH SERVICES NURSE JOB DESCRIPTION FOR MENTAL HEALTH SPECIALIST JOB DESCRIPTION FOR DISTRICT HEALTH SERVICES COORDINATOR	10-22 10-24 10-26 10-27 10-29 10-30
A11.	[FORM] LEAVE BANKING PROGRAM APPLICATION	11-33
A12.	SIDE LETTERS	12-34
12.1 12.2 PFT A13 .	Two-Year Contract Extension: November 21, 2006	12-35 12-35
A14.	[FORM] DISTRICT OWNERSHIP OF ON-LINE AND WEB BASED MATERIAL	14-40
A15.	LETTER OF AGREEMENT ON SALARY. MEDICAL AND DENTAL BENEFITS	
A16.	NON-SMART CLASSROOM CAMERAS BY COLLEGES AND ROOM NUMBERS.	
A17.	[FORM] FACULTY REQUEST FOR CLASSROOM VIDEO RECORDING	
A18.	[FORM] INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY VERIFICATION FORM	18-44
A19.	[FORM] ENROLLMENT FEE WAIVER FORM	19-45
A20. PROC	TENURE TRACK & TENURED CONTRACT FACULTY EVALUATION POLICI EDURES HANDBOOK	
A21.	[FORM] PART-TIME FACULTY AVAILABILITY & PREFERENCE	21-47
A22.	[FORM] PFT MEMBERSHIP APPLICATION	22-48
A23.	FACULTY HIRED UNDER ED CODE SECTION 87470	23-50
23.1	CBA ARTICLES WHICH APPLY IN THEIR ENTIRETY TO 87470 FACULTY	23-51

APPEN	DIX – Successor Agreement 2023-2025	
23.2	CBA ARTICLES WHICH DO NOT APPLY TO 87470 FACULTY	23-51
23.3	CBA ARTICLES WHICH PARTIALLY APPLY TO 87470 FACULTY	23-52
23.4	ED CODE 87470	23-53
23.5	[FORM] ACADEMIC EMPLOYEE AGREEMENT CATEGORICALLY FUNDED POSITION	23-54
A24.	[FORM] SAMPLE BALLOT FOR DEPARTMENT CHAIRS	24-57
A25.	[FORM] SPLIT CLASS ASSIGNMENT AGREEMENT FORM	25-58
A26.	PUBLIC SERVICE LOAN FORGIVENESS	26-59
A27.	PERALTA/CORESOURCE DEPENDENT ELIGBILITY AUDIT	28-60

A1. [FORM] FACULTY GRIEVANCE FORM

NOTE: Prior to a faculty member initiating the grievance procedure, an informal review shall take place between the faculty member and their first level manager (See Article 19, Section O)

1.Name of Grievant	College	
Department/Division:	Immed	iate Supervisor
Grievant's Address:		
Phone:	Home I	Phone:
2.Article Grieved	Section Date Filed	Paragraph
3.Statement of Grievance (Attach additional	al page(s) if necessary):	
Note: All grievances pertaining to District payment of salary; fringe benefits; sick lear retirement, shall go directly to Step 2. All or review process.	ve accrual; credentialin	g; personnel files; seniority;
4.Relief, Remedy Action Sought (Attach a	dditional page(s) if neco	essary):
Signature	Da	ate

Step 1: First-Level Manager's Response

NOTE: Within ten (10) working days after the first level manager's response to the INFORMAL REVIEW, the faculty member may file a formal written grievance with the College President on the Faculty Grievance form if it is within seventy-seven (77) working days after the grievant knew of the condition on which this grievance is based.

Within ten (10) working days after receiving the written grievance, a conference including the grievant, the Federation representative, the College President, and the appropriate manager(s) shall be held.

Within seven (7) working days of the conference, a written decision including appropriate reasons shall be rendered by the College President.		
Date of first contact to consider grievance		
Response (Attach additional page(s) if necessary):		
SignatureDate		
Step 2: Vice-Chancellor's Response Within ten (10) working days after receipt of the written decision of the College President, the grievant may forward a copy of the Faculty Grievance Form to the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources and Employee Relations for further review, if they are not satisfied with the College President's decision.		
NOTE: Within ten (10) working days of receipt of the request for further review, a conference including the grievant, the Federation representative, the College President or designee, and the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources and Employee Relations or designee shall be held.		
Within seven (7) working days of the conference, a written decision including appropriate reasons shall be rendered by the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources and Employee Relations or designee.		
Date of Step 2 Filing		
Date of Step 2 Conference		
Response (Attach additional page(s) if necessary):		
SignatureDate		

Step 3a:

APPENDIX – Successor Agreement 2023-2025

If the Federation is not satisfied with the decision at Step 2, the Federation, with the concurrence of the District, may appeal the decision from Step 2 to mediation or other dispute resolution methods. If a conclusion is reached that is agreeable to both parties, the resolution will be binding.

The PFT wishes to appeal the decision to the Center for Dispute Resolution.		
Signature	Date	
OR:		
of the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources and	*	
Signature	Date	
Arbitrator's Decision (See attached)	Date	

PERALTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT OFFICE OF HUMAN RESOURCES

A2. [FORM] RESIGNATION

1.				
3.	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
NA	ME			
CO	DLLEGE			
1.	I hereby resign from all positions or assignments held by me as an employee of the Peralta Community College District as of:			
	Effective date of resignation:			
2.	Reason (Optional)			
3.	You may request an exit interview with the Director of Employee Relations. At such an interview, you can obtain information about health benefits, TSA Accounts, retirement rights, insurance programs, etc.			
	I request an exit interview: Yes No			
4.	Completion of this form does not constitute an application for withdrawal of your retirement allowances. It is the employee's responsibility to complete and submit the necessary documents which may be obtained from either the Human Resources Department at 333 East 8th Street, Oakland, Ca 94606 or from the STRS Office at 313 West Winton Avenue, Hayward, CA 94544-1198 or, if applicable, from the PERS office at 350 McAllister Street, Room 3248, San Francisco, CA 94102.			
5.	I have received information pertaining to COBRA Benefits (Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act), and I have received a copy of this form for my records.			
Th	e Peralta Federation of Teachers recommends that you:			
1.	Contact the PFT before submitting this form to discuss your current and future rights under the education code and the PCCD/PFT contract, and			
2.	. Discuss the financial implications of your resignation with a STRS (or PERS, if applicable) counselor before signing this form. Your resignation will seriously affect your future retirement, health and insurance benefits.			
Sig	natureDate			

Note: When possible, a faculty member should give 30 days advance notice of resignation prior to the beginning of a semester.

1 3.	[FORM] RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Faculty/Classified Employees)		
	Name (Please type or print)	Date of Retirement	
A.	I have been informed that upon my retirement I am elithe equivalent. I understand that if I am a partial continuous premium cost(Employer	ract employee, I must pay a pro-rata portion of the	
В.	3. I understand that to receive this benefit I must be enrolled at the time of retirement in the District-provided health insurance. I understand that if I am not enrolled in the District-provided health insurance at the time of retirement I will not be entitled to this benefit after the effective date of my retirement. I also understand the prior to my retirement I may enroll in the District-provided health insurance, subject to enrollment and eligibility requirements of the District-provided health insurance.		
C.	I understand that I may change medical plans after ret Kaiser and I move out of a Kaiser service area.	rement only if I am currently covered by	
D.	. I understand that if I am a member and I move out of the State of California, I will be entitled to benefits provided by Retiree First, which does not include the 20% co-payment provision for use of non-network provider services. In this event, it is my obligation to notify the District of the intended move.		
E.	I understand that I may elect to continue my Delta Dental benefits for a maximum period of 18 months for myself and for my dependents, under the provisions of COBRA, and that I must pay for these benefits.		
F	I understand that my life insurance benefits continue until my 66th birthday. Information will be provided at my request, regarding conversion to an individual plan.		
G.	I understand that I may voluntarily decline post-retired	ment medical benefits.	
** On	**************************************	**************************************	
	I hereby elect to receive health care benefits upon n	ny retirement. Other	
	I voluntarily decline post-retirement health care ben voluntary and that this decision is final.	efits. I understand that my waiver of these benefits is	
	Signature of Employee	Date	
	Signature of Spouse (required only if benefits are	declined) Date	

A4. ACADEMIC CALENDARS

For current calendars, see PFT Website: http://pft1603.org/?page_id=189

A5. PROFESSIONAL DAYS AGREEMENT

The total flex day obligation for the academic year shall equal the total teaching obligation (or equated load assignment) from which the instructor is released plus those out of classroom hours of responsibilities which will no longer need to be performed as the result of being released from classroom instruction. Faculty shall be required to participate in and report flex hours that are equal to the number of teaching hours that would have been taught if classes met that day. Participating in flex hours for out of classroom hours of responsibility which will no longer need to be performed as the result of being released from classroom instruction is the professional responsibility of each faculty. Agreed upon Professional Days activities do not differ from contractual obligations to meet with classes. If faculty members fail to meet their Professional Days obligation, their pay may be reduced. If a faculty member's inability to complete their Professional Days agreement is excusable for the same reasons that missing a class would be excusable, (e.g., sick leave or personal necessity leave) then the same procedures should be used to be excused.

- A. Professional Days are in lieu of regular class meetings; contract, temporary and extra service faculty shall be paid as if they were conducting their regular classes during those days. Faculty may participate in more hours of activities than their obligation. However, no additional compensation will be paid for such participation.
- B. At least 40% of such hours will be in attendance at regularly scheduled workshops on the designated Professional Days. The remaining 60% of the hours may be satisfied through independent staff development projects approved by the faculty member's assistant dean. Partial contract faculty shall be required to participate on a pro-rata basis. However, faculty members shall receive Flex Day credit, up to the maximum allowed, for time spent in orientation and special training required by the District or outside agencies contracting with the District. Flex Day credit shall first be used to cover the required orientation and special training. The District shall compensate faculty for orientation and special training required by the District or outside agencies contracting with the District at .50 pro rata if more time is required than is available for Flex Day Credit. Up to 100% of the time allotted for Flex Day activity may be used for the purpose, if necessary, to fulfill the special training/orientation obligation.
- C. Counselors and enablers may be assigned to registration responsibilities on those Professional Days which coincide with the registration period. However, the District will make every effort to cover the registration so that counselors and enablers may attend Professional Days activities if they so desire. Librarians and nurses will either attend Professional Days activities or maintain regular services on Professional Days.
- D. Faculty teaching scheduled short-term classes who are paid on an hourly basis, rather than a course by course basis, may participate in Professional Days activities. However, no additional compensation will be paid for such participation.

Part-time temporary faculty shall participate in flex-day activity on the same basis as their weekly teaching assignments. For example, if the instructor has an assignment of teaching three hours in-class and Professional Days on that day, they shall participate and report 3 hours of flex activities. Obligations of 3 equated hours or fewer equated hours shall be

satisfied by participation in regularly scheduled workshops on the designated Professional Day(s). If the obligation exceeds 3 hours, the faculty member must satisfy their obligation by participating in at least 3 hours of regularly scheduled workshops on the designated Professional Day(s). The remaining obligation may be satisfied either by participation in additional scheduled workshops or by independent staff development projects approved by the faculty member's assistant dean.

- E. Regular and contract faculty who are assigned extra service classes that would normally meet on the Professional Day must participate in additional hours equal to their extra service obligation. These hours may be either in organized workshops on the designated Professional Days, or in independent staff development projects approved by the faculty member's assistant dean.
- F. Faculty who teach workshops, seminars or other staff development classes during Professional Days shall be credited with three hours of attendance for every hour of workshop time. In the event that a faculty member has unusual preparation requirements for facilitating a workshop, a written appeal for additional credit hours may be made to the District Advisory Committee on Staff Development.
- G. Faculty shall indicate their planned flex activities in writing, including a list of workshops they propose to attend and a description of independent activities. Independent activities must be approved by the appropriate assistant dean and must include the number of hours the activity will require and a date of completion. Independent project activities must be completed between July 1 and June 30. All activities which will be completed after the end of the academic year must have prior approval and verification of completion. Completion must be submitted by July 2nd of the year for which credit is claimed. Faculty shall verify attendance at Professional Days activities by signing in at each workshop they attend. Completion of independent projects must also be verified in writing by completing and signing the appropriate form. All verification forms are official documents, and falsifications are subject to the charge of perjury.
- H. Independent projects are flexible calendar activities that provide opportunities to design individual programs that are in conformity with the general principles of staff development and are approved by the faculty member's assistant dean. Specific projects that fall under this category must be well planned and professionally appropriate. Normal instructional activities, which are a part of the regular teaching responsibility are not staff development activities. However, tutorial programs for students may be used to satisfy flex day obligations. Such tutorials shall be treated as independent projects. Activities should occur at other than regular teaching times and scheduled office hours. Participating in committees at the District or college level is also a part of faculty member's regular professional responsibility that does not qualify for staff development credit unless such credit is negotiated in a separate agreement. Moreover, when committee work requires an unusual amount of time, the District Advisory Committee may make exceptions and grant credit for committee work. For consideration of exceptions, the faculty member must make their request in writing to the District Advisory Committee on Staff Development.

- I. The Peralta Community College District shall appropriate \$18,000 for Professional Days expenses. The account for such expenses will be maintained at the District Office, under the supervision of the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs and the Staff Development Officer. Any expenses in excess of \$18,000 must be paid out of staff development allocations.
- J. The District Advisory Committee on Staff Development, composed of the Vice Chancellor or designee, the Staff Development Officer and the Chairs of the College Professional Development Committees shall coordinate all professional days activities. This committee shall also resolve all problems and issues arising from the activities. This committee shall also resolve all problems and issues arising from the flexible calendar and Professional Days activities that are separate from those stated in this Agreement or that are not covered in the PFT/PCCD collective bargaining.

The period of this Agreement is July 1, 2004 through the contract extension until June 30, 2009. Either party may reopen at negotiations.

Revised 2/15/96

A6. [FORM] RESPONDENT'S NOTIFICATION SUMMARY

PERALTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT RESPONDENT'S NOTIFICATION SUMMARY Unlawful EEO Complaint

m	Unlawful E	EO Complaint	
Name of Respondent The Office of Human Resources and the Respondent. An investigation notified by the Office of Human Resinvestigative interview with you.	into the allegations is	required by law and will	commence promptly. You will be
Date Complaint Filed:			
Complaint based on the following	ig category:		
□ Age □ Ethnic Group □ Race □ Mental Disabi □ Color □ National Original	lity 🗆	Religion	□ Sexual Orientation□ Sex (includes Harassment)□ Other
Summary of Allegations Made allegations/discoveries are made new allegations/discoveries). A complaint; and/or (2) an alleg Respondent's Notification Summ	e, you will be notifie new allegation is de ation unrelated to	ed in writing and provide fined as: (1) a new or d	ded a complete summary of the different complainant making of
You have not been charged with an findings by mail. If you would prefe you may personally pick up the letter	er the findings not be n	nailed to your resident add	dress, please make this known and
While the District cannot promise a confidentiality.	absolute confidentiality	, the District will make e	very reasonable effort to maintain
Please be reminded that retaliation federal laws as well as District Police		the complaining party co	onstitutes a violation of state and
If this investigation results in a r necessary, provided a full copy of the		cipline, you will be notifi	ed of the recommendation and if
The respondent will receive a summ when the investigation is concluded.	ary of findings, as well	l as the conclusion and rec	o nmendations of the investigation
In agreeing to these provisions, neit Code, or other sources of law, to make			
If you have any questions about the	allegations or the proce	ess, you can contact me et	510/466-7252.
Trudy Largent, J.D. Vice Chancellor for Human Resource	es & Employee Relation		L'ate

PERALTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

A7. [[CONTRACT] PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT LEAVE / SABBATICAL		
1	1. This agreement is entered into between Community College District (PCCD) for the expression accordance with Article 26 (R) of the contract betwand PCCD.	ess benefit of the PCCD and Employee in	
2	Employee has been granted a Professional Development Leave (Leave) from to During this Leave, Employee will not perform any other paid assignment or paid services for PCCD. Employee will devote their professional full-time equivalent effort to the activities, purposes and objectives of the Leave. Employee will receive salary and benefits consistent with the provisions of Article 26 (R). Employee agrees to provide PCCD with immediate notice of any conditions that prevents the Employee from completing the objectives of the Leave.		
3	3. As consideration for granting the Leave, Employee PCCD for a period equal to twice the duration of Employee shall provide the professional development.	of the Leave after completion of the Leave.	
4	4. Employee agrees that if they fail to return to regular faculty service at the completion of the Le the Employee will reimburse PCCD for all salary and benefits paid to Employee during the Le Except as provided in Article 26 (R) (10), if the Employee fails to complete the service required under paragraph 3, the Employee agrees to reimburse PCCD for all salary and benefits paid to Employee equal to the period of unfulfilled service.		
5	5. Relevant provisions of Article 26 (R) are incorp though fully set forth herein. Nothing in this Agre prohibited by Education Code Sections 87767, 877 of this Agreement. Except as provided herein, this between Employee and PCCD relating to the Leave	eement is intended to be inconsistent with or 768, 87769-87775 which shall govern the terms as Agreement contains the entire Agreement	
6	6. Employee represents and warrants that they have to Agreement on their own behalf and the Employee and assigns. Employee represents that they have his voluntarily entering into this Agreement.	ee's heirs, executors, administrators, successors	
PLEASI	E READ CAREFULLY		
 Employe	ee Signature	Date:	
1 2		D.	
PCCD S	Signature	Date:	
		Date	
Approve	ed by College President		

A8. BENEFITS SUMMARIES

SISC Anthem PPO Plan

MEDICAL PLAN BENEFITS	PFT ANTHE	PFT ANTHEM (SISC) PPO PLAN	
	In Network	Out-of-Network	
Calendar Year Deductible	No	one (N/A)	
Individual/Family			
Embedded/Aggregate			
Annual Out of Pocket Maximum	\$1000/\$3000	No Limit	
Individual/Family			
Embedded/Aggregate	Embedded	Embedded	
Physician Office Visit	\$10 copay; copay waived for	Member pays difference	
Thysician Office Visit	visits 1-3 in a benefit period	between max allowed and	
	visits i s in a senem period	actual changes	
Specialist Copay	\$10 copay	Member pays difference	
		between max allowed and	
		actual changes	
Preventative Care	No charge	Not covered	
Lab and X-Ray		All billed amounts	
CT, MRI, PET Scans	No charge	exceeding \$600 per day	
Other lab and x-ray tests	No charge	All billed amounts	
		exceeding \$350 per day	
Hospitalization		Member pays all billed	
Inpatient	No charge	amounts exceeding \$800	
Outpatient	No charge	Not covered	
Emergency Room	\$100 0	\$100 copay	
	(Waived if	admitted)	
Urgent Care Services	\$10 copay	Member pays difference	
_		between max allowed and	
		actual changes	
Durable Medical Equipment	No charge	Not covered	
PRESCRIPTION DRUGS	Generic/Brand		
Rx Copay Out-of-Pocket Maximum			
Retail - 30 day supply		\$5/\$20	
	At a network pha	At a network pharmacy provider	
Mail Order - 90 day supply	\$0/\$	\$0/\$50	
J 11 J	(Costco M		

Kaiser HMO Plan

MEDICAL PLAN BENEFITS	PFT KAISER HMO PLAN
	In Network Only

APPENDIX	<u></u>	
Calendar Year Deductible	None	
Individual/Family		
Embedded/Aggregate	Embedded	
Annual Out of Pocket Maximum		
Individual/Family	\$1500/\$3000	
Embedded/Aggregate	Embedded	
Physician Office Visit	\$10 copay	
Specialist Copay	\$10 copay	
Preventative Care	No charge	
Lab and X-Ray		
CT, MRI, PET Scans	No charge	
Other lab and x-ray tests	No charge	
Hospitalization		
Inpatient	No charge	
Outpatient	\$10 per procedure	
Emergency Room	\$100 copay	
	(Waived if admitted)	
Urgent Care Services	\$10 copay	
Durable Medical Equipment	No charge	
Chiropractic Care	\$10 Copay	
	30 visits combined	
VISION		
Copay (Vision Correction)	No charge	
Copay (Injury/Disease)	\$10	
Allowance	\$150	
Frequency	24 or 12	
PRESCRIPTION DRUGS	Generic/Brand	
Rx Copay Out-of-Pocket Maximum	Combined with medical	
Retail - 100 day supply	\$10/\$10	
Mail Order - up to 100 day supply	\$10/\$10	
	(Costco Mail Order)	
	I I	

Medicare Advantage Plan

MEDICAL BENEFITS	ANTHEM MEDICARE ADVANTAGE	
	Medicare Provider	
Lifetime Max	None	
Out-of-Pocket Maximum	\$0	
Deductible	None	
Hospital	\$0	
Dr. Office Visits	\$0	
Preventative Care	\$0	

Emergency Room	\$0 Copay
Chiropractic	\$0
Vision	\$100 material allowance every 24 months
Hearing Aids	\$500 allowance every 12 months (both ears)
RX	RETAIL/MAIL
Generic	\$1/\$1
Preferred Brand	\$1/\$1
Non-Preferred Brand	\$1/\$1

2. The benefits summary above is not in any way meant to lower or limit the following rights or coverages:

A. Out-of-State Retirees

Retirees under age 65 not covered by Medicare who move out of the state will be eligible to participate in one of the District's group health insurance plans as long as the retiree advises the District of the address change. Claims payment calculations and methods will be governed by the plan documents for the various plans offered to the District.

Retirees enrolled in Medicare who move out of the state of California will be eligible for coverage under the Anthem group Medicare Advantage plan. Retirees with spouses or dependents under 65 will remain on the SISC plan until all family members are covered by Medicare (or age out of the plan).

B. Referral

If there is not a participating provider within a 50-mile radius of the member's residence, a member can request an authorized referral to a non-participating provider. If the referral request is approved, the physician will be reimbursed at 100%, after deductible and co-pay, of the network rate.

C. Emergency

Covered expenses for claims incurred due to an emergency as determined by the diagnostic code that the provider applies will be paid as defined in the applicable plan documents. The definition of emergency is also as defined in the applicable plan documents.

The District agrees to pay 100% of uncovered emergency costs after the co-pay including the actual cost of an ambulance if needed.

In the event that the provider determines the event was not a n emergency and was related to placing the patient's health in serious jeopardy, serious impairment to bodily functions, or serious dysfunction of any bodily organ or part, then the insured has the right to appeal .

D. Appeal Procedure

Any dispute or claim may be brought using the appeal process described in the applicable plan documents for each plan. In the event that the appeal is unsuccessful, the insured can appeal by going to small claims court.

E. Clerical Error

No clerical error on the part of the employer or claims processor shall operate to defeat any of the rights, privileges, services or benefits of any employee or any dependent(s) hereunder.

F. Transition to SISC plans

In the event that a covered person was receiving services from a provider of service that is not in the preferred provider network on the date in which the preferred provider network was integrated into this Plan, then the charges resulting from services rendered by that provider will be deemed as having rendered by a preferred provider until the earlier of; the date treatment is concluded (or diagnosis changes) or the end of one month from the date of network integration or change.

If a covered person is receiving services for maternity care from a network provider that is not in the preferred provider network on the date that the network was integrated in this Plan, the charges resulting from services rendered by that provider will be deemed as having been rendered by a preferred provider until the date treatment is concluded.

G. Comparison of Health Plans – Blue Cross, CoreSource, and Kaiser

This agreement includes major changes to the medical/prescription drug plans that the District sponsors. The current and new vendors are:

	PPO Plan – through	PPO Plan –	Pre-Paid Health
	August 31, 2004		Plan – No Change
Administrator	Blue Cross	Core Source	Kaiser
Network	Prudent Buyer	Interplan / PHCS	
		• 9/1/04-8/31/06	
		Blue Cross*	
		• 9/1/06-8/31/07*	
Prescriptions	Wellpoint	Medco	
Stop-Loss	BC Life	ING	

- In the event that a covered person was receiving services from a provider of service that is not in the preferred provider network on the date in which the preferred provider network was integrated into this Plan, then the charges resulting from services rendered by that provider will be deemed as having rendered by a preferred provider until the earlier of; the date treatment is concluded (or diagnosis changes) or the end of one month from the date of network integration or change.
- If a covered person is receiving services for maternity care from a network provider that is not in the preferred provider network on the date that the network was integrated in this Plan, the charges resulting from services rendered by that provider will be deemed as having been rendered by a preferred provider until the date treatment is concluded.

The following plan attributes, co-pays and deductibles shall apply:

Plan Attribute	Blue Cross	CoreSource	Kaiser	Kaiser
Encounter Co-Pay (Office visit, labs, etc.)	Until 8/31/04 Zero	\$10 (deductible is waived)	Until 8/31/04 Zero	\$10
Emergency Room Co-Pay	Zero or \$25, depending on class	\$35 (waived if directed by network physician or admitted as an inpatient)	Zero	\$35
Annual Deductible	Zero	\$100 - 3 times individual deductible per family	None	None
Co-insurance	20% non-	20% non-network	None	None
Mental Health/Chemical Dependency	50% any provider	Covered like any medical condition – no reduction	Covered like any medical condition – no	No change
Infertility; Orthotics; Smoking Cessation	Not Covered	Coverage Now Available, subject to new	No change	No change
Wellness	Limited	Expanded	Extensive	No Change
Health Education	Limited	Expanded	Extensive	No Change

Lifetime Maximum-medical	\$1,000,000	\$5,000,000	Not applicable	Not
	(goes to			applicable
Generic Drug – up to 30	\$1	\$10	\$5	\$10
day supply			·	·
Brand Drug - up to 30	\$1	\$15	\$5	\$15
day supply				
Mail Order –up to 90 supply	\$1	\$5	\$5	\$5*
(Brand and Generic)				Peralta
				reimburses
				expenses
				over \$5

Plan amendments will be introduced by the plan sponsor, Peralta Community College District, as necessary to maintain consistency in the application of plan benefits.

Approved by College President

PERALTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

A9. [CONTRACT] RETRAINING LEAVE CONTRACT
1. This agreement is entered into between (Employee) and the Peralta Community College District (PCCD) for the express benefit of the PCCD and Employee in accordance with Article 26(S) of the contract between the Peralta Federation of Teachers (PFT) and PCCD.
2. Employee has been granted a(proportion of contract) Retraining Leave (Leave) from to During this Leave, Employee will not accept employment with any other employer or perform any other paid assignment or paid services for PCCD. Employee will devote their professional effort to the activities, purposes and objectives of the Leave. Employee will receive salary and benefits consistent with the provisions of Article 26(S). Employee agrees to provide PCCD with immediate notice of any condition that prevents Employee from completing the objectives of the Leave.
3. As consideration for granting the Leave, Employee agrees to return to regular faculty service with PCCD for a period equal to twice the duration of the Leave after completion of the Leave.
4. Employee agrees that if they fail to return to regular faculty service at the completion of the Leave, the Employee will reimburse PCCD for all salary and benefits paid to Employee during the Leave. If the Employee fails to complete the service required under paragraph 3, the Employee agrees to reimburse PCCD for all salary and benefits paid to Employee equal to the period of unfulfilled service consistent with the provisions of Article 26(S) of the PFT/PCCD contract. If the leave is less than full time, the required reimbursement is in proportion to the percent of time on paid leave.
5. Relevant provisions of Article 26(S) are incorporated by reference into this contract as though fully set forth herein. Except as provided herein, this agreement contains the entire agreement between Employee and PCCD relating to the Leave.
6. Employee represents and warrants that they have the authority and capacity to enter into this agreement on their own behalf and the Employee's heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns. Employee represents that they have had the opportunity to seek advice of counsel and is voluntarily entering into this agreement.
PLEASE READ CAREFULLY
Date:
PCCD Signature
Date:

A10. JOB DESCRIPTIONS

10.1 Job Description for Counseling Department Chair

May 6, 1992

The Department Chairperson is responsible to the Dean of Student Services for the performance of the following duties:

- 1. Advocate on behalf of the department and serve as liaison between the Dean of Student Services, Assistant Dean of Student Services, and department faculty and staff
- 2. Responsible for conveying needs of the department to the Dean.
- 3. After consultation with counselors, recommend to the Dean work schedules and assignments of the Counseling Department.
- 4. Prepare agendas and conduct Counseling Department meetings (does not apply at College of Alameda.)
- 5. Assist the Dean of Student Services and Assistant Dean of Student Services in developing and maintaining an effective counseling service.
- 6. May serve on and/or assist in the development of selection committees for regular and parttime faculty in the department.
- 7. May participate in the orientation of new counselors.
- 8. May assist in the development of training programs for counseling interns.
- 9. May serve on and/or assist in the development of regular and part-time counselor evaluation committees. (No more than the number permitted by PFT contract.)
- 10. Review the counseling budget and make recommendations to the Dean.
- 11. May assist the Dean of Student Services with staff development and in service training activities.
- 12. May represent the department at appropriate division, administrative, college, and District meetings.
- 13. May assist the Dean of Student Services in the selection, supervision, and evaluation of classified staff for the Counseling Office (Laney only).
- 14. Disseminate appropriate information to department members.
- 15. Coordinate the development of Unit Plans and Institutional Plan updates.
- 16. Perform related tasks as assigned.

10.2 Job Description for Department Chairperson

The Peralta Community College District (the "District") and the Peralta Federation of Teachers (the "PFT") hereby agree to the following new job description for Department Chairperson in Appendix A16.

Under the supervision of the Division Dean, the Department Chairperson will be responsible for coordinating the activities related to curriculum development, scheduling, budget development, and evaluation of faculty. Specific responsibilities shall include, but are not limited to, the following:

- 1. Advocate on behalf of the department and serve as liaison between the Division Dean and department faculty and staff.
- 2. Be available and listen to inquiries, complaints or issues raised about department matters. Attempt to resolve matters on a department level.
- 3. After consultation with department faculty recommend class schedules to the Division Dean
- 4. Assist in identifying part-time faculty for temporary positions.
- 5. Consult on the development of selection committees for part-time faculty and classified staff within the department. Serve on and/or assist i n the development of selection committees for regular faculty, as specified in Peralta Board Policies and Procedures. 1
- 6. Serve on and/or assist in the development of regular and part-time faculty evaluation committees (no more than the number permitted by the PFT contract) as specified in the PFT Contract and Peralta Board Policies and Procedures.
- 7. Participate in the orientation of new faculty and classified staff in the department.
- 8. May recommend, monitor and maintain department budgets.
- 9. Represent the department at appropriate division, administrative, college, and district meetings.
- 10. May serve on and/or assist in the appointment of department faculty to accreditation committees.
- 11. Coordinate course reviews, revisions, additions and deletions, changes in course outlines and catalogue changes. Assume responsibility for meeting Curriculum Committee deadlines and Disseminating information about curriculum changes to department members.
- 12. Facilitate meeting accreditation standards, for example, assist department faculty to develop Student Learning Outcomes (SLOs) and College Education Master Plan and other college-wide plans as required, and work with faculty to write program reviews and unit plans.
- 13. Convene regularly scheduled department meetings.
- 14. Assist the Division Dean with student recruitment and community outreach efforts.
- 15. May maintain files on current course outlines, syllabi, textbook orders and class schedules.
- 16. Coordinate the utilization and monitor the condition of facilities and equipment assigned to the department.
- 17. Participate in evaluating all staff assigned to the department and help supervise student workers.
- 18. Assist counselors and the Articulation Officer to clarify and update information on departmental courses in conjunction with the matriculation process.
- 19. Communicate departmental concerns to the Division Dean or Vice President of Instruction. Work with administration through the Division Dean or Vice President of Instruction to effect changes requested by the department
- 20. Encourage departmental faculty to keep abreast of changes in curriculum patterns, philosophy of education at other two-year and four-year colleges and/or vocational fields and disseminate

information to department members.

- 21. Assist the Division Dean or Vice President of Instruction in implementing District and state mandated policies, procedures and regulations affecting departmental operations and services.
- 22. Assist the Division Dean with program development activities.
- 23. May represent the department and serve as liaison to agencies, organizations, businesses; etc.
- 24. Perform related tasks as assigned.

This job description for Appendix 16 is subject to approval of the PFT in accordance with its procedures and, thereafter, approval of the PCCD Chancellor and Board of Trustees.

Dated: 2007

10.3 Description for DSP&S Coordinator

May 4, 1992

Under the supervision of the Dean of Students or the Assistant Dean of Students, the Coordinator of the Disabled Student Programs and Services (DSP&S) plans, develops, directs, evaluates, and coordinates educational support services and instructional programs to meet the educational and accessibility needs of students with disabilities to assure compliance with State and Federal laws and regulations.

The DSP&S Coordinator is responsible for the day-to-day operation of DSP&S. Specific responsibilities include, but are not limited to, the following:

- 1. Coordinate the activities of academic, classified and student personnel assigned to the DSP&S Program.
- 2. Develop and plan the DSP&S Program and coordinate DSP&S activities (depending on the campus) such as:
 - Personal, academic, and vocational counseling of students with disabilities,
 - Identification and recruitment of eligible disabled students who need specialized assistance or instruction.
 - Learning Disabilities Program,
 - High Tech Center,
 - Program for Deaf students,
 - Workability program,
 - Vocational Living Skills program,
 - Adaptive Physical Examination program.
- 3. Coordinate the preparation and monitoring of the DSP&S budget.
- 4. Prepare reports, surveys, and other documents as required by the area administrator.
- 5. Train staff in DSP&S functions, Title V Regulations, and State and Federal laws.
- 6. Conduct on going evaluation of programs, staff and student workers.
- 7. Coordinate the maintenance of appropriate records and files.
- 8. Coordinate educational support services for students with disabilities.
- 9. Coordinate and supervises an on-campus transportation system for disabled students.
- 10. Coordinate the development of the DSP&S class schedule in consultation with DSP&S instructors and Office of Instruction.
- 11. Provide liaison with the college administration, faculty, and staff regarding DSP&S issues.
- 12. Provide in-serve training for faculty and staff regarding the needs of students with disabilities.
- 13. Assist instructors in accommodating the academic needs of DSP&S students.
- 14. Coordinate counseling services for disabled students.
- 15. Coordinate and monitor the development of education plans for disabled students.
- 16. Verify, when appropriate, the observable disability of a student as outlined in Section 56008 of Title 5 for participation in DSP&S.
- 17. Coordinate advisory committee meetings for DSP&S.
- 18. Serve as liaison to campus and/or community agencies, including referral to campus or community agencies and follow-up services.
- 19. May represent the college in District and in State DSP&S activities.

- 20.May represent DSP&S on campus and at District committee meetings.
- 21.Keep current with trends and developments in the field through appropriate literature, conferences and other information.
- 22. Perform related tasks as assigned.

10.4 Job Description for Head Librarian

May 4, 1992

Under the supervision of the Dean or Assistant Dean of Instruction, the Head Librarian will be responsible for coordinating the activities related to the Library/Learning Resources Center including scheduling, budget development and evaluation of classified staff. Specific responsibilities shall include but are not limited to, the following:

- 1. Advocate on behalf of the department and service as liaison between the Dean, and department faculty and staff.
- 2. Be available and listen to student inquiries and complaints about department members and services and investigate and attempt resolution on a department level.
- 3. Be available and listen to department members' inquiries and complaints about department matters and investigate and attempt resolution on a department level.
- 4. After consultation with department faculty, recommend department work schedules to the Dean or Assistant Dean.
- 5. Assist in identifying part-time faculty and classified staff for temporary positions.
- 6. May serve on and/or assist in the development of selection committees for regular faculty, part- time faculty, and classified staff in the department.
- 7. May serve on and/or assist in the development of regular and part-time faculty evaluation committees (no more than the number permitted by PFT contract.)
- 8. Participate in the orientation of new faculty and classified staff in the department.
- 9. Recommend, monitor and maintain department budgets.
- 10. Represent the department at appropriate administrative, college and district meetings.
- 11. May serve on and assist in the appointment of department faculty and classified staff to accreditation committees.
- 12. Convene department meetings as often as necessary.
- 13. Coordinate the development of Unit Plans and Institutional Plan updates.
- 14. Coordinate the utilization and monitor the condition of facilities and equipment assigned to the department.
- 15. Supervise and participate in evaluating classified and student staff assigned to the department.
- 16. Communicate departmental concerns to the Dean or Assistant Dean. Work with administration through the Dean or Assistant Dean to effect changes requested by the department.
- 17. Encourage departmental faculty to keep abreast of changes in the library field and disseminate information to department members.
- 18. May represent the library and serve as liaison to outside agencies and organizations.
- 19. Assist the Dean or Assistant Dean in implementing district and state mandated policies, procedures and regulations affecting library operations and services.
- 20. Perform related tasks as assigned.

10.5 Job Description for Health Services Coordinator

Dated: 4/13/12015

CLASS PURPOSE

Under the supervision of the Vice President of Student Services or designee, the College Health Services Coordinator provides, plans, develops, directs, evaluates, and coordinates campus physical and mental health programs to meet the health care needs of students and to further their success and equity in education. The Health Services Coordinator is responsible for the day-to-day operation of campus Health Services. The Coordinator's primary responsibility is to provide students with direct clinical services and care in the area(s) in which they are licensed. The Coordinator will also coordinate with the Vice President of Student Services (or designee), Risk Manager, and District Director of Health Services to provide those services they are not licensed to provide.

EXAMPLES OF ESSENTIAL DUTIES:

Any one position may not include all of the duties listed nor do listed examples include all tasks which may be found in positions of this class.

Specific responsibilities include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Provides direct services and clinical care including physical health or mental health assessment, treatment, and education;
- Coordinates the activities of faculty, contract, volunteer, and/or student personnel assigned to Health Services;
- Develops and plans the Health Services Program and coordinates Health Services activity such as:
- Personal, emotional, and crisis counseling and clinical care of students with mental health needs
- Provides first aid, assessment, and/or immediate referral to a nurse or doctor
- Health services outreach activities,
- Trainee, practicum, and Internship programs
- Campus HIV testing, acupuncture, nursing services, and wellness fairs.
- First aid and CPR training on campus
- Maintains first aid kits throughout the campus
- Wellness education and training, including annual Wellness Fair and blood drive each semester
- Coordinates the preparation and monitoring of the campus health services budget;
- Monitors the clinical practice according to Health Services and College and District policies and procedures, as well as applicable County, State, and Federal regulations, licenses, and standards to ensure compliance and the quality of care provided in the student health services program;
- Maintains a secure, accessible system of confidential medical and mental health records in accordance with applicable standards of practice and State and Federal laws;
- Supervises and trains graduate or post-graduate level trainees or interns;
- Provides campus crisis intervention services, training, and response;
- Provides education and consultation to faculty, staff, and administrators with concerns about student physical/mental health;
- Represents Wellness Services on college and district committees;
- Participates in outreach and promotion of campus wellness services;
- Conducts workshops for students related to health, stress, and/or other physical/mental health related topics;
- Prepare reports, surveys, and other documents as required by the area administrator;

- Conducts on going evaluation of programs, staff and student workers;
- Provides liaison with the college administration, faculty, and staff regarding Health Services issues and concerns;
- Provides and/or organizes in-serve training for faculty and staff regarding the needs of students with physical/ mental health issues;
- Serves as liaison to campus and/or community agencies, including referral to campus or community agencies and follow-up services;
- May represent the college in District and in State Health Services activities;
- May represent Health Services on campus and at District committee meetings;
- Keeps current with trends and developments in the field through appropriate literature, conferences, and other information sources;
- Perform related tasks as assigned.

10.6 Job Description for Student Health Services Nurse

CLASS PURPOSE

Under the direction of the Dean of Student Services or designee, the Student Health Services Nurse will provide health services care and case management to students at the Peralta Colleges. Such services will include disease protection, prevention, and health promotion. Other responsibilities will include facilitating medical and mental health services and making appropriate referrals for prompt treatment to limit or prevent disability; and to perform other related duties in support of student health. Note: The person hired must meet the State Minimum Qualifications for any/each discipline they are assigned to teach.

EXAMPLES OF ESSENTIAL DUTIES

Any one position may not include all of the duties listed, nor do listed examples include all tasks which may be found in positions of this class. To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty of the position satisfactorily. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions required for the position.

- Provide Registered Nursing services to the Student Health Service Program.
- Assist college medical and mental health teams in providing health care, including stress reduction, to the college student population.
- Assess physical health needs and offer appropriate services and/or referrals.
- Assist in or provide crisis intervention and health education.
- Refer student to appropriate campus and community resources for health service needs.
- Provide follow-up (care/case management) on students, and medical treatment and services as needed
- Make appropriate referrals to private practitioners and community agencies for long-term chronic health needs.
- Consult with and advise faculty and other staff in assisting students with health care needs.
- Follow public health protocols for communicable disease control (tuberculosis screening).
- Provide emergency first aid assessment
- Respond as a member of the Disaster and Crisis Alert Team to provide medical care and triage and to work with community agencies.
- Conduct programs for blood pressure screening, influenza clinics, cholesterol screening, and health maintenance services.
- Assist with orientation for new Registered Nurses and student health staff.
- Alert the Dean of Student Services and the Director of Health Services of possible areas of health concern requiring the need for intervention
- Assist in formulating policies, procedures, and protocol for the student health service.
- Participate in college committees relevant to health and safety.
- Evaluate clinic standards of care related to Student Health Services Policies and Procedures from licensed and unlicensed health care providers, according to the California Nurse Practice Act.
- Inventory, requisition, and keep current all necessary nursing equipment and supplies.
- Perform other related job duties as assigned.

10.7 Job Description for Mental Health Specialist

CLASS PURPOSE

Under the supervision of the Vice President of Student Services or designee, the Mental Health Specialist provides, plans, develops, directs, evaluates, and coordinates mental health programs to meet the health care needs of students and to further their success and equity in education. The primary responsibility of the Mental Health Specialist is to provide students with direct clinical services and care in the area(s) in which they are licensed.

EXAMPLES OF ESSENTIAL DUTIES:

To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty of the position satisfactorily. Specific responsibilities include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Provides direct services and clinical care including mental health assessment, treatment, and education:
- Develops and plans a Mental Health Services Program and coordinates Mental Health Services, such as:
 - 1. Personal, emotional, and crisis counseling and clinical care of students with mental health needs
 - 2. Mental health services outreach activities,
 - 3. Trainee, practicum, and Internship programs o Mental health wellness education and training
- Monitors the clinical practice according to Health Services and College and District policies and procedures, as well as applicable County, State, and Federal regulations, licenses, and standards to ensure compliance and the quality of care provided in the student health services program; Maintains a secure, accessible system of confidential mental health records in accordance with applicable standards of practice and State and Federal laws;
- Supervises and trains graduate or post-graduate level trainees or interns;
- Provides campus crisis intervention services, training, and response;
- Provides education and consultation to faculty, staff, and administrators with concerns about student mental health issues;
- Represents mental health wellness services on college and district committees;
- Participates in outreach and promotion of campus mental health wellness services;
- Conducts workshops for students related to mental health, stress, and other mental health-related topics;
- Prepare reports, surveys, and other documents as by the area administrator;
- Provides liaison with the college administration, faculty, and staff regarding mental health services issues and concerns;
- Provides and/or organizes in-service training for faculty and staff regarding the needs of students with mental health issues;
- Serves as liaison to campus and/or community agencies, including referral to campus or community agencies and follow-up services;
- May represent the college in District and State Health Services activities;
- May represent Health Services on campus and at District committee meetings;
- Keeps current with trends and developments in the field through appropriate literature, conferences, and other information sources;
- Perform related tasks as assigned.

10.8 Job Description for District Health Services Coordinator

CLASS PURPOSE

Under the supervision of the Vice President of Student Services or designee, the Mental Health Specialist provides, plans, develops, directs, evaluates, and coordinates mental health programs to meet the health care needs of students and to further their success and equity in education. The primary responsibility of the Mental Health Specialist is to provide students with direct clinical services and care in the area(s) in which they are licensed.

EXAMPLES OF ESSENTIAL DUTIES:

To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty of the position satisfactorily. Specific responsibilities include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Coordinates the preparation, distribution and monitoring of the campus health services budget;
- Supervises and coordinates administrative duties including but not limited to the
 - o purchasing of Health Services supplies and equipment,
 - o monitoring and maintaining agreements and contracts with partner agencies, and
 - o preparing reports, surveys, and other documents as required by the area administrator;
- Coordinates and plans annual PCCD Mental Health Training Institute and Mental Health FDIP program;
- Coordinating and ensuring alignment of health and policies across the district and colleges;
- Coordinates the activities of faculty, contract, volunteer, and/or student personnel assigned to Health and Mental Health Services:
- Provides direct services and clinical care including physical health or mental health assessment, treatment, and education;
- Develops and plans the Health and Mental Health Services Program and coordinates Health Services activity such as:
 - o clinical care of students with mental health needs
 - o first aid, assessment, and/or immediate referral to a nurse or doctor
 - Health/Mental Health services outreach activities
 - o first aid kits throughout the campus
 - Wellness education, events, and trainings for students;
 - Monitors clinical practice according to Health Services and College and District policies and procedures, as well as applicable County, State, and Federal regulations, licenses, and standards to ensure compliance and the quality of care provided in the student health and mental health Services program;
- Maintains a secure, accessible system of confidential medical and mental health records in accordance with applicable standards of practice and State and Federal laws, including responding to requests for records:
- Supervises and trains graduate or post-graduate level trainees or interns;
- Provides and/or coordinates campus crisis intervention services, training, and response;
- Provides education, trainings and consultation to faculty, staff, and administrators;
- Represents Health and Mental Health Services on college and district committees;
- Conducts ongoing evaluation of programs, staff and student workers;
- Serves as liaison to college administration, faculty, and staff regarding Health Services issues and concerns;
- Serves as liaison to campus and/or community agencies, including referral to campus or community agencies and follow-up services;
- May represent the college in District and in State Health Services activities;
- Keeps current with trends and developments in the field through appropriate literature, conferences, and other information sources;

• Perform related tasks as assigned.

A11. [FORM] LEAVE BANKING PROGRAM APPLICATION

College	
Requested For: Banked Hours Use of Banked Hou	rrs (Leave) Cash-out Banked Hours
Instructor name:SS	S #
Term Applied For: Beginning:	Ending:
Number of Hours to be banked or cashed out: Semester Equated Ho	ours: Summer Equated Hours:
Instructor's Signature:	Date:
Status: Tenured Probationary, indicate Contract FTE during cu	
Date last banked leave taken/paid:	
Number of hours used or cashed:	
Balance of banked hours:	
Budget code to be charged (for banked hours only):	
Initial Date of hire (Seniority):	
Rate of pay (Pro-Rata Schedule):	
Verified by:	Date:
APPROVED NOT APPROVED (for taking Division Dean: Vice President of Instruction: College Business Officer: Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs:	Date:
Reason for request not being approved:	
HUMAN RESOURCES OFFICE Date Entered and Recorded:	:

- **CONVERSION FACTORS:**
 - To convert semester equated hours to quarter equated hours multiply by 1.5
 - To convert quarter equated hours to semester equated hours multiply by 0.667
 - To convert summer semester hours divide by 3
 - To convert summer quarter hours divide by 2

A12. SIDE LETTERS

12.1 Two-Year Contract Extension: November 21, 2006

Subject: Two Year Extension package as approved by the PFT Executive Board and the faculty at a Membership meeting on Thursday, November 16, 2006

- 1. Two-year extension of the 2004 2007 Agreement as modified by the new, accompanying, Article 22 F:
 - a) All provisions of the 2004-2007 Agreement, except as amended above, will be extended through June 30, 2009.
 - b) All dates in the 2004-2007 Agreement will be extended to reflect the new, two-year time frame
 - c) Sabbaticals and other similarly worded provisions of the 2004 2007 Agreement will be pro-rated. For example, the 2004-2007. Agreement provides 9.0 FTE Sabbaticals for three years, 3.0 FTE per year. Pro-rated, the 2007-2009 extension provides 6.0 FTE Sabbaticals, 3.0 FTE per year. The District and the PFT agree to waive Sabbatical application deadlines for 2006 2007 and allow colleges to consider applications in spring 2007 for the 2007 2008 academic year only.
- 2. Approval of a new 25 step salary schedule for regular, probationary, and long-term substitute faculty members. When the 25 Step Schedule is fully funded, the 7 longevity steps on the current salary schedule will be eliminated.
- 3. 3% salary increase for 06-07 as follows: \$1,000, 000
 - a. Effective December 1, 2006, 2% will go on the new 25 step salary schedule in eight equal monthly installments (December 2006 to July 2007, approximately \$670,000)
 - b. Effective January 1, 2007 1% will go to fully fund Step 6 of the part-time teacher/extra-service salary schedules for the spring 2007 semester and partially fill Step 7 (approximately \$335,000)
 - 4. During the two- year extension, for 2007 2008 and 2008 2009, additional funding of the 25 Step salary schedule and Step 7 of the part-time / extra service salary schedules shall be provided by the difference between the Bay Area's Consumer Price Index (CPI) and the state provided COLA, and from new money, such as growth, equalization, or other new state funds. For example, if the Bay Area CPI is 3% and the state funded COLA is 4%. The 3%"CPI will be added to all faculty salaries as a 3% salary increase. The 1% difference will be used to fund the 25 Step Salary Schedule and Step 7 of the part-time and extraservice salary schedules on a 2:1 pro-rated basis. New monies, if they exist, will be negotiated to be applied to the 25 Step Salary Schedule and Step 7 of the part-time teacher/extra-service salary schedules.

- 5. Raising entry-level contract salaries
 - a. Effective January 1, 2007 all new tenure track faculty hires will be placed on Step 7 as a minimal placement.
 - b. Effective Fall 2007, all faculty who move to Step 8 will be moved an additional step to Step 9. For 2007-2008, all new faculty hires will be placed on steps 7 through 9, wherever they qualify.
 - c. Effective Fall 2008, all new faculty hires will be placed between on Steps through 10, wherever they qualify.
- 6. Professional Development Days: At the request of the Chancellor, PFT agrees to allow the District to require contract, probationary and long-term substitute instructional faculty attendance at one professional day each semester. Faculty will earn professional development credit for attending. The District agrees that the content of the required days will be determined by the District Staff Development Officer and the College Staff Development Committees. The District also agrees to provide reasonable, additional funding to pay for the activities on those days. If the program for the required staff development days includes workplace rules or conduct, the PFT will be consulted and will have the right to participate in the activity if it so chooses.
- 7. Intersession: The PFT agrees that all intersessions the District offers will be treated as out of calendar days, like summer school, and part-time faculty who work during those days will not be able to use that work/time to claim probationary status. The District agrees that all intersession assignments will be voluntary. This agreement will remain in effect until January 31, 2008, at which time it will expire unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, in writing. Between the ratification of the two-year extension and the January 31, 2008 deadline, the District and the PFT will meet and negotiate work load issues pertaining to intersession assignments. If at the end of the deadline agreement is not reached, this language will sunset. If the language sunsets, both sides reserve the right to a re-open on this issue at any time after the sunset

PERALTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

12.2 Two-Year Contract Extension – Recitals PFT Proposal No.3;"Overarching" Proposal 11/20/2006

Note: the words added in bold/underlined are for clarity, and do not change the intention previously expressed by PFT in the meeting held at the District on October 31, 2006.

INTRODUCTION

This Agreement is by and between the Peralta Community College District and the Peralta Federation of Teachers, AFT Local 1603, CFT/AFT, AFL-CIO in its representation of District bargaining unit members.

This Agreement shall become effective upon ratification by the Peralta Federation of Teachers and approval by the Peralta Community College District Board of Trustees. This Agreement shall be known as the "2007-2009 Article 22 Agreement."

RECITALS

- 1. Whereas the parties desire to extend the 2004-2007 Agreement, except as modified by the terms of the extension agreement of the parties and as specified in this "2007-2009 Article 22. Agreement" herein; and,
- 2. Whereas the parties desire to amend Article 22 of the 2004-2007 Agreement and to include the instant 2007-2009 Article 22. Agreement in place of Article 22, of the 2004-2007 Agreement; and
- 3. Whereas this Agreement revises 22, including but not limited to Articles 22.F.2.c. and 22.F.3.c. of the 2004-2007 Agreement insofar as the language as currently drafted does not entirely reflect the mutual understanding or intent of the parties;
- 4. Whereas PFT is willing to revise Article 22.F. bf the collective bargaining agreement consistent with the parties' understandings and contingent on the District agreement to the appended revised Article 22. And, further that PFT is willing to make these revisions only as part of a package that includes additional benefits to the PFT bargaining unit including additional changes to Article 22 that were not previously negotiated between the parties in the 2003-2004 negotiations, but which inure to the benefit of the employees affected hereby; and,
- 5. Whereas the parties agree that the revisions/modifications to Article 22 contained herein are minimal, narrowly drawn, consistent with the intent of the program, and incidental to an innocent purpose; and
- 6. Whereas the parties have considered the effects of these changes on the involved employees; and
- 7. Whereas the parties agree that the revisions/modifications to the language in Article 22 regarding benefits provided to bargaining unit employees, <u>and future</u> retirees' surviving spouses' and dependents is reasonable" inasmuch as it is fully offset by comparable new advantages to the affected <u>future</u> retirees as demonstrated by the revised Article 22, attached hereto as Exhibit 1 which generally returns to the pre-2004language contained within the 2000-2003 Agreement <u>Except [in some cases]</u> as to faculty hired on or after July 1, 2004; and,
- 8. Whereas the parties agree that the modifications herein are intended to protect the integrity of the district retiree health benefits plan; and
- 9. Whereas the parties desire to resolve any differences regarding the interpretation or application of the previous language by this Agreement without the cost and expense of further dispute and/or litigation or arbitration.

SPECIFIC TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT

Now, therefore, the PFT and the District agree as follows:

- 1. The District shall agree to an extension of the 2004-2007 agreement up to and including June 30, 2009. The terms of this extension agreement shall be (1) the 2004-2007 Agreement; and, (2) as modified by the instant agreement and its attached revised Article 22, and, (3) as set forth in a separate extension agreement. The instant Agreements and the separate "Extension Agreement" shall not be valid and operational unless all three agreements are ratified and approved by the District Board of Trustees, and approved by the PFT, no later than November 28, 2006, σas of such other date as the parties otherwise agree, in writing by an amendment to this Agreement. PFT shall act to approve these agreements in accordance with its applicable procedures and practices, as determined solely by the PFT.
- 2. Revised Article 22 hereto shall be and hereby is substituted for current Article 22 in the collective bargaining Agreement, <u>effective upon ratification by the parties</u>. It shall also become part of the parties 2007-2009 Agreement, and therefore in the extended agreement adopted hereto.
- 3. This Agreement to revise and amend previously agreed upon contract language shall not be considered precedential for any purpose and shall not be cited by the District in subsequent I negotiations or in any proceeding as evidence in support, of or opposed to any other change in this, or any subsequent, collective bargaining agreement.

4. Hold harmless clause:

- a. This clause shall take effect only if the interpretation <u>or application</u> of the language contained in Articles 22.F.2.c. and 22.F.3.c. of the 2004-2007 Agreement is challenged in an appropriate forum, and the PFT is named as a party in such action.
- b. The parties acknowledge that the District and the PFT may not currently agree on the legal interpretation or effect of the current language contained in 22.F.2.c. and 22.F.3.c. of the 2004-2007 Agreement between the parties. However, the parties expressly acknowledge that the current language the 2004-2007 Agreement does not entirely reflect the intent of the parties in the 2003-2004 negotiations.
- c. In exchange for the revisions/modifications to the language contained in Articles 22.F.2.c. and 22.F.3.c. of the 2004-2007 Agreement, the District has agreed to other modifications in the language set forth in Article 22. of the 2004-2007 agreement, which the District and PFT consider to be improvements in the contract as a whole and in Article 22 in' particular.
- d. The parties further agree that nothing in this Agreement, or in the agreement memorializing changes in Article 22.F. shall be construed as acceptance by the PFT of the District's position on the interpretation of language contained in 22.F.2.c. and 22.F.3.c. of the 2004-2007 Agreement.
- e. Notwithstanding these possible differences of opinion, the parties agree that this agreement is a valid and binding collectively bargained agreement.
- f. Accordingly, should the language contained in 22.F.2.c. and 22.F.3.c. of the

2004-2007 Agreement be challenged in an appropriate forum, and if the PFT is named as a party in such action, the District hereby agrees to hold harmless and indemnify the PFT for any adverse final judgment. The cost of defense and attorney's fees incurred by the PFT in said matter shall be paid by the PFT.

A13. [FORM] PLACEMENT IN PREFERRED HIRING POOL FOR MULTIPLE DISCIPLINES

Faculty Member Name:	
Discipline Evaluated In:	
Evaluation Date:	
Date of Placement:	
Discipline(s) for Additional Pl	lacement:
Faculty Member Signature:	
Department Chair Name:	
Department Chair Signature:	
Dean Name:	
Dean Signature:	

A14. [FORM] DISTRICT OWNERSHIP OF ON-LINE AND WEB BASED MATERIAL

Faculty Member's Name		College		Discipline	
In detail, describe the work b buying?)	eing done, inclu	uding the specific de	liverables ((identify what exactly the Dis	trict is
Date work starts Date w	vork due Date I	Delivered Hourly rate	e of Pay	Total amount for the Project	
Extra Service or Part of Load	Ancilla	ary (Signature of PF7	Presider	nt)	
District ownership shall cease date:			rship by th	e faculty member, after the fo	ollowing
Faculty Member Signature*]	Date	
Vice Chancellor of Academic	e Affairs		· -]	Date	

Note: By signing this form the faculty member is agreeing to give the PCCD copyright, patent, use, and royalty rights until the date specified above.

A15. LETTER OF AGREEMENT ON SALARY. MEDICAL AND DENTAL BENEFITS

1. Delta Dental

a. Since 2012-13, the PFT has contributed \$291,000 per year to keep the District's maximum contribution for dental at the United Healthcare (UHC) Dental family rate, as provided in the 2012-2015 agreement, in the section entitled "Dental Plans." PFT will continue to contribute this amount in the form of an offset.

PERALTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

A16. NON-SMART CLASSROOM CAMERAS BY COLLEGES AND ROOM NUMBERS (Provided by General Services on 10/25/13)

Alameda	Berke	ley	Laney	Merritt	
B201	14	311	A233	A100	D200
	15	315	A239	A106	D204
C105	31	316	A266	A113	D205
C109	32	321	A271	A116	
	33	322	AC110	A117	
C209	34	324	AC112	A122	D210
C210	51	341A	B130	A133	D224
C211	52	421	B153	A137	D228
C212	53	422	D107	A139	D233
	54	423	D200	A206	D234
D115	55	424	E200	A208	D247
D119	57	431	E207	A211	D252
D204	125	513	E211	A214	H101
D206	126		E254	A215	H105
D222	212		F200	A217	H108
D237	214		F204	A218	P103
D302	215	521	F255	D119	P107
D312	216	522	G130	D127	P111
L105	218		G181A.	D128	P203
L215	224	?514*			?P204*
L237		?515*			
		?518*	G189A	D132 .	
			G209		
				D133	P208
			G246	D136	P218
			G270	D137	P305
			TH426	D144	P306
			Forum	D165	P307
				D166	R028
				D178	SRH
					R110

^{*}Rooms crossed off on original survey

Peralta Community College District

A17. [FORM] FACULTY REQUEST FOR CLASSROOM VIDEO RECORDING

The Peralta Community College District (PCCD) and the Peralta Federation of Teachers (PFT) recognize that there may be good cause for a faculty member to request a video recording of the activity in their classroom for a specified purpose and period of time, as per item 16 of the Second Letter of Agreement Regarding the use of Cameras in the Classroom.

If recording is agreed upon by all the parties, it shall be the District's responsibility to post adequate notice that the area is being video-taped.

This Request to Record form shall be signed and delivered to the Associate Vice Chancellor of Information and Technology or designee. A copy of the form shall be provided to the PFT within forty-eight hours of receipt by the Associate Vice Chancellor's Office. Within one week of PFT's receipt, the faculty member, PFT, and Associate Vice Chancellor of Information and Technology shall meet to agree upon the terms of recording, including storage, access, use, beginning—and ending dates, as per item 16 of the Second Letter of Agreement Regarding the use of Cameras in the Classroom. A MOU signed by all three parties (the faculty member, PFT, and PCCD) will signify agreement. If there is no signed MOU, recording will not be permitted and shall not commence.

I,, a faculty member record my class or work area for the following reason(s):		Col	llege hereby request	District IT to video
Course Title:	Course #:	Code #:	Room #:	
From o'clock to	o'clock;			
Starting on:	20_; Ending on	, 20		
Signature of faculty member		ate		

PERALTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

A18. [FORM] INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY VERI	FICATION FORM
College:	Semester:
Year:	
The Information and Technology Department requires veri	fication from the Colleges as follows:
Please return the competed forms with all required signature no later than two weeks before the start of a new semester,	res to the Associate Vice Chancellor Information Technology, intersession, or summer school.
The Office of Instruction hereby verifies that no classes, in and year indicated above, with a start time of before 6:00 a	cluding weekend classes, are being offered for the semester .m., and/or end time of after 10:00 p.m.
start time before 6:00 a.m. or an end time after 10:00 p.m., via email, to the Associate Vice Chancellor for Information	sion, or summer school, where a class is to be offered with a the Vice President of Instruction shall provide written notice, a Technology, the Office of Human Resources and Employee or to the start of the class. The notice will identify the class,
Vice President of Instruction (Signature Required)	Date
College President (Signature Required)	Date
Cc: Office of Human Resources & Employee Relations PFT President	

FACULTY - CONTRACT AND ADJUNCT CLASSIFIED AND CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES – Full-time and Part-time

A19. [FORM] ENROLLMENT FEE WAIVER FORM

tion:Be	ererkeley City College ollege of Alameda			
La M	ney College ferritt College festrict Office			
rtment:				
Course Title	Course Number	Number of Units	Class Days	Class Times
or confidential	e employee is a regul employee, and therel		program.	

Upon approval of this form) complete your class registration with Admissions and Records. Then return this form to the Cashier's Office. The Cashier will waive the enrollment fee. You will be responsible for the student use fee and other fees that may be applicable.

A20. TENURE TRACK & TENURED CONTRACT FACULTY EVALUATION POLICIES & PROCEDURES HANDBOOK

The current version of the Tenure Track and Tenured Contract Faculty Evaluation Policies and Procedures Handbook, with full time and part time forms and side letters, can be found at the following website:

http://pft1603.org/?page_id=215

OR:

http://web.peralta.edu/educationalservices/faculty-evaluations-tenure-review/tr-handbook/

Please check for the most current version.

A21. [FORM] PART-TIME FACULTY AVAILABILITY & PREFERENCE

If you are interested in a part-time faculine return it to your Dean postmarked/ema	ty assignment fo ailed no later tha	or the Fall/Spring in <u>December/May o</u>	term, please com f the previous acade	plete this form and emic year.
Completion of this form does not guar	antee any partio	cular assignment.		
Please see Article 30 (Part-Time Te	mporary Instru	ctors) for additional	information.	
(Please Print)		Disciplina		
Name:	ent(s): Te	eaching Co	unseling Libra	arian
In order of preference, please rank from his being the highest. (Note: Selecting a prefe You will not be considered for an assignme Fall 2018 Semester:	erence for one-time	eslot does not guarante		
DAYS	7:30 am - 12:00 pm	12:00 pm – 3:00 pm	3:00 pm – 6:45 pm	After 6:45 pm
Mondays & Wednesdays				
Mondays, Wednesdays & Fridays				
Tuesdays and Thursdays				
Fridays				
Are you available for assignment(s) on nig Nights:MondaysTuesday classes) In order of preference, list the courses you	rs Wedne	sdays Thursd	tapply)Yes _ ays Fridays _	No Saturdays (day
Online courses				
Online courses: Please note any limitations or other comm before 10:00 am)	nents to any of yo	our preference above.	(For example: I am una	vailable on Tuesdays or
Contactinformation:				_
Print Name: Home Phone: () Email address:		Alternative Phor	Date: ne: ()	:/
Signature:				
Please note: The above contact informatio				

personnel records. Changes in phone numbers, address or other contact information should be made as soon as possible through the Office of Human Resources.



PERALTA FEDERATION OF TEACHERS, AFT LOCAL #1603

A22. [FORM] PFT MEMBERSHIP APPLICATION

Membership allows you to vote, receive benefits, and add your voice to the union. *It does not increase your union deduction.* To be a voting member of the union and become eligible for membership benefits, fill out this form and return it to the PFT. Dues are based on hours worked, so please <u>place a check mark</u> before the category that best describes your employment status. *Remember to sign and date it in the space provided.*

	2023-2024 Academic Year	and Summer 2023
Contract/Regular Faculty Dues are based on 0.017	55* of gross salary, plus approve	d AFT/CFT pass-through, due each month of employment.
*(or current approved rate)		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
Part Time/Hourly Faculty	EE* of gross solony plus approve	d AFT/CFT pass-through, due each month of employment.
*(or current approved rate)	oi gross salary, plus approve	d AFT/CFT pass-through, due each month of employment.
Name:	NON-Peralt	ta Email:
Address:	City/Zip:	
Home Tel:	Work Tel.:	Mobile:
College: Dept.: Employee ID#:	Birthdate (required	i):
	ws. I authorize PFT to act as my e	leration of Teachers, 1603 (hereafter "PFT") and I agree to exclusive representative in collective bargaining over with my employer.
- .		DATE:
AUTHORIZATION FOR DUES W	THHOLDING FROM FARNING	3 5
		from my earnings and pay over to PFT the regular
		rization will remain in effect and shall be irrevocable
		period not less than 30 days and not more than 45 days
		date of termination of the applicable contract between
	_	n shall be automatically renewed as an irrevocable check-
		w period, irrespective of my membership in PFT.
		however, under limited circumstances dues may qualify
as a business expense.		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
SIGNATURE:	DATI	E:
TURN OVER TO SELECT YOUR C		

APPENDIX	
	SUPPORT THE UNION'S COMMITTEE ON POLITICAL EDUCATION (COPE)
amount) per pay per authorization is sign disadvantaged beca contributions. AFT/C may be revoked at a	ny employer to deduct from my salary the sum of\$10\$15\$25 \$ (other riod and forward that amount to PFT's Committee On Political Action (COPE). This ed freely and voluntarily and not out of any fear of reprisal, and I will not be favored or use I exercise this right. I understand this money will be used by AFT/COPE to make political COPE may engage in joint fundraising efforts with the AFL-CIO. This voluntary authorization any time by notifying PFT's COPE in writing of the desire to do so.
SIGNATURE:	DATE:
	
	ACTIVATE \$5,000 OF GROUP LIFE INSURANCE AT NO COST TO YOU
available to me at no	nember within the last 12 months and I elect \$5,000 of Group Term Life Insurance which is cost for one full year as a new AFT member. I want to be covered under the group plan for am or may become eligible for, as requested below. The AFT provides this insurance for one AFT membership.
☐ I am actively at wand by 75 percent at My beneficiary is to	
	Relationship
knowledge and belice working, and not cube eligible for this continued will become effective knowingly and with insurance or a state of the state of	all statements and answers in this form are full, complete, and true to the best of my ef. I understand that to be eligible for coverage I must be a new AFT member, actively rrently insured under the Group Term Life Insurance plan for AFT members. In no event will I overage beyond 12 months from my AFT membership date. I understand that my coverage e on the first day of the month following the date this application is signed. Any person who intent to defraud any insurance company or other person files an AFT application for ment of claim containing any materially false information or conceals, for the purpose of tion concerning any fact material thereto commits a fraudulent insurance act, which may be eject such person to criminal and civil penalties. For questions, phone toll-free (888) 423-8700 pefits.org

Please return this original form to the PFT Office in any of the following ways: ∠

SIGNATURE: _____DATE: _____

By mail or drop-off in person → 500 East Eighth Street, Suite B, Oakland, CA 94606; By Intra-District mail → Peralta Federation of Teachers (PFT) Office; By Laney College mail → Laney Tower, PFT Department mailbox -or- Give it to your PFT Campus Rep.

A23. FACULTY HIRED UNDER ED CODE SECTION 87470

- 1. Ed Code Section 87470 only applies to academic employees hired in programs and projects to perform services conducted under a contract with a public or private agency, (usually one year), or other categorically funded project of indeterminate duration. They are temporary full-time faculty and may be hired on a full- or part-time basis, consistent with district need and program requirements. Ed Code section 87470 does not apply to academic employees paid with "categorical" state funds under Ed Code Section 87470 (b), such as EOPS, and DSPS, etc. Ed Code Section 87470 also does not apply to any faculty member who has been employed in the regular educational programs of the District as a contract employee before being assigned to a categorically funded program.
- 2. All faculty hired under Ed Code Section 87470 are represented by the Peralta Federation of Teachers 1603 and are members of the bargaining unit.
- 3. All 87470 employees shall sign a contract (example is attached to this letter A35.4), acknowledging their status. The contract shall specify the length of the assignment. If these employees are hired on a one-year contract and subsequently hired for another one-year contract, they must sign an agreement at the beginning of each contract year.
- 4. This side letter shall be attached to all 87470 contracts.
- 5. A list of all faculty hired under Ed Code Section 87470 shall be sent to the PFT President every semester.
- 6. The signed contract shall include the following statement:

Ed Code Section 87470 only applies to academic employees hired in programs and projects to perform services conducted under a contact with a public or private agency, or other categorically funded project of indeterminate duration. Section 87470 only applies to academic employees hired under a specific contract with a public or private agency. A copy of that contact is attached to this agreement. Also attached to this agreement is a document summarizing your rights under the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the Peralta College District and the Peralta Federation of Teachers. Because you have been hired under Ed Code Section 87470, you do not have the same rights as other full-time contract faculty employed by PCCD. If you have any questions about your rights under the PFT/PCCD Collective Bargaining Agreement, you may contact the Peralta Federation of Teachers.

7. Full time employees hired under this Ed Code section must be paid 100% with funds from public or private agency contract. A full-time employee cannot be paid partially as an 87470 employee, and partially from Peralta's general fund or categorical (EOPS, DSPS) budget. These faculty can only work extra service if extra service is paid in full through their 87470 contract. Ed Code Section 87470, and the provisions of this Side Letter relating to categorical employees, apply only to faculty who are paid 100% from categorical funds, or to that portion of a position that is paid with categorical funds.

8. Because of the nature of the 87470-employment contract, some articles from the PFT/PCCD Collective Bargaining Agreement apply to these employees and some do not. The following chart is based on the current agreement and on the Ed Code and summarizes contractual rights of 87470 employees under the PCCD/PFT Collective Bargaining Agreement. If an 874780-faculty member has questions about rights under the CBA, they should contact the PFT office.

23.1 CBA ARTICLES WHICH APPLY IN THEIR ENTIRETY TO 87470 FACULTY

ARTICLE 1: RECOGNITION

ARTICLE 2: SUPPORT OF AGREEMENT

ARTICLE 3: EFFECT OF AGREEMENT

ARTICLE 4: ACADEMIC FREEDOM

ARTICLE 5: NON-DISCRIMINATION

ARTICLE 6: FEDERATION RIGHTS

ARTICLE 7: MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

ARTICLE 8: SEPARABILITY AND SAVINGS

ARTICLE 10: RESIGNATION

ARTICLE 12: SAFETY

ARTICLE 13: PERSONNEL FILES

ARTICLE 15: WORKING CONDITIONS

ARTICLE 16: INTRA-DISTRICT MILEAGE

ARTICLE 17: ACADEMIC CALENDAR

ARTICLE 19: GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

ARTICLE 21: SALARY (assuming salary schedule is identified in contract with employee)

ARTICLE 22: HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS

*NOTE: 87470 faculty shall receive the same health and welfare benefits and COBRA rights as other faculty. If they have continuous full-time employment at

Peralta in any capacity, they qualify for the same retirement benefits as regular academic faculty with the same hire date and the same continuous service.

ARTICLE 29: RETIREMENT

ARTICLE 32: VOLUNTARY SICK LEAVE CONTRIBUTION

ARTICLE 33: DISTANCE EDUCATION

ARTICLE 34: USE OF CAMERAS IN CLASSROOMS

ARTICLE 35: TERM OF AGREEMENT

23.2 CBA ARTICLES WHICH DO NOT APPLY TO 87470 FACULTY

ARTICLE 9: INTRA-DISTRICT

ARTICLE 23: SENIORITY LIST

ARTICLE 24: REDUCTION IN FORCE

ARTICLE 27: REDUCTION TO PART-TIME

ARTICLE 28: MATRICULATION

ARTICLE 30: PART-TIME TEMPORARY INSTRUCTORS

ARTICLE 31: SUMMER SESSION AND INTERSESSION

23.3 CBA ARTICLES WHICH PARTIALLY APPLY TO 87470 FACULTY

ARTICLE 11: FACULTY EVALUATION AND TENURE

* 87470 Faculty all are evaluated as using the "Part-time and Tenured" procedures, since they are not tenure-track faculty

ARTICLE 14: SPECIAL ASSIGNMENTS

- *87470 faculty may NOT vote for, run for or be elected as Dept Chairs as part of their 87470 assignment
- *87470 faculty may not be offered or accept special assignments which involve release time
- *87470 faculty may accept special assignments involving stipends

ARTICLE 18: HOURS, WORKLOAD, CLASS SIZE

- *This article applies unless otherwise noted in the signed individual contract between the District and the faculty member. It is understood that this employment agreement is individually negotiated between the District and the employee.
- *Section F (Counselors) does not apply to 87470 faculty

ARTICLE 20: DISCIPLINARY ACTION AND INVESTIGATIVE PROCEDURES

*Need language specifying when these employees will be treated as

"probationary" employees and when they will be treated as "temporary employees"

ARTICLE 25: PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

*unless it is otherwise specified in the signed individual contract, 87470 faculty will be allowed to participate fully in flex day activities

ARTICLE 26: LEAVES

- A. Leave of Absence DOES NOT apply to 87470 faculty
- B. Effect of Leaves on Faculty Status DOES NOT apply to 87470 faculty
- C. Sick Leave Applies to 87470 faculty
- D. Bereavement Leave Applies to 87470 faculty
- E. Use of Sick Leave for Personal Reasons Applies to 87470 faculty
- F. Industrial Accident and Illness Leave Applies to 87470 faculty
- G. Parental Leave Applies to 87470 faculty
- H. Quarantine Leave Applies to 87470 faculty
- I. Jury Duty Applies to 87470 faculty
- J. Subpoena Leave Applies to 87470 faculty
- K. Federation Leave Applies to 87470 faculty
- L. Educational Leave DOES NOT apply to 87470 faculty
- M. Research/Work Experience Leave DOES NOT apply to 87470 faculty
- N. Long-term Personal Necessity Leave DOES NOT apply to 87470 faculty
- O. Legislative Leave DOES NOT apply to 87470 faculty
- P. Military Leave Applies to 87470 faculty (if leave is for part of academic year)
- Q. Exchange Leave DOES NOT apply to 87470 faculty
- R. Professional Development Leave (Sabbatical) DOES NOT apply to 87470 faculty
- S. Retraining Leave DOES NOT apply to 87470 faculty
- T. Leave Banking DOES NOT apply to 87470 faculty
- U. Family Care Leave Applies to 87470 faculty

23.4 ED CODE 87470.

(a)

- (1) The governing board of a community college district may employ academic employees, including educational administrators, in programs and projects to perform services conducted under contract with public or private agencies, or other categorically funded projects of indeterminate duration under terms and conditions mutually agreed upon by the employee and the governing board. The agreement shall be reduced to writing.
 - (2) Service pursuant to this section shall not be included in computing the service required as a prerequisite to attainment of, or eligibility to, classification as a regular employee of a community college district unless both of the following occur:
 - (A) The person has served as a faculty member pursuant to this section for at least 75 percent of the number of days in regular schools of the district by which they are employed are maintained.
 - (B) The person is subsequently employed as a contract employee in a faculty position.
 - (3) Persons may be employed for periods that are less than a full college year and may be terminated at the expiration of the contract or specially funded project without regard to other requirements of this code respecting the termination of contract or regular employees.
 - (b) This section shall not be construed to apply to any faculty member who has been employed in the regular educational programs of the district as a contract employee before being subsequently assigned to any one of these programs, nor shall it apply to those employees employed in programs operated pursuant to, or funded pursuant to, Article 8 (commencing with Section 69640) of Chapter 2 of Part 42, or Section 84850.
 - (c) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, upon termination or expiration of employment under this section, a person employed as an educational administrator shall not be entitled to the rights set forth in Section 87458 unless those rights are provided pursuant to their contract of employment.

PERALTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT Office of Human Resources

23.5 [FORM] ACADEMIC EMPLOYEE AGREEMENT CATEGORICALLY FUNDED POSITION

OSITION		
Location:	Date:	
Name:	SSN:	-
Address:	(City)	(Zip)
Source of Funds (Agency):	· • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	
	SECTION 1	
	nporary academic assignment in a 70, a copy of which is attached he	
perform services conducted unfunded project of indetermine hired under a specific contract to this agreement. Also attach the Collective Bargaining A Federation of Teachers. Becan have the same rights as other	applies to academic employees hader a contract with a public or private duration. Section 87470 only twith a public or private agency. And to this agreement is a document agreement between the Peralta Couse you have been hired under Eder full-time contract faculty employed and the PFT/PCCD Collective For Teachers.	ate agency, or other categorically applies to academic employees copy of that contract is attached summarizing your rights under college District and the Peralta Code Section 87470, you do not yed by PCCD. If you have any
- •	made subject to the following terms	s and conditions:
Period of Employment: From	:то:	
Hours Per Week:		

\sim	-		
Ć,	al	ary	٠
v	aı	ai v	٠

SECTION II

Upon acceptance of this offer, you will be classified as a categorically funded employee pursuant to Section 87470 of the California Education Code, with employment in a program or project conducted under contract with a public or private agency or other categorically funded project of indeterminate duration.

While service in such classification, you will not be a regular contract employee of this District, nor will your time served in such classification be included in computing service required as a prerequisite of attainment of, or eligibility to, classification as a regular employee of the Peralta Community College District, except as provided by Education Code Section 87470.

Your employment may be terminated by the Board of Trustees of this District without regard to other requirements of the Education Code respecting the termination of contract or regular certificated employees. During the term of this Agreement, you may be terminated at the discretion of the Board of Trustees for any lawful reason upon three days' notice. Such termination is not subject to judicial review, grievance, or other administrative review.

This offer of employment is made subject to the applicable laws of the State of California and to the relevant policies of the Board of Trustees of this District, all of which by reference are made a part of the terms and conditions of this offer of employment as though they have been fully set forth herein.

This offer of employment and your acceptance of the offer will result in a contract of employment with the District upon approval of the Board of Trustees.

ACCEPTANCE

I ACCEPT the offer of employment under the terms and conditions stated in the Agreement.

<u>I UNDERSTAND</u> that to be legally employed as an academic employee, I must hold the required academic degree(s) and experience that authorizes service in the area to which assigned and comply with other laws and regulations governing this employment.

<u>I UNDERSTAND</u> that serving in this position, I am not a contract or regular employee and that my employment ends at the expiration of the assignment described in the Agreement or if the funding for such assignment ceases to exist, unless otherwise terminated in accordance with Section II above.

<u>I UNDERSTAND</u> that this contract is a full and complete statement of the terms of my employment with the Peralta Community College District. No terms inconsistent with this contract (including, but not limited to, terms affecting the Period of Employment of Salary) is effective unless in writing and executed by a designated representative of the District Board of Trustees.

Signature	Date
DISTRICT ADM	MINISTRATIVE APPROVAL
College Administrator	Date
Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs	Date

W:\Data\Common\HR Forms and Documents\Academic Employee Agreement - Categorically Funded Position.doc

ELECTION OF DEPARTMENT CHAIR Term election is held (e.g., Spring 2015) Department, College

The department chair job description and details of the election process can be found in the PFT contract (article 14, appendix 17). This election covers selection of a department chair for the next academic year. The reassigned time for the chair also follows the process in the PFT contract.

<u>To be counted, ballots must be received in </u>*Insert Dean's Name Here office by Insert Here Date, Time.*

A write-in slot is provided, but be sure that your colleague is willing to serve if elected as chair of this department.

Vote for one		
Name/names, co-chair/s		
Write-in		
	INSTRUCTIONS	

- 1. Place the upper part of this ballot in a small envelope and seal the envelope. Do **NOT** write anything on this **SMALL** envelope.
- 2. Place the small envelope containing the ballot in a large envelope and seal this envelope also. In the upper left corner of the <u>LARGE</u> envelope, <u>PRINT</u> your name and department and <u>SIGN</u> legibly. Your ballot will not be counted unless you sign your name.
- 3. Return your ballot to the office of Dean Insert Dean's Name Here.

APPENDIX A25. [FORM] SPLIT CLASS ASSIGNMENT AGREEMENT FORM

Instructor Name:	Signature:
Co-Instructor Name:	Signature:
Course Name:	
Course ID (CID) Number:	
Semester/Year:	
Course Equated Hours:	
Portion of Course to be Assign	ned to Instructor (as a percentage of the equated hours):

By my signature above, I hereby agree to split the course named above and understand that:

- I will receive a load and commensurate pay associated with the percentage of the total course equated hours.
- My semester load will only include the percentage of total course equated hours for this class.
- I am not required to accept a split assignment and the offer of a split assignment shall not constitute the contractually obligated offer of assignment or any part thereof.
- The acceptance or refusal of any split class assignment shall have no bearing on my current/future offers of assignments.
- I will work jointly with my co-instructor(s) to provide an annotated syllabus delineating grading, course content, and dates for teaching to the Office of Instruction by the end of _ the first week of classes.

A26. Public Service Loan Forgiveness

The Peralta Federation of Teachers (PFT) and Peralta Community College District ("District") have come to an agreement on how to process Public Service Loan Forgiveness applications.

- For faculty, a full-time load will be regarded as a 40-hour work week.
- Annual load for part-time faculty will be calculated as (Fall + Spring + Summer)/2.
- A part-time load will be credited as a pro-rata percentage of the 40 hours.

Teaching Load	Public Service Loan Forgiveness Hours Per Week (Section 3 #8)
1.0	40
0.6	24
0.5	20
0.4	16

The required number of hours to qualify for PSLF is 30, so if you are a faculty member teaching full-time, you already qualify. If you are teaching part-time you may combine your hours within PCCD with hours at another public educational institution or 501c (3) non-profit in order to qualify.

STEP 1

In order to apply for Public Service Loan Forgiveness, carefully follow all instructions to complete the Public Service Loan Forgiveness (PSLF): Employment Certification Form (OMB No. 1845-0110) pages 1 and 2. Be sure to **verify** the following:

- Section 3 #6 —you must check the box labeled "Still employed"
- Section 3 #9 PCCD is a governmental organization. Check "Yes" and skip to section 4

The Employer Certification Section will be completed by HR.

STEP 2

Make a copy for your records, and send the form along with a note requesting a copy of the completed form to the HR Generalist for your home campus.

Visit link below to look up HR staff service areas http://web.peralta.edu/hr/hr-staff-roles-and-contact-info/

STEP 3

You must recertify every year. Mark your calendar to submit the form again one year from now. After 120 qualified payments, the remainder of your loan balance will be forgiven.

A27. Peralta/CoreSource Dependent Eligibility Audit

Our goal is to eliminate ineligible dependents from the health plans with the least impact on employees. To achieve this, the Benefit Team intends to establish an all-inclusive project team (With PFT, SEIU, L39, Confidential and PRO representation); increase concise, timely communications; communicate in various formats (email, mail, phone, etc.); seek input and assistance throughout the process. (Approximate medical dependents: 1,300 individuals).

Basic Principles of Dependent Audits:

- 1. At least six months prior to a planned audit, the District shall contact all Union representatives and necessary administrators to work together on a timeline that would include:
 - formation of a Project Team;
 - pre-announcement –Every month then every week;
 - first mailings with return post marked envelopes;
 - follow up mailings;
 - setting of deadline to complete audit; and
 - multiple ways employees and retirees will be contacted about the audit and followup information.
- 2. All Union representatives and necessary administrators shall sign off on the process and timelines. Simply mentioning something at a Benefits Committee meeting is not enough.
- 3. Benefits office will invite Peralta Retirees Organization (PRO) to the discussions and meetings as "subject area experts" with expertise in how to best reach retirees.
- 4. All materials regarding the audit to be developed and reviewed by all parties(and PRO)beforebeing distributed. Timelines for sending the materials to the Unions will be included in #1 above.
- 5. If documentation from a unit member or retiree is not received by whatever deadline is agreed onNovember 30, the District shall instruct CoreSource to suspend payment of benefits for that dependentpending receipt of the required documentation. This would mean that if a claim comes in, CoreSource would not process the claim, but instead would send an EOB(Explanation of Benefits form)saying "we cannot process this claim because we have not received documentation which verifies your benefits eligibility."
- 6. When the audit process is concluded, the Benefits Department will contact, via letter, employees who did not submit the required documentation. The letter will notify them that their dependent's CoreSource/Kaiser coverage will be terminated as ofJanuary 1, 2020, due to non-submission of required documentation. TheBenefits office shall have up to sixty days after notification to reverse this termination of coverage, if documentation is provided to the Benefits office. (see #10 below).
- 7. All Union representatives and necessary administrators will have access to a created inbox that has regular updates, including receipt of documents. In addition, there will be weekly notification to all parties.
- 8. Overall, PFT and PCCD shall agree that no dependents will be removed without multiple efforts to let the Peralta employee/retiree know they must verify their dependent's eligibility. Multiple

efforts shall include notification by USPS, email (if available) and telephone calls. No employee or their dependent shall be held responsible for either poor planning on the District's part, USPS delivery, or ability to efficiently mail materials and receive and process documents.

- 9. In the event that CoreSource/Kaiser denies coverage for a dependent, the District will notify the PFT (if employee is active) or PRO (if employee is retired) within 5 business daysof making that determination. All notifications shall comply with HIPPA regulations. Notification will include name of employee (retiree) and name of dependent, subject to HIPPA regulations.
- 10. If terminated dependent submits documentation within 60 days of non-compliance datethe Benefits Office will notify the union representatives and necessary administrators to discuss the reinstating of the dependent. If terminated dependents produce documentation confirming their entitlement to benefits, they shall be promptly reinstated.
- 11. The District will not ask for the Social Security Numbers of dependents.
- 12. The District shall make every effort to save copies of verification documents (such as birth certificates) sent in by Peralta employees during this process. While documentation will be required in the 2019 dependent audit, on the 2021 audit, in subsequentaudits, Peralta employees will be allowed to simply check a box saying that the documents are still valid, rather than having to send them in again and again.